
 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
City Council Chambers, 33 East Broadway Avenue Meridian, Idaho 

Tuesday, April 05, 2022 at 4:30 PM 

All materials presented at public meetings become property of the City of Meridian. Anyone desiring accommodation 
for disabilities should contact the City Clerk's Office at 208-888-4433 at least 48 hours prior to the public meeting. 

Agenda 

VIRTUAL MEETING INSTRUCTIONS 

To join the meeting online: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81427067896 

Or join by phone: 1-669-900-6833 
Webinar ID: 814 2706 7896 

ROLL CALL ATTENDANCE 

____ Jessica Perreault   ____ Joe Borton   ____ Brad Hoaglun 

____ Treg Bernt   ____ Liz Strader   ____ Luke Cavener 

____ Mayor Robert E. Simison 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 

1. Approve Minutes of the March 15, 2022 City Council Work Session 

2. Approve Minutes of the March 15, 2022 City Council Regular Meeting 

3. Approve Minutes of the March 22, 2022 City Council Work Session 

4. Approve Minutes of the March 22, 2022 City Council Regular Meeting 

5. Apex Northwest Subdivision No. 1 Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement No. 1 

6. Apex Northwest Subdivision No. 1 Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement No. 2 

7. Chukar Ridge Subdivision Emergency Access Easement Agreement 

8. Everest Office Water Main Easement 

9. Roaring Springs East Expansion Water Main Easement No. 1 

10. Roaring Springs East Expansion Water Main Easement No. 2 

11. Shelburne South No. 1 and 2 Sanitary Sewer Easement No. 3 

12. TM Crossing Subdivision No. 5 Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement No. 1 

Page 1



13. TM Crossing Subdivision No. 5 Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement No. 2 

14. Topgolf Water Main Easement 

15. Final Plat for Graycliff Estates Subdivision No. 2 (FP-2022-0005) by KB Home, 
Located at 684 W. Harris St. 

16. Final Plat for Skybreak No. 1 (FP-2021-0058) by DevCo, LLC, Located at 3487 E. 
Adler Hoff Ln. and 7020 S. Eagle Rd. 

17. Final Order for TM Center No. 1 (FP-2022-0009) by Brighton Development, Inc., 
Generally Located on the East Side of S. Ten Mile Rd. Between S. Vanguard Way 
and W. Cobalt Dr. 

18. Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Budget Blinds Subdivision (SHP-2022-
0003) by Stephanie Hopkins of KM Engineering, LLP, Located at 1850 W. Everest 
Ln., at the Southwest Corner of W. Chinden Blvd. and N. Linder Rd. 

19. Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Heron Village Expansion (H-2021-0027) 
by Tamara Thompson of The Land Group, Inc., Located at 51, 125 and 185 E. Blue 
Heron Ln. 

20. Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Moberly Rezone (H-2021-0089) by Carl 
Argon, Located on Parcel R0406010125, South of W. Broadway Ave. Between NW 
2nd St. and NW 1st St. 

21. Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Victory Commons Condominiums (SHP-
2022-0002) by BVA Development, Located at 2976 S. Meridian Rd. (Lot 4, Block 1 
of Victory Commons Subdivision No 2) 

22. Development Agreement (H-2021-0095 Inglewood Commercial) Between the City 
of Meridian and James Peterson for Property Located at 3330 E. Victory Rd. 

23. Development Agreement (H-2021-0101 Meridian U-Haul Moving and Storage) 
Between the City of Meridian and Amerco Real Estate Company for Property 
Located at 1230 and 1270 E. Overland Rd. 

24. Development Agreement (H-2021-0052 Bright Star Care Meridian) Between the 
City of Meridian and Brightstar Meridian Road, LLC for Property Located at 3336 
and 3340 N. Meridian Rd. 

25. Artist Acceptance Agreements for Display of Artwork in Initial Point Gallery in 
2022 

26. License and Indemnity Agreement Between City of Meridian and Coastline 
Equipment for 2022 Public Works Week Mini Heavy Equipment Rodeo 

27. Task Order 10567 to JUB Engineers, Inc. for Water and Sewer Replacement at E. 
Idaho Ave. from NE 3rd St. to 6th St. for the Not-to-Exceed Amount of $225,515.00 

28. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Housing, Public Facility, 
and Infrastructure Project Recommendations for Program Year 2022 

ITEMS MOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 

Page 2



DEPARTMENT / COMMISSION REPORTS [Action Item] 

29. Arts Commission Annual Update 

30. Historic Preservation Commission Annual Update 

31. Resolution No. 22-2320: A Resolution of the Mayor and the City Council of the City 
of Meridian, Appointing Steve Cory, Jo Greer, Pam Jagosh, Megan Larson, John 
Nesmith, and Walter Steed to the Meridian Districting Committee; Directing the 
City Clerk to Convene the Meridian Districting Committee as Soon as Practicable; 
Directing the City Clerk to Post Meridian Districting Committee Agendas and 
Minutes on the City of Meridian’s Website; Directing the City Clerk to Post the 
Census Data to be Used by the Meridian Districting Committee on the City of 
Meridian’s Website; Establishing a Date for the Meridian Districting Committee to 
Transmit the Meridian Districting Plan to the City Clerk; and Providing an Effective 
Date 

32. Fire Department: Fire Stations 7 and 8 Bid Package Updates 

ADJOURNMENT 

Page 3



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Approve Minutes of the March 15, 2022 City Council Work Session

Page 4

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session                    March 15, 2022. 
 
A Meeting of the Meridian City Council was called to order at  4:33 p.m., Tuesday,  March 
15, 2022, by President Brad Hoaglun.  
 
Members Present:  Brad Hoaglun, Joe Borton, Treg Bernt, Jessica Perreault and Liz 
Strader. 
 
Members Absent:  Robert Simison and Luke Cavener. 
 
Also present:  Chris Johnson, Bill Nary, Dave Miles, Mark Ford, Joe Bongiorno and Dean 
Willis. 
 
ROLL-CALL ATTENDANCE   
  
  __X__ Liz Strader     __X__ Joe Borton 
  __X__ Brad Hoaglun        __X__ Treg Bernt 
  __X__ Jessica Perreault    _____ Luke Cavener 
              _____  Mayor Robert E. Simison 
 
Hoaglun:  Good afternoon, everybody.  Welcome to our City Council Work Session.  For 
the record I would like to call this meeting to order and today's date is March 15th at 4:33 
p.m. and the first order of business will be roll call.   
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
Hoaglun:  All right.  Next order of business is the adoption of the agenda -- of the agenda.  
Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  Mr. President, I would like to make a motion to adopt the agenda, striking -- Item 
No. 15 will be pulled.  Replace the item on 3/22.  With that change I move that we adopt 
the agenda as amended.   
 
Strader:  Second.   
 
Hoaglun:  I have a motion and a second to adopt the agenda as amended.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not, all those say aye.  Any opposed?  The ayes have it.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 
 
 1.  Approve Minutes of the March 1, 2022 City Council Work Session 
 
 2.  Approve Minutes of the March 1, 2022 City Council Regular Meeting 
 

Page 5

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 15, 2022  
Page 2 of 18 

 3.  Artemisia Subdivision Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement 
 
 4.  Quartet Northeast Subdivision No. 2 Sanitary Sewer and Water Main  
  Easement No. 1 
 
 5.  TM Crossing Lot 15 Partial Release of Water Main Easement 
 
 6.  TM Crossing Lot 16 Partial Release of Water Main Easement 
 
 7.  Final Order for Meridian Movado Village Subdivision (FP-2022-0002)  
  by Breckon Land Design, Located on the South Side of E. Overland  
  Rd. Between S. Eagle Rd. and S. Cloverdale Rd. 
 
 8.  Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Healthy Living    
  Condominiums (SHP-2022-0001) by KM Engineering, LLP, Located at   
  5155 S. Hillsdale Ave. 
 
 9.  Development Agreement (H-2021-0065 Aviator Springs) Between the  
  City of Meridian and Acclima, Inc. for Property Located at 3235 N.  
  McDermott Rd. 
 
 10.  Development Agreement (H-2021-0075 - Rackham East Subdivision)  
  Between the City of Meridian and BVA Rolling Hills No. 1 (Owner) and 
  Brighton Development, Inc. (Developer) for Property Located on the  
  South Side of I-84, 1/4 Mile East of S. Eagle Rd. 
 
 11.  Agreement Between the City of Meridian and Meridian Youth Baseball 
  (MYB) for Priority Use of Sports Facilities for the 2022 Season 
 
 12.  Sole Source Purchase of Andritz Centrifuge Equipment and Related  
  Software and Associated Replacement Parts Through Andritz   
  Separation, Inc. 
 
 13.  Parks and Recreation Department: Meridian Community Pool Fees 
 
Hoaglun:  All right.  Next item is the Consent Agenda.   
 
Bernt:  Mr. President?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  I would like to move that -- to approve the Consent Agenda, for the Council 
President to sign and for the Clerk to attest.   
 
Strader:  Second.   
 

Page 6

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 15, 2022  
Page 3 of 18 

Hoaglun:  I have a motion and a second to approve the Consent Agenda.  Is there any 
discussion?  Hearing none, all those in favor signify by saying aye.  Any opposed?  And 
that was all ayes.  Consent Agenda is approved.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
ITEMS MOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 
 
Hoaglun:  No items were removed from the Consent Agenda.  
 
DEPARTMENT / COMMISSION REPORTS [Action Item] 
 
 14.  Solid Waste Advisory Commission Annual Update 
 
Hoaglun:  So, the next item is Department and Commission Reports.  Up first we will hear 
from our Solid Waste Advisory Commission and their annual update and, Steve, you can 
take us away.   
 
Cory: Thank you, Mr. President, Members of Council.  I am Steve Cory, chairman of the 
Solid Waste Advisory Commission.  I'm here representing the commission to report on 
our 2021 activities.  I bring you their best wishes and the commission has appreciated 
being at full staff this year.  Commissioner Meg Larsen served as vice-chair.  Isabel Kau 
completed two years of stellar service as a youth commissioner and we are pleased to 
welcome Kayleigh Philippi as the current youth commissioner, who is in attendance.  One 
of our primary responsibilities is the community recycling fund program.  The fund had an 
initial balance this year of just under 39,000 dollars.  Revenues this last year were just 
over 13,500 dollars from the Hand-In-Hand We Recycle Program.  This year there was 
one expenditure of 16 -- 133 dollars for a squishy water bottle pilot program.  The ending 
balance for the year is 50,641 dollars.  Other 20 -- calendar year '21 activities included 
Trash Or Treasure, Recycle A Bicycle, participation in the Ada County Solid Waste 
Advisory committee and participation in the Ada County Hazardous -- Household 
Hazardous Waste quarterly meetings.  I want to highlight SWAC's continuing work to 
develop a solid waste plan for the city.  SWAC worked with the city staff to finalize the 
goals and expectations for the plan and SWAC looks forward to staff presenting the plan 
to us and the opportunity to provide advice and consultation to finalize and implement a 
plan.  SWAC also conducted its other primary responsibility, the review of the FY-22 
annual solid waste rate adjustment.  The rate adjustment for both commercial and 
residential services was comprised of the contractual CPI adjustment, a fee to cover a 
significant spike in labor costs and the continuance of sharing recycled processing costs 
as set forth in a separate contract amendment.  Amongst others, SWAC received 
presentations on contamination issues at the recycling containers at the transfer station.  
The squishy water bottle pilot program reports and discussion about collection of glass 
over in the city of Eagle and they just mentioned FY-22 proposed solid waste rates.  
Upcoming commission business includes furthering improvements in the recycling efforts 
and promoting Meridian Trash Or Treasure, Hand-In-Hand, and the Recycle A Bicycle 
program.  Monitoring yard composting market trends and construction demolition waste 

Page 7

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 15, 2022  
Page 4 of 18 

diversion efforts and a continued focus on reducing contamination of recycle streams.  
Continuing participation in the Ada County Solid Waste Advisory Committee.  Continued 
participation in the Ada County Household Hazardous Waste Program meetings and 
continued expansion of education outreach to decrease contamination in the commingled 
residential recycled streams, with emphasis on new residents and including youth.  In 
conclusion, SWAC was active despite COVID.  Our commitment is steadfast to work in 
partnership with staff and Republic Services, to identify and recommend to you improved 
physically sound -- fiscally sound trash and recycling services and programs for the 
benefit of Meridian residents and commercial customers and with that I would certainly 
like questions about what's in the report.   
 
Hoaglun:  Great.  Thank you, Steve.  Questions for Steve?   
 
Perreault:  Mr. President?   
 
Hoaglun:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Hi, Steve.  Thank you for being here.  Curious if you could share more about 
what you have learned with monitoring the yard composting market trends.  I know that 
Boise offers that and I'm -- I'm curious what Meridian residents have had to say or if you 
have done any kind of outreach on that regard.   
 
Cory:  Well, our -- our primary indicator on that is the subscription process that we have 
got that individuals can go ahead and pay for curbside pick up and it's held steady, but 
we have at this point -- find my -- 170 subscribers.  That's up from 134 last year, but 
understanding at this point we have about 40,000 active household accounts, so we are 
looking for more interest before we go somewhere.  As far as what's going on within the 
valley, the big inclusion was the Boise City's composting program over there and, of 
course, that one was a mandatory program where everyone was participating and it's 
suffered on one side having more material than they could handle and they have had to 
go through a major expansion over there, but they have been consuming all of their 
capacity to go ahead and treat material and, then, also with the produced material they 
have also had that oversubscribed as far as people wanting compost for their home use.  
So, we are basically just kind of watching to see if there is a -- kind of a change in 
economics or a change in consumer interest and more people wanting to get involved 
and, hopefully, that's useful.   
 
Perreault:  Thank you.  Mr. President, I have a follow-up question.   
 
Hoaglun:  Go ahead, Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Thank you.  In your report you had mentioned that that was for curbside grass 
pick up.  So, I didn't know if you were tying that in with composting or if that was something 
that was separate.  Is that the same -- I guess I think of composting as like products from 
your home that you are, you know, allowing to --  
 

Page 8

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 15, 2022  
Page 5 of 18 

Cory:  Yes, that is, essentially, the same program.  Two names for the same thing.  The 
program within the City of Meridian has only allowed receipt of -- of grass and leaves in 
the fall, but it hasn't been expanded to any type of material for composting at this time.   
 
Strader:  Mr. President?   
 
Hoaglun:  Yes, Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  It's great to see you, Chairman Cory, and I guess I just have two questions along 
the same lines, maybe more of a comment, that I think it would be great to see a pilot 
program around composting just to see the interest.  I know Republic looked at it.  We 
looked at it.  Timing wasn't quite ready.  But it would be great -- and I guess I was curious 
if you guys would be addressing potential composting plans in your upcoming solid waste 
plan and what the latest timing is on just generally what we are thinking about receiving 
in the plan.   
 
Cory:  Council Woman, thank you for that question.  Mr. President.  Yes, the -- the waste 
plan will go ahead and take a look at the waste that's generated by our -- our citizens and 
discuss each of the different categories of it.  I'm appreciative of our staff support.  Sayard 
Schultz is going to be responsible for drafting that plan and I -- with that, basically, we are 
always encouraging people to go ahead and, you know, approach us if they have got 
something that they could perhaps do.  Certainly I would kind of give that background 
information that I did to indicate we probably shouldn't be looking at being able to attach 
to Boise, because I don't believe they are ever going to have capacity to take our material, 
but something that -- obviously throwing in that piece of information, while the landfill, 
when it was developed up at Hidden Hollow, was supposed to last a hundred years, it's 
already reduced down to about 60 to 70 years and so what's always on our mind to go 
ahead and look at streams that could be diverted to go ahead and extend that, so that 
our kids or grandkids are not having to pay for a new landfill, because that creation of a 
new landfill is a pretty significant cost and a pretty significant tax burden.   
 
Strader:  Mr. President?   
 
Hoaglun:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  I guess just one quick follow-up just time -- timing -- if we know.  Maybe we don't 
know yet.  But timing of the solid waste plan or the report that you guys are working on, I 
know there is a city solid waste plan that staff is working on.  I was just curious about the 
timing when we might see that.  And, then, I just wanted to pay you a compliment.  My 
absolute favorite committee-commission that I have ever been on and I think your work 
is really important and I appreciate everybody's dedication.   
 
Cory:  Thank you so much.  Hey, Sayard, do you feel comfortable at this point projecting 
a time for that report or is that -- is it still a little early for the plan?   
 
Hoaglun:  All right.  Go ahead and state your name for the record.   

Page 9

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 15, 2022  
Page 6 of 18 

Schultz:  Sayard Schultz, solid waste coordinator.  We are working on the -- the city staff 
are working on an outline right now, so I'm hoping to get that done around September 
and, then, submit it to SWAC for any advice that they would want to include comments.   
 
Hoaglun:  Council Woman Strader, do you have a follow up?   
 
Strader:  Just wanted to make sure I heard.  Was it September?   
 
Schultz:  Yes.   
 
Strader:  Okay.  Got it.  Thanks.   
 
Schultz:  Yes.   
 
Hoaglun:  Thank you.  Steve, I have a question.  You mentioned recycling and kind of 
curious as to -- I mean it's -- it's hard to predict the future, but what are the recycling 
markets doing, what does it look like they might do, and you also mentioned 
contaminations and can you tell us a little bit more what's going on with contamination in 
recycling and what the problem is and what -- what the plans are to work on that.   
 
Cory:  First on the markets, we actually started to see some recovery this year.  Obviously, 
there has been a lot of struggles in the -- in the past few years with China changing what 
they wanted to go ahead and take and what they wanted to do and -- and just trying to 
create domestic markets and such and through the fiscal year -- at the end of the fiscal 
year we were almost at the -- you know, we were very much approaching where the 
additional cost was zeroing out, but in the last quarter it's kind of softened again a little 
bit.  But, hopefully, we are going to be able to start seeing some recovery in that market 
and the particular situation we had this year was Republic Services has been very 
supportive in creating a number of containers out at the transfer station, which is very 
helpful to our apartment residents and similar that don't have curbside recycling and, of 
course, it allows for a drop-off process for any resident that might have a lot more recycling 
than what they can fit in their cart and for a while there seemed to be a bit of a problem 
on what was going into the bins.  There were a few loads that were problems and Republic 
volunteered -- came up with us, told us about the problem and went ahead and identified 
that they were going to improve the signage around the -- the bins and it actually was 
very helpful.  It seemed to clear up the problem immediately.  So, that was one particular 
problem.  I think in all of our cases we tend to go ahead and see five -- five or ten percent 
contamination in the -- in the streams and with where Western goes for customers for our 
material, that's acceptable.  But if we were able to go ahead and reduce that to four or 
three percent contamination or something like that, we can go for more elite 
manufacturing facilities that would pay us more for our materials.  So, unfortunately, the 
goal is zero and we always strive to get to zero, but there is always more work to be done.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  Thank you, Steve.  Appreciate that.  Any other questions?  If not, great.  
Thank you, Steve, and -- and the committee members we thank them for their service.  
We appreciate it very much and -- and they got a big fan in Council Woman Strader.   

Page 10

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 15, 2022  
Page 7 of 18 

Cory:  Thank you so much.   
 
 15.  Police Department: Request to Transition the Part-Time Anti-Drug  
  Coordinator Position to a Full-Time Position 
 
Hoaglun:  We removed Item 15 that I think is going to be heard on March 22nd.   
 
 16.  Mayor's Office: Discussion to Plan Use of Federal American Rescue  
  Plan Act (ARPA) Funds 
 
Hoaglun:  So, next up we have from the Mayor's office discussion of the planned use of 
Federal American Rescue Plan Act funds, also known as ARPA.  So, Dave Miles, if you 
could come up and fill us in.   
 
Miles:  Good afternoon, Council.  So, I would categorize this as ARPA part two or maybe 
three or four, I forget where we have left off.  But we were last back with you -- I think in 
September.  So, we will go through some discussion tonight.  Really I think what we want 
to touch on tonight is ultimately the considerations that we have all talked about at the 
leadership level since the last time we came and talked to you all about projects, as well 
as the approach that we are considering as we think about these projects moving forward.  
I think that's important to touch on.  And, then, ultimately try and seek some approval on 
project recommendations or at least some feedback from you all and go from there.  So, 
I think what's most important I think is sort of the philosophy of these dollars.  I know there 
is a lot of discussion about these are really generational funds.  Probably once in a 
lifetime, maybe once in multigenerational dollars, and whether or not you sit on the fence 
of the federal government expending these funds or not, I think ultimately for Meridian the 
biggest component to consider is that whether or not we spend these funds, they have 
been allocated, and the -- the guidance that we are seeing right now will dictate that if 
money is unspent it will likely go back to the feds and states and/or other cities and so 
the money is going to get spent, so how do we as Meridian recommend to spend these 
funds for the best benefit of the Meridian community is -- is sort of how we have looked 
at that.  Also want to just consider the impact on staff with any of these projects that we 
undertake.  We saw with the small business program as an example, we can do it, we 
can make it work, but there is an impact on staff and it's a -- it's a bit of a resource draw.  
There has also been some changes that we will go through and talk about and, then, I 
want to touch on the timelines as well, because it's important to remember with any of 
these projects there are timelines to these federal funds.  So, as the legislature got 
underway this past session, they rolled out their ARPA suggested funding and their path 
and I think that a lot of their message resonates across the state, as well as when we are 
thinking about our projects.  I think they laid out a prudent path of consideration of how to 
consider the funds and, really, it's utilizing these funds for long-term capital projects, not 
trying to designate funds for ongoing costs, because, again, these are one time funds.  
So, if we are designating them to ongoing costs we are going to have to turn around and 
figure out a way to fund those anyway in the future again.  Again, the money is on the 
backs of generations to come, so what are those long-term projects that will not only serve 
good for today and today's community, but ten, 15, 30, 40 years down the road.  Those 

Page 11

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 15, 2022  
Page 8 of 18 

are some of the philosophies that we considered as we looked at these projects and 
ultimately it's about lowering future ongoing operational costs, lowering the long-term tax 
benefits -- sorry -- the tax liabilities if we can and making those improvements that have 
as broad an impact as possible.  That's some of the thinking that we took as we were 
moving through this discussion.  So, a couple of reminders.  Federal program, roughly 
350 billion dollars, was allocated.  Idaho's portion of that was right around 1.1 billion 
dollars.  That goes to the state and what they called non-entitled units, which was 
populations less than -- I want to say 50,000.  Meridian received a direct infusion directly 
allocated to Meridian of 12.8 million dollars, a little more than that, and the timelines that 
are associated with that funding -- again I touched on those earlier.  So, we have to 
allocate funding to any project by December 2024.  A little more than two and a half years, 
if my math is -- I'm thinking that's the right date.  And, then, we have to spend those funds 
by December 2026.  So, you know, four and a half years'ish.  It sounds like a long time, 
but when you look at the list of some of these projects they are big projects.  They are 
going to take time.  Some of these projects you are looking at a year in design potentially, 
a good chunk of time to get under contract and, then, two to three years of construction.  
So, that's why we wanted to come in front of you and -- and try to get some of these 
projects moving forward.  If -- if you are agreeable with them.  Next couple of slides I'm 
not going to spend too long on, because you have got the information in your packet.  We 
have also talked about this before.  But, essentially, four main categories that we can 
spend those funds on and you can see them listed here supporting the COVID pandemic 
and economic response associated with that.  Premium pay.  Eligible essential workers.  
Government services, which is categorized under the revenue loss bucket of money and, 
then, investing in water, sewer, and broadband.  A little bit of details on what those mean.  
We have talked about those before.  So, anything from testing, to nursing care costs, to 
mitigating, COVID communications -- all those types of things are eligible in the first 
bucket.  Premium pay, exactly like it says here, nursing home staff pay, back pay, things 
of that nature, which we are not recommending any of that at this point.  Providing 
government services.  This is sort of a revenue loss allocation that you have all been 
informed about and we have talked about in the past and, then, investing in water and 
sewer and broadband.  Those two categories are probably your most open categories is 
how I would describe them.  The revenue loss is basically any government services, how 
they categorize it.  So, very broad, very open, and in the guidance they direct cities and 
municipalities and agencies to think that this guidance is to be loosely and broadly 
interpreted -- interpreted.  So, a lot of options in that -- in that category.  With the clean 
water and drinking water state revolving funds, as guidance for water, sewer, and 
broadband projects, those are -- there are two significantly sized documents that have a 
long list of projects.  So, again, feel like there is a lot of flexibility in that category as well.  
So, the biggest change in the guidance that came out in the final guidance was probably 
around the revenue loss calculation.  So, when we were before you in September last we 
talked about 4.6 million dollars, more or less, being able to be allocated to revenue loss 
projects or government services projects.  The federal treasury guidance has since come 
out based on all of the feedback they have received during their interim guidance before 
they publish final guidance and said that they are offering what they are calling a standard 
calculation, a standard deduction more or less, to take up to ten million dollars in revenue 
loss without having to go through any calculation.  Cities, agencies, can just say we are 

Page 12

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 15, 2022  
Page 9 of 18 

going to take a full ten million dollars of our allocation and set that to revenue loss.  So, 
that is a change that we have seen since the interim guidance.  So, that ten million dollars 
is also inclusive of the total package.  So, up to ten million of the 12.8 can be allocated to 
revenue loss projects.  Some other changes -- again, they have expanded sort of a 
nonexhaustive example list in their guidance to help people understand what projects can 
be used for and, then, they have streamlined options on how to work through if you are 
considering premium pay and as well as water, sewer, and broadband options.  The 
broadband guidance has changed.  In fact, we got some information late last week or 
earlier this week that there is ongoing conversations around that, so that's why you will 
see in the packet that showed up in phase two discussion area as well and so now in your 
packets you have got Attachments A and B, which jump into the projects and so when we 
consider these projects we met with the director team, Council Woman Strader, 
Councilman Borton were part of those discussions, to evaluate what are the buckets of 
projects we even want to -- think we want to consider.  So, we developed that list through 
multiple conversations, worked through -- you saw on -- I believe it's Attachment A, some 
of the projects filtered off of the list, but we kept them on there for you to -- to see them.  
For example, I think we had a discussion about Anderson Dam -- Anderson Ranch Dam 
raise.  It's just not going to fit in the timeline of this project.  So, right out of the gate we 
said, well, that probably doesn't work for us, because of the timeline alone, if not the rest 
of the complexity, just as an example.  So, we are recommending phase one projects to 
move forward at your approval, starting with facility HVAC, it stands for needlepoint bipolar 
ionization.  It's basically improved air filtration in the city facilities.  We cover all city 
facilities to the tune of about 160,000 dollars to make improvements to the HVAC system.  
This was originally born out of COVID.  I think it still applies.  If COVID were to come back 
it keeps improved air quality.  In theory it helps us continue to operate our facilities, have 
people in the building, whether they are customers or employees.  That's the thinking 
behind that one.  You got -- COVID testing is on there to consider offering testing to 
employees.  We have got some quotes from the fire department on those types of 
services through third-party contract services.  We also have on there the benefits trust 
COVID impacts repayment.  You saw last week you had a budget amendment in front of 
you for the trust repayment, of which about 190,000 dollars was related to COVID 
impacts.  This wouldn't necessarily repay the trust or repay the city for those funds, what 
it would do is allocate this amount of money for the city to expend on projects that that 
money was going to be used for and that's an important distinction when you get into the 
federal guidance of how these funds are utilized and it's not that you are repaying a fund 
or repaying reserves, it's that you are utilizing these funds for projects that you would 
have otherwise use general fund money for, but we no longer have that.  And, then, going 
down the list we have biosolids drying through the water-sewer projects.  Cyber security 
is a new project that was on the list that is not in our current CFP, but because of the best 
practices from IT and how you handle SCADA versus city infrastructure, they are currently 
tied together is my understanding and the best practice recommendation is to pull those 
apart and treat them on separate server farms, so that -- that is new recommendation and 
you would see that coming from IT in the next few years anyway, because they don't 
currently have it in the CFP and it is now the -- the best practice.  And, then, there is 
energy efficiency studies, both through the utilities and both -- and with city facilities.  We 
broke it out to bucketize money into water, sewer, broadband and to bucketize other 

Page 13

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 15, 2022  
Page 10 of 18 

money into revenue loss and, then, streetlights upgrades are in there as well.  Originally 
Attachment A was at 1.5 million dollars.  Through conversations we did lower it to a million 
dollars as a starting point.  A little bit of that is related to just staffing resources and sort 
of effectiveness of how far can we get, knowing that there is still money leftover in theory, 
starting with a million dollars felt like a prudent step to say how far can we get, how much 
can we do, rather than just saying let's just do a million and a half and, then, maybe we 
can't get there.  So, that was the rationale.  Total of about 6.8 million dollars worth of 
projects in that first phase bucket and you can see phase two another six million dollars 
roughly for the other -- what I will call larger projects that I think Council probably warrants 
a further discussion on, more consideration on.  I don't know -- if you are ready to take 
action on those tonight great, but you can see the Linder Road overpass is something 
that I know the Mayor supports and we have had several discussions on that.  Again, 
considering its broad impacts to the community.  Also considering setting aside a portion 
of the recommendation of two and a half million dollars to start as just a set aside to say 
if any of these other projects go over cost or if there are other project ideas that we have 
or, if, heaven forbid, COVID or some variant of COVID comes back and we need some 
sort of emergency funding for these funds to cover, that's the intent behind that.  We have 
got the community centers on the list as well.  What do we do with that, knowing that there 
is some funds in the existing CFP.  Golf course irrigation, the same discussion, as is the 
regional park land.  This would be for a future park site in northwest Meridian where The 
Fields District is.  Don't know where we stand on that at this point.  And, then, broadband 
is up there as well, because I mentioned there is some continuing discussions occurring, 
again, throughout the region and the valley about how and what could we do as a regional 
approach to improve broadband.  I know IT under the newest guidance has considered 
maybe there are some ideas that we could do and I think it's not ripe enough to have a 
conversation today to say like what, but, for instance, whether it's broadband in the parks 
or trying to connect fire stations through broadband that we don't currently have, those 
types of ideas.  So, let's -- so, this slide just breaks out into what buckets those phase 
one projects fit in, just so that you can see the categorization.  You have got about 360,365 
in the COVID response bucket right now.  You have got about 1.1 million in the revenue 
loss bucket and about 5.3 in the water, sewer, broadband bucket of what we are proposing 
for today.  And what does that leave?  I touched on this a little bit.  We would propose to 
leave -- that would leave two and a half million in sort of reserves for future discussion.  
You have got -- in the revenue loss bucket you have got Linder Road overpass, 
community center, regional park and, then, through water, sewer, and broadband you 
have got a broadband project -- again cost to be determined.  And, then, you have got 
golf course irrigation and I think it does fit in that bucket appropriately if you consider the 
state drinking water state revolving fund guidance.  A lot a in this -- in this guidance.  So, 
again, we are recommending roughly 6.8 million for those phase one projects, either all 
or a piece or part.  We can have that discussion.  Knowing that that would leave about six 
million dollars for future discussions on the phase two projects, future discussions.  Maybe 
a full body input, because I know there is several members that are not here, along with 
setting aside some funds for things that we just may not know yet and I think that's -- 
that's the entirety of the presentation.  Knowing that -- I did want to add one thing.  
Through any of these approvals that you give tonight, obviously, any project by itself would 
have to come back for a budget amendment to allocate the funds, so you would have a 

Page 14

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 15, 2022  
Page 11 of 18 

further conversation on each individual project as they come back to you.  So, I think with 
that I will stand for any questions and -- 
 
Hoaglun:  Thank you, Dave.  So, to that point -- so, basically, for phase one list it would 
be just kind of a blanket approval, as you -- and, then, they would come back as you 
mentioned and actual allocate and have questions and make sure everything -- all the 
details are taken care of; correct?   
 
Miles:  Yes.  That's correct, Council President.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  Any -- any questions for Dave?   
 
Perreault:  Mr. President?   
 
Simison:  Yes, Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Thank you.  I have three questions for you, Dave.  Try to do it succinctly.  Can 
you share about -- just sort of big picture some of the reasons why some of the items are 
in phase one versus phase two, as far as timing goes?  So, some -- in phase two we have 
some projects that are already in the process, but in phase one there are items that, you 
know, are just getting started.  So, can you help me understand what got put in what 
bucket and kind of some -- some thoughts behind it.  I did read through everything that 
was in the packet by the way, but I just want to understand what the decisions were as 
far as which phase they went into.  And, then, along those same lines the criteria for phase 
two, is that going to be similar to phase one where we are looking at a return on 
investment, you know, how that lines up kind of with -- and phase two I imagine will be 
also having some discussions about partially using general fund budgets for some of 
those projects and whether timing of the projects will play into phase two as much as they 
will into phase one.  So, just kind of the bigger picture in that regard.  That's my first 
question.   
 
Miles:  Okay.  Council President, Council Woman Perreault, so to what I heard your first 
project -- first question, so why project phase one versus phase two on some of these.  
Really I think part of the consideration is what do we think there is more general support 
for overall, as well as what are some of the immediate operational projects that can offer 
operational savings and long-term benefit to the community.  I think if you look at the list 
of projects -- in phase one there is a lot of projects that do at least analyze and provide a 
return on investment that are calculable; right?  We can touch and see and feel that if we 
install X streetlights it will provide a reduction of Y in costs.  If you look at the list in phase 
two you sort of got more of the -- the -- the less tangible benefits; right?  We can measure 
traffic flow, but how much benefit does Linder Road overpass have versus the attendance 
of a community center.  Those are more conversational theory and not necessarily 
touchable and calculable in my mind.  So, that was some of the logic behind why those 
projects.  Additionally some of them are just easier, simpler projects I think, so we know 
that we can sort of get the ball moving on some of these, get them underway.  To your 
next question about the criteria and -- that we would consider.  I think, yes, we consider 

Page 15

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 15, 2022  
Page 12 of 18 

the same criteria, sort of what is the long-term community benefit, what is the -- what's 
the return on investment, so to speak, if it is able to be calculated.  What's the complexity 
of them and the timing of them.  I think if you look at any of those projects on the -- the 
phase two list you could argue that they are all complex and could take long, if you think 
of them from start to finish.  Now, within them there are probably elements that you could 
consider breaking down and say, well, for example, Linder Road overpass we could 
acquire right of way sooner than later.  Community center, maybe there is a study to be 
done sooner than later.  So, there are elements of them that are short term, but they are 
all much longer term as well I think.  And, then, timing of projects.  I think I touched on 
that a little bit as well.  Again, they are the bigger projects, so, yes, we need to have the 
discussion soon.  I think it's just a little more tangible, the phase one projects to say let's 
get those going or some or all of them.  
 
Perreault:  Mr. President, may I continue with a couple more questions?   
 
Hoaglun:  Go ahead, Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Thank you. So -- thank you very much for sharing that.  So, what I'm hearing 
is is phase one are projects that really we can immediately pick up and phase two projects 
where we might still need some more information or planning to be ready to move forward 
with; is that right?  
 
Miles:  Yeah.  Council Woman -- Council President Hoaglun.  There is also more 
discussion to be had on them I think.  
 
Perreault:  Okay.  I agree.  So, are there any long-term maintenance costs for the capital 
projects in phase one that would need to be added to the base budget?  Has there been 
any analysis done of additional costs to equipment or staffing or maintenance that might 
be involved with the biosolids drying or the SCADA improvements, et cetera, that we need 
to take into account as part of this?  
 
Miles:  Council President Hoaglun, Council Woman Perreault, I think of the -- of the list 
up there in terms of what would be added operational costs or added, you know, additional 
operations.  You would look at the biosolids and the SCADA to some degree, possibly the 
streetlights.  We do have Laurelei McVey, our Public Works directors, is here.  I do think 
that the ROI did take some of that into consideration.  So, they did -- she's nodding her 
head yes, so it's on the record yes. The ROI does consider that ongoing operational costs 
in terms of whether or not it requires additional staffing or not and that calculation brings 
that into factor.  
 
Perreault:  Okay.  Thank you.  And maybe Laurelei would like to join us, because my next 
question is about streetlights. So, in chatting with --  
Hoaglun:  Council Woman Perreault, I thought that was Council Woman Strader's 
question.  No.   
 

Page 16

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 15, 2022  
Page 13 of 18 

Perreault:  I would be glad to have somebody else ask it.  Thank you. So, it's my 
understanding that we have been a little slower than we had hoped for with streetlight 
installation and changeover and so I was wondering if you could give us some more 
feedback on whether the million dollars should stay in phase one or phase two and sort 
of the timing of that.  Not so much whether it's a valid project, but just the timing of it and 
implementation.  
 
McVey:  Council Woman Perreault, great question. So, it is a resource constraint for us 
from a personnel standpoint. So, if we were to be allocated this million dollars we are 
anticipating hiring a consulting firm to help us manage this project in that time frame.  So, 
definitely doable, but probably not doable with internal resources and so part of that 
money would go towards consultant fees.   
 
Strader:  Mr. President?  
 
Hoaglun:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  I have a question for Laurelei as well.  Thanks for being here. If you had to 
choose between the streetlight conversion and the biogas energy conversion, which one 
do you think provides a better return on investment?   
 
Hoaglun:  And, Laurelei, while you are pondering that, you said biogas facility or 
biosolids?  
 
Strader:  Yeah.  That's correct. So, there is a biogas energy conversion project that I 
actually am surprised not to see on -- at least on phase two for further discussion.  It is 
an interesting project that uses our existing -- basically like the yucky smells that you 
smell, they could burn those and actually use that energy to a greater extent at the WRRF 
and the nice thing about that project is it's a pretty quick project to implement and would 
immediately save us a hundred thousand dollars per year just back of the enveloped -- 
you know, looks like a pretty okay return on investment just from eyeballing it, but -- and 
I'm just Devil's advocate, if we are having trouble keeping up the streetlights, I guess I'm 
curious if you had to choose one or the other, if one of them is a preference.  I'm sorry to 
put you on the spot like that, but I was just curious what you think.   
 
Hoaglun:  Laurelei, any thoughts on that?  
 
McVey:  Council Woman Strader, without doing I guess some more in-depth analysis, so 
we see on the biogas energy conversion project about a hundred thousand annual 
savings there.  I believe that the streetlights -- there we go. Thank you.  The streetlights 
would be between 65 and 79 thousand dollars a year.  So, I think based on that -- close.   
 
Strader:  Yeah.  Mr. President?  
 
Hoaglun:  Go ahead, Council Woman.   
 

Page 17

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 15, 2022  
Page 14 of 18 

Strader:  Thank you.  Yeah.  Real close.  I guess I -- maybe if I had one piece of feedback 
-- I'm in support of the phase one projects.  I think they make a lot of sense.  As somebody 
that helped a little bit on this there was a ton of vetting that went into these projects.  These 
ones are very tangible.  Like they are really practical projects, like -- kind of like, you know, 
you do your home maintenance on your house to avoid your water heater exploding -- 
like they are -- they are similar, but other on a city scale to me.  I would just ask that the 
biogas project be a possible consideration for phase two, because it is an immediate 
savings, it is calculable, it doesn't have an ongoing operating cost, besides the 
depreciation of that equipment.  Like to me that's a really good project, that's a practical 
project, and I do want to give some other feedback.  I agree with Council Woman 
Perreault's comment that on the phase two projects we do have things that are pretty 
tangible that we are interested in doing, so I think it's great to have that further discussion 
and maybe that's an opportunity if other Council Members that aren't here have other 
ideas that have come up recently or other feedback, those could be vetted in the 
meantime.  I know Councilman Cavener had an idea that he mentioned to me and it's just 
not something that came up.  So, I think that that -- this is a good approach, knock out 
the really practical ones that save the city money on an ongoing basis and, then, definitely 
we are having big discussions for that phase two.  Mr. President, maybe one more 
question.   
 
Hoaglun:  Go ahead, Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Dave, like from us are you looking for feedback?  Are you looking for like a voice 
vote?  Maybe that's the easiest.  Not right now, but when we are ready a voice vote tonight 
on support for these phase one things, so you have clarity.  Just want to make sure we 
are sensitive, because this thing has been morphing around and you have been putting 
a lot of work into it, I just want to make sure we are getting you what you need tonight.   
 
Miles:  Yeah.  Council President, Council Woman Strader, yes, ultimately, you know, a 
voice vote would be good, whether it's line by line or whether it's a bucket of phase one 
and say, yep, it's good to go.  Again, you will see them again on individual projects as 
they come back for amendments to allocate the funds, gives you another opportunity, but, 
again, with the timing and the length of some of these projects, it's good to get some of 
them underway, to get them moving forward.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  I want to note for the record that Councilman Borton has joined us from 
being online to in person.  So, thank you, Councilman.  Councilman Borton, did you have 
any thoughts?   
 
Borton:  Mr. President.  So, thank you.  I listened in route to the conversation and 
presentation.  I just think there is a lot of good work that's been done to get us to this point 
by a lot of different invested individuals in all of the different options.  So, for me I think 
the phase one basket is something that I'm supportive of.  That going forward, 
understanding there is budget amendments and the details will come and follow for the 
spending authority, but I'm supportive of phase one, understanding there is more 
discussions for how the remainder of the bucket can be allocated and there is additional 

Page 18

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 15, 2022  
Page 15 of 18 

options.  I think that even in that list, but to move the ball a bit I think phase one is good 
to go forward with me today.   
 
Hoaglun:  Thank you, Councilman.  Councilman -- Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  Thank you, Dave, for the presentation.  I think that phase one looks good for the 
most part.  My -- my -- my thoughts on phase two are specific to the Linder Road overpass.  
I think that the community needs this.  I think that we have been -- it's been a high priority 
for -- for the Mayor and Council for a while, even -- you know, started with previous -- you 
know former mayor of de Weerd and so my only question is timing.  You know, some of 
these projects are contingent upon timing and if we -- would we have time for a phase 
two project, like Linder Road overpass, if we were to include that in -- in phase two in the 
future.   
 
Miles:  Council President Hoaglun and Councilman Bernt, I think that's where I look 
forward to the future discussions.  I think there is -- again, to the comment I made to 
Council Woman Perreault, I think if you break a project down and look at it in components, 
yes, there is the ability to fit something of that project into the timing that's -- the treasury 
has set, whether that's things like buying right of way or helping accelerate the purchase 
of right of way or accelerating the construction of a specific component.  We certainly 
have to do more -- more work looking into how does that project work and fit within the 
guidance, but I do think elements of it certainly could fit with -- frankly, with any of those 
projects in the phase two bucket.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. President?   
 
Hoaglun:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  On the lines of Councilman Bernt's comment, I just -- I do have concerns that 
we would spend a year or maybe more kind of waiting to see what can come to be with 
phase two projects and, then, find out in 2024 that we -- we weren't going to do what we 
thought we would do and we have lost time on projects that we know we can do right 
away.  So, I really want to dig down next time into the timing of these, because I know 
with our other area partners, especially with Linder Road, we don't have full control over 
that process, so we can make some assumptions and have those conversations and 
possibly find ourselves another year from now still not being where we would hoped we 
would be and we have missed some other timing opportunities.  So, I'm -- but in regard 
to phase one, I'm generally integrating with all of those.  I'm -- I'm -- I'm -- I am intrigued 
by the biogas versus streetlights conversation.  As far as the streetlights go, I'm curious 
also what the breakdown is on that with cost of consultant versus cost of what -- what it 
would cost us.  Now, that is not necessarily a factor for whether I keep it in phase one, 
but I just am wondering.  And I think the biogas is a really good -- thank you, Council 
Woman Strader for catching that, because I had read about it and, then, it just didn't dawn 
on me that it's not in this list.  So, I -- I think that project really makes sense and it's -- it's 
good to have several options.   
 

Page 19

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 15, 2022  
Page 16 of 18 

Hoaglun:  Ms. McVey, would you like to respond to that?   
 
McVey:  Council Woman Perreault, that's a great question.  So, we are estimating about 
15 to 18 percent of the money would be towards consulting fees.  That's a pretty standard 
that we pay on other Public Works projects.   
 
Hoaglun:  And, Council Woman Perreault, in terms of phase one projects overall, I -- I 
think we are going to take a vote tonight on phase one projects, so any -- any additional 
thoughts on phase one you might want to add?   
 
Perreault:  Thank you, Council President Hoaglun.  My -- my preference -- and this is not 
to -- this -- not to vote against the streetlights, my preference would be to move that over 
to phase two and put biogas in as a phase one project.  That's my initial preference.  But, 
again, I don't have all the information yet, so I certainly don't want to hold up the 
streetlights project if that is something that is -- we know is ready to go, we have the 
information, we are good with it and it's a lot more likely to be completed rather than the 
biogas.  But I just -- as far as return on investment, to me the biogas project sounds like 
it's a better option for us.  But as far as how we categorize phase one, phase two, if the 
streetlights upgrades -- if we move it into the -- into phase two and we have that 
conversation here in the next -- I assume couple of months, we could still get started on 
it fairly quickly.  So, as far as the timing goes, I -- that would be my preference.  Moving 
the streetlights over to phase two.  Moving biogas back into phase one.   
 
Strader:  Mr. President?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  I think that's a good point, because we have a backlog and we have already 
funded a lot of streetlight conversions that haven't happened.  So, I would think that 
moving that to phase two consideration and, then, putting the biogas project onto phase 
one would make a lot of sense.  The biogas one I didn't have a lot of questions about, 
because it was really a straightforward project.  Unless -- I guess my only question would 
be is there any concern about the biogas project?  Any reason it's not ready and couldn't 
be included in phase one instead?   
 
Hoaglun:  Laurelei.   
 
McVey:  Council Woman Strader, so we would, with both the biogas and the biosolids 
project, would need to do initial engineering studies on both of those that would really 
assess -- so, we have done the, you know, rough ROI calculations where they do make 
sense.  The  engineering study would, essentially, do, you know, probably like a 30 
percent design that would tell us construction schedule, would give us a better cost 
estimate just in case we were off on any of those and, then, that would be the kind of stuff 
that we could bring back to you guys and say, you know, yes or no, or we found this big 
project flaw as we got into it.  But we could do that activity, you know, within the next six 
months.   

Page 20

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 15, 2022  
Page 17 of 18 

Strader:  Mr. President?   
 
Hoaglun:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Yeah.  I want to take a shot at -- I would move the City Council greenlight the 
phase one projects this evening to express our support for seeing future budget 
amendments with all the details, putting the streetlight upgrades onto the phase two 
projects for further discussion, understanding the internal capacity to complete those 
projects and how consulting engagement would work with that and, then, moving the 
biogas project onto phase one.   
 
Hoaglun:  We have a motion -- 
 
Borton:  Second.   
 
Perreault:  Second.   
 
Hoaglun:  And we have a second.  Discussion?  I -- I do have a question, Dave.  If -- if we 
get into the biogas research and whatnot and it's -- it's very complicated and there is 
issues, whatnot, do we have time to flip things back and forth from phase one to phase 
two, vice-versa?   
 
Miles:  Council President, I think the short answer is yes.  Ultimately you have got the 
flexibility up until you commit funds and I think even when you commit a fund you could 
probably pull a project back.  But we can certainly clarify that answer for you and double 
check.  And I did want to address -- you made a very good comment, Council Woman 
Perreault, about timing.  Understanding there are other agencies involved with some of 
these larger phase two projects, the intent is that we come back to you rather quickly to 
have that discussion, not six months or eight months down the road.   
 
Hoaglun:  Any other discussion?  We have a motion.  All those in favor of adopting the 
phase one projects as identified in the motion, please, say aye.  Any opposed?  All ayes.  
Motion carries.    
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT.  
 
Hoaglun:  So, there is your -- there is your phase one projects, Dave.   
 
Miles:  Appreciate it.   
 
Hoaglun:  Great.  Well, we are at the end of our agenda for our work session.  Do we 
have a motion to adjourn?   
 
Borton:  I move we adjourn.   
 
Bernt:  Second.   

Page 21

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 15, 2022  
Page 18 of 18 

Hoaglun:  All those in favor of adjourning say aye.  Any opposed?  We are adjourned.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
MEETING ADJOURNED AT 5:24 P.M.   
 
(AUDIO RECORDING ON FILE OF THESE PROCEEDINGS)   
 
_______________________________  ______/______/______           
PRESIDENT BRAD HOAGLUN   DATE APPROVED 
 
ATTEST:  
 
_____________________________________   
CHRIS JOHNSON - CITY CLERK   
 
 

Page 22

Item #1.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Approve Minutes of the March 15, 2022 City Council Regular Meeting

Page 23

Item #2.



Meridian City Council                      March 15, 2022. 
 
A Meeting of the Meridian City Council was called to order at  6:00 p.m., Tuesday,  March 
15, 2022, by President Brad Hoaglun.  
 
Members Present:  Brad Hoaglun, Joe Borton, Treg Bernt, Jessica Perreault and Liz 
Strader. 
 
Members Absent:  Robert Simision and Luke Cavener. 
 
Also present:  Chris Johnson, Bill Nary, Alan Tiefenbach, Mark Ford, Joe Bongiorno and 
Dean Willis. 
 
ROLL-CALL ATTENDANCE   
  
  __X__ Liz Strader     __X__ Joe Borton 
  __X__ Brad Hoaglun        __X__ Treg Bernt 
  __X__ Jessica Perreault    _____ Luke Cavener 
              _____  Mayor Robert E. Simison 
 
Simison:  All right.  Council, I'm going to call this meeting to order.  It is our regular meeting.  
It's Tuesday, March 15th, 2022, at 6:00 p.m.  Our first order of business is going to be roll 
call.  So, Mr. Clark.   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Hoaglun:  We do not have -- our next item of business is the Pledge of Allegiance.  Please 
rise and join us in the pledge.   
 
(Pledge of Allegiance recited.) 
 
COMMUNITY INVOCATION 
 
Hoaglun:  I don't think we have anybody here for the invocation tonight.   
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
Hoaglun:  So, with that we will move to the adoption of the agenda.   
 
Borton:  Mr. President?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Borton.   
 
Borton:  We have a few changes to the agenda.  Item 4 needs to be vacated.  Item 3 we 
will move to the top of the agenda, so we can set a date for a continuance of tonight's 
hearing to a new date in order for the applicant to correct public notice deficiencies related 

Page 24

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
March 15, 2022  
Page 2 of 15 

to the sign posting.  Item 5 is requesting a continuance as well.  So, that public hearing 
will be opened for the sole purpose of continuing the hearing to a new date before we get 
to Items 1 and 2.  With that I move that we adopt the agenda as modified.   
 
Bernt:  Second.  That was the longest motion. 
 
Borton:  Pretty good. 
 
Bernt:  It was pretty good.  
 
Hoaglun:  That was a second, Councilman Bernt?   
 
Bernt:  Second.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  I have a motion and a second to adopt the agenda as amended.  Any 
discussion?  If not, all those in favor by saying aye.  Any opposed?  The ayes have it.  We 
have adopted the agenda as amended.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT.  
 
PUBLIC FORUM – Future Meeting Topics 
 
Hoaglun:  Our next item -- Mr. Clerk, do we have anybody signed up for the public forum?   
 
Johnson:  Mr. President, we did not.   
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
 3.  Public Hearing Continued from February 15, 2022 for Friendship  
  Subdivision (H-2021-0083) by Mike Homan, Located Near the   
  Southeast Corner of N. Meridian Rd. and E. Chinden Blvd.  
 
  A.  Request: Annexation and Zoning of 10.058 acres of land from RUT  
   in Ada County to the R-8 zoning district. 
 
  B.  Request: Preliminary Plat consisting of 41 building lots and 7  
   common lots. 
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  We are to our Action Items and I think you had said, Councilman Borton, 
that Item 3 was at the top of the public hearing list to take action upon?   
 
Borton:  Yes, Mr. President.   
 
Hoaglun:  So, we will open the public hearing for Item No. 3, H-2021-0083, Friendship 
Subdivision.  With the hearing open, Alan, do you want to inform us what -- what's 
transpiring?   

Page 25

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
March 15, 2022  
Page 3 of 15 

Tiefenbach:  Members of the Council, this was a posting error.  The applicant did not post 
a sign on a stub street where they were supposed to post it.  One of the neighbors caught 
it a couple of days ago.  So, they cannot be heard tonight.  It will be continued -- they are 
recommending until April 5th.   
 
Hoaglun:  All right then.  What's the pleasure of the Council?   
 
Borton:  Mr. President?   
 
Hoaglun:  Councilman Borton.   
 
Borton:  Move that we continue H-2021-0083 to April 5th.   
 
Bernt:  Second.   
 
Hoaglun:  We have a motion and a second to continue the public hearing to April 5th.  Is 
there any discussion?  If not -- yes, Alan.  Okay.  I thought you were ready to say 
something.  With that all those in favor of continuing the public hearing to April 5th, please, 
say aye.  Any nays?  The ayes have it.  The hearing is continued.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
 4.  Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Friendship Subdivision (H- 
  2021-0083) by Mike Homan, Located Near the Southeast Corner of N.  
  Meridian Rd. and E. Chinden Blvd. 
 
Hoaglun:  And that did not include Item 4, did it?  We are -- four is gone, so -- all right.   
So, back to Ordinance No. 22-1972.  This is an item of business.  It's an ordinance 
repealing and replacing Meridian City Code.  Basically that is going to divide our city up 
into -- yes, sir.   
 
 5.  Public Hearing for Jamestown Ranch Subdivision (H-2021-0074) by  
  Walsh Group, LLC, Located Near the Southeast Corner of the N. Black 
  Cat and W. McMillan Rd. Intersection at 4023 W. McMillan Rd. and  
  parcels S0434223150, S0434212970, S0434212965, and S0434212920.  
 
  A.  Request: Annexation and Zoning of 80 acres of land with a R-8  
   zoning district. 
 
  B.  Request: A Preliminary Plat consisting of 294 building lots and 25  
   common lots. 
 
Johnson:  Mr. President, do you want to discuss Item 5?  That was in the motion to move 
that to the top.   
 

Page 26

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
March 15, 2022  
Page 4 of 15 

Hoaglun:  Oh.  Thank you.  I missed that.  Item 5, Jamestown Ranch Subdivision, H-2021- 
0074.  We will open the public hearing for that and, Alan, again, comments?   
 
Tiefenbach:  Mr. President, Members of the Council, I guess I'm batting well tonight.  The 
case went to the Planning Commission -- it's very complicated.  Since the time of the 
Planning Commission I have gotten some feedback from the Settlers Irrigation District 
that there is some inconsistencies in the plans in the civil drawings and that there is some 
improvements that may be or may not have occurred without ACHD permission.  There 
was a big meeting that happened that I really wasn't involved with and we told the 
applicant to get this figured out before they come to Council.   
 
Bernt:  Great.  Pretty good advice.   
 
Hoaglun:  All right.  And they have asked that to -- to be continued to April 5th?   
 
Tiefenbach:  They believe they will have it resolved by April 5th.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  Council, what would you like to do with public hearing H-2021-0074?   
 
Borton:  Mr. President?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Borton.   
 
Borton:  With that explanation I move that we continue H-2021-0074 to the hearing on 
April 5th.   
 
Hoaglun:  Do I have a second?   
 
Bernt:  Second the motion.   
 
Hoaglun:  I have a motion and a second to continue the public hearing to April 5th for H- 
2021-0074.  All those in favor of continuing the public hearing, please, say aye.  Any 
opposed?  The ayes have it.  It will be continued to April 5th.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
 1.  Public Hearing for Ordinance No. 22-1972: An Ordinance Repealing  
  and Replacing Meridian City Code Section 1-7-1, Regarding Election;  
  Districts; Terms of Office; Residency Requirement; Amending   
  Meridian City Code Section 1-7-2, Regarding City Council Member  
  Qualifications; Repealing and Replacing Meridian City Code Section  
  1-7-4, Regarding City Council Seat Vacancies; Adding a New Section  
  to Meridian City Code, Section 1-7-11, Regarding Meridian Districting 
  Committee; City Council Districts; Adopting a Savings Clause; and  
  Providing an Effective Date 
 

Page 27

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
March 15, 2022  
Page 5 of 15 

Hoaglun:  Now let's go to Ordinance No. 22-1972.  Mr. Nary, are you providing comments 
for -- for staff comments for this one?   
 
Nary:  Sure.  So, Mr. President, Members of the Council, so this is the third reading of our 
districting ordinance.  Again, just to refresh from the requirements of the Idaho Code is 
because we are now a city of over a hundred thousand people we are required to create 
districts for our Council seats.  This is to create a district system for our 2023 election.  
The idea was to create a committee system that would, then, be selected by the Mayor, 
approved by the Council.  The committee would then meet, have public hearings to 
determine how the district should be formed within the city.  The districts need to be 
formed generally, as close as possible, to the same population base to divide that by six.  
Again, I think our number from the census was 117,000 and some change.  So, the desire 
here is this is simply the mechanism to begin that process.  The idea is, hopefully, to begin 
this process fairly soon.  The process has been completed at the state and county level, 
so we can begin this process at the city level and we are hoping to get this done 
throughout the summer and, hopefully, have a final product before this Council by the end 
of the summer of this year.  So, that's our intent to move this forward.  Again, this is just 
the mechanism to do it.  This is the third reading, so it is eligible to be approved tonight.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  Any questions for Mr. Nary?   
 
Borton:  Mr. President?   
 
Hoaglun:  Yes, Councilman Borton.   
 
Borton:  Just to comment on it.  One of the principles that I appreciate with this process 
is that it's simply a math equation, that this thing is designed to ensure the six districts 
have equal representation within them and the City Council is purposely and intentionally 
not part of any of the line drawing.  We don't play any role in it.  We are not interested in 
how that works.  We just want it to be lawful and it's designed that way.  So, I appreciate 
that.   
 
Hoaglun:  Thank you for those comments, Councilman Borton.  Mr. Clerk, do we have 
anybody who has signed up for this public hearing?   
 
Johnson:  Mr. President, we did not.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  Do we have anybody on line who would like to participate in this public 
hearing?  I don't see anybody who has raised their -- if you do, please, raise your hand, 
but I don't see anybody from the public online that's not city staff.  All right.  What would 
the Council like to do with this ordinance?   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Hoaglun:  Councilman Bernt.   
 

Page 28

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
March 15, 2022  
Page 6 of 15 

Perreault:  Mr. President.   
 
Bernt:  Oh, Mr. President.  I knew you were going to be mayor someday.   
 
Hoaglun:  Council Woman Perreault. 
 
Perreault:  Perhaps I missed it, but I didn't hear if you asked if there was anybody in the 
audience that had a -- 
 
Hoaglun:  Yes, we asked for -- oh, yeah.  Audience.  Anybody in the audience want to 
testify?  Sorry about that.  Thank you.  Yeah.  We got sign-ups, online, and audience.  
Okay.  Forgot my rule of three there.  Good idea.   
 
Bernt:  Mr. President? 
 
Hoaglun:  Councilman Bernt. 
 
Bernt:  I would like to -- I would like to move that we close the public hearing on this item.   
 
Strader:  Second. 
 
Hoaglun:  We have a motion and a second to close the public hearing.  Is there any 
discussion?  Hearing none, all those in favor of closing the public hearing on Ordinance 
No.  22-1972 please say aye.   All those opposed?  The ayes have it and the public 
hearing is closed. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
Bernt:  Mr. President?  
 
Hoaglun:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  I move that we approve Ordinance No. 22-1972.  
 
Strader:  Second.   
 
Nary:  Mr. President?  
 
Hoaglun:  We have a motion and a second to approve Ordinance No. 22-1972.  Mr. Nary.   
 
Nary:  Mr. President, Members of the Council, this is actually on your ordinance section 
of the agenda.   
 
Bernt:  Oh.   
 

Page 29

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
March 15, 2022  
Page 7 of 15 

Nary:  Item 6 on your agenda.  So, it will get read by title like our normal ordinance 
process. So, we just can do it at that point.  
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.   
 
Nary:  That would be fine.  
 
Hoaglun:  So, do we have a motion to withdraw -- maker of the motion withdraw the 
motion?  
 
Bernt:  Yes. 
 
Hoaglun:  Second agrees?  
 
Strader:  Yeah.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  Motion is withdrawn and second agrees.  We will, then, work on that 
coming up here a little bit later.  
 
 2.  Public Hearing for Budget Blinds Subdivision (SHP-2022-0003) by  
  Stephanie Hopkins of KM Engineering, LLP, Located at 1850 W.  
  Everest Ln., at the Southwest Corner of W. Chinden Blvd. and N.  
  Linder Rd.  
 
  A.  Request: Short Plat consisting of 2 commercial lots on 1.76 acres of 
   land in the C-N zoning district. 
 
Hoaglun:  Up next is a public hearing for SHP-2022-0003.  We will open this public hearing 
with comments by staff.  Alan.  
 
Tiefenbach:  Thank you.  Members of the Council, Alan Tiefenbach, associate planner.  
So, I have been doing this for 20 years and I can say for the first time Mr. President and 
Members of the Council.  Haven't gotten to say that before.  This is an application for a 
short plat for two commercial lots.  The property consists of about little more than one and 
a half acres.  Zoned C-N, located at 1850 West Everest Lane, which is southwest corner 
of Chinden and Linder'ish.  Quick history.  The property was annexed into the city in 2002 
and rezoned R-4 at that time.  It was the Lochsa Falls Subdivision.  In 2004 it was platted 
as the Lochsa Falls Subdivision No. 12 and, then, it was rezoned to C-N in 2007.  There 
is a landscape buffer that is already existing along Chinden.  The mixed -- the community 
plan -- or sorry.  The Comprehensive Plan designates this as mixed use community.  This 
proposal is to subdivide a commercial lot into two commercial lots.  Staff is recommending 
approval of this.  On the left is the short plat.  On the right is the concept plan.  The concept 
plan -- I guess one thing that Council should be aware of, that the concept plan as shown 
right now shows access from two points.  West Everest Lane actually runs along the south 
and, then, it also runs on the east and this is a private road on the south and a private 
road -- private drive on the east.  However, on the east West Everest Road is in a different 

Page 30

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
March 15, 2022  
Page 8 of 15 

subdivision plat.  Again, it's a private road.  At this point we don't have any proof from the 
applicant about whether or not they have legal access to that road on the east.  Not saying 
that you don't have it.  However, until we see that -- that proof of access we can only bring 
this to you with -- with the access coming from the south, because we know they have 
access from the south.  So, that was a condition of approval is that the applicant would 
either have to provide proof of access if they can get the access to the road to the east 
or they would have to completely reconfigure the site to take access from the south.  The 
only other thing is very standard is that staff is requiring that they provide cross -- cross- 
access between the two lots, Lot 1 and Lot 2, so if they sell off one lot the other lot would 
still have access.  With that staff is recommending approval.   
 
Hoaglun:  Thank you, Alan.  Any -- any questions for staff at this time?  All right.  I'm sorry.  
Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Thank you.  Can you hear me?  Oh.  Okay.  Alan, so what would happen if 
they could not get access on the east?  I mean they are -- the -- are people going to turn 
around and head back west to leave?  I mean what -- what would the vehicles do if they 
had no easterly access?   
 
Tiefenbach:  So, this is just a conceptual site plan here.  They would have to reconfigure 
the site plan.  If the access doesn't occur -- if they don't get access to the east, then, this 
site plan, as they are showing right here, is not going to work.  Really, the only reason 
why we usually require these site plans with short plats is for them to demonstrate that 
they have enough lot room to be able to configure whatever use that they are proposing 
there.   
 
Perreault:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Hoaglun:  Any other questions?  All right.  Is the applicant here and wish to testify?  And 
if you could state your name and address for the record, please.   
 
Hopkins:  Good evening, Mr. President, Members of the Council.  Stephanie Hopkins with 
KM Engineering.  5725 North Discovery Way in Boise.  83713.  Staff did a great job 
summarizing our request, so I will keep my comments short so you don't have to sit 
through a presentation.  We do have a recorded cross-access agreement that I will be 
sure to submit to staff when we do our final plat.  So, in regard to the -- the access that 
was mentioned -- and we are working on the other conditions as well.  Other than that we 
agree with the staff report and the conditions and I can stand for questions if you have 
them.   
 
Hoaglun:  Thank you, Stephanie.  Any questions for the applicant?   
 
Perreault:  Mr. President?   
 
Hoaglun:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 

Page 31

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
March 15, 2022  
Page 9 of 15 

Perreault:  Question asker tonight.  Good to see you, Stephanie.  So, we -- we had 
hearings -- it's probably been a few years now -- on -- along Everett Lane and -- Everest 
Lane, sorry, and there is a lot of traffic from Challenger school and I know that there was 
an attempt to address that with putting some parking signs and -- and striping and different 
things on that private lane.  Has that resolved the issues and -- and, you know, going from 
a use of one -- you know, one company to two companies?  How much -- I mean I -- I 
know you -- you may not know who -- who is going to fill these sites, but what kind of 
traffic are we looking at right next to the school, given all of the issues that have 
happened? 
 
Hopkins:  Mr. President, Commissioner Perreault, I'm not sure exactly.  I know that at one 
point there were some discussions of taking the common lot and decreasing it to allow 
for more parking further west along Everest Lane.  I don't know that if they experience -- 
we have got the owner here, too, tonight and he can probably address this question, 
because he's been involved with it for quite a while, but I don't know for sure if we have 
looked at traffic calming or anything specifically along this parcel.  I know for -- one of the 
proposed users is going to be a Budget Blinds facility that's -- I think it's 8,100 square feet 
and I believe it's overparked for the number of -- for the amount of square footage that's 
going to be there and we would be sure to include enough parking for both of the users.  
I don't know if -- Bob, do you want to come up and talk about traffic?   
 
Hoaglun:  And, sir, if you could state your name and address for the record, please.  Thank 
you. 
 
Hosac:  Bob Hosac.  Owner-developer.  63 West River Ridge Lane in Eagle, Idaho.  
Council Woman, on Everest Lane we painted both sides of the curb red and we put up 
no parking signs and that resolved the parking that was on Everest Lane and so now 
traffic flows better both east and west on Everest and north and south on Everest, which 
is a private drive there.  And so I think we have resolved the parking.  Then we -- we 
purposely overparked both of these, so we have plenty of on-site parking for both of these 
users on this new site and we overparked on the project we just finished on Everest and 
so -- so, we have not had a traffic problem, although you are right, in the morning at 
Challenger school and in the evening at Challenger school, when they come in and they 
dump out there is a lot of cars.  What we are going to do on this particular plat here on 
this one is we are -- down in the southeast corner of this lot -- and -- and, by the way, we 
do have the recorded easement done to have access on -- on the east side of Everest.  
That was recorded last week.  So, that's done.  We are going to round that corner off 
down there and open that up, so we have a better flow of traffic on that southeast corner 
and we are going to -- it's square right now and it's a little bit of a problem, but we are 
going to round it off and fix it.  Any other questions I can help you with?   
 
Perreault:  Thank you.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  Thank you.  All right.  This is a public hearing.  Do we have anybody 
signed up, Mr. Clerk?   
 

Page 32

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
March 15, 2022  
Page 10 of 15 

Johnson:  Mr. President, we did not.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  Let me ask, then, do we have anybody -- I'm looking in the room, don't 
see anybody that is not unfamiliar to me, so is there anybody in the audience who would 
like to testify?  Practice?  Extra credit?  Okay.  With that would the applicant like to close 
or --  
 
Hopkins:  Thank you, Mr. President.  I don't have anything else to add.  We are excited to 
subdivide this, so we can develop it.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  Great.  Thank you.  So, Council?   
 
Borton:  Mr. President?   
 
Hoaglun:  Councilman Borton.   
 
Borton:  With that presentation I move that we close the public hearing on SHP-2022- 
0003.   
 
Strader:  Second.   
 
Hoaglun:  I have a motion and a second to close the public hearing.  Any discussion?  All 
those in favor of closing the public hearing, please, say aye.  Any opposed?  The ayes 
have it and the public hearing is closed.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
Borton:  Mr. President?   
 
Hoaglun:  Councilman Borton.   
 
Borton:  After considering all staff and applicant and public -- well, not public testimony, 
but staff and applicant comment, I move that we approve SHP-2022-0003.   
 
Strader:  Second.   
 
Hoaglun:  I have a motion and a second to -- to approve the Item No. 2 on our agenda, 
SHP-2022-0003.  Any discussion on this motion?  Hearing none --  
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Hoaglun:  Yes, Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  It's great to see businesses succeeding here in Meridian.  Appreciate you helping 
to facilitate that.   
 

Page 33

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
March 15, 2022  
Page 11 of 15 

Hoaglun:  Great.  Mr. Clerk, would you, please, call roll.   
 
Roll call:  Borton, yea; Cavener, absent; Bernt, yea; Perreault, yea; Hoaglun, yea; Strader, 
yea. 
 
Simison:  All ayes.  Motion carries. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
ORDINANCES [Action Item] 
 
 6.  Third Reading of Ordinance No. 22-1972: An Ordinance Repealing and 
  Replacing Meridian City Code Section 1-7-1, Regarding Election;  
  Districts; Terms of Office; Residency Requirement; Amending   
  Meridian City Code Section 1-7-2, Regarding City Council Member  
  Qualifications; Repealing and Replacing Meridian City Code Section  
  1-7-4, Regarding City Council Seat Vacancies; Adding a New Section  
  to Meridian City Code, Section 1-7-11, Regarding Meridian Districting  
  Committee; City Council Districts; Adopting a Savings Clause; and  
  Providing an Effective Date 
 
Hoaglun:  With that that comes to ordinances.  So, Mr. Clerk, would you, please, read the 
ordinances by title only.   
 
Johnson:  Thank you, Mr. President.  This is the third reading of Ordinance 22-1972,  
an ordinance repealing and replacing Meridian City Code Section 1-7-1, regarding 
election; districts; terms of office; residency requirement; amending Meridian City Code 
Section 1-7-2, regarding city council member qualifications; repealing and replacing 
Meridian City Code Section 1-7-4, regarding city council seat vacancies; adding a new 
section to Meridian City Code, Section 1-7-11, regarding Meridian districting committee; 
city council districts; adopting a savings clause; and providing an effective date. 
 
Hoaglun:  You have heard the ordinance read by title.  Does anybody desire it to be read 
in its entirety?  And we notice Ralph isn't here tonight.  Hearing none, will the Clerk, 
please, call the roll.   
 
Johnson:  Mr. President, is there a motion?   
 
Hoaglun:  Oh, that's right.  We need a motion.  Sorry about that.  Thank you.  Motion on 
this ordinance?   
 
Borton:  Mr. President?   
 
Hoaglun:  Councilman Borton.   
 
Borton:  I move that we approve Ordinance 22-1972.   

Page 34

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
March 15, 2022  
Page 12 of 15 

Strader:  Second.   
 
Hoaglun:  We have a motion and a second to approve Ordinance No. 22-1972.  Will the 
Clerk, please, call the roll.   
 
Roll call:  Borton, yea; Cavener, absent; Bernt, yea; Perreault, yea; Hoaglun, yea; Strader, 
yea. 
 
Hoaglun:  All ayes.  Ordinance has been adopted.  
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
 7.  Ordinance No. 22-1973: An Ordinance (Aviator Springs – H-2021-0065) 
  for Annexation of an Area of Land Being the Northeast One Quarter of 
  the Southeast One Quarter of Section 32, Township 4 North, Range 1  
  West, Ada County, Idaho; and Being More Particularly Described in  
  Attachment “A” and Annexing Certain Lands and Territory, Situated in 
  Ada County, Idaho, and Adjacent and Contiguous to the Corporate  
  Limits of the City of Meridian as Requested by the City of Meridian;  
  Establishing and Determining the Land Use Zoning Classification of  
  40.0 Acres of Land from RUT to R-8 (Medium Density Residential)  
  (27.63 Acres); L-O (Limited Office) (1.64 Acres) and M-E (Mixed   
  Employment) (10.72 Acres) Zoning District in the Meridian City Code; 
  Providing that Copies of this Ordinance Shall be Filed with the Ada  
  County Assessor, the Ada County Recorder, and the Idaho State Tax  
  Commission, as Required by Law; and Providing for a Summary of the 
  Ordinance; and Providing for a Waiver of the Reading Rules; and  
  Providing an Effective Date 
 
Hoaglun:  Now we have Ordinance No. 22-1973.  Could the Clerk, please, read this by 
title.   
 
Johnson:  Thank you, Mr. President.  This is an ordinance related Aviator Springs, H-
2021-0065, for annexation of an area of land being the Northeast One Quarter of the 
Southeast One Quarter of Section 32, Township 4 North, Range 1 West, Ada county, 
Idaho; and being more particularly described in Attachment “A” and annexing certain 
lands and territory, situated in Ada county, Idaho, and adjacent and contiguous to the 
corporate limits of the City of Meridian, as requested by the City of Meridian; establishing 
and determining the land use zoning classification of 40.0 acres of land from RUT to R-8 
(Medium Density Residential) (27.63 acres); L-O (Limited Office) (1.64 acres) and M-E 
(Mixed Employment) (10.72 acres) zoning district in the Meridian City Code; providing 
that copies of this ordinance shall be filed with the Ada County Assessor, the Ada County 
Recorder, and the Idaho State Tax Commission, as required by law; and providing for a 
summary of the ordinance; and providing for a waiver of the reading rules; and providing 
an effective date. 
 

Page 35

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
March 15, 2022  
Page 13 of 15 

Hoaglun:  We have heard the reading of Ordinance 22-1973 by title.  Is there anybody 
who would like to hear it read in its entirety?  Just to point out we are the legislative body 
here for the city and since the state legislature seems to like reading bills by -- in full, I -- 
no one wants to take that opportunity here, huh?  Okay.  Do we have a motion on this 
ordinance?   
 
Perreault:  Mr. President?   
 
Hoaglun:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  I move that we approve Ordinance No. 22-1973 with the suspension of rules.   
 
Borton:  Second.   
 
Hoaglun:  I have a motion and a second to approve Ordinance 22-1973 with suspension 
of the rules.  Mr. Clerk, please, call the roll.   
 
Roll call:  Borton, yea; Cavener, absent; Bernt, yea; Perreault, yea; Hoaglun, yea; Strader, 
yea. 
 
Hoaglun:  All ayes.  Motion carries. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
 8.  Ordinance No. 22-1974: An Ordinance (Rackham East Annexation – H-
  2021-0075) for Annexation of a Parcel of Land Being Lots 13 Through 
  16, Block 1, Lots 8 through 12, Block 2 of Rolling Hills Subdivision  
  (Book 18 of Plats At Page 1,202, Records of Ada County) and Unplatted 
  Land Situated in a Portion of the Northwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of  
  Section 16, Township 3 North, Range 1 East, Ada County, Idaho, and 
  Being More Particularly Described in Attachment “A” and Annexing  
  Certain Lands and Territory, Situated in Ada County, Idaho, and  
  Adjacent and Contiguous to the Corporate Limits of the City of  
  Meridian as Requested by the City of Meridian; Establishing and  
  Determining the Land Use Zoning Classification of 25.76 Acres of  
  Land from RUT to C-G (General Commercial) (13.76 Acres) and R-40  
  (High Density Residential) (12.00 Acres) Zoning Districts in the   
  Meridian City Code; Providing that Copies of this Ordinance Shall be  
  Filed with the Ada County Assessor, the Ada County Recorder, and the 
  Idaho State Tax Commission, as Required by Law; and Providing for a 
  Summary of the Ordinance; and Providing for a Waiver of the Reading 
  Rules; and Providing an Effective Date 
 
Hoaglun:  Now before us is Ordinance No. 22-1974.  Will the Clerk, please, read this bill 
by title -- ordinance by title.   
 

Page 36

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
March 15, 2022  
Page 14 of 15 

Johnson:  Thank you, Mr. President.  This is an ordinance related to Rackham East 
Annexation H-2021-0075, for annexation of a parcel of land being Lots 13 through 16, 
Block 1, Lots 8 through 12, Block 2, of Rolling Hills Subdivision, Book 18 of Plats at page 
1202 records of Ada County, and unplatted land situated in a portion of the Northwest ¼ 
of the Southeast ¼ of Section 16, Township 3 North, Range 1 East, Ada county, Idaho, 
and being more particularly described in Attachment “A” and annexing certain lands and 
territory situated in Ada county, Idaho, and adjacent and contiguous to the corporate limits 
of the City of Meridian as requested by the City of Meridian; establishing and determining 
the land use zoning classification of 25.76 acres of land from RUT to C-G (General 
Commercial) (13.76 acres) and R-40 (High Density Residential) (12.00 acres) zoning 
districts in the Meridian City Code; providing that copies of this ordinance shall be filed 
with the Ada County Assessor, the Ada County Recorder, and the Idaho State Tax 
Commission, as required by law; and providing for a summary of the ordinance; and 
providing for a waiver of the reading rules; and providing an effective date. 
 
Hoaglun:  You have just heard this ordinance read by title.  Is there anyone who wishes 
to hear the ordinance read in full?  And, ladies, last chance to be on the record.  Extra 
credit.  All right then.  Do we have a motion on this ordinance?   
 
Perreault:  Mr. President?   
 
Hoaglun:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  First I would like to say I think Chris has a future as an auctioneer.  I move that 
we approve Ordinance No. 22-1974 with the suspension of rules.   
 
Borton:  Second.   
 
Hoaglun:  We have a motion and a second to adopt Ordinance No. 22-1974 with 
suspension of rules.  Mr. Clerk, will you, please, call the roll.   
 
Roll call:  Borton, yea; Cavener, absent; Bernt, yea; Perreault, yea; Hoaglun, yea; Strader, 
yea. 
 
Hoaglun:  All ayes.  The ordinance is adopted. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
FUTURE MEETING TOPICS 
 
Hoaglun:  With that we have come to our next topic, which is future meeting topics.  Do 
we have anything to bring up about future meeting topics?   
 
Borton:  Mr. President?   
 
Hoaglun:  Councilman Borton.   

Page 37

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
March 15, 2022  
Page 15 of 15 

Borton:  Just briefly.  There has been a lot of public input and questions about the trophy 
that sits over my shoulder.  I just wanted to explain briefly.  That trophy actually is the 
Garage Time Fantasy Football League Championship that I was able to win this year.  
There has been a lot of questions and input asking about how that happened, so I just 
wanted to clear the record first by thanking Mike Hanneman, the Garage Time host.  
Roger Higginbotham, our commissioner, who does a fantastic job every year and to 
Jimmy Carr.  Jimmy Carr, as most of you don't know, traded me as second and third round 
picks and with those pics I was able to get Cooper Kupp and Deebo Samuel.  That paved 
the way for a great season, ultimately leading to a Garage Time Championship and the 
trophy that sits over my shoulders.  So, a lot of -- a lot of people to thank.  A lot of good 
folks involved in winning the championship.  I'm proud to displayed it here in City Hall.  
Great efforts from a great league and appreciate those folks that made it all happen.   
 
Hoaglun:  Well, Councilman Borton, please accept my congratulations, but, please, know 
there will not be a parade thrown in your honor.   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Hoaglun:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  Mr. President.  Excuse me.  Any Cap Part discussion this evening?  No?  Okay.   
 
Borton:  Just trophies.   
 
Bernt:  Just trophies.   
 
Hoaglun:  Well, let's go to the final item on the agenda and that is adjournment.  Do we 
have a motion?   
 
Borton:  I move we adjourn.   
 
Bernt:  Second.   
 
Hoaglun:  All those in favor of adjourning say aye.  Opposed?  We are adjourned.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT.   
MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:26 P.M.   
(AUDIO RECORDING ON FILE OF THESE PROCEEDINGS)  
  
_______________________________  ______/______/______           
PRESIDENT BRAD HOAGLUN   DATE APPROVED 
ATTEST:  
 
_____________________________________   
CHRIS JOHNSON - CITY CLERK   

Page 38

Item #2.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Approve Minutes of the March 22, 2022 City Council Work Session

Page 39

Item #3.



Meridian City Council Work Session                              March 22, 2022. 
 
A Meeting of the Meridian City Council was called to order at  4:30 p.m., Tuesday,  March 
22, 2022, by Mayor Robert Simison.  
 
Members Present:  Robert Simison, Joe Borton, Luke Cavener, Jessica Perreault, and 
Brad Hoaglun.   
 
Members Absent:  Treg Bernt and Liz Strader. 
 
Also present:  Chris Johnson, Bill Nary, Bill Parsons, Molly Medenblik, Brian Harper, 
Kendall Nagy, Mike Barton, Tracy Basterrechea, Joe Bongiorno and Dean Willis. 
 
ROLL-CALL ATTENDANCE   
  
  _____ Liz Strader     __X__ Joe Borton 
  __X__ Brad Hoaglun        _____ Treg Bernt 
  __X__ Jessica Perreault    __X__ Luke Cavener 
              __X__  Mayor Robert E. Simison 
 
Simison:  Council, we will call the meeting to order.  For the record it is Tuesday, March 
22nd, 2022, at 4:30.  We will begin this afternoon's work session with roll call attendance.  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA  
 
Simison:  Next item is adoption of the agenda.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  On tonight's agenda under Item 13 we duplicated a number.  It should read  
landscape improvements at No. 12 and No. 20 West Ada Street, instead of No. 12 and 
No. 12.  So, with that change, Mr. Mayor, I move adoption of the agenda as corrected.   
 
Borton:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to adopt the agenda as correct.  Is there 
discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes have it 
and the agenda is adopted.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] Approved except Item 7 
 
 1.  Approve Minutes of the March 8, 2022 City Council Work Session 

Page 40

Item #3.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 22, 2022  
Page 2 of 14 

 2.  Approve Minutes of the March 8, 2022 City Council Regular Meeting 
 
 3.  Brightstar Meridian Partial Release of Water Line and Water Meter  
  Easement 
 
 4.  TM Frontline Subdivision Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement ` 
  No. 1 
 
 5.  TM Frontline Subdivision Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement  
  No. 2 
 
 6.  TM Frontline Subdivision Water Main Easement No. 1 
 
 7.  Final Plat for Graycliff Estates Subdivision No. 2 (FP-2022-0005) by KB 
  Home, Located at 684 W. Harris St. Vacated (to be heard April 5) 
 
 8.  Final Plat for TM Center No. 1 (FP-2022-0009) by Brighton   
  Development, Inc., Generally Located on the East Side of S. Ten Mile  
  Rd. Between S. Vanguard Way and W. Cobalt Dr. 
 
 9.  Final Order for Biltmore Estates Subdivision No. 4 (FP-2022-0007) by  
  Engineering Solutions, Generally Located 1/4 mile South of W. Victory 
  Rd., on the West Side of S. Kentucky Way and 1/2 Mile West of S.  
  Meridian Rd. 
 
 10.  Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for ACHD Ustick Maintenance  
  Facility (H-2021-0029) by Engineering Solutions, LLP, Located at 3764 
  W. Ustick Rd. 
 
 11.  Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Quartet South Subdivision  
  (H-2021-0088) by Brighton Development, Inc., Located on Parcels  
  S043432586 and S0434325410, at the Northeast Corner of W. Ustick  
  Rd. and N. Black Cat Rd. 
 
 12.  Memorandum of Agreement Between Idaho Public Television and  
  Meridian Police Department Regarding 360 Virtual Reality Video 
 
 13.  Project Agreement Between City of Meridian with the Nampa and  
  Meridian Irrigation District for Landscape Improvements at #12 and  
  #20 West Ada St. 
 
 14.  Mayor's Office: Net-Zero Budget Amendment in the Amount of   
  $13,150.00 Capturing Donated Revenues from Local Business   
  Sponsors for the Support of Mayor's Youth Advisory Council (MYAC)  
  Programs Including Treasure Valley Youth Safety Summit, MYAC Kick-
  Off, etc. and Do The Right Program Needs 

Page 41

Item #3.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 22, 2022  
Page 3 of 14 

 15.  City of Meridian February 2022 Financial Report 
 
Simison:  Next item is the Consent Agenda.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  One of the items, Item 7, the final plat for a Graycliff Estates Subdivision, we 
need to pull that off the Consent Agenda.  It -- it is waiting for some additional 
documentation and we will put that onto the April 5th meeting.  So, with that pulled off, Mr. 
Mayor, I move approval of the Consent Agenda and for the Mayor to sign and Clerk to 
approve.   
 
Borton:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to approve the Consent Agenda with Item 7 
removed.  Is there any discussion?  If not all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed 
nay?  The ayes have it and the Consent Agenda is agreed to.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
ITEMS MOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 
 
Simison:  There were no items moved from the Consent Agenda.  
 
DEPARTMENT / COMMISSION REPORTS [Action Item] 
 
 16.  Police Department: Fiscal Year 2022 Budget Amendment in the  
  Amount of $39,701.00 for Transition of the Current Part-Time Anti-Drug 
  Coordinator Position to a Full-Time Position  
 
Simison:  So, next up we will go into Department/Commission Reports, Item 16.  First 
item up as a Police Department fiscal year 2020 budget amendment in the amount of 
39,701 dollars and it looks like we have Lieutenant Harper.   
 
Harper:  Good afternoon.  I have Kendall Nagy here to potentially answer any questions 
that you guys may have or give a little more insight into this budget amendment.  So, 
today I'm here to request that amendment -- budget amendment to the FY-22 budget for 
the part-time Anti-Drug Coalition coordinator being moved to a full-time position.  It's a 
position we have had open now for almost 15 months.  We were trying to work on this to 
accomplish it, obviously, before the FY-22 budget, but it just didn't work out at that time.  
So, again, we are asking to increase this to a full-time position, which will be an increase 
of 39,701 dollars as an ongoing cost.  I will stand for any questions.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, questions?  Then do I have a motion?   

Page 42

Item #3.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 22, 2022  
Page 4 of 14 

Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  If Kendall wanted to say anything I -- you traveled all the way over here.  I 
would hate to -- okay.  Yeah.  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener. 
 
Cavener:  I think this position is incredibly warranted and needed in our community.  I'm 
excited to see this shift.  I'm happy to make the motion that we approve the budget 
amendment in the amount of 39,701 dollars, which would transition the current part-time 
anti-drug coordinator position to a full-time position.   
 
Hoaglun:  Second the motion.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second.  Is there any discussion?  The only thing I will 
say is with the opioid settlement coming in I know that there is going to be a lot of busy 
work to be done to help put those dollars to good use in our community and this will help 
achieve that goal.  So, I'm very happy that we are able to move forward in this direction.  
So, with that ask the Clerk to call the roll.   
 
Roll call:  Borton, yea; Cavener, yea; Bernt, absent; Perreault, yea; Hoaglun, yea; Strader, 
absent. 
 
Simison:  All ayes.  Motion carries and the item is agreed to. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
 17.  Mayor's Office: Overview of Neighborhood Grants Kick-Off Efforts 
 
Simison:  Next up will be from the Mayor's Office, an overview of the Neighborhood Grant 
kickoff efforts.  Council, want to introduce Molly Medenblik, who has come on board and 
is now taking this program and moving it forward.  So, Molly, I will turn this over to you.   
 
Medenblik:  Thank you.  You got my last name correct, so good job.   
 
Simison:  I hope so.   
 
Medenblik:  Yeah.  Well, Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council, thank you for letting me 
come before you and kind of give you an update on the Neighborhood Grants program.  
Like the Mayor said, my name is Molly Medenblik.  I would -- I would like to start out by 
saying thank you to Emily in Legal and Diana in IT.  If it were not for them I don't think this 
would be where it's at at the moment.  So, thank you to both of them very very much.  So, 
the -- for an update, the application is officially live.  People -- residents or organizations 
in Meridian can now start applying for this.  So, my big pitch at the moment is to kind of 

Page 43

Item #3.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 22, 2022  
Page 5 of 14 

get the word out that this grant is available to people.  But the -- kind of a timeline that we 
have going on is the applications will be due on May 13th, which is a Friday.  I did not 
plan on that being Friday the 13th.  It just so happened to be that way.  And so I would 
really like to kind of ramp up those efforts to let people know that this grant is available.  
So, when I came on board in January it was kind of a tight timeline to get this kind of off 
the ground and so I'm happy to say that we are there, but there are some -- there is more 
work to be done, of course, and as it's the first year we will probably have some hiccups 
that we will be able to fix along the way.  But when the applications are due you guys -- 
the Council will be kind of deciding what the -- what projects will be awarded these funds.  
I would like to maybe offer that Parks could be a little bit involved in that as well, as this    
-- they will probably have a lot to do with where the projects are, since it's on public land 
or an easement, that it will probably be in a park or something like that.  So, if I can kind 
of offer that up that they should be involved a little bit.  But as -- there was a little -- some 
-- some changes along the way of -- we -- just with the -- the timeline changes that I 
mentioned.  The application is due in May.  We would like to have projects completed by 
September 9th.  So, that would be kind of a -- a timeline that I'm looking at for -- hopefully 
for City Council after the applications are submitted to convene and, hopefully, award the 
project or projects by May 19th.  So, I would be happy to kind of discuss this with you 
further on how we want to -- to work on that, if that's something that you guys would like 
to -- to change.  Obviously, I'm open to that.  So, I kind of want to give an update just that 
we are live ready to go and kind of the timeline.  So, if you have any questions I can take 
them now or answer them at a later date.   
 
Simison:  Council, any questions?   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Molly, did I hear right?  The due date is May 13th and, then, the decisions will 
be made May 19th?   
 
Medenblik:  Yes, Mr. Mayor and President Hoaglun.  Yes, that is kind of a tight turnaround, 
but, yes, that was -- and so I would like to offer if I could I would be happy to -- as the 
applications come to me send them along right away, so you can have the option to look 
at them as they come in.  So, it's not kind of all at once you look at the applications.  That 
would be totally up to -- to you guys.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Follow up on that, Molly, because it's not only Council's side of things, but if 
you include parks and they have things to look at, I just worry about if there is just a surge,  
everyone waits until the deadline and, then, all of a sudden you have lot of applications      
-- which being the first year the program I don't anticipate, but you never know.  You know, 

Page 44

Item #3.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 22, 2022  
Page 6 of 14 

having staff with all their other work that they have going on that -- where do they fit that 
in?  That's one of my concerns, so --  
 
Medenblik:  Mr. Mayor, President Hoaglun, I agree and I think there is kind of some  -- 
concerns were kind of expressed a little bit with Parks as well that that is kind of a tight 
turnaround and so I was trying to balance that, having -- the applicants have time to get 
a project done by the end of the fiscal year with -- so, I'm trying to be respectful of 
everyone's time and I think I'm, unfortunately, short changing someone.  So, I'm trying to 
find that balance.  But I'm happy to kind of make adjustment -- adjustments.   
 
Simison:  And, Council, I think we can work to find something that -- that -- that makes 
sense, you know, as we move forward.  It -- it's probably a little too tight, especially if we 
are talking about an award by Council on a City Council meeting without being noticed  
and those type of things.  But we can work to set up a time -- knowing well in advance we 
can set up a time to -- to have the information scored and provided back and we can work 
on that and we will do our best part.  But this is a little bit -- you know, in between people 
and wanting to get a new program off and get -- and try to see the benefit and value before 
we go into the budget session.  You know, if we don't see people applying or we see a lot 
of people applying, it will help us -- help you all determine is this the right amount for this 
next budget year.  Should it be less?  Should it be more?  So, that's why we definitely 
want to see what's -- what's coming in and what's of value heading into the budget 
process.   
 
Medenblik:  Sure.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  So, is this just for individuals or do neighborhood groups and associations -- 
homeowners associations apply and -- and are you reaching out to them specifically?  
 
Medenblik:  Mr. Mayor, Council Woman, yes, anyone can apply -- kind of what -- the 
direction that I took from when I listened to the direction that Jody had taken last May 
when this was approved, was we didn't really want to exclude anyone; right?  Anyone 
could kind of -- so, I am looking at reaching out directly to neighborhood associations and 
organizations as well, but also trying to make sure that we are not excluding an individual 
who may want to apply.  Just a regular person, so -- but, yes, I will be reaching out to -- 
to those as well, so --  
 
Borton:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Borton.   
 
Borton:  A couple questions.  You bet.  Molly, remind me.  Is this -- is this utilizing funds 
from last year's -- or I guess this year's budget from last summer, so the applicant knows 

Page 45

Item #3.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 22, 2022  
Page 7 of 14 

that they -- they have to stay within a set window?  Is this the 20,000 dollar window?  
Fifty?  Okay.  Thanks.  I worry, too, I guess -- it's -- one thing that might be difficult this go 
around is the folks that don't apply because of quick turnaround.  So, two questions I will 
leave you with to -- I guess to chew on as part of the debrief.  One would be after this is 
done would it be better to -- for this type of program to have kind of that spring window, a 
longer review time and, then, part of the decision making based upon the applicant's 
funding in the summer, to, then, do it the next year, so an applicant might have more time 
-- may be more willing to apply knowing that they have got the next fiscal year to get it -- 
the actual work done.  That might encourage more participation.  And, then, the other one 
is what type of vetting process that might be helpful for the Council to have, whether it's 
parks or a small committee or somebody review it if there is, for example, 25 grant 
applications it's probably not productive for us to weigh on all 20 -- and maybe you already 
have that structure set up, but two things to think about as this program evolves that at 
least --  
 
Medenblik:  If I can respond briefly, Mr. Mayor.  Council Member.  I -- I think -- and correct 
me if I'm wrong, Mr. Mayor, but I think the original plan was to kind of have this roll out 
last summer a little bit, but I think with --  
 
Borton:  Sure.  
 
Medenblik:  -- staff changes it just kind of was a little bit shortened timeline.  So, I think 
we are all on the same page.  We would like to give everyone maybe a little bit more time 
with this.  So, I think that's the number one thing to kind of make a mark about for next 
year.  And then -- I had a comment for your second -- what was your second --  
 
Borton:  Kind of some -- sort of vetting committee or --  
 
Medenblik:  Oh, yeah. 
 
Hoaglun:  -- group that helps thin the herd a little bit.   
 
Medenblik:  Yes.  So, I have a couple ideas that I would love to maybe kind of run past 
Council with that a little bit, but for this particular year I have developed -- I have a rough 
draft of a rubric at the moment that I did kind of run past a few Council Members that I will 
-- I got to fix it up a little bit and I can send it out to you, so you guys can look at that before 
you have any projects in front of you.  That would, hopefully, be a good starter for -- for 
all of you, but also kind of what I mentioned, maybe Parks and Rec would probably be a 
great place to have somebody involved with that and I would be open to suggestions,  
anybody else with the city that should probably be involved to help you guys make the 
best decisions, so --  
 
Borton:  Great.  Thanks.   
 
Medenblik:  Yeah.   
 

Page 46

Item #3.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 22, 2022  
Page 8 of 14 

Simison:  Yeah.  If I could -- my understanding was it was Council's preference to be the 
only reviewer, determinator of all of them and not have them weeded out by others.  That's 
the direction that I heard.  If that's not the case we are happy to re-address that and we 
have got time to modify that process.   
 
Borton:  Mr. Mayor, I'm -- I'm fine with either.  I have experience doing the latter as grant 
reviews for nonprofits and you might have 50 -- even 50 applications, 17 are dead from 
the word go, which is the nature of receiving applications, so --  
 
Medenblik:  Sure.  I'm fine if we do it, but I don't know if it's the most productive way to do 
it.   
 
Simison:  Fair enough.  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  I appreciate Councilman Borton's thoughts on that as far as the timing of -- of 
the next -- next go around, because a lot of the homeowners associations especially have 
their annual meetings in the -- in January, February, March and they may want to add 
funds to whatever grant they get to work on a project that they have had set aside.  So, if 
that can be done a year in advance and maybe start the applications for next year sooner, 
then, that may -- we may get more applicants, because not only do they have time to 
plan, but they have time to plan something bigger if they decide to do it that way.  But as 
far as review goes for me I would rather they all be reviewed by you and, you know, you 
will have your set of criteria and, then, whoever else -- I -- I'm comfortable with having a 
committee or the Parks Commission or whoever is decided to review in advance and, 
then, just get kind of a spreadsheet for us that takes all of the criteria you have decided, 
plugs that in, whether there is a scoring system or whatnot, and then -- and, then, provides 
that to us.  It's really -- it would be challenging for me to read them as they came in and, 
then, try to remember and go back and reference.  I would rather just kind of have -- like 
you said, it -- say you are doing a rubric of -- yeah.  That would be much more helpful and 
just do it at one time and then --  
 
Medenblik:  Sure.   
 
Perreault:  -- and, then, go that route.   
 
Borton:  Just one final --  
 
Simison:  Councilman Borton.   
 
Borton:  -- Mr. Mayor.  Molly, I think it's great.  My comments aren't to disrupt anything or 
change anything.  I know it's an evolving process.  We are going to learn a lot from this 
one, so thank you for tackling it.  And, of course, we will make the best of this year and  
evolve, so good job.   
 
Medenblik:  Final comments, Mr. Mayor?  I just wanted to say thank you to all of you 
again.  Maybe I can kind of send you all an e-mail individually, kind of gather your thoughts 

Page 47

Item #3.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 22, 2022  
Page 9 of 14 

and, then, kind of compile them a little bit and see what's the best way to move forward 
with -- for this year specifically, like how to kind of score these projects and what's the 
best way to move forward.  So, if that works for all of you I will be reaching out to you that 
way.  So, great.   
 
Simison:  Thanks, Molly.   
 
Medenblik:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor.   
 
 18.  Parks and Recreation Department: Fiscal Year 2022 Budget   
  Amendment for a Not-To-Exceed Amount of $2,098,000.00 for   
  Lakeview Golf Course Improvements 
 
Simison:  So, speaking of parks, next item on the agenda is Parks and Recreation 
Department fiscal year 2022 budget amendment for not to exceed amount of 2,098,000 
for Lakeview Golf Course improvements and I'm going to turn this over to -- to Mike.   
 
Barton:  Good afternoon, Mayor and Council.  We were here a couple of weeks ago with 
you discussing the bid results for the Lake -- Lakeview Golf course capital improvement 
projects, the irrigation system and cart paths.  At that time we gave you three options, 
one, two and three.  There was a variety of costs and, you know how much -- how much 
do you want to move forward with at this time or do you want to do something this year 
or some next year? It was Council's preference to move forward with option one, which 
included the entire irrigation system replacement, including the -- a new pumping system 
and, then, also concrete cart paths and, then, at that time we talked about budget and 
what we have in our existing budget and if we do move forward with this that we would 
need to come back with a budget amendment that was discussed a little bit.  So, our 
existing budget right now is 2.69 million.  Seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars of that 
came from WARD's contribution this year via the -- the Meridian Pool Agreement.  So, in 
order to move forward with a contract for that option one, we would need a budget 
amendment of 2,092 -- two million 98 thousand.  Got that right. It's not that cheap.  And 
this -- this is the amount that we had as a placeholder in the CFP for FY-23.  So, if this 
budget amendment is approved, then, that placeholder would go to zero.  So, with that I 
will stand for questions.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, questions?   
 
Borton:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Borton.   
 
Borton:  I think I was gone from the meeting, but I didn't watch it and fully support all of 
Council's decision on that option to go forward with this budget amendment.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 

Page 48

Item #3.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 22, 2022  
Page 10 of 14 

Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  No other questions, I'm happy to move that we approve the Parks and Rec 
budget amendment for 2022 for not to exceed amount of 2,098,000 dollars for Lakeview 
Golf Course improvements.   
 
Perreault:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to approve Item 18.  Is there any discussion?  If 
not, Clerk will call the roll.   
 
Roll call:  Borton, yea; Cavener, yea; Bernt, absent; Perreault, yea; Hoaglun, yea; Strader, 
absent. 
 
Simison:  All ayes.  Motion carries.  Thank you. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
 19.  Construction Contract Between the City of Meridian and Lexicon, Inc. 
  dba Heritage Links for Public Works Construction of Lakeview Golf  
  Course Irrigation and Cart Path Improvements in the Not-To-Exceed  
  Amount of $4,379,150.00 
 
Simison:  We will leave you there for the next item, too.   
 
Barton:  I'm up -- I think I'm up next.   
 
Simison:  Item 19, construction contract between the City of Meridian and Lexicon 
Incorporated, dba Heritage Links for public works construction, Lakeview Golf Course.   
 
Barton:  Mr. Mayor and Council, now that we have the money, we are asking for your 
approval of a contract to Heritage Links in the amount of 4,379,150 dollars.  The -- the 
bid results were right in line with our opinion of cost.  It was about as close as you could 
possibly get, even though we had one bid.  We -- we have a contractor that comes highly 
recommended from other golf courses and they are ready to go and -- and start this June.  
So, with that I would ask for your approval or -- and I will stand for questions.   
 
Simison:  Thank you, Mike.  Council, any questions?   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Thank you.  Mike, remind me -- there is a contingency built in here; right?  And 
-- I mean you never know when you are going to start digging stuff up what you are going 
to find, especially with irrigation, so --  

Page 49

Item #3.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 22, 2022  
Page 11 of 14 

Barton:  Yeah.  Absolutely.  Mr. Mayor, Council Woman Perreault, in addition to some 
Idaho Power connection fees and construction administration, we have a five percent 
contingency on top of that in our budget.  So, for that unforeseen, you know, circumstance 
-- we need to bore under some streets and dig around utilities and we just -- we don't -- 
we don't know, so yeah.   
 
Simison:  Please -- please don't hit any water and sewer lines.   
 
Barton:  We are going to -- absolutely not to try.   
 
Cavener:  Anybody got any salt?   
 
Barton:  Yeah.   
 
Borton:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Borton.   
 
Borton:  You got the state's best procurement champion here.  So, I got to call him up and 
-- just anything, Keith, that you think we ought to know or be aware of on this?   
 
Watts:  No.  Like Mike said, the company is highly recommended.  They had great 
references.  The bid did come in right at near our estimate and I think they are good to 
go.  They have their bonds and insurance everything ready.  We are ready to roll.   
 
Borton:  Okay.  Good.  Thanks.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Question, Keith.  Is it just the nature of the busyness out there that we are          
just --  
 
Watts:  It is.  We -- we actually sent it directly to five contractors that were -- seemed to 
be interested and I can tell you we had an unbelievable amount I believe -- 15 different 
agencies picked up the bid and looked at it -- or firms and bid -- bid rooms.  It got out 
there.  It got lots of advertising.  Yeah.  I didn't hear anything negative about our -- the 
biggest thing when we get a single bid is that there is a problem with the specs and plans.  
That was not the case in this instance.  We just have to assume people are busy.  It's not 
uncommon right now to get one or none.  It's tough.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 

Page 50

Item #3.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 22, 2022  
Page 12 of 14 

Perreault:  Mike, what's the Parks Department's plan for public awareness, notifying 
neighbors in that area and notifying players, season pass holders?   
 
Barton:  Great question.  So, we have -- the golf course has a website that -- that 
everybody is on a -- on a list that if you have ever played a round of golf at Lakeview you 
are on a -- you are on an e-mail list.  So, we can send a blast out that way.  We can 
communicate through NextDoor.  I was going to put up some project boards in the 
clubhouse so people could kind of get excited about the improvements.  As -- as we get  
a little farther into it we -- we can -- we can have an in-person meeting every other week 
at the clubhouse.  Yeah.  In -- in the morning during business hours, so if somebody has 
a concern or they want to meet the team, you know, we could get him involved that way.  
So, until -- well, if it -- if everything goes well tonight we will have a -- we have the budget 
and we will have a contract.  We need to get a firm start date and, then, we will put in 
place a good -- a good communication plan to get -- to keep people informed.  I mean the 
last thing -- what we want to do is we want to be proactive and get -- get that information 
out.  We don't want to be reactive, because it's way more worse that way, so -- we will -- 
we will do our best to communicate early and often.   
 
Simison:  Council, any further --  
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor, we knew when we began this process a long time ago this was part 
of the initial conclusion, so I'm happy to move a -- make a motion that we approve the 
construction contract between the City of Meridian and Lexicon, Inc., doing business as 
Heritage Links for the public works construction of Lakeview Golf Course irrigation and 
cart paths improvements for a not to exceed amount of -- oh, boy, here we go -- 4,379,150 
dollars.   
 
Perreault:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to approve the contract.  Is there any discussion?   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Mike, Keith, kudos to you and your team to get this moving and grooving and 
appreciate your help and insight.  It's helpful.   
 
Barton:  Really, Mayor and Council, I just -- I -- I want to -- I want to let you know how -- 
how Keith really pushed to get this to go back and forth with the company and prioritize 
this, because we were -- we were kind of in a -- in a tight window, because they were only 

Page 51

Item #3.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 22, 2022  
Page 13 of 14 

going to hold their price for 30 days, so -- and Purchasing Department, Legal Department, 
Ted Baird really stepped up and made it happen.   
 
Watts:  Thanks, Mike, for that.  That is something to -- to point out and to keep in mind 
that -- that having somebody keep their bid for 30 days is even tough right now, so I 
appreciate you guys acting quickly.  Future bids I think we are running into -- just to let 
you know future -- we are running into situations where some products they won't even 
give you a price at this point.  They are long lead times, big dollars, and they just -- right 
now our suppliers are telling us we will tell you what it costs when it comes in, because 
they can't get a price from the manufacturer.  It's just getting worse by the day.  Just to 
give you a heads up that's what we are after.  So, I -- I appreciate you guys acting fast on 
this and -- and letting us turn this guy loose.   
 
Simison:  Thank you, sunshine.  With that we do have a motion.  Any further discussion? 
If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes have it and the contract 
is agreed to.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 20.  Per Idaho Code 74-206(1)(d) To consider records that are exempt from 
  disclosure as provided in chapter 1, title 74, Idaho Code 
 
Simison:  With that, Council, we have reached Item 20 on the agenda.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  I move that we go into Executive Session per Idaho Code 74-206(1)(d) .   
 
Borton:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to go into Executive Session.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not Clerk will call the roll.   
 
Roll call:  Borton, yea; Cavener, yea; Bernt, absent; Perreault, yea; Hoaglun, yea; Strader, 
absent. 
 
Simison:  All ayes.  Motion carries and we will move into Executive Session.. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  (4:57 p.m. to 5:17 p.m.) 
 

Page 52

Item #3.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
March 22, 2022  
Page 14 of 14 

Simison:  Council, do I have a motion? 
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor, I move we come out of Executive Session. 
 
Borton:   Second. 
 
Simison:  Motion and second to come out of Executive Session.  All in favor signify by 
saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes have it.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor? 
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun. 
 
Hoaglun:  I move we adjourn the work session. 
 
Simison:  I have a motion to adjourn.  All in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  
The ayes have it.  We are adjourned.  
 
MEETING ADJOURNED AT 5:17 P.M.   
 
(AUDIO RECORDING ON FILE OF THESE PROCEEDINGS)   
 
_______________________________  ______/______/______           
MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON   DATE APPROVED 
 
ATTEST:  
 
_____________________________________   
CHRIS JOHNSON - CITY CLERK   
 
 

Page 53

Item #3.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Approve Minutes of the March 22, 2022 City Council Regular Meeting

Page 54

Item #4.



Meridian City Council                                March 22, 2022. 
 
A Meeting of the Meridian City Council was called to order at  6:00 p.m., Tuesday,  March 
22, 2022, by Mayor Robert Simison.  
 
Members Present:  Robert Simison, Joe Borton, Luke Cavener, Jessica Perreault and 
Brad Hoaglun. 
 
Members Absent:  Treg Bernt and Liz Strader. 
 
Also present:  Chris Johnson, Bill Nary, Alan Tiefenbach, Tracy Basterrechea, Joe 
Bongiorno and Dean Willis. 
 
ROLL-CALL ATTENDANCE   
  
  _____ Liz Strader     __X__ Joe Borton 
  __X__ Brad Hoaglun        _____ Treg Bernt 
  __X__ Jessica Perreault    __X__ Luke Cavener 
              __X__  Mayor Robert E. Simison 
 
Simison:  Council, call the meeting to order.  For the record it is Tuesday, March 22nd, 
2022, at 6:00 p.m.  We will begin this regular City Council meeting with roll call 
attendance.   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Simison:  Next item is the Pledge of Allegiance.  If you would all, please, rise and join us 
in the pledge.   
 
(Pledge of Allegiance recited.) 
 
COMMUNITY INVOCATION 
 
Simison:  Our next item is the community invocation, which tonight will be delivered by 
Cindy Reese.  If you all would join us in the community invocation or take this as a moment 
of silence and reflection.  Cindy, thank you for being here.  Either one. 
 
Reese:   Our Heavenly Father, we are so grateful to be here this evening.  We are grateful 
to live in this community.  Grateful to live in this country.  We ask a special blessing at this 
time on the parts of the world our brothers and sisters who are involved in conflict that 
they may be protected, that this will be ended soon.  We ask thee, Father, to be here, that 
our spirit -- that thy spirit will guide and direct the discussions and that good decisions will 
be made on behalf of the community.  We are thankful for the service of those who  choose 
to lead and we ask the blessing upon them and their families and we say this in the name 
of thy son Jesus Christ, amen.   
 

Page 55

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 2 of 38 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Next item up is adoption of the agenda.   
 
Hoaglun:  Well, Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  We do have a few changes to our agenda this evening.  Item No. 2 is going to 
be continued in order for the city and the applicant to update the public hearing notices 
and update the project description to actually straight the increased acreage that is 
involved.  Also on Item 3 and 7, we are going to open those for the sole purpose of 
continuing the hearing to a new date before we get to Items 4, 5 and 6.  So, we will move 
seven up to like a 3-A and we will handle both those items and, then, with that, Mr. Mayor, 
I move we adopt the agenda with these modifications.   
 
Cavener:  Second the motion.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to adopt the agenda as modified.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes have it 
and the agenda is adopted.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AVES.  TWO ABSENT.  
 
PUBLIC FORUM – Future Meeting Topics 
 
Simison:  Mr. Clerk, do we have anyone signed up under public forum?   
 
Johnson:  Mr. Mayor, we did, but they indicated they wanted to speak about the Item 4 
Victory Commons and they have also signed up on that topic.   
 
PROCLAMATIONS [Action Item] 
 
 1.  Meridian High School Wrestling State Champions Day 
 
Simison:  Okay.  Thank you very much.  Well, then, we -- we get to have another 
proclamation this evening for Meridian High School.  So, with that we will go ahead and 
go on down and if any of the Council Members want to join in their garb or otherwise, feel 
free to come down, but if I could have the coach and the team join me at the podium that 
would be great.  Well, this is becoming a great tradition seeing Meridian High School 
come in for state championships, not only in wrestling, but we have had some of your 
other sports teams here over the last couple years and you see we are wearing last year's 
garb, so don't hold it against us.  We would all like it and we wear it whenever we can.  It 
just may be a little snugger than it was a year ago for all of us that -- it's coming out of 
winter.  That's -- that's what that is.  So, we -- we do take -- love this opportunity to 
congratulate our youth who are achieving highly in all things, but especially like to do it 

Page 56

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 3 of 38 

for those in their athletic achievements and so we are going to do a proclamation.  Their 
names -- we have another proclamation that goes into the record, so their name will 
always be in there on that proclamation.  We don't try to do it -- so, I don't butcher 
everybody's name.  But after we do this we would love to have all the team come -- after  
the coaches speak have all the team members come up and say their name, their weight, 
their year from that standpoint, so we can get that on the record.  So, with that:  Whereas 
being a Meridian High School wrestler is more than scoring points, escapes, takedowns, 
pins, and achieving state titles, it is training to build leadership, character, confidence, 
teamwork and resilience, all traits needed to succeed on the mat, in the classroom, and 
in the real world and whereas after a year of adversity and injuries and not only state title 
for 34 years, back to back state championships showed just how far the Meridian wrestling 
program has come and whereas the hard work racked up 290.5 points, providing two 
individual champs, four second place finishers and eight more places to bring home the 
2022 state wrestling championship trophy and whereas the Meridian Warriors conquered 
the competition for a second straight 5A state championship banner and whereas the 
leadership, training, and discipline of their coaches helped all team members to focus 
their talents, passion, and determination to become a winning team, with each player 
making valuable contributions to their victory.  Therefore, I, Mayor Robert E. Simison, 
hereby proclaim March 22nd, 2022, as Meridian High School Wrestling State 
Championships Day in the City of Meridian and call upon the community to join me in 
congratulating the Meridian High Warriors on the remarkable athletic achievement and 
for representing Meridian so proudly in the state tournament.  Congratulations.  Coach, 
would you like to come up and say a few words?   
 
Muri:  Howdy, everyone.  Hey, there is Isaiah Twait right on time.  One of our fine 
homeschoolers.  Yeah.  Just really -- everyone that's here was there at the state 
tournament.  It was a -- it was a wild year and a wild tournament.  I'm just really proud of 
this team and the resilience they showed.  A lot of adversity overcame at the tournament.  
We lost a couple kids to injuries and, yeah, they fought as a team top to bottom for those 
two days and definitely made some history.  So, just super proud of -- just of their grit and 
their toughness and really grateful for this group of kids.  So, thank you.   
 
J.Muri:  Hello.  I'm John Muri, associate head coach, one forty-nine.  But really proud of 
this group.  This is a -- it was a wild ride and looking forward to running back for -- for a 
three-pete next year.  But really awesome group.   
 
Simison:  If each of you want to come up.  I also have a City of Meridian pin that we will 
provide to you and, then, we will do a group picture after that.  Sound good?   
 
Gooley:  All right.  Carson Gooley, wrestled at 195, and I'm a sophomore.   
 
Kimes:  Zac Kimes, wrestled at 126, and I'm a senior.   
 
Arnold:  Gabe Arnold, 98 pounds, and a freshman.   
 
Papa:  Matthew Papa.  Well -- Matthew Papa, 120, and I'm a sophomore.   

Page 57

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 4 of 38 

Mack:  Parker Mack.  Wrestled 152.  I'm a senior.   
 
Howie:  Judah Howie.  One thirty-eight.  Also a senior.   
 
Argana:  Fabrizio Argana.  Wrestled at 190 and I'm a sophomore.   
 
Smith:  Alex Smith, 220, and I'm a junior.   
 
Ohlund:  Lizette Ohlund, 126, I'm a junior.   
 
Sears:  Lucas Sears, 170, senior.   
 
Gonzales:  Jamiah Gonzalas, 106, I'm a freshman.   
 
Dickerson:  Teigan Dickerson, senior, 113.   
 
Smillie:  Tristan Smillie, 160, and I'm a junior.   
 
Sunada:  Brodyn Sunada, 152, and I'm a senior.   
 
Mara:  Jason Mara, 138, and I'm a sophomore.   
 
Ramos:  Hunter Ramos.  I'm 145 and I'm a senior.   
 
Twaite:  Isaiah Twait, 170, and I'm a junior.   
 
Hoaglun:  Well, Mr. Mayor, as you are getting the podium ready for our meeting time, just 
want to comment as an alum of Meridian High School I'm -- I'm -- I'm looking forward to 
a dynasty starting right now.  I think that would be awesome.  We can bring these up 
every year and -- and for the guys -- they can -- I think they can still hear me out there.  
Remember this moment when you spoke before City Hall.  Okay?  Remember the weight 
you said, because 40 plus years later you are going to go I weighed that?  Anyway, just a 
piece of advice.   
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
 2.  Public Hearing and Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Apex  
  West Subdivision (H-2021-0087) by Brighton Development, Inc.,  
  Located on the North Side of E. Lake Hazel Rd., Approximately 1/4 Mile 
  West of S. Locust Grove Rd. 
 
  A.  Request: Preliminary Plat consisting of 208 building lots (207 single-
   family and 1 multi-family) and 34 common lots on 96.08 acres in the 
   R-2, R-8 and R-15 zoning districts. 
 

Page 58

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 5 of 38 

Simison:  All right.  Council, so with that first item up is Item 2, public hearing and Findings 
of Fact, Conclusion of Law for Apex West Subdivision, H-2021-0087.  The public hearing 
is still open.  Mr. Nary.   
 
Nary:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council.  So, in our conversation 
yesterday with Planning and with the applicant we realized as we resolved the issues of 
the land that we had discussed at the prior hearing about whether there is a parcel or the 
entire parcel, we reset it, we added 34 acres onto this parcel and we didn't send a new 
notice out.  So, I spoke with them, they are in agreement, we will renotice it for the April 
5th meeting.  That's the only glitch in this and so we just asked for a continuance to that 
date and we can finalize the --  
 
Simison:  April 12th.   
 
Nary:  April 12th.  Yes.  You are right.  April 12th.  I apologize.   
 
Simison:  Council, do I have a motion?   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  And I move that we continue the public hearing for H-2021-0087 to April 12th.   
 
Cavener:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to continue the public hearing until April 12th.  Is 
there any discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes 
have it and the public hearing is continued.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT.  
 
 3.  Public Hearing for Eagle Crossing (H-2021-0104) by Wadsworth  
  Development Group, With the Project Location Encompassing the  
  Five Existing Lots Located at the Southwest Corner of S. Eagle Rd.  
  and E. Ustick Rd.  
 
  A.  Request: Modification to the Existing Development Agreement (Inst. 
   #2019-121599) for the purpose of updating the existing concept plan. 
 
Simison:  So, next up is a public hearing for Eagle Crossing, H-2021-0104.  This -- I -- I 
know that this -- do we open this one or do we not do anything since the posting was 
incorrect?   
 
Nary:  So, Mr. Mayor, yes, so this one the posting was incorrect, so we can't open the 
public hearing, so it is just a continuance.   

Page 59

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 6 of 38 

Simison:  Okay.  Do we need a motion to continue it?   
 
Nary:  Yes.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  No, he said we don't open it, because it wasn't -- that's what I was trying 
to figure out.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  I move that we continue H-2021-0104 for April 12th.   
 
Cavener:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to continue the public hearing until April 12th.  Is 
there any discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes 
have it and the public hearing is continued until April 12th.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT.  
 
Simison:  Next up is a public hearing for Victory Commons Condominiums, SHP-2022- 
0002, and we will open this public hearing with staff comments from Alan.  Oh, I'm sorry.  
I apologize.  So, I need to do Item 5 next or seven next?   
 
Nary:  Seven.   
 
 7.  Public Hearing for Copper Canary (H-2022-0009) by ALC Architecture, 
  Located at 2590 N. Eagle Rd.  
 
  A.  Request: Modification to the Existing Development Agreement (Inst. 
   #104129529) to remove the subject property from the agreement  
   and prepare a new development agreement with an updated  
   conceptual development plan, removal of the requirement for  
   conditional use approval of any future uses on the site, and   
   requirement for access to be taken from the north via the future  
   backage road with emergency only access from the south. 
 
Simison:  Okay.  Okay.  Sorry.  Next up is public hearing for Copper Canary, H-2022-0009.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  I move that we continue H-2022-0009 to April 12th.   
 

Page 60

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 7 of 38 

Perreault:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to continue the public hearing until April 12th.  Is 
there any discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes 
have it and the hearing is continued.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT.  
 
 4.  Public Hearing for Victory Commons Condominiums (SHP-2022-0002) 
  by BVA Development, Located at 2976 S. Meridian Rd. (Lot 4, Block 1  
  of Victory Commons Subdivision No 2) 
 
  A.  Request: Short Plat for 10 commercial condominium units on 2.42  
   acres of land in the C-G zoning district. 
 
Simison:  Now going back to Item 4 is a public hearing for Victory Commons 
Condominiums, SHP-2022-0002.  Open this public hearing with staff comments from 
Alan.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Greetings, Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council.  Alan Tiefenbach, planner 
with City of Meridian.  This is a proposal for a short plat.  The property is zoned C-G, 
located at the northeast corner of South Meridian Road and East Victory Road.  The 
subject property contains a -- just about a 30,000 square foot building, which was 
approved by CZC in 2020.  At the time the CZC was approved the property was 
constructed on a lot that was in the Mussell Corner Subdivision.  Sometime after that in 
June of 2020 the property was replatted as Victory Common Subdivision.  First it was Lot 
4, Block 1, then, they did some adjustments to the lot and, then, it became a Lot -- Lot 2 
of Block 2.  This proposal is merely to subdivide the existing building into ten tenant 
spaces.  So, nothing other -- nothing else is happening.  You would remember the second 
plat came in front of you a few months ago, Council, that you approved.  Again, so this 
building is existing and they are just subdividing it into ten airspaces for ownership 
purposes.  We have deemed it as being in compliance.  That's really it for this 
presentation, Council.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, any questions for staff?  Okay.  Is the applicant here?  
State your name and address for the record and be recognized for 15 minutes.   
 
Petersen:  Yes.  Mayor, Council, Tonn Petersen, 2775 West Navigator, Suite 220, in 
Meridian.  My name again is Tonn Petersen.  I'm with Ball Ventures Ahlquist.  I don't need 
the full 15 minutes, just need a couple of minutes.  It's already been stated pretty clearly 
and we are very appreciative of staff and their -- and their help.  As -- as was stated this 
is a final -- well, before Council previously, dating back two years, a final plat consisting 
of four commercial lots and approximately 16.74 acres in C-G zoning district.  This is what 
we refer to as Victory Commons.  The phase one plat of that development was recorded 
in 2020 and, then, I think several weeks ago -- in fact, it was four weeks ago the phase 
two plat came before Council.  That's now being routed.  And as stated there is a 30,000 

Page 61

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 8 of 38 

square foot flex building as we call it, that will have multiple tenants who will own individual 
units.  In that flex building on this phase one and for that reason we have put forth the 
commercial condo plat and we are just appreciative of -- of Council, we are appreciative 
of staff.  I believe, Mr. Mayor, was -- was at the groundbreaking of this site several years 
ago and it's -- it's amazing to see how fast it's -- it's sprung up from there.  So, just really 
wanted to express appreciation on behalf of the company for the -- the assistance that 
we have been provided, as well as appreciation to the surrounding neighbors.  Of course, 
development and change is hard and we have enjoyed a -- a dialogue with the neighbors 
and are always looking forward to -- to find ways to -- to create that continuing dialogue 
with them.  So, with that I stand for any questions.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, any questions for the applicant?   
 
Petersen:  Thank you very much.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Mr. Clerk, do we have anyone signed up to provide testimony?   
 
Johnson:  Mr. Mayor, we had three people sign up, none indicated a wish to testify, but I 
believe some members of the public are here with questions.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  If there is anybody that would like to provide testimony, if you would like 
to come forward now.  Please come forward and if you can state your name and address 
for the record and you will be recognized for three minutes.   
 
Brown:  My name is Tammy Brown and I live directly behind at 2985 South Andros Way.  
I just became aware of this from this mailer.  My questions are -- is I would like to know 
the height of the project and the impact of the traffic.  Are already right now -- because 
the Kuna traffic is just -- you can't even get out on Meridian without really having to really 
punch it to get out.  So, the traffic is a big impact there.  I wanted to know how much more 
traffic those would generate.  And also construction hours.  What time the construction 
would start, how early in the mornings, the types of heavy equipment.  Are there going to 
be lots of dirt, because we had that nursery there before and everything around our house 
is filthy at all times.  I wanted to know the type of construction dust and if there are going 
to be lots of obstructions, you know, blocking off roads to get in and out of the -- because  
it's -- it's a big area right there.  So, I just -- I was just wanting to know the impacts to us 
as neighbors.  Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, questions?  Okay.  Is there anybody else that would like 
to provide testimony on this item?  Or if there is anybody online you can use your raise 
your hand feature.  Seeing none, would the applicant like to come and close?   
 
Petersen:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor, Council.  Appreciative of -- of I believe Ms. Brown's 
questions and I will make myself available to provide more -- more detailed information, 
both hereafter and also can -- can meet with Ms. Brown on site to just answer anymore 
further detailed questions.  On a very high level, the good news is in terms of the 
construction hours, this project, that the flex building, is near completion.  The construction 

Page 62

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 9 of 38 

hours are -- they do not exceed what's required under -- under city code and -- and I can 
certainly provide that detail to -- to Ms. Brown and in terms of the traffic, the -- the impact 
has been addressed through the traffic impact study.  The existing traffic that we have 
now has been mitigated somewhat by a U-turn that's been -- some enhancements along 
the existing arterial roads, including a U-turn there at Meridian, which doesn't seem like a 
-- a big deal, but it actually is an incredible enhancement in terms of keeping the traffic 
flowing through that site and so happy to provide that -- that information.  Again, I will 
provide my -- my personal contact information and can meet Ms. Brown and any other 
neighbors who would like to out at the site this week.  The height of the project I -- I have  
Hallie Hart, our associate engineer, with us here today.  We are checking the specifics of 
that, but I believe it was approved at 30 -- not to exceed 38 feet and I believe it's at 32 
feet is what -- up to the parapet.  That may be off by a foot or two, but, again, I can make 
sure I have that exact information for Ms. Brown.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, any questions?   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  No questions specifically.  I just wanted to say that -- just to clarify that the 
purpose of our hearing is -- here this evening is just to decide if the applicant is permitted 
to split this into commercial condominiums where they can individually sell.  It doesn't 
have to do with approval of the building, building size, or location.  So, thank you to the 
applicant for being willing to answer those specific questions.  I hope you can connect 
this evening.   
 
Petersen:  Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, any additional questions?   
 
Petersen:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Thanks.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  No questions, I -- I move that we closed the public hearing on No. 4, SHP-
2022-0002.   
 
Perreault:  Second.   
 

Page 63

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 10 of 38 

Simison:  I have a motion and a second to close the public hearing.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes have it 
and the public hearing is closed.   
 
MOTION CARRIED: FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  I move we approve Item 4, short plat for Victory Commons Condominiums, 
SHP-2022-0002 as presented in the staff report on the date of March 22nd, 2022.  Thanks 
for the --  
 
Perreault:  Second.  Second that motion.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to approve Item SHP-2022-0002.  Is there any 
discussion?   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  A quick comment on me dovetailing on Council Member Perreault's comments.  
Ms. Brown, I appreciate you coming and testifying tonight and I know it's frustrating when 
you get a card about a project and you want to come and learn more.  This annexation 
was before us about a year ago and I will tell you Council discussed height at great 
distance.  I live one neighborhood over you off of Victory, so the impacts on -- on Victory 
and Meridian Road were discussed at great lengths up here and I think that the applicant 
has done a good job of responding to a lot of the concerns from Council at that time and 
I appreciate the applicant wanting to meet with you one on one to make sure your specific 
questions are addressed as well.  Okay.  Not a problem.  That's -- that's why -- Mr. Mayor, 
sorry.   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  I know that we don't try and talk when people aren't on the record, but that's 
the reason why we have these meetings, so the public can learn more and get their 
questions answered.  So, with that, Mr. Mayor, I'm happy to call for the question.   
 
Simison:  Okay.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  The question has been called --  
 

Page 64

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 11 of 38 

Perreault:  Oh.   
 
Simison:  Would -- would --  
 
Cavener:  I'm happy to -- to relinquish if Council Member Perreault has got some 
comments or questions.   
 
Simison:  The question has been removed.  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Question -- which question has been removed.  I'm sorry.   
 
Simison:  Oh.  The question that he -- he basically called for the vote.   
 
Simison:  Oh.  Got it.  Yes.  I did not have any further questions.  I just wanted to follow 
up on something that -- that Councilman Cavener had stated.  If you would like to get in 
touch with the city clerk here, Chris, he can give you the link to the project.  That was 
originally approved and you can look at what was intended with maps and information 
and you might be able to also access that from our website, just so you can understand 
fully what's intended to happen there.  Sorry about that.  Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  With that ask the Clerk to call the roll.   
 
Roll call:  Borton, yea; Cavener, yea; Bernt, absent; Perreault, yea; Hoaglun, yea; Strader, 
absent. 
 
Simison:  All ayes.  Motion carries and the item is agreed to.  Thank you.  Have a good 
evening.  
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
 5.  Public Hearing for Moberly Rezone (H-2021-0089) by Carl Argon,  
  Located on Parcel R0406010125, South of W. Broadway Ave. Between 
  NW 2nd St. and NW 1st St.  
 
  A.  Request: Rezone 0.159 acres of land from I-L to O-T to allow a  
   duplex. 
 
Simison:  Next item up is a public hearing for Moberly Rezone, H-2021-0089.  We will 
open this public hearing with staff comments.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council.  So, this is a proposal to 
rezone from I-L to OT.  The property is roughly .16 acres in size, zoned I-L, located south 
of West Broadway Avenue between Northwest 2nd and Northwest 1st, literally just a five 
minute walk down the street here.  Okay.  So, the subject property is an existing vacant 
lot.  Again, like I said, consisting of .16 acres, which is zoned I-L along Northeast 1st 
Street.  I will go to some pictures here.  If you look at the picture on the right that's 

Page 65

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 12 of 38 

Northwest 1st Street.  This is predominately single family, multi-family, and duplexes.  
Nearly all of this is at least 50 years of age.  Some of these houses actually go back 
longer than that.  West of the property is a mixture of industrial uses.  A food bank, a 
religious facility and residential, both single family and attached.  There is actually 
industrial directly behind the subject property.  North of the property is single family 
attached and multi-family.  One of the properties approximately a hundred feet to the 
north, you can see here, is actually already zoned OT.  There are railroad tracks here.  It's 
about 200 feet south of the property and there is an alley, which you can't see very well, 
but it borders the property and that is what you can see in that picture there.  The applicant 
proposes to construct a duplex on the subject property once the rezone process is 
concluded.  Although the plan does specifically mention multi-family residential over 
ground floor retail or office uses being part of Old Town, the property is surrounded on 
three sides by existing one story residential and multi-family, with only a small number of 
industrial and non-residential uses.  Although a work/live situation is possible, because 
the subject property is on a residential street with no commercial frontage, staff finds the 
proposed residential use in this area would be appropriate.  The subject property would 
be alley loaded.  That's, again, what you see here.  This -- the reason for this is it brings 
the building closer to the street and it removes garages and driveways from the front view 
of the house.  This is consistent with the new urbanist principles where you want to have 
houses brought to the street, buildings brought to the street, porches, those kinds of things 
and you want to deemphasize garages.  Access would occur via this alley.  This is the 
alley here.  I actually did what I call the Tundra test, which is my gigantic truck and was 
able to get it back there to where the -- if I can get my truck back there you can land a 
747 back there.  So, there is enough room to get in the -- the actual access to the property 
is right on the other side of this little shed here.  You can see that's the alley back there 
where that fence is.  At present, although you can't really see it, there is a dumpster 
blocking the alley.  That's what you see here.  The way that you have to get in at present, 
because of that -- that dumpster is you have to come down Broadway and, then, you go 
south on North 2nd and, then, you turn and go east on Railroad Street and you -- you 
come up into the alley here.  This is a one way street here.  Staff supports the -- staff 
supports this application and recommends approval.  However, at the time we did think 
there needed to be some adjustments made to the duplex.  The original version, which 
you saw in the staff report, it showed like a combined front entrance inset for both units 
and there wasn't really any overhang, it didn't really -- it wasn't really consistent with that 
new urbanist principle, the front porches, and that whole thing.  Because it's near the 
downtown core and provides for Old Town, that was one of the things we thought would 
be an element of that.  Its walkability.  Its sociability.  Its sense of community.  This being 
the first project developing in this area, we wanted to make sure that we set the right 
pattern for things to continue like that.  That was our recommendation -- recommended 
condition of approval at the Planning Commission.  Since that time the applicant has 
submitted revised elevations.  So, originally, there was just an inset here.  Since that time 
they have put on a little porch over here.  I think it's six wide by 30 long.  They could 
probably double check.  They -- they could probably correct me on that, but this is 
sufficient size.  We just want to make sure there was enough room for somebody to 
actually be able to sit out in front of their duplex on a summer day or even a cold day.  
Meridian Planning and Zoning heard this item on February 3rd at the public hearing.  The 

Page 66

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 13 of 38 

Commission did move to approve this subject zone request.  Their only comments were 
that they -- the Planning Commission wanted to make sure architectural design and 
materials were generally consistent with the neighborhood aesthetics, which totally 
makes sense.  I looked at this -- if you look at a lot of the buildings in the neighborhood -
- and you can see them here -- a lot of them are brick and clapboard siding with pitched 
roof and dormers and that was what I had originally talked to the applicant about to make 
sure that the architecture -- we don't -- we don't want to mimic the historic structures, it's 
one of the principles of historic preservation,  but we did want it to respect the historic 
structures.  There were a few -- there were a few citizens that showed up to the hearing.  
The concerns they expressed were about, first of all, being two stories.  They had some 
concerns about the alley.  The alley is being used for things other than parking or -- or the 
alley is being used for parking and the alley is being used -- like they have a -- a dumpster, 
like I said, blocking the alley.  The alley is actually a public right of way.  It shouldn't be 
used for parking.  So, there was some concerns about the access occurring in the parking.  
Staff reminded the Planning Commission and the -- and the citizens that you can't park in 
the alley.  That's a public right of way.  The public gets to have access if it's a public right 
of way.  There was some comments about the -- the area being industrial and some 
concerns about whether the rest of it was going to turn residential.  The one thing I wanted 
to mention is there was a lot of discuss on the -- there was some discussion with the 
Planning Commission and the citizens on the two story nature of the house and it's 
important to mention to you that the Old Town zone district requires a building to be two 
stories and at least 35 feet high.  You can't actually build a one story building in OT.  It 
has to be two stories.  That's, again, to     -- to try bring that -- that -- that Old Town 
walkability and building going -- you know, allowing additional density and trying to 
promote commercial on the bottom and -- and residence on the top.  So, with that it's a 
very simple rezoning.  I think the applicant is here this evening and with that I would stand 
for any questions.   
 
Simison:  Thank you, Alan.  Just on that last point, I -- I thought that it -- single family 
residential or residential -- is it because it's not a single family residential, it's a duplex 
that it's -- that there wasn't the 35 foot height requirement on all structures if they were 
just residential, but maybe it's because it's not single family residential.   
 
Tiefenbach:  The -- no.  The Old Town recommends that -- that structures be at least 35 
feet high.  It could -- most of this neighborhood is all is zoned in I-L.  The only structure 
right now that is -- there is only one piece that's zoned OT at this point, but OT requires 
35 feet height and at least two stories.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Council, only questions?   
 
Tiefenbach:  It's the -- it's the only zoning district I know of really in the city where instead 
of saying this is your maximum height, it says this is your minimum height.   
 
Simison:  I knew it was a minimum, but I didn't think it applied to only residential structures.   
 
Tiefenbach:  It's -- it's all structures in OT, sir.   

Page 67

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 14 of 38 

Simison:  Okay.  Is the applicant --  
 
Borton:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Mr. Borton.   
 
Borton:  Real quick.  Alan, is this -- this has to go through design review before it gets a 
permit anyway; correct?  
 
Tiefenbach:  Yes, sir.  This -- because this is a duplex this is required to go through design 
review.   
 
Borton:  Okay.  Thanks.   
 
Simison:  All right.  Is the applicant here this evening?  Online?  It looks like they might be 
in the waiting room.   
 
Johnson:  Being promoted to a panelist right now.  I just have to accept that.  There it is.   
 
Simison:  If you can state your name and address for the record.  Sorry, I can't get in and 
see what's going on.   
 
Johnson:  Unmuted now, Mr. Mayor.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  
 
Argon:  Carl Argon.  4515 East Copper Point Drive, Meridian, Idaho.  83642.   
 
Simison:  Okay.   
 
Argon:  Yeah.  I'm the applicant, Carl Argon.  You know, we are excited to get this thing 
approved and through the process.  We are -- like Alan said, we are going to work with 
design review once it's rezoned to make it something that the city is going to, you know, 
approve of and be proud of and we are happy to set the standard for whatever else comes 
down that way in -- in the neighborhood.  So, we think we will put a good product out there 
and something that the neighbors and the community will enjoy and it will be better than 
a vacant piece of property that's sitting there right now, so --  
 
Simison:  Okay.  Council, any questions for the applicant?  Yes, Alan.   
 
Tiefenbach:  I just wanted to confirm.  I read in the UDC to make sure I was answering 
your -- your question correctly.  It is all buildings are required to be 35 feet or two stories.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  All right.  Seeing no questions from Council for the applicant, Mr. Clerk,  
do we have anyone signed up to provide testimony?   
 

Page 68

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 15 of 38 

Johnson:  Mr. Mayor, we did not.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Well, if there is anybody that would like to provide testimony on this item,  
if you would like to come forward at this time and you will be recognized for three minutes 
or if you are online use the raise your hand feature.  All right.  Seeing nobody who would 
like to provide testimony on this item, does the applicant wish to have any final 
comments?   
 
Argon: I do not.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Then with that, Council, I will turn it over to you.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Alan, just a -- a quick question for you.  About this dumpster, I get -- I get that 
there is -- you can't be parking in a -- in an alley.  Is -- can a dumpster be placed there? 
Do we know who it belongs to?  Have we communicated to the owner?  Any -- I know that 
maybe this may be more of a code enforcement question, but because you -- you brought 
it up I'm coming to you first.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Sorry.  Councilors, Mr. Mayor, I do not -- if you look down the alley here you 
can see the green dumpster here.  That -- the reason why I found that is because I was 
going to try to drive down this alley and I couldn't do it.  I think that's the -- the food bank 
there.  No, you can't put a dumpster in the alley.  That -- nobody is complaining, because 
nobody is really going back there.  Nobody is developed.  But you can't park in the alley.  
You can't put a dumpster in the alley.  It's a public right of way.  It would be a code 
enforcement issue if we wanted it to be.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  We have a representative of the Meridian Food Bank here.  Maybe they can 
shed some light on that, since they are in the area.   
 
Simison:  I'm happy to take public testimony, since we are not there and we can give the 
applicant time to respond afterwards, so -- state your name and address for the record, 
please.   
 
Clark:  Dan Clark.  Meridian Food Bank.  The address --  
 
Simison:  The food bank is just fine.   
 

Page 69

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 16 of 38 

Clark:  133 West Broadway Avenue in Meridian.  The purpose of the dumpster -- the 
dumpster belongs to the gentleman behind the food bank.  He puts it out there on the day 
of pickup and the truck comes in, picks it up, empties it and, then, comes over to the food 
bank.  So, that dumpster is only -- they are pushed out there like on Wednesday mornings 
before 9:00 o'clock or so and, then, it's gone.   
 
Simison:  Council, any questions?  Thank you.  Hearing that, would the applicant like any 
final comments?   
 
Argon:  Yes, I would like to make some comments.  You guys can hear me; right?  
 
Simison:  Yes.   
 
Argon:  I -- I had to go out there to post the sign for the public hearing notice for City 
Council and Planning and Zoning.  Each time I went out there during the week nights the 
dumpster was not there.  I also went back to take down my sign after Planning and Zoning 
Commission on a weekend.  The dumpster was not there.  So, I'm not very concerned 
about the dumpster.  It doesn't seem like it's a permanent thing.  That car wasn't also 
blocking the alley as well.  So, I'm thinking maybe Alan just -- it was just luck that you saw 
it out there the way it was, but each time I have gone out there it hasn't been that way,            
so --  
 
Simison:  Thank you.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Question for Alan.  Alan, on page two of the staff report it shows a boundary 
map and, then, of course, there is a new legal that was recorded recently.  Is this 
overlapped parcels?  Is this going to be divided into two parcels separately or is this going 
to stay on the one parcel as it is?  
 
Tiefenbach:  Thank you, Council Person Perreault, Members of the Council.  It is 
confusing.  It does look like two parcels.  It is actually one.  The -- I know that's what it 
looks like on the -- and I had the same question to Bill Parsons and we researched it.  For 
whatever reasons it's showing it two, but it is actually -- the record of it shows it to be one 
parcel.  It's going to be one duplex on one parcel.   
 
Perreault:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  I move that we close the public hearing for H-2021-0089.   

Page 70

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 17 of 38 

Borton:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to close the public hearing.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes have it 
and the public hearing is closed.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT.  
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor, just a comment before I make a motion.   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  It's exciting to see a vacant lot in Old Town being built upon and have some life 
to it and I think it's a good thing as -- as we learned about minimums for Old Town and 
two stories.  So, that was enlightening.  So, I -- I would move approval of after all -- after 
considering all staff, applicant, and public testimony, I move to approve H-2021-0089 as 
presented in the staff report for the hearing date of March 22nd, 2022.   
 
Borton:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to approve Item H-2021-0089.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not, Clerk will call the roll.   
 
Roll call:  Borton, yea; Cavener, yea; Bernt, absent; Perreault, yea; Hoaglun, yea; Strader, 
absent. 
 
Simison:  All ayes.  Motion carries.  The item is agreed to. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
 6.  Public Hearing Continued from January 11, 2022 for Heron Village  
  Expansion (H-2021-0027) by Tamara Thompson of The Land Group,  
  Inc., Located at 51, 125 and 185 E. Blue Heron Ln.  
 
  A.  Request: Annexation of 1.36 acres of land with a R-40 zoning district. 
 
  B.  Request: Rezone of 4.18 acres of land from C-G and R-8 to R-40. 
 
  C.  Request: Conditional Use Permit to allow expansion of an existing  
   108-unit, 5-building m 
 
Simison:  So, our next item is a public hearing that was continued from January 11th, 
2022, for H-2021-0027.  We will continue this public hearing with any comments from 
staff.   
 

Page 71

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 18 of 38 

Tiefenbach:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council.  I'm not going to go through 
the whole thing again, because I think we have all heard this very many times.  Just -- 
just so you know what you got it on last week's episode, I hope you get caught up.  The 
property is -- this is for an annexation, rezoning, and conditional use.  The property is 
located southeast intersection of North Meridian, East Blue Heron Drive.  It's six 
properties.  Five of them are already in the city.  One of them is not and this is what you 
see here, R-1 in the county.  The purpose of this -- there is now five apartment buildings  
with 108 units.  They want to build two new apartment buildings on this R-1 zoned lot and 
32 new units.  A conditional use was approved for the original complex in 2013.  We had 
a pre-app.  The applicant, again, wanted to build 36 more units in two buildings.  This was 
initially heard by the Council on October 12th.  Since this time it's been continued a few 
times.  It most recently came on December the 7th and, again, was, then, continued to 
this date.  The issue has been parking, particularly the issue with parking overflow onto 
East Blue Heron Lane and the impacts on the residents of the Heron -- Heron Brook 
townhouses to the north.  Also the Council requested the applicant to justify the number 
of spaces they are proposing and looking at some of the parking information that might 
be provided from the property management company.  So, this was the original proposal 
that you saw that came in front of you originally.  All that's grayed out is the existing and 
this was one building, this was the other building, and, obviously, the rest is parking.  
There was an open space here of 70 by 100.  Since the last Council the applicant has 
resubmitted new drawings.  First of all, the -- so, what you are seeing here that's different 
is that this Building G has now been moved up to the East Blue Heron Lane and this Park 
has been moved to the -- down towards the middle.  Part of the reason why they did that 
is because people have a tendency to want to walk to the building where -- to park where 
the building is closest and if you move the building up toward the street and widen the 
parking lot, which is what you see over there, it will help to incentivize people to park in 
the lot in front of their buildings.  Since -- since the time of the Council hearing there has 
been a couple of other things that the applicant has done.  The applicant indicates -- let 
me see here.  Okay.  So, with phase one there was 108 apartments and five buildings 
that required 204 parking spaces and they -- with phase one provided 207 parking spaces.  
With -- let me close this little window.  It's in my way here.  Okay.  So, phase two is -- 
again, It's 36 apartments in two buildings.  Their required parking is 69.  They have got a 
certain number of covered parking and their -- their provided parking is 89.  So, what they 
have done -- they have -- they have done a few things differently between the last time  
this -- the first thing is that that 35 of those stalls they have made them larger.  The -- the 
city of -- City of Meridian requires nine feet long by 19 feet long for a parking space.  In 
this particular case they are doing 11 by 20.  They are saying that this is to satisfy some 
of the larger trucks, like, for instance, my Tundra.  I think that the thing that is more 
important is -- one of the significant issues that they have had is they have all these 
covered garages in the original phase and though -- not cover.  Sorry.  Fully enclosed 
garages with a garage door.  And what the problem has been -- not with just -- not with 
these apartments, but a lot of different apartments is that people tend to use those 
garages for storage and, then, they park their car somewhere else.  So, all those parking 
spaces are basically useless in the garage.  If you remember our recommendation with 
phase two, because of the parking issue, is that we -- we proposed to you and to the 
Planning Commission that only carports would be allowed in this development, because 

Page 72

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 19 of 38 

it would keep people from storing things in their garages and parking elsewhere.  The 
applicant with this proposal is -- is now suggesting to take the garage doors off of the 
existing garages in phase one, all of them, and, basically, only allow carports in the entire 
development.  Again, with the idea that all of that storage that used to be in the garage 
would now have to go into their apartments or they have to get rid of it and parking will be 
used for cars.  It's -- it's a lot easier to enforce whether or not you are parking in your 
garage if you can look into the garage and make sure that they are not full of stuff.  The 
other thing is they have talked to Fire Department and ACHD and they are proposing to 
put no parking on the north side of East Blue Heron.  The neighbors across the street 
have had concerns with cars parked all along that side of the road, parked along near the 
corner, so you can't see when they are trying to pull out on Meridian.  So, they are 
proposing to stripe East Blue Heron Road.  So, again, the differences are larger -- 35 of 
the parking spaces will fit a Toyota Tundra.  They are proposing to make all of the garages 
carports and they are proposing to stripe the north side of East Blue Heron Drive.  And 
with that I think that is everything on my presentation.  I -- I talked a little -- I mean I kind 
of went back and rehashed on what our recommendations are.  They -- they meet all the 
requirements, so this is why we recommend approval.  In fact, they exceed the 
requirements.  The applicant is going to have to widen the pathway between East Blue 
Heron Lane and North Eureka.  There is a -- a lateral pathway there now and they are 
going to widen it, so that they have a secondary emergency access only for the Fire 
Department.  There would be posts or something like that so people can't drive there.  We 
had concerns with all the condenser units for the AC being along the front of the building.  
We thought it would be a little more aesthetically pleasing -- pleasing if they at least had 
to soften them up with landscaping and -- and, then, again, as I said, covered parking 
shall only be provided by carports and if the Council was supportive of what the applicant 
is -- is suggesting, then, you would probably want to add a condition of approval that the 
existing carports in phase one be convert -- or sorry.  The existing enclosed garages in 
phase one be converted to carports, which, again, would keep you from storing all your 
stuff in the garage.  I hope.  With that I have no other comments.   
 
Simison:  Thank you, Alan.  Council, any questions for staff?   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Thank you.  Alan, did -- did they -- the -- the parking spaces that are -- that 
have been widened and lengthened, did they actually like restripe and add -- are they 
going to restripe and add some in different areas of the entire complex of phase one or is 
it just all added into this east side in phase two?  So, that -- that doesn't really solve our 
problem, because we are still going to have people that live way on the west side of the 
development and they are not going to park their larger truck way on the east side just 
because the spot is bigger.   
 

Page 73

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 20 of 38 

Tiefenbach:  What I'm seeing, Council Person Perreault, Members of the Council -- and I 
very well could be wrong.  It will probably look to the applicant, because I wasn't prepared 
for that question.  What I'm seeing -- are showing the larger parking spaces down here 
on the east.  Certainly you are privy to tell him to restripe however you would like.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Alan, for the no parking on the East Blue Heron north side of that, is that 
something they have to go through ACHD to accomplish and get approval or can we 
condition that as well?  
 
Tiefenbach:  I'm sorry, one more time.   
 
Hoaglun:  The north side they are proposing to make that no parking.  It was a previous 
discussion we had about -- to help reduce impact to the residents on the north --  
 
Tiefenbach:  Correct.   
 
Hoaglun:  -- side, that they would make that a no parking area on that north side.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Correct.   
 
Hoaglun:  Is that, though, up to ACHD to make that determination?   
 
Tiefenbach:  Ultimately the ACHD, but my understanding is ACHD was supportive of that.  
I believe Joe Bongiorno might have had some discussion with them.  I will -- for sure.  But, 
yes, it's ultimately their right of way, so they get to decide.  My understanding was they 
did not like the idea of both sides of it being striped.  So, yes, ACHD ultimately would be 
the one that would decide.  So, you could -- you could condition this and they could say 
no.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Just before maybe we jump into the public hearing portion -- or the presentation 
of the applicant, I just wanted to notate for the record -- while I was here for the initial 
presentation, I did miss the continuance in December, but I watched it online and followed 
through on the minutes and feel prepared to be involved in the conversation tonight.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, any other questions for staff?  Okay.  Is the applicant here 
this evening?   

Page 74

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 21 of 38 

Johnson:  Mr. Mayor, I -- this is Chris.  I have -- Mr. Powell is the applicant.  I have unmuted 
him, but I see Mysti Stelluto as well, so I'm going to allow her -- I'm not sure who is 
representing the applicant.   
 
Stelluto:  Hello.  This is Mysti Stelluto.  Can you guys hear me?  
 
Simison:  Yes, we can.   
 
Stelluto:  All right.  I am representing the applicant Heron Village Apartments.  I'm with 
Dave Evans Construction.  Tamara Thompson with The Land Group is unavailable 
tonight.  We have Rob Powell, our architect with Dave Evans, available, as well as 
Summer Haven, who is the management -- with the management company for Heron 
Village.  Want to thank you all for seeing our application again and we look forward to 
bringing this forward one more step for approval.  As Alan was saying with our Option I, 
which is that newest site plan that you all see right there, that does provide wider stalls, 
as well as relocating the open space and touching with the wider stall option we are 
providing 16 stalls that are nine foot by 20, which is greater than code requires and, then, 
those 35 stalls that are 11 by 20.  And to address the question that one of the Council 
Members asked earlier about restriping phase one, that is going to not be very possible 
due to the fact that the carport post spacing has determined the spacing of the carport 
stalls and so unless, you know, the -- the carports are -- are redesigned and redone we 
are not able to restripe those.  We believe that making those garages deluxe carports by 
removing the garage doors that will help greatly with allowing more residents to be parking 
closer to building C and D, since they could just pull in and pull out, they don't have a 
garage door, plus they won't be able to use those for storage as well.  The thing to take 
note of is the property management has done a lot of things to figure out why the parking 
situation is the way that it is.  They have done numerous audits throughout the -- the last 
couple months.  Dave Evans Construction has done audits on site the last couple weeks, 
as well as doing tenant questionnaires to really see why the tenants are parking where 
they are parking and it was determined that -- that there is plenty of parking internally for 
everybody to have a spot and to park, but the tenant questionnaires provided was those 
stalls are just either inconvenient or they are not large enough for the vehicles that they 
do have.  And so property management practices, then, needed to be changed to also 
make parking within the community more convenient and so what the -- the property 
management company has decided to do was make all in community parking free of 
charge.  So, the garages are going to be free.  All the covered and uncovered parking 
stalls are free.  They have also given one garage space to every three bedroom unit free 
of charge and so that's a huge difference from before and, then, they are still continuing 
to educate residents of using the garages for parking.  Now, we are proposing to remove 
those overhead garage doors, which will, like I said, create those deluxe carports, which 
make additional parking a lot easier to park within the community, but in the meantime 
before that's been approved they are having those garages free of charge and educating 
the residences.  With our Option I, like I stated, we are providing larger stalls.  Now, they 
are not centrally located like in phase one, so people with larger vehicles will have to walk 
a little ways, but still we are providing ample larger parking stalls for those larger vehicles 
to park and we are not proposing anymore garages and the only cover parking stalls that 

Page 75

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 22 of 38 

we are going to provide is what code requires.  Everything else is going to be uncovered, 
which will also help curb that issue with the larger, taller vehicles not being able to park 
under those carports.  Regarding the no parking along East Blue Heron, that definitely is 
something that we are willing to work with ACHD and the city about.  We have learned 
with our discussions with ACHD that that is something that needs to be brought up by the 
city and the city needs to -- to request that from ACHD.  We have to be on board with it 
as well and that will only allow ACHD to go and do like a study to see if no parking is 
actually warranted on East Blue Heron.  That doesn't -- that doesn't say that they are 
going to approve it or they are going to -- they are going to stripe it or -- or sign it no 
parking.  That just allows them to do the study since ACHD feel that East Blue Heron was 
constructed and designed for parking on both sides of the street they are really hesitant 
to -- to not allow that to happen, because that's why that road was designed the way that 
it was.  But we are more than -- we are more than happy to cooperate with -- with you 
and ACHD to get that study going to see if -- if -- if the no parking is even possible from 
ACHD's perspective.  We do agree that at least no parking should be on that north and 
south side just west of -- I'm sorry -- just east of Meridian Road west of North Richter 
Lane.  That will definitely help with the Fire Department's concerns with that visual triangle 
being blocked with all those cars.  So, we are definitely on board with that as well.  We -- 
we feel that the Option I that we are showing now does provide those larger stalls, it 
provides the open space that's more central to both phases being able to use that park- 
like setting.  It's going to have benches.  We are proposing to have barbecue areas.  We 
are also proposing to have 36 covered bike -- bike -- covered bike stall areas through the 
whole entire complex to use and we feel that this is just a really great project to help with 
the housing problem that Meridian is having.  It's going to fulfill the vision of the 
Comprehensive Plan and the future land use plan and we respect your approval and I will 
stand for questions.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, questions for the applicant?   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  Thank you, Mysti.  Could we bring up the map with all of the buildings for the 
whole development?   
 
Tiefenbach:  Does that work for you?  
 
Perreault:  No.  I think there was one where you can see them.  They are grayed out, but 
-- yeah, there we go.  So, one of the reasons why this has been continued and we have 
-- we have asked the applicant to go down this -- this process was to try to get vehicles 
off of Blue Heron Lane and so I just wanted Mysti, if she could share with us, if -- if there 
are vehicles that belong to tenants in Building E and Building D that have -- that -- that 
need to use the -- the larger parking stalls, I -- I'm not sure that this actually solves them  
not parking on Blue Heron.  So, would you share with us thoughts on -- on that?  Because 
I -- I think that they are just going to park in the spots that are closest to their building and 

Page 76

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 23 of 38 

I really appreciate the -- the larger stalls.  I -- I think it's a fantastic idea, I just think placing 
them -- and I understand what you are saying about what -- how the striping is done in 
relationship to the carports and how things are spaced, I'm just not sure that it 
accomplishes the whole -- you know, one of the main reasons that we have gone through 
this process the way we have, which is to get them off of the street.  I think that they will 
likely still park on the street if they live in those most northeast buildings.   
 
Stelluto:  Yes, Mr. Mayor and Council Woman, I understand your question about the -- the 
parking for Building E and D.  With removing those overhead garage doors in the garages 
along Meridian Road that will -- that will provide a little bit more headroom than the 
carports would, so we are hoping that some of those vehicles can park in those garages.  
As far as the vehicles parking along East Blue Heron Lane, again, that's something that's 
legal for them to do and we cannot legally stop them from parking on it.  We are going to 
provide every opportunity for them to park within the community and we will provide them 
those larger stalls and encourage them to park over -- you know, it's not that far of a walk 
if you -- if you have been in this complex before.  It's not that big of a walk.  It's a couple 
-- maybe two minute walk or whatever and we will encourage them to use those stalls 
versus parking on the road, but we simply can't force them to not park on the road.  It's 
simply legal for them to do so.  But we are hoping with those garage doors being removed 
that that will encourage those larger vehicles to be able to -- to park in there.   
 
Simison:  Council, any additional questions of the applicant?  Thank you very much.  Mr. 
Clerk, do we have anyone signed up to provide testimony?  
 
Johnson:  Mr. Mayor, yes, we do.  James Michael Schwerd.   
 
Simison:  If you can state your name and address for the record and be recognized for 
three minutes.   
 
Schwerd:  James Michael Schwerd.  245 Blue Heron Lane.  Well, what -- what happens 
is they will park on the south side and, then, they come down to the Meridian Meatpackers 
and they -- they -- they make their U-turn in my retail area to go back down the south side 
and -- and that -- I don't know what the fix is, but they are just going to tear up our loading 
dock and, then, our retail area flipping the U-turns right there, because they -- especially 
if they close the south -- the north side, because they will just come down -- they will -- 
they will park on the south side and, then, they will come down to where the -- our plant 
is and turn to head out to Meridian Road.   
 
Simison:  Council, any --  
 
Schwerd:  I don't know what the fix is on that either, so -- if there is one.   
 
Simison:  Council, any questions?  Maybe in -- maybe in --  
 
Schwerd:  Maybe later?   
 

Page 77

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 24 of 38 

Simison:  Maybe later is what I'm -- is what I'm saying, so --  
 
Schwerd:  Okay.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.   
 
Schwerd:  You are welcome.   
 
Johnson:  And, Mr. Mayor, two others signed up online, but they are members of the 
applicant team, so I'm not sure how you would like to treat that.   
 
Simison:  Well, in -- in the past when they have done that we have -- if they are testifying 
on their own behalf we are happy to take them.  Is there anybody -- but I will start with 
anybody else in the audience that would like to provide testimony on this item.  Okay.  
Seeing none, now let's check in with those that signed up in advance and see if they -- if 
there is going to be online that would like provide testimony, please, use the raise your 
hand feature.  Okay.  Seeing no one wishing to provide additional testimony, would the 
applicant like to make any final comments?  
 
Stelluto:  No, I do not.  Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  So, Council, I assume -- I will leave this open for conversation.   
 
Hoaglun:  Good idea, Mr. Mayor, and I have a question for Chief -- Deputy Chief 
Bongiorno.  Chief, we were talking about vision triangles and -- and whatnot and I'm trying 
to remember from last time we had the discussion -- can you go through -- were we 
concerned about Richter, which is part of that East Waterbury Lane connected there, right 
closest to Meridian Road, was it both the north and south side that we had concerns about 
fire trucks and having that vision or was it also farther down?  Can you refresh my memory 
on that?  
 
Bongiorno:  Yeah.  Mr. Mayor, Councilman Hoaglun, I think the -- excuse me.  I think the 
issue was cars parking too close to the corner and, then, I believe on one of the directions 
there is actually a fire hydrant sitting there as well.  So, that was the issue.  So, I did 
contact John Watson with ACHD and I asked him if they would be willing to sign from 
Richter to the corner as no parking, because of the fire hydrant being there and because 
of traffic and not being able to see up and down Meridian Road.  Honestly I never got an 
answer back from him.  We also discussed Blue Heron and I think we talked about this at 
the last meeting as well -- I believe is a 33 foot roadway section, which is a standard 
roadway section for ACHD and I believe it was the Mayor that even asked me are you 
comfortable driving a fire engine down that and the answer is yes, because that's our 
standard roadway width that use here in Meridian that's 33 feet and we allow parking on 
both sides.  So, we are -- I'm okay with leaving Blue Heron as no parking.  That would be 
completely Council's call and ACHD's call to not allow parking on the north side, but I am 
okay with it. 
 

Page 78

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 25 of 38 

Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor, follow up? 
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun. 
 
Hoaglun:  Yeah, chief, for that no parking and the view area, was that both -- from Richter 
to Meridian Road was that both north and south side?   
 
Bongiorno:  Correct.  Both sides.  I asked for both sides to be signed.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  Thank you.  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Another question -- I don't know if some of the residents there off of Waterbury 
Lane are here, but I'm just curious about -- you know, we talk about no parking on the 
other side -- on the north side up against that -- that -- that community, but is -- does that 
mess them up when people come to visit for -- for example?  So -- or it looks like from -- 
I'm looking at Google Earth -- has, you know, plenty of parking and it's a wide street and 
-- and different things like that.  They have covered parking.  So, I was just curious, you 
know, sometimes we take action and, then, find out, oh, that didn't help things, we made 
it worse.  So, we want to avoid that.  So, I didn't know if one of you would like to comment 
about that.  I will let the Mayor invite you to come up and give your name and address for 
the record.   
 
Simison:  You have invited them.  That's okay.   
 
Rogers:  Hi.  I'm Sandra Rogers and I live at 102 East Waterbury Lane, which is off -- right 
off Blue Heron, Richter, and East Waterbury.  Yes.  And we have overflow parking, but a 
lot of times we have people from the apartment complex that have parked in our overflow 
parking and there is no way for us to tell who is parking in it.  I mean unless you see 
somebody -- if you actually see somebody park in it and go to the apartment, we can't 
confront anybody.  So, as far as parking on East Blue Heron, a lot -- I can't say a lot, but 
I do believe there are quite a few that are parking there that are sharing apartments with 
people that are on the lease.  Now, these are people that aren't on the lease and they are 
sharing apartments, because a lot of these people are young and they can't afford the 
rent.  I mean even when both of them are working and if they have a child, they just 
absolutely can't afford the amount of rent anymore and so they have got friends and 
whatever -- whoever living with them and that's got to be some of those cars that are on 
East Blue Heron.  So, I know at a previous meeting we talked about from Meridian Road 
on both sides of East Blue Heron down to the driveways and one would be Richter and 
one would be the street coming and going that -- into the entrance of the first apartment 
complex, blocking those off with either red on the curbing or signs and I thought it was 
okayed.  I mean I thought everybody was on board with that at the time, so I don't know 
where that stands now and am I understanding this no parking on the north side of East 
Blue Heron is just to allow a study?  Was this going to be a done deal?  
 

Page 79

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 26 of 38 

Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Yeah.  We -- we don't have the jurisdiction over the streets, so we would make 
recommendations --  
 
Rogers:  Right.   
 
Hoaglun:  -- but it would Ada County Highway District that would do the study.  What we 
are looking at -- and I think everyone is in agreement in it -- is -- and listening to Deputy 
Chief Bongiorno, is no parking from Richter to Meridian Road on both the north and south 
side because of the view that -- that you need when you are exiting.   
 
Rogers:  Right.  It blocks our view terribly coming in and out.  I'm surprised there hasn't 
been an accident there.   
 
Hoaglun:  So, I -- I don't think that's the -- in question.  I could be wrong.  But my question, 
then, from Richter up to where you can enter Waterbury, a little bit further to the east, to 
come in that way on the north side or up against the -- your residences there, does that 
need to be no parking on just that north side to help alleviate traffic?  I'm also thinking is 
is that a way to allow U-turns, people who parked on the south side, then, that can, then, 
have enough room to make a U-turn, so they are not going farther to the east, going 
through this gentleman's property to -- and around.   
 
Rogers:  Well, yeah, I understand what he is saying.  I have seen a lot of that.  Yeah.  No.  
If -- if this doesn't workout, no parking on the -- on the one side like they are talking about, 
we definitely need that done on East Blue Heron on both sides from Meridian Road up to 
the driveways of the apartment complex and Richter on the other end, so that we can see 
-- I mean -- and just because we have rules and regulations these people still don't abide 
by them.  I mean I could be calling code enforcement every day.  I don't.  But I do when 
it's a real issue.  But big trucks parked right up to our driveways -- and we have to get 
way out into the street to see if we can even get out to make a turn to get out onto Meridian 
Road.  It's -- you know, we have got older people that live in there, so it's a bad issue.   
 
Hoaglun:  I appreciate you and the information you provided.  Thank you for doing that.   
 
Rogers:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Would you mind a couple other questions?  I'm just --  
 
Rogers:  No, at all one.   

Page 80

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 27 of 38 

Cavener:  -- curious.  One, I -- I appreciate you and your neighbors I think came and made 
some very compelling arguments back I think in September that the Council is very 
sympathetic, so here we are now looking at April -- I guess on the -- on the heels of April.  
We have seen a lot of different revisions and I was -- I was a little bummed that neither 
the three of you came up to testify one way or another about what's being proposed and 
I'm just kind of curious where are you and your neighbors at on -- on what's being 
proposed?  Do you think it -- it meets or -- or addresses the concerns that you -- you 
brought up in September?  Do you think it makes it worse?  Is it slightly better, but not 
what you fully would hope to see?  I mean just I -- I would like to get a little bit of feedback 
from you about what's being proposed, if you are willing to share.   
 
Rogers:  Well, after tonight -- there is only three of us here.  We have 34 units out there, 
plus a clubhouse, and I think they have been very good about accommodating what we 
have talked about.  So, of course, parking -- parking and traffic was the main issue and 
we have fire trucks and ambulances out there all too frequently and so that's a big deal 
that they can -- I mean I find it hard to believe what he's saying with cars parked on both 
sides of East Blue Heron and a fire truck -- he would know, but going down there and 
coming back -- I don't know.  It's got to be a tight squeeze.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  I think that's probably why they don't let you and I drive those trucks, is because 
I think you would need to have to do that.   
 
Rogers:  No.  
 
Cavener:  So, I appreciate your feedback.  Thank you for testifying tonight.   
 
Rogers:  Uh-huh.  Thank you for your help.  All of you.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor? 
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  So, I just wanted to say, if I remember correctly, the members of the public had 
come before us in the first hearing and asked to stripe the north -- the entire north side 
from Meridian Road to Waterbury, because they thought that would alleviate concerns 
about people driving through Waterbury Lane and turning around, which I -- I believe was 
-- is a private lane and so that was a request that was originally made from the public, 
which is why we started down conversation about it and, then, meeting two is when Chief 
Bongiorno had mentioned that it wasn't necessary for the -- the width of a fire truck.  So, 
we kind of left it there and so I just -- it's hard to say, because I don't -- we are very thankful 
that -- that you are here, but just -- you know, it's -- it's tough to make a decision about 
whether we ask the applicant to stripe that whole section on the north side, just -- not 

Page 81

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 28 of 38 

having any kind of -- you know, I'm hesitant to condition that I guess considering that we 
have no -- no say in it and it's just a preference maybe.  So, I guess what I'm trying to 
determine if this is a preference or there really is a safety issue.   
 
Simison:  Give my two cents, unless I'm forgetting -- I -- I guess I never really looked at 
this dead end turnaround factor.  I mean that -- that -- the only -- as far as I can see the 
only way you can ever prevent people from driving and trying to turn around is to have no 
parking on both north and south and forcing people into the two places to do their parking.  
Otherwise, there is no way to solve anybody that only -- only one way they are getting on 
either one of -- one of the sides of the road is -- is making a turn somehow that is not 
viewpoint, so you know, in -- in some regards I think that's a question that Council should 
consider is what is the -- you know, there is no turning -- yeah, I have to look at the chief 
-- the Fire Chief again, it's like how do you guys turn around?  If -- if you need to go to 
that next house that's currently there, you can't turn left on Waterbury, I mean it's not your 
preference to go into someone else's property to turn your vehicle around, but that's what 
you are going to do I assume and is that fair to the property owner?  
 
Bongiorno:  Yeah.  Mr. Mayor, we would probably, like you said, we would put at least pull 
into the driveway and, then, you know, back out and, then, come down.  You know, it's 
exactly what they are saying.   
 
Simison:  So -- so, there -- there is that element for consideration on -- on both sides.  The 
other part about this is, you know, I -- I have a -- a nice shiny new vehicle that I just 
received, it doesn't deserve an 11 by 20 foot lot, but I would park my car there, even 
though it doesn't require it if it's closer to where -- where I want.  So, while we may think 
we are solving -- you can't guarantee and we -- I appreciate what the applicant is trying 
to accomplish, but we can't force -- they can -- you know, you can go down to the parking 
lots in Boise and they say compact only.  People park where they want to park when -- 
when they want to park.  Yeah.  Alan's Tundra.  You know.  And they will park in alleyways  
apparently when they want to as well.  So, I think these are all good ways of trying to 
address it, but I don't -- this is just an area that's trying to retrofit challenges that anything 
that is done is going to have some repercussions one way or the other and I don't think 
that we will know which -- what will be until things occur.  So, I'm just pondering.  So, no 
real questions at this point in time if we want to have more --  
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  -- comments.  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Yeah.  Those are -- those are good ponderings, because that's definitely what 
we are wrestling with, because if -- if you take away parking on the north side, in my mind, 
because that -- between Richter and going east, does that put more pressure on their 
guest parking lot, because people go, oh, that's open, I'm just going to park there, as 
opposed to leaving that with parking on the north side.  It's -- it's one of those conundrums.  
I mean I have no problem going from Richter, as deputy chief pointed out, on both the 
north and south side and, then, I think, okay, maybe we allow parking both ways and, 

Page 82

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 29 of 38 

then, have ACHD also examine ways to have no parking and bring that in at least one or 
two car lengths at each intersection, so you have better viewing, so when you pull out  
you can see better, instead of having to go clear out.  But, then, Mayor, you -- you make 
a very good point.  If you have no parking on both sides you don't have to make a U-turn, 
you know, come up the street, because you don't have to.  You don't have to swing around 
to go to the north side or -- if you parked on the south side you are going to have to do a 
U-turn later on.  So, you know, all these things that -- that balance.  I think overall, just 
kind of -- so the applicant has -- has some idea of what we are pondering -- for me anyway 
is they -- they have made lots of changes.  I think they have asked everything that we 
have -- asked them to -- to do.  They have come up with some solutions for increasing 
parking and trying to regulate parking and keep people in compliance and without this 
expansion they don't have to do any of that.  I mean it's just going to remain the way it is.  
So, it's -- it's one of those things I think we can bring about benefits with approval -- more 
benefits than we can without.  But it's just a matter of how do we -- how do we solve some 
of those on-street parking issues that -- that actually work.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  I know Kristy is on the call.  Maybe we can bring her in -- and I guess maybe 
my question would be is -- kind of getting her expertise, she's been following this project,  
if she's got any recommendations for Council to include in our motion and conditions, 
should we move towards approval, that maybe us not being the subject matter experts, 
but the highway district being that, that -- that we could maybe address some of these 
concerns in the most efficient manner possible.   
 
Inselman:  Mr. Mayor, Councilman Cavener, sorry -- you guys are so small on my screen.  
I think that's Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  It is.  Thank you.   
 
Inselman:  I did go through and -- and I did converse back and forth with some of our DTS 
staff on some of these issues and we certainly -- our traffic has that request from the fire 
department to look at the north and south side from Richter out to Meridian Road and 
they are definitely -- that is in their cue to analyze that to see if there are some sight 
distance issues with those two driveways and potentially putting some no parking there.  
The street is -- and will be if this is approved -- 36 feet wide back of curb to back of curb, 
which is a standard local for us.  I don't know how we can address the turnaround issues 
at the end of the roadway.  It is our right-of-way, but given that it's an offsite we can't 
require them to place a turnaround there and I know that there was a request to expand 
the pathway on the -- the right-of-way out to Eureka to 12 feet for an emergency access 
for the fire department.  So, that may help with some of that.  And, yes, the -- all of those 
drive -- all of those drive aisles on the north side on that development are all private.  So, 
we have no jurisdiction over those.  But our -- the local roads are wide enough for parking 
on both sides and if the fire department says it -- it's not needed, that they can traverse 

Page 83

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 30 of 38 

that roadway, I think it really kind of -- kind of comes down to the turnaround, which we 
don't have any authorization to require with this development.  I don't know that that really 
answers your questions, but we also certainly would work with the city if they request no 
parking on one side or the other.  We certainly -- that would be analyzed by our traffic 
department, so --  
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.  
 
Cavener:  Kristy, could we also include, you know, like a request for a sign, like a dead 
end or -- or no outlet --  
 
Inselman:  Oh, for sure.   
 
Cavener:  I want to be sympathetic to Mr. Schwerd's concerns about, you know, apartment 
traffic or drive-through traffic turning around in his parking lot and I don't know if that solves 
it, but I think would maybe at least reduce some of that.   
 
Inselman:  Yeah.  Mr. Mayor, Councilman Cavener, that would be part of the traffic 
analysis that they would look at.  They can -- they can include that for the no parking.  
They can look at appropriate signage to notify drivers that this is not a through street.   
 
Simison:  So -- so looking at you, deputy chief, if Mr. Schwerd's decided to put a fence up 
on his property line, what would that do and mean from -- from your standpoint?  I'm not 
putting words in his mouth, but I -- I couldn't -- you know, it -- it's a possibility that, you 
know, there is no access turn around and how does that impact the fire department if that 
was the case?  
 
Bongiorno:  Mr. Mayor, I was actually just looking at the map to see if Ada county could 
put some kind of a turnaround in.  But, unfortunately, down at the end past the Meridian 
Meat Packers there is the drainage ditch and that's kind of the big problem with this whole 
road, why it just stops is because of that ditch.  So, I mean the -- the solution is to push it 
through to Eureka.  I believe the right-of-way is there, but, again, we would have to go 
back with ACHD and see what their thoughts are of actually programming it to -- to put 
that last 500 feet in and just make it a through road.  But to answer your question, if he 
were to put a fence up our only solution, if we had to go down to Meridian Meat Packers 
for a call, some kind of an incident, the only option would be to back all the way down to 
Waterbury or the -- the apartment entrance that they potentially will be building here, 
which, obviously, for us backing is a problem that's why we have turnaround requirements 
and stuff, because we don't want to back, because it's inherently dangerous.  Firefighters 
die every year from being backed over by their own fire apparatus, so -- I mean the best 
solution is to push the road through.  The second best would be to try and come up with 
some kind of a turnaround in that area.  But, again, with the ditch it -- it kind of -- we are     
-- this is just one of those bad spots.   
 

Page 84

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 31 of 38 

Simison:  Sorry to take us down that road literally, but just -- unfortunately, this application 
is bringing up too -- too many other issues that are in this area that we may or may not 
be able to solve.  Yes, Alan.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Alan Tiefenbach.  Just to add to what Mr. Bongiorno said real quick, the 
issue, though -- and I think this has already been discussed -- is there is infrastructure 
there; right?  There is utility poles and all those things that -- that's going to make it 
extremely difficult and costly to widen that.  It's not just a matter of widening it, it's moving 
all of the utility poles.  So, you are not just working with ACHD, you are working with utility 
providers.  So, that's quite a beast and you -- yeah.  And it -- it starts getting difficult to -- 
to -- to require an applicant to make offsite improvements that aren't on their property.  
The -- the applicant is being, you know, nice enough, because they are trying to 
accommodate the impacts that saying they are going to widen it, but -- but I -- I might 
leave that to Mr. Nary, but we are going to start delving into places we don't want to go if 
we start requiring off-site improvements as a -- as a -- as a request -- as a -- as a 
requirement.   
 
Simison:  Alan, I don't think I have heard anyone talk about offsite improvements.  I think 
we are just talking about the impacts of the road and what were to occur if things were to 
happen and how that should impact parking on that road.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Understood.  
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Question for Kristy.  Kristy, for -- I'm -- I'm looking at East Blue Heron from 
Richter to Waterbury and I -- I know you guys have safe -- safety standards for, you know, 
site views at these corners.  Triangles.  How far back do you keep people from parking 
from the intersection say of Richter and, then, Waterbury on that north side?  Is it 20 feet  
Is it 30 feet?  How -- how far back do you keep vehicles so there is -- when someone pulls 
up to turn out they at least have a -- a decent view down the street?  
 
Inselman:  Mr. Mayor, Council -- Council Member Hoaglun, it depends on the type of 
roadway and what we are talking about.  Our standards for like an intersection for our 
local to local or local to another street is typically 40 feet.  So, you follow the curb line and 
it's 40 feet back on either area and, then, you kind of draw a connecting line between the 
two to create that triangle.  So, it's typically 40 by 40 on -- for sight distance issues.  If it's 
a driveway those generally will narrow to like a 20 by 20, but the maximum is -- is 40 by 
40.  And, then, I just wanted to follow up with that connection to Eureka.  It -- it -- just to 
kind of piggyback on what your staff had talked about with connecting that roadway.  That 
is something that the city could add to their request, because it is a local roadway 
connection to their community programs request to the city -- or to Ada -- Ada County 
Highway District.  There is that difficulty with those utilities and with the canal and we 
would have to acquire right of way to do that, because, then, right of way does narrow 

Page 85

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 32 of 38 

down to about 35 feet from where that pathway is currently located.  So, we actually don't 
have sufficient right of way to finish the road out, unless we were able to acquire some 
additional.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Follow up with Kristy on that 40 feet.  Is that typically posted?  I -- I -- I can't tell 
from the map I'm looking at if that's posted no parking or is it striped in some way?  
 
Inselman:  Councilman -- Mr. Mayor, Councilman Hoaglun, typically we would put some 
no parking for the 40 -- 40 by 40 if it's requested and I don't -- I don't know if there is 
existing signage out there or not now, but if there isn't that -- I can make that request of 
our traffic to include that as part of their analysis to make sure that there are those signage 
to keep people out of this sight distance window.   
 
Hoaglun:  All right.  Thank you.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  I also have a question for Kristy and, then, would like a follow-up comment 
from Deputy Chief Bongiorno about the letter that was put in the project folder today from 
ACHD and -- and just mentioning that the Meridian Fire Department had had concerns.  I 
don't know if that -- those have been addressed and that letter was just sort of late to us, 
but the conversations had already been had, it -- it didn't -- I guess the letter seems like 
it's way past when we -- you know, when the two entities would have had the discussion, 
so --  
 
Inselman:  Sorry.  Mr. -- Mr. Mayor, Council, Council Member Perreault, are you talking 
about the letter from ACHD dated August 25th, 2021?   
 
Perreault:  I apologize.  It's an e-mail that our --  
 
Inselman:  Oh.  Okay.   
 
Perreault:  -- staff uploaded to our site and I don't know -- let me look at the date.  Do you 
have a copy of it?   
 
Inselman:  I may have it in front of me.  We will see.  I have a lot in front of me.  It's from 
back in October and then -- where is the other one at?  Apologies.  I have a small desk at 
home, not nearly as much room, and, then, there is one from March 22nd.     
 
Perreault:  Yes.  That one.  

Page 86

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 33 of 38 

Inselman:  Okay.  Yes, that's one that Mindy included me on as well from our DTS 
department.  Yeah.  So, in essence, what she's saying is if the City of Meridian -- if the 
fire and emergency services have an issue with access on Blue Heron, with parking on 
there, we would work with them to address those issues and evaluate whether to put up 
no parking signs in conjunction with -- with your fire department.  So, I was just going off 
of what Fire Marshall Bongiorno said had -- that he was fine, he was able to get down 
that road with the parking.  But if that's not the case, then, we absolutely would work with 
the City of Meridian on some no parking.   
 
Simison:  Councilman Borton?   
 
Borton:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor.  It's good discussion.  I guess just as we wrap this up and 
get towards a motion, I think Councilman Hoaglun's remarks are spot on with where I see 
this application.  It's -- the continuances have made it better.  It got as close to, in my 
mind, solving difficult challenges within the bounds of what this application can -- can 
control and solve.  There is -- there is tradeoffs I think, quite frankly, with each iteration of 
this application.  But with the conditions of approval and concessions made by the 
applicant, I'm supportive of this application as presented.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Would the applicant like to make any final comments, since we did take 
comments from the public in the form of a question?  
 
Stelluto:  Yes.  I just wanted to reiterate that we are in favor of working with ACHD and 
the Fire Department to get that study conducted to see if no parking is warranted and we 
are also in favor of the no parking west of Richter on both the north and the south side.  
We also wanted to reiterate that the garage solution of removing those doors will provide 
larger spaces for those larger vehicles to be parking in, as well as all parking within the 
complex is now free as part of -- as part of their rent now and so that's a huge incentive 
to park inside as well and we would -- we would appreciate your approval of this 
application.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  So, Council, I'm going to make us a suggestion for your 
consideration or discussion with ACHD -- is potentially to look at only allowing parking in 
the area on the street between the two entrances for the -- both sides of the street on the 
north and the south in hopes that you could encourage people to use the -- quite frankly, 
the U-turn option there at the Waterbury areas, so we are not forcing people -- or enabling 
people to park further down and push them to have to turn around in -- I know they are 
both private.  One is a private drive, one is a private property, but, you know, part of me 
would like to suggest like no parking at all on the street, but I think that pushes -- when 
people have a few people over it pushes them -- where are they going to park?  Then -- 
then you are one hundred percent forcing neighbors to park over in the apartments or 
neighbors to park over in the other side of the street.  You need to have some parking in 
that area, otherwise, Albertson -- I mean how far away -- there is no good place to park 
outside of this area.  Ultimately it's going to be ACHD's call, but I -- I think trying to look at 
ways to not push people there or down further than outside of where the residents are, 
quite frankly, is kind of where I was trying to suggest consideration.   

Page 87

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 34 of 38 

Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Yeah.  That's -- that's where I landed as well with -- with the interest in ACHD  
studying the setback -- the safety zones for Richter and Waterbury at the 40 feet and 
possible signing for -- make it easier for those residents and also at Waterbury, if you 
have got that 40 foot no parking area that's clear, I -- hopefully it would encourage people 
to do that U-turn there and -- and not have obstruction of people parking right up to the 
intersection and having some room to do that turn and still allowing parking on that north 
side to help alleviate, I hope, parking within that residence area and -- and allowing people 
to -- to utilize that.  So, that -- that's where I fell as well on that, so --  
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  If I heard Kristy correctly, a lot of these are dependent on the city making these 
requests and they are -- they are independent of this application.  So, the -- the signs for 
the 40 -- 40 feet from the intersections and -- I guess I don't -- I don't -- I didn't quite 
understand this, the connection to Eureka was allowed to be a condition of this or if that 
is also a request that the city has to make independent of this application, but I'm still 
trying to connect the dots on is how can we -- can we condition the application on anything 
that ACH does with -- ACHD does with us?  In other words, we -- we say this -- you can 
move forward with this if ACHD does A, B and C.  Are we permitted to do that?  And that's 
probably a question for Alan.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Thank you, Council Person Perreault, Members of the Council.  In regard to 
the connection first to Eureka, I think -- my understanding was ACHD was amenable to 
that.  I -- I believe that -- that Mr. Bongiorno has already had some discussions with them.  
So, that -- that's a -- I don't want to use the word done deal, but they are amenable to 
that.  In regard to the rest, it would just be a matter of staff requesting that ACHD do a 
study of that area to see if there could be some kind of better parking management with 
no parking.  But, yeah, you can't condition it.  You could condition it with the suggestion 
from the Council that staff and ACHD -- or that ACHD and the applicant and staff explore 
whether areas in that area could be striped no parking.   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 
Perreault:  It sounds like we are all in agreement that there definitely needs to be no 
parking between Meridian Road and Richter on north -- north or south side, but -- but am 
I hearing, Alan, correctly that we also cannot condition that?  
 

Page 88

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 35 of 38 

Tiefenbach:  Council Person Perreault, I'm extremely reluctant to condition something on 
what a different agency is going to do, especially when they haven't even done a parking 
study and I have no idea if ACHD would be supportive.  So, they may -- they may say no 
and, then, we are back here, I suppose.   
 
Bongiorno:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Mr. Bongiorno.   
 
Bongiorno:  Thank you, Chief -- Mayor.  Going to call you chief.  Chief.  Just clarification.  
So, that connection to Eureka is the emergency access only.  I want to make sure that's 
clear.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Thank you.  Thank you.   
 
Bongiorno:  The pathway is there.  All I asked was can they widen it to where I could drive 
a fire truck down it, just in case we had to.  So, what I was talking about earlier that Kristy 
had already talked about was actually pushing the whole road through eventually and 
that's something that I think she said we would have to request.  So, I just want to make 
sure we were clear that the connection is just that emergency access only.   
 
Simison:  You know -- and from my standpoint, you know, to me it's just good for the 
applicants to hear the changes that we -- the city would be looking for from our partner 
agency so they understand what this is -- you know, it's kind of interesting that it's 
daylighted some issues that have been there, but this -- hopefully it helps address larger 
issues altogether, but, yeah, that part -- in my viewpoint -- I won't make the motion, but 
not part of the application.  With that do I have a motion to close the public hearing?  
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  I move that we close the public hearing on H-2021-0027.   
 
Cavener:  Second the motion.   
 
Borton:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to close the public hearing.  All in favor signify by 
saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes have it and the public hearing is closed.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   

Page 89

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 36 of 38 

Hoaglun:  Just to kick off discussion and make sure we are all on the same page -- we 
have covered a lot of ground tonight and it's been a good discussion.  But it sounds like 
a -- a condition that we could include -- include is that the existing enclosed garages be 
converted to carports.  So, I think we can do that.  Make that as a condition.  That we 
would request ACHD study no parking on the south and north side of East Blue Heron 
Drive from Meridian Road to North Richter and the entrance to the -- the first entrance to 
the development.  And also I'm interested in including that the -- request ACHD to take a 
look at possibly posting signage after a sight distance analysis is done at the intersections 
of East Richter and Waterbury Lane to make sure we have safety margins in place there.  
And I think that's all I had.  Was there anything else that the Council was interested in? 
Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  After hearing all staff, applicant, and public testimony, I move to approve H-
2021-0027 as presented in the staff report for the hearing date of March 22nd, 2022, with 
the following modifications:  That we condition that the existing enclosed garages be 
converted to carports.  That we request ACHD to consider no parking on the north and 
south side of East Blue Heron Drive between Meridian Road and North Richter and the 
first entrance to the development and that they look at possibly putting in no parking 
signage for the site distance analysis at East Richter and Waterbury Lane for safety 
reasons and that would -- would cover all that in my motion.  And I move for approval of 
that.  Had to find out where I was.   
 
Borton:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second.  Is there discussion?   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Appreciate the -- the work of the applicant.  I think they have been really 
responsive to the public testimony and the feedback of the Council.  I also just want to 
take a minute -- I always appreciate when members of our public go through the marathon 
sessions of Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council meetings with lots of 
continuances .  Your intestinal fortitude is noted and appreciated and I appreciate your -- 
your public testimony here tonight.  I -- I originally was pretty opposed to this project and 
I think Council Member Hoaglun or Borton put it best that this has been a -- a good 
example of taking multiple bites of the apple to make sure that we get it right and I think 
this is  as right as we are going to get on this particular project.  So, I'm -- I'm -- I'm 
supportive of it.   
 
Simison:  Any further discussion from Council?  Then Clerk will call the roll.   
 

Page 90

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 37 of 38 

Roll call:  Borton, yea; Cavener, yea; Bernt, absent; Perreault, yea; Hoaglun, yea; Strader, 
absent. 
 
Simison:  All ayes.  Motion carries.  Thank you. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  ALL AYES. 
 
ORDINANCES [Action Item] 
 
 8.  Ordinance No. A-19-1812: An Amended Ordinance (H-2017-0142–  
  Summertown) for Annexation of a Parcel of Land Located in   
  Government Lot 2 of Section 1, Township 3 North, Range 1 West, Boise 
  Meridian, Ada County, Idaho, as Described in Attachment “A” and  
  Annexing Certain Lands and Territory, Situated in Ada County, Idaho, 
  and Adjacent and Contiguous to the Corporate Limits of the City of 
  Meridian as Requested by the City of Meridian; Establishing and  
  Determining the Land Use Zoning Classification of 15.17 Acres of  
  Land from RUT to TN-R (Traditional Neighborhood Residential) Zoning 
  District in the Meridian City Code; Providing that Copies if this   
  Ordinance shall be Filed with the Ada County Assessor, the Ada  
  County Recorder, and the Idaho State Tax Commission, as Required  
  by Law; and Providing for a Summary of the Ordinance; and Providing 
  for a Waiver of the Reading Rules; and Providing an Effective Date 
 
Simison:   Council, the last item for us this evening is Ordinance No. A-19-1812.  Ask the 
Clerk to read this ordinance by title.   
 
Johnson:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor.  This is an amended ordinance related to H-2017-0142,  
Summertown, for annexation of a parcel of land located in Government Lot 2 of Section 
1, Township 3 North, Range 1 West, Boise meridian, Ada county, Idaho, as described in 
Attachment “A” and annexing certain lands and territory situated in Ada county, Idaho, 
and adjacent and contiguous to the corporate limits of the City of Meridian as requested 
by the City Of meridian; establishing and determining the land use zoning classification 
for 15.17 acres of land from RUT to TN-R (Traditional Neighborhood Residential) Zoning 
District in the Meridian City Code; providing that copies if this ordinance shall be filed with 
the Ada County Assessor, the Ada County Recorder, and the Idaho State Tax 
Commission, as required by law; and providing for a summary of the ordinance; and 
providing for a waiver of the reading rules; and providing an effective date. 
 
Simison:  Council, you have heard this ordinance read by title.  Is there anybody that 
would like it read in its entirety?  If not, do I have a motion?   
 
Perreault:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Perreault.   
 

Page 91

Item #4.



Meridian City Council  
March 22, 2022  
Page 38 of 38 

Perreault:  I move that we approve Ordinance No. -- is it 19-1812?  With suspension of 
rules.  
 
Hoaglun:  Second the motion.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to approve Ordinance No. 19-1812.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not, Clerk will call roll.   
 
Roll call:  Borton, yea; Cavener, yea; Bernt, absent; Perreault, yea; Hoaglun, yea; Strader, 
absent. 
 
Simison:  All ayes.  Motion carries and the ordinance is agreed to. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
FUTURE MEETING TOPICS 
 
Simison:  Council, anything under future meeting topics?  All right.  Then do I have a 
motion to adjourn?   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor, move to adjourn.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion to adjourn.  All in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  
The ayes have it.  We are adjourned.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
MEETING ADJOURNED AT 4:72 P.M.   
 
(AUDIO RECORDING ON FILE OF THESE PROCEEDINGS)   
 
_______________________________  ______/______/______           
MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON   DATE APPROVED 
 
ATTEST:  
 
_____________________________________   
CHRIS JOHNSON - CITY CLERK   
 
 

Page 92

Item #4.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Apex Northwest Subdivision No. 1 Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement 
No. 1

Page 93

Item #5.



SANITARY SEWER AND WATER MAIN EASEMENT 

THIS Easement Agreement, made this_ day of � between 

Smith Brighton Inc. ("Grantor") and the City of Meridian, an Idaho 
Municipal Corporation ("Grantee"); 

WHEREAS, the Grantor desires to provide a sanitary sewer and water main right-of
way across the premises and property hereinafter particularly bounded and described; 
and 

WHEREAS, the sanitary sewer and water is to be provided for through 
underground pipelines to be constructed by others; and 

WHEREAS, it will be necessary to maintain and service said pipelines from time to 
time by the Grantee; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits to be received by the Grantor, 
and other good and valuable consideration, the Grantor does hereby give, grant and 
convey unto the Grantee the right-of-way for an easement for the operation and 
maintenance of sanitary sewer and water mains over and across the following 
described property: 

(SEE A TT ACHED EXHIBITS A and B) 

The easement hereby granted is for the purpose of construction and operation of 
sanitary sewer and water mains and their allied facilities, together with their 
maintenance, repair and replacement at the convenience of the Grantee, with the free 
right of access to such facilities at any and all times. 

TO HA VE AND TO HOLD, the said easement and right-of-way unto the said 
Grantee, it's successors and assigns forever. 

IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED, by and between the parties hereto, 
that after making repairs or performing other maintenance, Grantee shall restore the area 
of the easement and adjacent property to that existent prior to undertaking such repairs 
and maintenance. However, Grantee shall not be responsible for repairing, replacing or 
restoring anything placed within the area described in this easement that was placed there 
in violation of this easement. 

Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement REV. 01/01/2020 

ESMT-2022-0144 Apex Northwest Subdivision No. 1
Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement No.1

5th April 22

Page 94

Item #5.



THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees that Grantor will not place or allow to be placed 
any permanent structures, trees, brush, or perennial shrubs or flowers within the area 
described for this easement, which would interfere with the use of said easement, for the 
purposes stated herein. 

THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees with the Grantee that should any part of the right
of-way and easement hereby granted shall become part of, or lie within the boundaries of 
any public street, then, to such extent, such right-of-way and easement hereby granted 
which lies within such boundary thereof or which is a part thereof, shall cease and 
become null and void and of no further effect and shall be completely relinquished. 

THE GRANTOR does hereby covenant with the Grantee that Grantor is lawfully seized 
and possessed of the aforementioned and described tract of land, and that Grantor has a 
good and lawful right to convey said easement, and that Grantor will warrant and forever 
defend the title and quiet possession thereof against the lawful claims of all persons 
whomsoever. 

THE COVENANTS OF GRANTOR made herein shall be binding upon Grantor's 
successors, assigns, heirs, personal representatives, purchasers, or transferees of any kind. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said parties of the first part have hereunto subscribed their 
signatures the day and year first herein above written. 

GRANTOR: SMITH BRIGHTON INC. 

Robert L. Phillips, President 

STATE OF IDAHO ) 
) ss 

County of Ada ) 

This record was acknowledged before me on March I" 2022 (date) by 
Robert L. Phillips (name of individual), [complete the following if signing in a

representative capacity, or strike the following if signing in an individual capacity] on 
behalf of Smith Brighton Inc. (name of entity on behalf of whom record was 
executed), in the following representative capacity: President (type 
of authority such as officer or trustee) 

SHARI VAUGHAN

Notary Public - State of Idaho 
Commission Number 20181002 

My Commission Expires Jun 1, 2024 

Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement 

Notary Signature 
My Commission Expires: /g,- /-a oa....f 

REV. 01/01/2020 Page 95

Item #5.



GRANTEE: CITY OF MERIDIAN 

Robert E. Simison, Mayor 

Attest by Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

STATE OF IDAHO, ) 
: ss. 

County of Ada ) 

This record was acknowledged before me on ______ (date) by 
R o b e r t  E. S i m i s on and Chris Johnson on behalf of the City of Meridian, in 
their capacities as Mayor and City Clerk, respectively. 

Notary Signature 
My Commission Expires __ : _______ _ 

Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement REV.01/01/2020 

4-5-2022

4-5-2022

4-5-2022

Page 96

Item #5.



ENGINEERING 

November 18, 2021 

Project No.: 20-155 

Apex Northwest Subdivision No. 1 

City of Meridian Sewer and Water Easement 

Legal Description 
Exhibit A 

Parcels of land for a City of Meridian sewer and water easement being a portion of the Southeast 1/4 of 

the Southeast 1/4 of Section 31, Township 3 North, Range 1 East, B.M., City of Meridian, Ada County, 
Idaho being more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at an aluminum cap marking the Southeast corner of said Section 31, which bears 
S00°32'22"E a distance of 2,700.07 feet from a brass cap marking the East 1/4 corner of said Section 31, 

thence following the easterly line of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 31, N00°32'22"W a distance of 

267.85 feet; 

Thence leaving said easterly line, S89°27'38"W a distance of 38.50 feet to the westerly right-of-way line 

of S. Locust Grove Rd. and being POINT OF BEGINNING 1.

Thence leaving said easterly right-of-way line, N89°42'21"W a distance of 146.06 feet; 

Thence S00°16'52"W a distance of 31.69 feet; 

Thence S26°34'53"W a distance of 59.87 feet; 

Thence N89°43'32"W a distance of 431.08 feet to a point hereinafter referred to as Point "A"; 
Thence N00°16'45"E a distance of 32.00 feet; 

Thence S89°43'32"E a distance of 415.14 feet; 

Thence N07°48'59"E a distance of 64.59 feet; 

Thence N00°16'52"E a distance of 348.58 feet; 

Thence S89°42'21"E a distance of 34.00 feet; 

Thence S00°16'52"W a distance of 327.24 feet; 

Thence S89°42'21"E a distance of 145.60 feet to said easterly right-of-way line; 

Thence following said easterly right-of-way line, S00°32'22"E a distance of 32.00 feet to POINT OF

BEGINNING 1. 

Said parcel contains 0.755 acres, more or less. 

TOGETHER WITH: 

Commencing at a point previously referred to as Point "A", thence N69°51'12"W a distance of 71.24 feet 
to POINT OF BEGINNING 2.

Thence 15.70 feet along the arc of a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 30.00 feet, a delta 

angle of 29°59'12", a chord bearing of N74°42'44"W and a chord distance of 15.52 feet; 
Thence N89°42'21"W a distance of 490.50 feet; 

Thence 13.53 feet along the arc of a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 28.00 feet, a delta 

angle of 27°40'37", a chord bearing of 576°27'20"W and a chord distance of 13.39 feet; 

Thence N00°16'52"E a distance of 26.40 feet; 

Thence 13.51 feet along the arc of a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 28.00 feet, a delta 

angle of 27°39'04", a chord bearing of 575°52'49"E and a chord distance of 13.38 feet; 

5725 North Discovery Way • Boise, Idaho 83713 • 208.639.6939 • kmengllp.com 
Page 97

Item #5.



Thence S89°42'21"E a distance of 265.01 feet to a point hereinafter referred to as Point "B"; 

Thence N00°16'52"E a distance of 280.05 feet; 

Thence N89°42'21"W a distance of 264.99 feet; 
Thence 13.53 feet along the arc of a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 28.00 feet, a delta 

angle of 27°40'37", a chord bearing of S76°27'20"W and a chord distance of 13.39 feet; 

Thence N00°16'52"E a distance of 26.40 feet; 

Thence 13.53 feet along the arc of a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 28.00 feet, a delta 

angle of 27°39'04", a chord bearing S75°52'49"E and a chord distance of 13.38 feet; 

Thence S89°42'21"E a distance of 357.00 feet; 

Thence 43.99 feet along the arc of a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 28.00 feet, a delta 

angle of 90°00'47", a chord bearing of N45°17'16"E and a chord distance of 39.60 feet; 

Thence N00°16'52"E a distance of 71.99 feet; 

Thence S89°42'21"E a distance of 20.00 feet; 

Thence S00°16'52"W a distance of 372.06 feet; 

Thence 19.51 feet along the arc of a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 28.00 feet, a delta 

angle of 39°54'57", a chord bearing of S19°40'36"E and a chord distance of 19.11 feet; 

Thence S89°43'08"E a distance of 93.98 feet; 

Thence S00°16'52"W a distance of 34.07 feet to POINT OF BEGINNING 2. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM: 

Commencing at a point previously referred to as Point "B", thence N63°43'35"E a distance of 22.36 feet 

to POINT OF BEGINNING 3. 

Thence N00°16'52"E a distance of 270.05 feet; 

Thence S89°42'21"E a distance of 40.01 feet; 

Thence S00°16'52"W a distance of 10.04 feet; 

Thence S89°43'08"E a distance of 53.47 feet; 

Thence 19.51 feet along the arc of a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 28.00 feet, a delta 

angle of 39°54'57", a chord bearing of Sl9°40'36"E and a chord distance of 19.11 feet; 

Thence S00°16'52"W a distance of 224.05 feet; 

Thence 19.53 feet along the arc of a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 28.00 feet, a delta 

angle of 39°57'42", a chord bearing of S20°15'44"W and a chord distance of 19.14 feet; 

Thence N89°43'08"W a distance of 93.46 feet to POINT OF BEGINNING 3. 

Said parcel contains 0.802 acres, more or less. 

Said description contains a total of 1.557 acres, more or less, and is subject to all existing easements and/or 

rights-of-way of record or implied. 

Attached hereto is Exhibit B and by this reference is made a part hereof. 

Oty of Meridian Sewer and Water Easement 

Apex Northwest Subdivision No. 1 

,r. ,9. -z,o1,,

PAGE 12 Page 98

Item #5.



g 
0.. 

N 

w 
w 
I 
V) 

w 
w 
V) 

w 
z 

.....I 

I 

� 

LINE TABLE 

LINE BEARING 

L1 S89.27'38''W 

L2 N89"42'21"W 

L3 so·15•52"w 

L4 s25·34•53"w 

L5 N0.16'45"E 

L6 s89·42'21 "E 

L7 s89·42•21 "E 

L8 s0·32'22"E 

DISTANCE 

38.50 

146.06 

31.69 

59.87 

32.00 

34.00 

145.60 

32.00 

I 
I 
I 
I 

- I
�I
�I
nl
}'-11 

Proposed �I 
Apex Northwest t0 I 
Subdivision No. 1 b I 

�I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

N07'48'59"E f 
64.59'� 

S89'43'32"E 415.14' / 
---------------------� 

L6 

IS 

FOUND BRASS CAP 
EAST 1 / 4 CORNER 

SECTION 31 

______________________ , 
N89'43'32"W 431.08' 

POINT "A" 

N69"51 '12"W 
71.24' (TIE) 

E. Lake Hazel Rd.

"Cl 
0:: 

QJ 
> 
0 .... 
t.9 
+-' 
Vl 

::::i 
u 
0 
.....I 

V) 

31 

ffi --------�-
z 

POINT OF COMMENCEMEN�
J 

FOUND ALUMINUM CAP 
SOUTHEAST CORNER SECTION 31 

ffi 
� 
ci 

i5 ENGINEERING 
2 

� 
L? 
z 

5725 NORTH DISCOVERY WAY 
BOISE, IDAHO 83713 

PHONE (208) 639-6939 
kmengllp.com 

0 100 200 300 

Plan Scale: l" == 100' 

Exhibit B 
City of Meridian Sewer and Water Easement 

32 

5 

� 1--D-A .. TE-: ....,..,....,...No""ve=m-be..,r 2-02..,1-1 
� t-PR-

OJ
-
ECT

_
: 
_____ 20--l-SS-t-----------------------------------1 

�a=-----==----1 ; SHEET: 
3 1 OF 2 

Apex Northwest Subdivision No. 1 
SEl/4 SEl/4 Sec. 31, T3N., RlE., BM., City of Meridian, Ada County, Idaho 

u------=-==-=�--===-=---==-=----==----------==-------------�-

Page 99

Item #5.



L 11 

:::; � "' 
z 

0 

240 

I 

I 
N00'16'52"E__...-.,..-J 

71.99' I 
Plan Scale: 1" = 80' C6 � C5 � 

S89'42'21 "E 357.00' ) / 
--------------------------0--

LINE TABLE 

LINE BEARING DISTANCE 

L9 N0'16'52"E 26.40 

L10 N0'16'52"E 26.40 

L11 S89'42'21 "E 20.00 

L12 S89'43'08"E 93.98 

L13 S0'16'52"W 34.07 

L14 S89'42'21"E 40.01 

L15 S0'16'52"W 10.04 

L16 S89'43'08"E 53.47 

L17 N89'43'08"W 93.46 

C2 

CURVE TABLE 

CURVE RADIUS LENGTH DELTA CHORD BRG CHORD 

C1 30.00' 15.70' 29·59'12" N74'42'44"W 15.52' 

C2 28.00' 13.53' 27'40'37" S76'27'20"W 13.39' 

C3 28.00' 13.51' 2739'04" S75'52' 49"E 13.38' 

C4 28.00' 13.53' 27'40'37" S76'27'20"W 13.39' 

cs 28.00' 13.51' 2739'04" S75'52'49"E 13.38' 

C6 28.00' 43.99' 90·00'47" N45' 17' 1 6"E 39.60' 

C7 28.00' 19.51' 39·54'57" S19'40'36"E 19.11' 

C8 28.00' 19.51' 39·54'57" S19'40'36"E 19.11' 

C9 28.00' 19.53' 39·57'42" S20' 15' 44"W 19.14' 

Exhibit B 

I 
I 
I 
I 

N 

II) 

b 
0 
(/) 

+-' .-1 
V') • 
Q) 0

-o3z 
QJ .S::: C 

() t:'. O 
o.. 0 'iii 
0 z ·5 � X ·-

0... Q) "O 
0.. ..a 
<( :::::i

V) 

I C7 
� L12 
•-----

C1 

P.O.B. 2 

N69'51'12"W 
71.24' (TIE) 

5725 NORTH DISCOVERY WAY 
BOISE, IDAHO 83733 

PHONE (208) 639-6939 
kmengllp.com 

� ...... DA,..TE=: =---=-No-ve_m,..be=r 2=02=1 ... 
City of Meridian Sewer and Water Easement 

� PROJECT: 20-155 
� ..... ---=-=-et

Apex Northwest Subdivision No. 1 

I") 

_J 

.-1 

1-
w 

w 

I 
V) 
w 
w 

V) 

w 

z 

....J 

I 
u 

� 
� 

; SHEET: 
� 2 OF 2 SEl/4 SEl/4 Sec. 31, T3N., RlE., BM., City of Meridian, Ada County, Idaho 
Lia..a=��----------===--=---===-=-==-=-=--=---=-------=-=-==---==�=--

Page 100

Item #5.



,. 
f,\ 

I 
I 

]· 

c---, 

145.60 

415.14 

s89°42'2 I "e 

�r n89
°
42'2 I "w 

�-- �' 

, 
01 01 

146.06 

..... Jr> 
� oO 
\0 � 

s89
°
43'32"e 

n89
°
43'32"w 

431.08 

Title: Parcel I Meridian Sewre and Water Easement j Date: 11-11-2021 

Scale: I inch = 80 feet jFile: 
Tract I: 0.755 Acres: 32897 Sq Feet: Closure = s06.1345w 0.00 Feet: Precision =1/589157: Perimeter = 2068 Feet 

001=n89.4221 w 146.06 006=s89.4332e 415.14 0l l =s89.4221e 145.60 
002=s00.1652w 31.69 007=n07.4859e 64.59 012=s00.3222e 32.00 
003=s26.3453w 59.87 008=n00.1652e 348.58 
004=n89.4332w 431.08 009=s89.422le 34.00 
005=n00.1645e 32.00 010=s00.1652w 327.24 

Page 101

Item #5.



.u 

.,., .... cl!" 
. '°O

r- 0 
.... Q 

40.01 

s89°42'2l"e � 
53.47 

s89°43'08"e 

n89°43'08"w 

93.46 

Title: Parcel 2 Meridian Sewer and Water Easement Exception 

Scale: 1 inch = 50 feet I File:

I Date: 11-12-2021

Tract I: 0.604 Acres: 26328 Sq Feet: Closure = s83.1556w 0.01 Feet: Precision =1/132014: Perimeter = 730 Feet 

00I=n00.1652e 270.05 004=s89.4308e 53.47 007: Rt, R=28.00, Delia=39.5742 
Bng=s20.JS44w, Chd=l9.14 

002=s89.422le 40.01 005: RI, R=28.00. Dclia=39.S4S7 
008=n89.4308w 93.46 Bng=sl9.4036e. Chd=J9.J I 

003=s00. I 652w 10.04 006=s00.1652w 224.05 

Page 102

Item #5.



I 

/\ 
c--·, 

IS 

"
E

·----------------:-:3�57:7 .=00�----------------_) 

-� --------------'-'-..;....;;.c,___s_s9_•_42_·2_1_"e 
______ : _ 

n89°42'2 I "w 

264.99 

� \ ____ 93_.9_8 ___ -:> 

[:_' 
58:�:;�

1

1 "e 

s89°43'08"e 

J
!:i 

r-.--------------------..::n,;:.;89'-
0

4.:.::2:.:"2;,:.l'_;'w;...._ ___________________ ,, ;i; 
490.50 

Title: Parcel 2 Meridian Sewer and Water Easement I Date: 11-11-2021 

Scale: 1 inch = 70 feet jFile: 
Tract 1: I .406 Acres: 61225 Sq Feet: Closure = n39 .4649w 0.02 Feet: Precision =1/125775: Perimeter = 2436 Feet 

001: Lt. R=30.00, Della=29.5912 008=n89.4221w 264.99 015=s89.4221e 20.00 Bng=n74.4244w, Chcl=IS.52 

002=n89.4221 w 490.50 009: Lt, R=28.00, Deha=27.4037 016=s00.1652w 372.06 Bng=as76.2720w, Oid=l3.39 
003: Lt. R=28.00, Deha=27.4037 010=n00.1652e 26.40 017: Lt, R=28.00. Della=39.5457 
Bng=as76.2720w, Cbd=l3.39 Bng=asl9.4036e, Chd=l9.J I 

004=n00.1652e 26.40 011; LI. R=28.00. Deha=27.3904 018=s89.4308e 93.98 Bng=as75.5249e, Cbd=l3.38 
005: Lt, R=28.00, Della=27.3904 012=s89.4221e 357.00 019=s00.1652w 34.07 Bng=s75.5249c, Cbd=l3.38 

006=s89.4221e 265.01 013: Lt, R=28.00, Delia=90.0047 
Bng=n45. I 716e, Cbd=39.60 

007=n00. I 652e 280.05 014=n00.1652e 71.99 

Page 103

Item #5.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Apex Northwest Subdivision No. 1 Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement 
No. 2

Page 104

Item #6.



SANITARY SEWER AND WATER MAIN EASEMENT 

THIS Easement Agreement, made this_ day of � between 

Smith Brighton Inc. ("Grantor") and the City of Meridian, an Idaho 
Municipal Corporation ("Grantee"); 

WHEREAS, the Grantor desires to provide a sanitary sewer and water main right-of
way across the premises and property hereinafter particularly bounded and described; 
and 

WHEREAS, the sanitary sewer and water is to be provided for through 
underground pipelines to be constructed by others; and 

WHEREAS, it will be necessary to maintain and service said pipelines from time to 
time by the Grantee; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits to be received by the Grantor, 
and other good and valuable consideration, the Grantor does hereby give, grant and 
convey unto the Grantee the right-of-way for an easement for the operation and 
maintenance of sanitary sewer and water mains over and across the following 
described property: 

(SEE ATTACHED EXHIBITS A and B) 

The easement hereby granted is for the purpose of construction and operation of 
sanitary sewer and water mains and their allied facilities, together with their 
maintenance, repair and replacement at the convenience of the Grantee, with the free 
right of access to such facilities at any and all times. 

TO HA VE AND TO HOLD, the said easement and right-of-way unto the said 
Grantee, it's successors and assigns forever. 

IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED, by and between the parties hereto, 
that after making repairs or performing other maintenance, Grantee shall restore the area 
of the easement and adjacent property to that existent prior to undertaking such repairs 
and maintenance. However, Grantee shall not be responsible for repairing, replacing or 
restoring anything placed within the area described in this easement that was placed there 
in violation of this easement. 

Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement REV.01/01/2020 

ESMT-2022-0145 Apex Northwest Subdivision No. 1 

Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement No. 2

5th April 22

Page 105

Item #6.



THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees that Grantor will not place or allow to be placed 
any permanent structures, trees, brush, or perennial shrubs or flowers within the area 
described for this easement, which would interfere with the use of said easement, for the 
purposes stated herein. 

THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees with the Grantee that should any part of the right
of-way and easement hereby granted shall become part of, or lie within the boundaries of 
any public street, then, to such extent, such right-of-way and easement hereby granted 
which lies within such boundary thereof or which is a part thereof, shall cease and 
become null and void and of no further effect and shall be completely relinquished. 

THE GRANTOR does hereby covenant with the Grantee that Grantor is lawfully seized 
and possessed of the aforementioned and described tract of land, and that Grantor has a 
good and lawful right to convey said easement, and that Grantor will warrant and forever 
defend the title and quiet possession thereof against the lawful claims of all persons 
whomsoever. 

THE COVENANTS OF GRANTOR made herein shall be binding upon Grantor's 
successors, assigns, heirs, personal representatives, purchasers, or transferees of any kind. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said parties of the first part have hereunto subscribed their 
signatures the day and year first herein above written. 

GRANTOR: SMITH BRIGHTON INC. 

Robert L. Phillips, President 

ST A TE OF IDAHO ) 
) ss 

County of Ada ) 

This record was acknowledged before me on March/€, 2022 (date) by 
Robert L Phillips (name of individual), [complete the following if signing in a

representative capacity, or strike the following if signing in an individual capacity] on 
behalf of Smith Brighton Inc. (name of entity on behalf of whom record was 
executed), in the following representative capacity: President (type 
of authority such as officer or trustee) 

SHARI VAUGHAN 

Notary Public - State of Idaho 

Commission Number 20181002 

My Commission Expires Jun 1, 2024 

Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement 

My Commission Expires: fa ... f � al Ool cJ 

REV. 01/01/2020 
Page 106

Item #6.



GRANTEE: CITY OF MERIDIAN 

Robert E. Simison, Mayor 

Attest by Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

STATE OF IDAHO, ) 
ss. 

County of Ada ) 

This record was acknowledged before me on _______ (date) by 
R o b e r t  E. S i m i s o n  and Chris Johnson on behalf of the City of Meridian, in 
their capacities as Mayor and City Clerk, respectively. 

Notary Signature 
My Commission Expires.a..: _______ _ 

Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement REV. 01/01/2020 

4-5-2022

4-5-2022

4-5-2022

Page 107

Item #6.



ENGINEERING 

November 18, 2021 

Project No.: 20-155 

Apex Northwest Subdivision 

City of Meridian Sewer and Water Easement 

Legal Description 

Exhibit A 

Parcels of land for a City of Meridian sewer and water easement being a portion of the Southeast 1/4 of 

the Southeast 1/4 of Section 31, Township 3 North, Range 1 East, B.M., City of Meridian, Ada County, 

Idaho being more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at an aluminum cap marking the Southeast corner of said Section 31, which bears 

S00°32'22"E a distance of 2,700.07 feet from a brass cap marking the East 1/4 corner of said Section 31, 

thence following the easterly line of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 31, N00°32'22"W a distance of 
723.01 feet; 

Thence leaving said easterly line, S89°27'38"W a distance of 339.16 feet to POINT OF BEGINNING 1. 

Thence S00°17'39"W a distance of 24.50 feet; 

Thence N89°42'21"W a distance of 37.00 feet; 

Thence N00°17'39"E a distance of 24.50 feet to a point hereinafter referred to as Point "A"; 

Thence S89°42'21"E a distance of 37.00 feet to POINT OF BEGINNING 1.

Said parcel contains 907 square feet. 

TOGETHER WITH: 

Commencing at a point previously referred to as Point "A", thence N88°46'07"W a distance of 272.56 

feet to POINT OF BEGINNING 2.

Thence S00°16'52"W a distance of 19.96 feet; 

Thence N89°43'08"W a distance of 31.00 feet; 

Thence N00°16'52"E a distance of 19.97 feet to a point hereinafter referred to as Point "B"; 

Thence S89°42'12"E a distance of 31.00 feet to POINT OF BEGINNING 2.

Said parcel contains 619 square feet. 

TOGETHER WITH: 

Commencing at a point previously referred to as Point "B", thence N89°49'00"W a distance of 259.00 

feet to POINT OF BEGINNING 3.

Thence S00°16'52"W a distance of 21.50 feet; 

Thence N89°43'08"W a distance of 37.00 feet; 

Thence N00°16'52"E a distance of 21.51 feet to a point hereinafter referred to as Point "C"; 
Thence S89°42'19"E a distance of 37.00 feet to POINT OF BEGINNING 3.

Said parcel contains 796 square feet. 

5725 North Discovery Way • Boise, Idaho 83713 • 208.639.6939 • kmengllp.com 
Page 108

Item #6.



TOGETHER WITH: 

Commencing at a point previously referred to as Point "C", thence N89°35'47"W a distance of 263.00 

feet to POINT OF BEGINNING 4. 

Thence S00°16'53"W a distance of 21.45 feet; 

Thence N89°43'08"W a distance of 37.50 feet; 

Thence N00°16'52"E a distance of 21.47 feet; 

Thence S89°40'48"E a distance of 37.50 feet to POINT OF BEGINNING 4. 

Said parcel contains 805 square feet. 

Said description contains a total of 3,127 square feet, more or less, and is subject to all existing easements 

and/or rights-of-way of record or implied. 

Attached hereto is Exhibit Band by this reference is made a part hereof. 

Oty of Meridian Sewer and Water Easement 

Apex Northwest Subdivision PAGE 12 Page 109

Item #6.



u. 
�--------�-----=�-=------=-=-----------�-----..
0.. � �
� 
gj 
,.; 
u 
0.. 

� 
0 .... "' 
� � 
N 

0 

g � 
ffi 
0.. .. 
0: 
C "' 
;, 
0: 
u 

0 
:;: 
C 

�
6 
N 

� 

L14 

Unplatted 
DWT Investments LLC 

APN:S1131417257 

Proposed 
Apex Northwest 

Subdivision No. 1 

L10 

� .------------
� I lli Un platted 

FOUND BRASS CAP 
EAST 1 / 4 CORNER 

SECTION 31 

LU 

,� 
I 

I� 
_J � 

� LU I DWT Investments LLC 
i 6 APN: S1131417255 ss9•27'3s"w 
i � I POINT "B"

\ 
l P.0.8. 2 POINT "A"

�

33�_
-;_

5•

1
�

(TIE) 

ffi � I N89"49'00"W. � LB _ �88"46'07"W 272.5� (TIE) _ 
"' 

_!.� 
-� w 259.00' (TIE) 

�l l� , , . 
! z I J • L6 • \..._ _______________ _J_.. __ .... _J_
i � L2 
� u I
: � 

i � I 
; 
i I 
6 

��
6 

� 

� 
� 
"' 
15 
� 
0: 

LINE 

L1 

L2 

L3 

L4 

L5 

L6 

L7 

L8 

LINE TABLE 

BEARING 

S0-17'39'W 

N89"42'21 "W 

N0"17'39"E 

S89"42'21"E 

so·15•s2·w 

N89"43'08"W 

N0"16'52"E 

S89"42'12"E 
<( ffi t---------

3'; "' 
:i!: 

DISTANCE 

24.50 

37.00 

24.50 

37.00 

19.96 

31.00 

19.97 

31.00 

Proposed 
Apex Northwest 

Subdivision No. 1 

LINE TABLE 

LINE BEARING DISTANCE 

L9 SCl"16'52"W 21.50 

L10 N89"43'08'W 37.00 

L11 N0"16'52"E 21.51 

L12 S89" 42' 19"E 37.00 

L13 S0"16'53"W 21.45 

L14 N89"43'08"W 37.50 

L15 N0"16'52"E 21.47 

L16 S89'40'48"E 37.50 

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT 
FOUND ALUMINUM CAP 

SOUTHEAST CORNER SECTION 31 

�,� 
· O  

r--- . (:)r--- ozOl O _l"'--Q:'.: N;S 

W CD 

:- : LL. 
o �o
n N VJ N n-
l"'-- 1 0� 

-ci I 
o:: I 
(I) 
> 
0 
lo... 

<.!) ...... 
l/l 
:::l gl 
�, 
V) 

I 

O CD 

V) 

"" 
l£ 
z 

� D 
E. Lake Hazel Rd. 31 32

z 
io 
� ENGINEERING :i!: �"' 
z 

� "" 

5725 NORTH DISCOVERY WAY 
BOISE, IDAHO 83713 

PHONE {208) 639·6939 
kmengllp.com 

� t-□-A-TE: ___ No-ve-mb-er-20-21-t 
l5 PROJECT: 20-155 

� 
ffi 
V1 

3 
SHEET: 

1 OF 1 

240 

Plan Scale: 1" ::: 80' 

Exhibit B 
City of Meridian Sewer and Water Easement 

Apex Northwest Subdivision 

6 5 

SEl/4 SEl/4 Sec. 31, T3N., RlE., BM., City of Meridian, Ada County, Idaho 
0.......,=------------------=------------------

Page 110

Item #6.



37.00 

s89
°
42'2 I "e 

37.00 

Title: Parcel 1 Meridian Sewer and Water Easement 20-155 I Date: 11-12-2021 

Scale: 1 inch = 5 feet !File: 
Tract I: 0.02 I Acres: 907 Sq Feet: Closure = n00.0000e 0.00 Feet: Precision > 1/999999: Perimeter = 123 Feet 

00 I =s00. l 739w 24.50 003=n00. l 739e 24.50 
002=n89.422lw 37.00 004=s89.422le 37.00 

Page 111

Item #6.



31.00 

31.00 

Title: Parcel 2 Meridian Sewer and Water Easement 20-155 I Date: 11-12-2021 

Scale: 1 inch = 5 feet I File:

Tract 1: 0.014 Acres: 619 Sq Feet: Closure = s00.1423w 0.00 Feet: Precision =1/64365: Perimeter = 102 Feet 

00l=s00.1652w 19.96 003=n00.1652e 19.97 
002=n89.4308w 31.00 004=s89.4212e 31.00 

Page 112

Item #6.



37.00 

n89°43'08"w 

37.00 

Title: Parcel 3 Meridian Sewer and Water Easement 20-155 I Date: 11-12-2021 

Scale: 1 inch = 5 feet !File: 
Tract 1: 0.018 Acres: 796 Sq Feet: Closure = s00.1354w 0.00 Feet: Precision =1/96676: Perimeter = 117 Feet 

001=s00.1652w 21.50 003=n00.1652e 21.51 
002=n89.4308w 37.00 004=s89.4219e 37.00 

Page 113

Item #6.



37.S0 

s89
°
40'48"e 

n89
°
43'08"w 

37.S0 

Title: Parcel 4 Meridian Sewer and Water Easement 20-155 I Date: 11-12-2021 

Scale: 1 inch = 5 feet I File:

Tract 1: 0.018 Acres: 805 Sq Feet: Closure = n01.2752e 0.01 Feet: Precision = l/21621: Perimeter = 118 Feet 

001=s00.1653w 21.45 003=n00.1652e 21.47 
002=n89.4308w 37.50 004=s89.4048e 37.50 

Page 114

Item #6.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Chukar Ridge Subdivision Emergency Access Easement Agreement

Page 115

Item #7.



CHUKAR RIDGE SUBDIVISION

ESMT-2022-0136 Chukar Ridge Subdivision

5th April

Page 116

Item #7.



Page 117

Item #7.



4-5-2022

4-5-2022

4-5-22

Page 118

Item #7.



Page 119

Item #7.



Page 120

Item #7.



Page 121

Item #7.



Page 122

Item #7.



Page 123

Item #7.



Page 124

Item #7.



Page 125

Item #7.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Everest Office Water Main Easement

Page 126

Item #8.



WATER MAIN EASEMENT 

THIS Easement Agreement, made this __ day of ____ , 20 between _______ _ 

("Grantor"), and the City of Meridian, an Idaho Municipal Corporation ("Grantee"); 

WHEREAS, the Grantor desires to provide a water main right-of-way across the premises and 
property hereinafter particularly bounded and described; and 

WHEREAS, the water main is to be provided for through underground pipelines to be 
constructed by others; and 

WHEREAS, it will be necessary to maintain and service said pipelines from time to time by 
the Grantee; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits to be received by the Grantor, and other 
good and valuable consideration, the Grantor does hereby give, grant and convey unto the 
Grantee the right-of-way for an easement for the operation and maintenance of water mains 
over and across the following described property: 

(SEE ATTACHED EXHIBITS A and B) 

The easement hereby granted is for the purpose of construction and operation of water mains 
and their allied facilities, together with their maintenance, repair and replacement at the 
convenience of the Grantee, with the free right of access to such facilities at any and all times. 

TO HA VE AND TO HOLD, the said easement and right-of-way unto the said Grantee, it's 
successors and assigns forever. 

IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED, by and between the parties hereto, that 
after making repairs or performing other maintenance, Grantee shall restore the area of the 
easement and adjacent property to that existent prior to undertaking such repairs and 
maintenance. However, Grantee shall not be responsible for repairing, replacing or restoring 
anything placed within the area described in this easement that was placed there in violation 
of this easement. 

THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees that Grantor will not place or allow to be placed any 
permanent structures, trees, brush, or perennial shrubs or flowers within the area described for 
this easement, which would interfere with the use of said easement, for the purposes stated 
herein. 

THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees with the Grantee that should any part of the right-of
way and easement hereby granted shall become part of, or lie within the boundaries of any 

Water Main Easement Version O 1/01/2020 

ESMT-2022-0137 Everest Office

5th April 22 Encore Development, LLC

Page 127

Item #8.



public street, then, to such extent, such right-of-way and easement hereby granted which Hes 
within such boundary thereof or which is a part thereof, shall cease and become null and void 
and of no further effect and shall be completely relinquished. 

THE GRANTOR does hereby covenant with the Grantee that Grantor is lawfully seized and 
possessed of the aforementioned and described tract of land, and that Granter has a good and 
lawful right to convey said easement, and that Grantor will warrant and forever defend the 
title and quiet possession thereof against the lawful claims of all persons whomsoever. 

THE COVENANTS OF GRANTOR made herein shall be binding upon Grantor's successors, 
assigns, heirs, personal representatives, purchasers, or transferees of any kind. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said parties of the first part have hereunto subscribed their 
signatures the day and year first herein above written. 

GRANTOR: 
-

--

County of Ada 

This record was acknowledged before me on 0/i / ?J:fL'].(date) by fl\ 1d-iad Swrd� e..
(name of individual), [ complete the following if signing in a representative c�acity, or st�: ,__J_ 

the following if signing in an individual capacity] on behalf ofBx.DV-E::...LJe.Ye\oF?O)u ll Ll.L
(name of entity on behalf of whom record was executed), in the following representative 
capacity: tv\o.. �er (type of authority such as officer or trustee) 

(stamp) 

Water Main Easement Version 01/01/2020 Page 128

Item #8.



GRANTEE: CITY OF MERIDIAN 

Robert E. Simison, Mayor 

Attest by Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

STATE OF IDAHO, ) 
ss. 

County of Ada ) 

This record was acknowledged before me on ____ (date) by Robert E. Simison 
and Chris Johnson on behalf of the City of Meridian, in their capacities as Mayor and City 
Clerk, respectively. 

Notary Signature 
My Commission Expires"'"": _______ _ 

Water Main Easement Version 01/01/2020 

4-5-2022

4-5-2022

4-5-2022

Page 129

Item #8.



ENGINEERING 

March 1, 2022 

Project Name: 2054 Everest Office 

Project No. 21-171 

City of Meridian Water Main Easement 

Easement No.: ESMT-2022-0137 

Legal Description 

Exhibit A 

A parcel of land for a City of Meridian Water Main Easement over a portion of Lot 19, Block 1 of Hastings 

Subdivision No. 3 (Book 112 of Plats, Pages 16342-16344), situated in the Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 

of Section 26, Township 4 North, Range 1 West, Boise Meridian, City of Meridian, Ada County, Idaho and being 

more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at a found brass plug marking the Southwest corner of said Lot 19, which bears S00°21'16"W a 

distance of 154.99 feet from a found 1/2-inch rebar marking the Northwest comer of said Lot 19, thence 

following the westerly boundary line of said Lot 19, N00°21'16"E a distance of 91.91 feet; 

Thence leaving said westerly boundary line, 589"38' 44"E a distance of 15.00 feet to the westerly line of an 

existing City of Meridian Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement per Instrument No. 2017-084174 and 

being the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Thence S89"49'15"E a distance of 7.50 feet; 

Thence N46"41'33"E a distance of 11.26 feet; 

Thence 589"38'34"E a distance of 8.83 feet; 

Thence S00°20'55"W a distance of 10.00 feet; 

Thence N89°38'34"W a distance of 4.83 feet; 

Thence S46°41'33"W a distance of 11.24 feet; 

Thence N89°49'15"W a distance of 5.52 feet to said westerly easement line; 

Thence following said westerly easement line the following three (3) courses: 

1. N00°21'16"E a distance of 5.27 feet;

2. N89°38'44"W a distance of 6.00 feet;

3. N00°21'16"E a distance of 4.71 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Said parcel contains 244 square feet, more or less, and is subject to all existing easements and/or rights-of-way 

of record or implied. 

All subdivisions, deeds, records of surveys, and other instruments of record referenced herein are 

recorded documents of the county in which these described lands are situated in. 

Attached hereto is Exhibit B and by this reference is made a part hereof. 

Page 130

Item #8.



ii:' 
0 � ... ......
X "' 
ai 

..: 
0 c,. 
g 

::::· 
0 
N 

';:/
;;, 
z· 
0 

I 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 19 

I 

<X) I 
en � 

J
POINT OF BEGINNING 

� � ti5 I A-L4 ../.\
�;1; �/ T 

� ...... • 
L 1 (TIE) 

• L2 A/ l �CI) 3: fo-B 
� � u 1__/Arf /. . t 
�� � L10-y4r-4-j LG 

a§ b ;;; L9 -1 [ 
o ...:  

,- LB 
(/) C1l 

I 
I 
I 
I EXISTING CITY OF MERIDIAN
I SANITARY SEWER AND WATER 

V 
MAIN EASEMENT PER INST. 
No. 2017-084174 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 19

I 

LINE TABLE 

LINE BEARING DISTANCE 

L1 S89"38'44"E 15.00 

L2 S89'49'15"E 7.50 

L3 N46"41'33"E 11.26 

L4 S89'38'34"E 8.83 

L5 S0'20'55"W 10.00 

L6 N89'38'34"W 4.83 

L7 S46'41 '33"W 11.24 

L8 N89'49'15"W 5.52 

L9 N0'21'16"E 5.27 

L10 N89' 38' 44"W 6.00 

L11 N0"21 '16"E 4.71 

LEGEND 

@IND 

0 
FOUND BRASS PLUG 
FOUND 1 /2" REBAR 
CALCULATED POINT 
BOUNDARY LINE 
EASEMENT LINE 

A 

EXISTING EASEMENT LINE, 
AS NOTED 
SURVEY TIE LINE 

V, 
z>:,: ........ --�,!J!ir-N_D __ __, _________________ _ 
iii 
t6 

..,: z w 

� ..,. _______ __

"... 

6 ENGINEERING 

0 10 20 

Plan Scale 

40 

� 
572SNORTHOISCOVERYWAY ____________________________ ..,..,......, ____ ........ 

x BOISE, IOAHO 83713 

� PHONE (208) 639-6939 
w kmengllp.com 
� ..,. _______ .,.

Exhibit B 
City of Meridian Water Main Easement 

� DATE: March 2022 
Jg-a----------t-----------------------------------1 
< PROJECT: 21-171 
�1o---------11 
:::; SHEET: 

.S 1 OF 1 

A portion of Lot 19, Block 1 of Hastings Subdivision No. 3, situated in the Northwest 1/4 

of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 26, T. 4 N., R. 1 W., 8.M., City of Meridian, Ada County, Idaho 
.;:------------------------------------------Page 131

Item #8.



Title: 

-" 
'° 

r:::: :... 
�� 

0 
0 

Scale: 1 inch = 5 feet 

7.50 

s89°49'1 S"e 

n89°38'44"w 

6.00 

t- :
N -

. N 
"' 0 

jFile: 

8.83 

s89°38'34"e 

n89°38'34"w 

4.83 

n89°49'l5"w 

5 52 

� 

�o 
!l'l 0 
0 
N 0 
0 -

0 
0 

I Date: 03-01-2022 

Tract I: 0.006 Acres: 244 Sq Feet: Closure = n86.l 152e 0.00 Feet: Precision =1/16575: Perimeter = 75 Feet 

00I=s89.4915e 7.50 005=n89.3834w 4.83 009=n89.3844w 6.00 
002=n46.4133e I 1.26 006=s46.4133w 11.24 OIO=n00.2116e 4.71 
003=s89.3834e 8.83 007=n89.4915w 5.52 
004=s00.2055w l 0.00 008=n00.2116e 5.27 

Page 132

Item #8.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Roaring Springs East Expansion Water Main Easement No. 1

Page 133

Item #9.



WATER MAIN EASEMENT 

THIS Easement Agreement, made this 5th    day of_April, 2022, kbetween BOWDEN PROPERTIES, INC 

("Grantor"), and the City of Meridian, an Idaho Municipal Corporation ("Grantee"); 

WHEREAS, the Grantor desires to provide a water main right-of-way across the premises and property 
hereinafter particularly bounded and described; and 

WHEREAS, the water main is to be provided for through underground pipelines to be constructed 
by others; and 

WHEREAS, it will be necessary to maintain and service said pipelines from time to time by the Grantee; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits to be received by the Grantor, and other good and 
valuable consideration, the Grantor does hereby give, grant and convey unto the Grantee the 
right-of-way for an easement for the operation and maintenance of water mains over and across the 
following described property: 

(SEE ATTACHED EXHIBITS A andB) 

The easement hereby granted is for the purpose of construction and operation of water mains and their 
allied facilities, together with their maintenance, repair and replacement at the convenience of the 
Grantee, with the free right of access to such facilities at any and all times. 

TO HA VE AND TO HOLD, the said easement and right-of-way unto the said Grantee, it's successors and 
assigns forever. 

IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED, by and between the parties hereto, that after making 
repairs or performing other maintenance, Grantee shall restore the area of the easement and adjacent 
property to that existent prior to undertaking such repairs and maintenance. However, Grantee shall 
not be responsible for repairing, replacing or restoring anything placed within the area described in this 
easement that was placed there in violation of this easement. 

THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees that Grantor will not place or allow to be placed any permanent 

structures, trees, brush, or perenniai shrubs or flowers within the area described for this easement, which 
would interfere with the use of said easement, for the purposes stated herein. 

THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees with the Grantee that should any part of the right-ofway and 
easement hereby granted shall become part of, or lie within the boundaries of any 

V <>rsion 01 /01 /?0?.0 

ESMT-2022-0154 Roaring Springs East Expansion
Water Main Easement No. 1

Page 134

Item #9.



public street, then, to such extent, such right-of-way and easement hereby granted which lies 
within such boundary thereof or which is a part thereof, shall cease and become null and void 
and of no further effect and shall be completely relinquished. 

THE GRANTOR does hereby covenant with the Grantee that Grantor is lawfully seized and 
possessed of the aforementioned and described tract ofland, and that Grantor has a good and 
lawful right to convey said easement, and that Grantor will warrant and forever defend the 
title and quiet possession thereof against the lawful claims of all persons whomsoever. 

THE COVENANTS OF GRANTOR made herein shall be binding upon Grantor's successors, 
assigns, heirs, personal representatives, purchasers, or transferees of any kind. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said parties of the first part have hereunto subscribed their 
signatures the day and year first herein above written. 

GRANTOR: BOWDEN PROPERTIES, INC 
an Idaho limited liability company 

By: PATRICK MORANDI, Member and Manager 

STATE OF IDAHO ) 
) ss 

County of Ada ) 

This record was acknowledged before me on oJ/i..J ho1..1. by Patrick Morandi 
on behalf of Bowden Properties, Inc. in the following representative capacity: Member and 
Manager 

LINDA BOOTS 
14855 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

STATE OF IDAHO 
M'I COMMISSION EXPIRES 05/31/2025 

Notary Signature 
My Commission Expires: a s-/.1, /J..r 

Version O 1/01/2020 

Page 135

Item #9.



GRANTEE: CITY OF MERIDIAN 

Robert E. Simison, Mayor 

Attest by Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

STATE OF IDAHO, ) 
ss. 

County of Ada ) 

This record was acknowledged before me on. ______ (date) by Robert E. Simison 
and Chris Johnson on behalf of the City of Meridian, in their capacities as Mayor and City 
Clerk, respectively. 

Notary Signature 
My Commission Expires.�: _______ _ 

VP-rsinn 01 /01 /?020 

4-5-2022

4-5-202

4-5-2022

Page 136

Item #9.



1
■
■1 ■■Quadrant

C o n s u I ti n g, I n c.

DESCRIPTION 

WATER LINE EASEMENT 

FOR 

BOWDEN PROPERTIES LLC 

EASEMENT NO. 1 

EXHIBIT "A" 

The following describes a 20.00 foot wide waterline easement lying within a portion of Lots 10, 11, 16, 

17, 18, 27 and 28, Block 1, Plat of Interstate Center a Subdivision, Book 74, Pages 7656-7357, Ada 

County Record's and also lying within a portion of the Southeast Quarter (SEl/4) of Section 13, 

Township 3 North, Range 1 West, Boise Meridian, City of Meridian, Ada County, Idaho being more 

particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at the southeast corner of said Section 13; Thence, along the south boundary line of said 

SEl/4, as shown in said Interstate Center Subdivision, North 89°46'23" West, 742.03 feet; Thence, North 

01 °02'27" East, 45.00 feet to the southeast corner of said Lot 16 and to the northerly right of way of 

West Overland Rd.; Thence, along the south boundary line of said Lot 16, North 89°46'23" West, 179.51 

feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 

Thence, continuing along said south boundary line and said northerly right of way, North 89°46'23" 

West, 20.00 feet; 

Thence, departing said south boundary line and said right of way, North 00°05'24" West, 210.36 feet; 

Thence, South 89°54'36" West, 229.23 feet; 

Thence, North 00°05'24" West, 20.00 feet; 

Thence, North 89°54'36" East, 203.53 feet; 

Thence, North 00°05'18" East, 231.21 feet; 

Thence, South 89°54'39" East, 62.36 feet; 

Thence, North 45°05'21" East, 56.31 feet; 

Thence, North oo·oo' 44" East, 42.60 feet; 

Thence, North 22°29'16" West, 294.92 feet; 

Thence, North 67°30' 44" East, 20.00 feet; 

1, BOWDEN PROPERTIES LLC, EASEMENT NO. 1 

Page 137

Item #9.



Thence, South 22°29'16" East, 298.90 feet; 

Thence, South 00°00' 44" West, 54.88 feet; 

Thence, South 45°05'21" West, 72.89 feet; 

Thence, North 89°54'39" West, 50.65 feet; 

Thence, South 00°05'18" West, 182.68 feet; 

Thence, North 89°54'36" East, 15.33 feet; 

Thence, South 00°05'21" West, 28.42 feet; 

Thence, North 89°54'36" East, 10.36 feet; 

Thence, South 00°05'24" East, 230.47 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, containing 0.537 acres or 

23,389 square feet more or less. 

2, BOWDEN PROPERTIES LLC, EASEMENT NO. 1 

Page 138

Item #9.



203.53 

229.23 

Title: I Date: 03-18-2022, 

Scale: 1 inch = 120 feet !File: WATERLINE EASEMENT NO. I.des
Tract I: 0.537 Acres: 23389 Sq Feet: Closure� sl 7.204 le 0.05 Feet: Precision �1/46678: Perimeter� 2335 Feet 

OOI�n89.4623w 20.00 008=45.052le 56.31 015=89.5439w 50.65 

002�n00.0524w 210.36 009=00.0044e 42.60 016�s00.052lw 182.68 

003�s89.5436w 229.23 010�2.2916w 294.92 017=89.5436e 15.33 

004�n00.0524w 20.00 011=67.3044e20.00 Ol8�s00.052lw 28.42 

005=89.5436e 203.53 012�s22.2916e 298.90 019=89.5436e 10.36 

006=00.0518e 231.21 Ol3�s00.0044w 54.88 020�s00.0524e 230.47 

007�s89.5439e 62.36 014�s45.052lw 72.89 Page 139

Item #9.



® 

BOWDEN PROPERTIES LLC, 
WATER LINE EASEMENT 

EASEMENT NO. 1 
PORTION OF LOTS 1 O, 11, 16, 17, 18, 27 AND 28, BLOCK 1 

INTERSTATE CENTER SUBDIVISION, LYING WITHIN A PORTION OF THE SE 1/4 OF 
SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 3 NORTH, RANGE 1 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN 

I 

_,_ 

CllY OF MERIDIAN, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO 
2022 

EXHIBIT "B" 

BLOCK 
1 

LEGEND 

-- - - -- Boundary Line 

-- - -- Section Line 

Easement No. 1 

0 Found Brass Cap 

A Calculated Point 

POB Point of Beginning 

N GRAPHIC SCALE 

0 150' 300' 

WEST OVERLAND ROAD 

1■■ 1 ■■ Quadrant
Con s u lti n g, Inc 

1904 � Owtbld Rood 

-,_""""

(208) 312-0091 PHaE (2a8) .lf2-«J92 FAX 
ffla. ,S!a&MII �_CONSIRIIC'IXW IWMGIEIIEN1' 

N89"46"23"W 

N01'02'2T 
45.00 

N89'46'23"W 261a90' 10 THE SOUTH 
1/4 COR. SEC. 13 

BASIS OF BEARINGS 

N89"46'23"W 7'4-2.03 

LINE 

L1 

L2 

L3 

L4 

L5 

L6 

L7 

13 18 

24 .19 
Cl 

i5 
ii':: 
w 
::. 

en 

' ! ! 
( IN FEET ) 
1· = 150' 

LINE TABLE 

BEARING LENGTH 

NOO'OO' 44"E 42.60 

N67'30' 44 "E 20.00 

soo·oo•44•w 54.88 

N89"54'39"W 50.65 

N89'54'36"E 15.33 

soo·o5•21 ·w 28.42 

N89'54'36"E 10.36 

Page 140

Item #9.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Roaring Springs East Expansion Water Main Easement No. 2

Page 141

Item #10.



WATER MAIN EASEMENT 

THIS Easement Agreement, made this __ day of_April, 2022_between BOWDEN PROPERTIES, INC 

("Grantor''), and the City of Meridian, an Idaho Municipal Corporation ("Grantee"); 

WHEREAS, the Grantor desires to provide a water main right-of-way across the premises and property 
hereinafter particularly bounded and described; and 

WHEREAS, the water main is to be provided for through underground pipelines to be constructed by others; 
and 

WHEREAS, it will be necessary to maintain and service said pipelines from time to time by the Grantee; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits to be received by the Grantor, and other good and 
valuable consideration, the Grantor does hereby give, grant and convey unto the Grantee the right-of-way for 
an easement for the operation and maintenance of water mains over and across the following described 
property: 

(SEE ATTACHED EXHIBITS A andB) 

The easement hereby granted is for the purpose of construction and operation of water mains and their allied 
facilities, together with their maintenance, repair and replacement at the convenience of the Grantee, with the 
free right of access to such facilities at any and all times. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, the said easement and right-of-way unto the said Grantee, it's successors and 
assigns forever. 

IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED, by and between the parties hereto, that after making 
repairs or performing other maintenance, Grantee shall restore the area of the easement and adjacent property 
to that existent prior to undertaking such repairs and maintenance. However, Grantee shall not be responsible 
for repairing, replacing or restoring anything placed within the area described in this easement that was placed 
there in violation of this easement. 

THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees that Grantor will not place or allow to be placed any permanent 
structures, trees, brush, or perennial shrubs or flowers within the area described for this easement, which would 
interfere with the use of said easement, for the purposes stated herein. 

THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees with the Grantee that should any part of the right-of"' way and 
easement hereby granted shall become part of, or lie within the boundaries of any 

Water Main Easement Version 01/01/2020 

ESMT-2022-0155 Roaring Springs East Expanision
Water Main Easement No. 2

5th

Page 142

Item #10.



public street, then, to such extent, such right-of-way and easement hereby granted which lies 
within such boundary thereof or which is a part thereof, shall cease and become null and void 
and ofno further effect and shall be completely relinquished. 

THE GRANTOR does hereby covenant with the Grantee that Grantor is lawfully seized and 
possessed of the aforementioned and described tract of land, and that Grantor has a good and 
lawful right to convey said easement, and that Grantor will warrant and forever defend the 
title and quiet possession thereof against the lawful claims of all persons whomsoever. 

THE COVENANTS OF GRANTOR made herein shall be binding upon Grantor's successors, 
assigns, heirs, personal representatives, purchasers, or transferees of any kind. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said parties of the first part have hereunto subscribed their 
signatures the day and year first herein above written. 

GRANTOR: BOWDEN PROPERTIES, INC 
an Idaho limited liability company 

By: PATRICK MORANDI, Member and Manager 

STATE OF IDAHO ) 
) ss 

County of Ada ) 

This record was acknowledged before me on 3 Iv h D'l.Z. by Patrick Morandi 
on behalf of Bowden Properties, Inc. in the following representative capacity: Member and 
Manager 

14855 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
STATE Of IOAHO 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 05/31/2025 

Water Main Easement 

�d� 
Notary Signature 
My Commission Expires:. __ ;,_.r;_;l;_i,�/�t�r_. _ 

Version 01/01/2020 
Page 143

Item #10.



GRANTEE: CITY OF MERIDIAN 

Robert E. Simison, Mayor 

Attest by Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

STATE OF IDAHO, ) 
ss. 

County of Ada ) 

This record was acknowledged before me on. ______ ( date) by Robert E. Simison 
and Chris Johnson on behalf of the City of Meridian, in their capacities as Mayor and City 
Clerk, respectively. 

Notary Signature 
My Commission Expires.�: _______ _ 

Water Main Easement Version O 1/01/2020 

4-5-2022

4-5-2022

4-5-2022

Page 144

Item #10.



1■■1 ■■ Quadrant
Consulting, Inc. 

DESCRIPTION 

WATER LINE EASEMENT 

FOR 

BOWDEN PROPERTIES LLC 

EASEMENT NO. 2 

EXHIBIT "A" 

The following describes a 20.00 foot wide waterline easement lying within a portion of Lots 12 through 
15, Block 1, Plat of Interstate Center a Subdivision, Book 74, Pages 7656-7357, Ada County Record's and 

also lying within a portion of the Southeast Quarter (SEl/4) of Section 13, Township 3 North, Range 1 
West, Boise Meridian, City of Meridian, Ada County, Idaho being more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at the southeast corner of said Section 13; Thence, along the south boundary line of said 

SEl/4, as shown in said Interstate Center Subdivision, North 89°46'23" West, 412.04 feet; Thence, North 
01 °02'27" East, 45.00 feet to the southeast corner of said Lot 15 and to the northerly right of way of 

West Overland Rd.; Thence, along the south boundary line of said Lot 15, North 89°46'23" West, 133.20 
feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 

Thence, continuing along said south boundary line and said northerly right of way, North 89°46'23" 
West, 20.00 feet; 

Thence, departing said south boundary line and said right of way, North 00°47'09" East, 224.40 feet; 

Thence, North 45°00'00" East, 56.23 feet; 

Thence, North 00°01'09" West, 182.32 feet; 

Thence, North 89°5"9'07" East, 27.14 feet; 

Thence, South 00°00'53" East, 20.00 feet; 

Thence, South 89°59'07" West, 7.14 feet; 

Thence, South 00°01'09" East, 170.60 feet; 

Thence, South 45°00'00" West, 56.40 feet; 

Thence, South 00°47'09" West, 216.07 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, containing 0.216 acres or 

9,403 square feet more or less. 

1, BOWDEN PROPERTIES LLC, EASEMENT NO. 2 

Page 145

Item #10.



Title: I Date: 02-14-2022 

Scale: 1 inch = 60 feet I File: WATERLINE EASEMENT NO.2.des 
Tract 1: 0.216 Acres: 9403 Sq Feet: Closure- sl5.2409w 0.01 Feet: Precision-1/70694: Perimeter- 980 Feet 

001=89.4623w 20.00 005=89.5907e 27.14 009-s45.0000w 56.40

002=00.4709e 224.40 OO�s00.0053e 20.00 010-s00.4709w 216.07

003=45.0000e 56.23 007-s89.5907w 7.14

004=00.0109w 182.32 008-s00.0ll9e 170.60
Page 146

Item #10.



BOWDEN PROPERTIES U.C, 
WATER LINE EASEMENT 

EASEMENT NO. 2 
PORTION OF LOTS 12, 13, 14 AND 15, BLOCK 1 

INTERSTATE CENTER SUBDIVISION, LYING WITHIN A PORTION OF THE SE 1/4 OF 
SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 3 NORTH, RANGE 1 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN 

CITY OF MERIDIAN, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO 
2022 

EXHIBIT "B" 

LEGEND 

-- - - -- Boundary Line 

-- - -- Section Line 

-·-·-·- Easement No. 2

0 Found Brass Cap 

A Calculated Point 

POB Point of Beginning 

N GRAPHIC SCALE 

0 150' 300' 

--+--- - - -- -

N89'46'23"W 
---�20.00 

N89·46'23·w 261a90' TO THE SOUTH 
1/4 COR. SEC. 13 

N01'02'2 
+5.00 

BASIS OF BEARINGS 

1■■ 1 ■■
Quadrant

Consulting, Inc 
1fl04. .. o..brdRood 

........ ..,.. 
(208) J42-0091 l'HCIE (.208) :u2-0t»2 FAX 

OWL fHil'&MIGI liUl'iEIIG CON51R001KW tMNMEIEHJ' 

! 
( IN FEET 
1· = 150' 

--.. � ,, l,, 
24 . 19 

Cl 

ui 

! 
) 

Page 147

Item #10.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Shelburne South No. 1 and 2 Sanitary Sewer Easement No. 3

Page 148

Item #11.



Form of Permanent Easement 

SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT 

THIS Easement Agreement, made this __ day of __ � 20 __ bctween ______ _ 
("'Grantor"), and the City of Meridian, an Idaho Municipal Corporation ("Grantee"); 

WHEREAS, the Grantor desires to provide a sanitary sewer right-of-way across the premises and 
property hereinafter particularly bounded and described; and 

\\/HEREAS, the sanitary sewer is to be provided for through underground pipelines to be constructed by 
others; and 

WHEREAS, it will be necessary to maintain and service said pipelines from time to time by the Grantee; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits to be received by the Grantor, and other good and 
valuable consideration, the Graotor does hereby give, grant and convey unto the Grantee the right-of-way for 
an easement for the operation and maintenance of sanitary sewer over and across the following described 
property: 

(SEE A 1TACHED EXHIBITS A and B) 

The easement hereby granted is for the purpose of construction and operation of sanitary sewer lhcir allied 
facilities, together with their maintenance, repair and replacement at the convenience of the Grantee, with the 
free right of access to such facilities at any and all limes. 

TO H.J\ VE AND TO HOLD, the said easement and right-ot�way unto the said Grantee, it's successors and 
assigns forever. 

IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED, by and between the parties hereto, that atier making 
repairs or perfonning other maintenance, Grantee shall restore the area of the easement and adjacent property 
to that existent prior to undertaking such repairs and maintenance. However, Grantee shall not be 
responsible for repairing, replacing or restoring anything placed within the area described in this easement 
that was placed there in violation of this easemem. 

THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees that Grantor will not place or allow to be placed any pennanent 
structure�. trees, brush, or perennial shrubs or flowers within the area described for this easement, which 
would interfere with the use of said ea�emem, for the purposes stated herein. 

A<au;tMENT FOR FASF,MF,NTS- IS 

ESMT-2022-0150 Shelburne South No. 1 & 2
Sanitary Sewer Easement No. 3

4th April 22
West Ada Joint 
School District

Page 149

Item #11.

kentl
Typewritten Text
3



THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees with the Grantee that should any part of the right
of-way and easement hereby granted shall become part of, or lie within the boundaries of 
any public street, then, to such extent, such right-of-way and easement hereby granted 
which lies within such boundary thereof or which is a part thereot: shall cease and 
become null and void and of no further effect and shall be completely relinquished. 

THE GRANTOR does hereby covenant with the Grantee that Grantor is lawfully seized 
and possessed of the aforementioned and described tract of land, ar\d that Grantor has a 
good and lawful right to convey said easement, and that Grantor will warrant and forever 
defend the title and quiet possession thereof against the lawful claims of all persons 
whomsoever. 

THE COVENANTS OF GKANTOR made herein shall be binding upon Grantor's 
successors, assigns, heirs, personal representatives, purchasers, or transferees of any kind. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said parties of the first part have hel'eunto subscribed their 
signatures the day and year first herein above written. 

GRANTOR: 

STATE OF IDAHO) 
) ss 

County of Ada )

This record was acknowledged before me on /:t,tu:[ 10.)<>19 (date) by 
m.0w4 0no i?at1" rf:5 (name of individual), [complete the Yo/lowing if signing in a
representative capacity. or strike the following if signing in an individual capacity] on 

11.�" ,,....J . behalf of tuez{ A;;J
q �"'-??I �"\mune of entity on behalf of whom record was

executed), in the folloig representative capacity: , )l ,.p,,,,.,
0

-1-,,,,,d..,,,,J· (type 
of authority such as officer or trustee) 

(stamp) 

Notary Signature 
My Commission Expires: ,;2,/1 ·;p >-

ACRF.F.Ml':NT FOR £ASEMF.NTS- 16 

Page 150

Item #11.



GRANTEE: CITY OF MERIDIAN 

STATE OF IDAHO, ) 

ss. 
County of Ada ) 

This record was acknowledged before me on 4-5-2022 (date) by Robert E. Simision and 
Chris Johnson on behalf of the City of Meridian, in their capacities as Mayor and City 
Clerk, respectively. 

Notaty Signature 
My Commission Expires,.,_: _______ _ 

A(;RF,F.MF.NT FOil £A.S£Mt..:.NTS- 17 

Robert E. Simison, Mayor

Chris Johnson, City Clerk

4-5-2022

4-5-2022

Page 151

Item #11.



SANITARY SEWER EASEMENTS 

PROPOSED SHELBURNE SOUTH SUBDIVISION 

MERIDIAN JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 2 PARCEL 
LOCATED IN THE SE 1/4 OF THE SW 1/4 OF SECTION 28 

T.3N., R. 1 E., B.M., MERIDIAN, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO

EASEMENT LEGEND 

�

r>�>7
L.�·.J

PERMANENT EASEMENT 

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION 

EASEMENT 

,� 
0 

IZ 

28 

FREEMAN FAMILY TRUST 
PARCEL NO. S1128438586. 

1/4 '-'�-- _ -- _ -- __ S8_9'_14'4XE_2_66�5_4' __ -- _
33 BASIS OF BEARING 

0 50 100 

�-
200 

I 23 I E. 5TH ST. STE. A 
MERIDIAN, ID 83642 

(208) 288-2040 (208) 288-2557 fax 
www.landsolutions.biz 

27 

JOB NO. 19-08 

Page 152

Item #11.

kentl
Text Box
EXHIBIT B



Legal Description 
Permanent Sewer Easement 

Meridian Joint School District No. 2 Parcel 
Proposed Shelbourne South Subdivision 

An easement located in the SE¼ of the SW¼ of Section 28, Township 3 North, Range 1 East, 
Boise Meridian, Ada County, Idaho, and more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at a Brass Cap monument marking the southeast corner of the SW¼ of said Section 
28, from which an Aluminum Cap monument marking the southeast corner of the SE ¼ of said 
Section bears S 89°14'43" E a  distance of 2660.54 feet; 

Thence N 0°31 '14" E along the east boundary of said SW ¼ a distance of 940.13 feet to the 
POINT OF BEGINNING; 

Thence leaving said boundary N 89°28'46" W a distance of 20.00 feet to a point; 

Thence N 0°31 '14" E a distance of 384.24 feet to a point on the north boundary of the SE ¼ of 
the SW ¼ of said Section 28; 

Thence along said boundary S 89°28'46" E a distance of 20.00 feet to the northeast corner of 
said SE ¼ of the SW ¼; 

Thence along the east boundary of said SE ¼ of the SW ¼ S 0°31 '14" W a distance of 384.24 
feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

This easement contains 7,684 SF (0.176 acres) and is subject to any other easements existing 
or in use. 

Clinton W. Hansen, PLS 
Land Solutions, PC 
March 19, 2019 

La�olutions 
� Land Surveying and Consulting 

Shelbourne South - Sewer Easements 
School Parcel-Perm 

Job No. 19-08 
Page 1 of 1 Page 153

Item #11.

kentl
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



Legal Description 
Temporary Construction Easement 

Meridian Joint School District No. 2 Parcel 
Proposed Shelbourne South Subdivision 

An easement located in the SE¼ of the SW¼ of Section 28, Township 3 North, Range 1 East, 
Boise Meridian, Ada County, Idaho, and more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at a Brass Cap monument marking the southeast corner of the SW¼ of said Section 
28, from which an Aluminum Cap monument marking the southeast corner of the SE ¼ of said 
Section bears S 89° 14'43" Ea distance of 2660.54 feet; 

Thence N 0° 31 '14" E along the east boundary of said SW ¼ a distance of 940.1 3 feet to the 
POINT OF BEGINNING; 

Thence along said boundary S 0° 31 '14" W a distance of 30.00 feet to a point; 

Thence leaving said boundary N 89° 14'43" W a distance of 50.00 feet to a point; 

Thence N 0° 31'14" Ea distance of 414.04 feet to a point on the north boundary of the SE¼ of 
the SW ¼ of said Section 28; 

Thence along said boundary S 89° 28'46" E a distance of 50.00 feet to the northeast corner of 
said SE ¼ of the SW ¼; 

Thence along the east boundary of said SE ¼ of the SW ¼ S 0° 31 '14" W a distance of 384.24 
feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

This easement contains 20,706 SF (0.475 acres) and is subject to any other easements existing 
or in use . 

Clinton W. Hansen, PLS 
Land Solutions, PC 
March 19, 2019 

La�olutions 
L__,_--- Land Surveying and Consulting 

Shelbourne South - Sewer Easements 
School Parcel-Temp 

Job No. 19-08 
Page 1 of 1 Page 154

Item #11.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: TM Crossing Subdivision No. 5 Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement No. 
1

Page 155

Item #12.



SANITARY SEWER AND WATER MAIN EASEMENT 

TIIlS Easement Agreement, made this_ day of 2.Q__ between 
SCS Investments LLC, DWT Investments LLC and BVB Ten Mile Crossing Annex LLC 
("Grantor") and the City of Meridian, an Idaho Municipal Corporation ("Grantee"); 

WHEREAS, the Grantor desires to provide a sanitary sewer and water main right-of
way across the premises and property hereinafter particularly bounded and described; 
and 

WHEREAS, the sanitary sewer and water is to be provided for through 
underground pipelines to be constructed by others; and 

WHEREAS, it will be necessary to maintain and service said pipelines from time to 
time by the Grantee; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits to be received by the Grantor, 
and other good and valuable consideration, the Grantor does hereby give, grant and 
convey unto the Grantee the right-of-way for an easement for the operation and 
maintenance of sanitary sewer and water mains over and across the following 
described property: 

(SEE ATTACHED EXHIBITS A and B) 

The easement hereby granted is for the purpose of construction and operation of 
sanitary sewer and water mains and their allied facilities, together with their 
maintenance, repair and replacement at the convenience of the Grantee, with the free 
right of access to such facilities at any and all times. 

TO HA VE AND TO HOLD, the said easement and right-of-way unto the said 
Grantee, it's successors and assigns forever. 

IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED, by and between the parties hereto, 
that after making repairs or performing other maintenance, Grantee shall restore the area 
of the easement and adjacent property to that existent prior to undertaking such repairs 
and maintenance. However, Grantee shall not be responsible for repairing, replacing or 
restoring anything placed within the area described in this easement that was placed there 
in violation of this easement. 

Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement REV. 01/01/2020 

ESTM-2022-0148 TM Crossing Subdivision No. 5
Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement N0. 1

5th April 22

Page 156

Item #12.



THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees that Grantor will not place or allow to be placed 
any permanent structures, trees, brush, or perennial shrubs or flowers within the area 
described for this easement, which would interfere with the use of said easement, for the 
purposes stated herein. 

THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees with the Grantee that should any part of the right
of-way and easement hereby granted shall become part of, or lie within the boundaries of 
any public street, then, to such extent, such right-of-way and easement hereby granted 
which lies within such boundary thereof or which is a part thereof, shall cease and 
become null and void and of no further effect and shall be completely relinquished. 

THE GRANTOR does hereby covenant with the Grantee that Grantor is lawfully seized 
and possessed of the aforementioned and described tract of land, and that Grantor has a 
good and lawful right to convey said easement, and that Grantor will warrant and forever 
defend the title and quiet possession thereof against the lawful claims of all persons 
whomsoever. 

THE COVENANTS OF GRANTOR made herein shall be binding upon Grantor's 
successors, assigns, heirs, personal representatives, purchasers, or transferees of any kind. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said parties of the first part have hereunto subscribed their 
signatures the day and year first herein above written. 

[END OF TEXT; SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW] 

Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement REV. 01/01/2020 

Page 157

Item #12.



GRANTOR: SCS INVESTMENTS LLC 
an Idaho limited liability company 

By: �&ti 
Michael A. Hall, President 

STATE OF IDAHO 
:ss. 

County of Ada 

On this I o-f:.h day of August, in the year 2021, before me a Notary Public of said State, personally 
appeared Michael A. Hall, known or identified to me to be the President of SCS Investments LLC, the 
company that executed the instrument or the person who executed the instrument on behalf of said 
company, and acknowledged to me that such company executed the same. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year 
in this certificate first written above. 

SHARI VAUGHAN 

Notary Public - State of Idaho 
Commission Number 20181002 

My Commtsslon Expires Jun 1, 2024 

!lb:�,�� 
My Commission expires: la - I-&oaf

Page 158

Item #12.



STATE OF IDAHO ) 
: ss. 

County of Ada ) 

DWT INVESTMENTS LLC 
an Idaho limited liability company 

By: Brighton Corporation, an Idaho corporation, 
Manager 

By• � 
RobertLhillip, President

On this 10-+..b. day of August, in the year of 2021, before me a Notary Public of said State, 
personally appeared Robert L. Phillips, known or identified to me to be the President of Brighton 
Corporation, the Manager of DWT INVESTMENTS LLC, the company that executed the 
instrument or the person who executed the instrument on behalf of said company, and 
acknowledged to me that such company executed the same. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the 
day and year in this certificate first above written. 

SHARI VAUGHAN & fo�� 
Notary Pubhc - State of Idaho My Commission expires &; - / �QO ;;)..{.., 

Commission Number 20181002 

My Commission Expires Jun 1, 2024 

Page 159

Item #12.



STATE OF IDAHO 

:ss. 

County of Bonneville 

BVB TEN MILE CROSSING ANNEX, LLC 
An Idaho limited liability company 

By: BV Management Services, Inc., Manager 

On this �v-d 
day of August, in the year 2021, before me a Notary Public of said State,

personally appeared Cortney Liddiard, known or identified to me to be the President of BV Management 
Services, Inc., the corporation that executed the instrument or the person who executed the instrument 
on behalf of said corporation, and acknowledged to me that such company executed the same. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed by official set the day and year in 
this certificate first written above. 

BRANDI LOVE 
COMMISSION NO. 37925 

NOTARY PUBLIC 
STATE OF IDAHO 

MV COMMISSION EXPIRES 04/12/26 

Notary Public for Idaho 
My Commission expires: ;..\-\j} -';;>o';)../o 

Page 160

Item #12.



GRANTEE: CITY OF MERIDIAN 

Robert E. Simison, Mayor 

Attest by Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

STATEOFIDAHO, ) 
ss. 

County of Ada ) 

This record was acknowledged before me on _______ (date) by 
Ro  b e  r t  E . S i m i s on  and Chris Johnson on behalf of the City of Meridian, m 
their capacities as Mayor and City Clerk, respectively. 

Notary Signature 
My Commission Expires=-: _______ _ 

Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement REV. 01/01/2020 

4-5-2022

4-5-2022

4-5-2022

Page 161

Item #12.



ENGINEERING 

March 15, 2022 

Project No. 21-050 

TM Crossing Subdivision No. 5 

City of Meridian Water and Sewer Easement 

Legal Description 

Exhibit A 

A parcel of land for a City of Meridian Water and Sewer Easement situated in a portion of the Southwest 1/4 

of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 14, Township 3 North, Range 1 West, Boise Meridian, City of Meridian, Ada 

County, Idaho and being more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at a found aluminum cap marking the West 1/4 corner of said Section 14, which bears 

N89
°

11'30"W a distance of 2,656.47 feet from a found aluminum cap marking the Center 1/4 corner of said 
Section 14; 

Thence following the southerly line of said Southwest 1/4, S89
°

11'30"E a distance of 348.37 feet to a point; 

Thence leaving said southerly line, N00
° 

48'30"E a distance of 19.40 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Thence N89
°

11'30"W a distance of90.32 feet; 

Thence S00°48'26"W a distance of 15.52 feet; 

Thence N89°11'34"W a distance of 20.50 feet; 

Thence N00°48'26"E a distance of 207.08 feet; 

Thence S89°11'34"E a distance of 20.00 feet; 
Thence N00°48'26"E a distance of 12.57 feet; 

Thence N08°47' 45"E a distance of 50.42 feet; 

Thence 581 °12'15"E a distance of 21.00 feet; 

Thence sos· 47' 45"W a distance of 48.95 feet; 

Thence soo· 48'26"W a distance of 185.19 feet; 

Thence 589
°

11'34"E a distance of 69.82 feet; 
Thence soo· 48'30"W a distance of 17 .48 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Said parcel contains 10,685 square feet, more or less, and is subject to all existing easements and/or rights-of

way of record or implied. 

Attached hereto is Exhibit Band by this reference is made a part hereof. 

5725 North Discovery Way • Boise, Idaho 83713 • 208.639.6939 • kmengllp.com 
. . 

Page 162

Item #12.



I 
� 
<( a, :c 
V, 

u 
0 

a, w 

i::i· 
0 

a· 

<( a, 
z 

0 

� 

1 
� 

V, 

0 

� 

;;:: 

Ei 
ii: 

u. 
0 

u 

0 

�
� 
ai :c 
r;j 
& 
ii< 
::::, 

111 0 

�a: 

-ci I
0:: 

�I 
21 
C 

�I 
V) 

Nos•47'45"E / 
50.42'� 

Noo·4a'26"E 
12.57' 

ss9·11'34"E 
20.00' 

Lot 10, 
Block 1 

Lot 9, 
Block 1 

rz:Z!Z!i--:= 
41.00'

20.so·--- 1- 20.so·

Proposed 
TM Crossing 

Subdivision No. 5 

Lot 11, Block 1 

s. van 'Cuard ,A. vv<1y

LEGEND 

($) 
A 

@ 
50 100 

Plan Scale: 1" = 50' 

FOUND ALUMINUM CAP 
CALCULATED POINT 

- - SECTION LINE
LOT LINE

150 

- - - - - - - - PROPOSED EASEMENT LINE
� Z ZZ:z::,T____,,T.....7-] PROPOSED EASEMENT AREA

soo·4a•3o"w 
17.48' Lot 12, Block 1 

15 I 14 
. N00"48'30"E N89.11'30"W 90.32' 1..,.--19.40' (TIE)-S00'48'26"W 15.52

j
' 

N89'17,";;�-348.37' 
- -

_____ [\__ 
'-----

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT 
FOUND ALUMINUM CAP 
W 1 / 4 CORNER SECTION 14 

POINT OF 
BEGINNING 

BASIS OF BEARINGS 

N89.11 '30"W 2656.47' 
TM Crossing 

Subdivision No. 1 

2308.10' 

/ 
___.... 

FOUND ALUMINUM CAP 

CENTER 1 / 4 CORNER SECTION 14 

...... 
C 
Cl) 

E 
cu 
Vl 

co 
w 
I,,_ 

co 2
...... co

:cs 
..C C 

X CO 
w ·-

"'C 
I,,_ 
cu 

� 
'+-
0 

u 

DATE: 

PROJECT: 

SHEET: 

Cl 

� 
C 

'+- :::i 
o a 

o::t' u 

-;:;- � 
$ <( 
2 c ..
(IJ -� 

..c "O ..... ·-'-
'+- (IJ 
0 ::E 
-::I' .... 
-;:;- 0 

$ .e-
V) u

0 ;-
c � 
0 ·- co 
� � 
0 $ 
Q. .-I 

ctJ 0:: 
C - =-

"O 2

(IJ rt') 

� i--: 
:::, .. 

-� -=::t"
V) .-I 

C 
0

(IJ 
V) 

MARCH2022 

21-050 

1 OF 1 

ENGINEERING 
5725 N, DISCOVERY WAY 

BOISE, IDAHO 83713 
PHONE (208) 639-6939 

kmengllp.com 

Page 163

Item #12.



_,, 
00 "" 
o!" 

• 00 
..... �
0 o 
NO 

0 
= 

Title: Water and Sewer Easement - DWT 
Scale: 1 inch = 50 feet !File:

69.82 

s89°1 I '34"e 

n89° l l '30"w 

90.32 

I Date: 03-15-2022 

Tract I: 0.245 Acres: I 0685 Sq Feet: Closure = n08.2907w 0.00 Feet: Precision =In37676: Perimeter = 759 Feet 

00I=n89.l 130w 90.32 006=n00.4826e 12.57 01 I=s89.l 134e 69.82 
002=s00.4826w 15.52 007=n08.4745e 50.42 012=s00.4830w 17.48 
003=n89.l 134w 20.50 008=s81.1215e 21.00 
004=n00.4826e 207.08 009=s08.4745w 48.95 
005=s89.I 134e 20.00 010=s00.4826w 185.19 

Page 164

Item #12.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: TM Crossing Subdivision No. 5 Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement No. 
2

Page 165

Item #13.



SANITARY SEWER AND WATER MAIN EASEMENT 

THIS Easement Agreement, made this_ day of � between 
BV ASB Ten Mile Retail Food Building LLC, ("Grantor") and the City of Meridian, an 
Idaho Municipal Corporation ("Grantee"); 

WHEREAS, the Grantor desires to provide a sanitary sewer and water main right-of
way across the premises and property hereinafter particularly bounded and described; 
and 

WHEREAS, the sanitary sewer and water is to be provided for through 
underground pipelines to be constructed by others; and 

WHEREAS, it will be necessary to maintain and service said pipelines from time to 
time by the Grantee; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits to be received by the Grantor, 
and other good and valuable consideration, the Grantor does hereby give, grant and 
convey unto the Grantee the right-of-way for an easement for the operation and 
maintenance of sanitary sewer and water mains over and across the following 
described property: 

(SEE ATTACHED EXHIBITS A and B) 

The easement hereby granted is for the purpose of construction and operation of 
sanitary sewer and water mains and their allied facilities, together with their 
maintenance, repair and replacement at the convenience of the Grantee, with the free 
right of access to such facilities at any and all times. 

TO HA VE AND TO HOLD, the said easement and right-of-way unto the said 
Grantee, it's successors and assigns forever. 

IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED, by and between the parties hereto, 
that after making repairs or performing other maintenance, Grantee shall restore the area 
of the easement and adjacent property to that existent prior to undertaking such repairs 
and maintenance. However, Grantee shall not be responsible for repairing, replacing or 
restoring anything placed within the area described in this easement that was placed there 
in violation of this easement. 

Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement REV. 01/01/2020 

ESMT-2022-0149 TM Crossing Subdivision NO. 5
Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement No. 2

5th April 22

Page 166

Item #13.



THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees that Grantor will not place or allow to be placed 
any permanent structures, trees, brush, or perennial shrubs or flowers within the area 

described for this easement, which would interfere with the use of said easement, for the 
purposes stated herein. 

THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees with the Grantee that should any part of the right
of-way and easement hereby granted shall become part of, or lie within the boundaries of 
any public street, then, to such extent, such right-of-way and easement hereby granted 
which lies within such boundary thereof or which is a part thereof, shall cease and 
become null and void and of no further effect and shall be completely relinquished. 

THE GRANTOR does hereby covenant with the Grantee that Grantor is lawfully seized 
and possessed of the aforementioned and described tract of land, and that Grantor has a 
good and lawful right to convey said easement, and that Grantor will warrant and forever 
defend the title and quiet possession thereof against the lawful claims of all persons 
whomsoever. 

THE COVENANTS OF GRANTOR made herein shall be binding upon Grantor's 
successors, assigns, heirs, personal representatives, purchasers, or transferees of any kind. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said parties of the first part have hereunto subscribed their 
signatures the day and year first herein above written. 

[END OF TEXT; SIGN A TURES TO FOLLOW] 

Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement REV. 01/01/2020 

Page 167

Item #13.



GRANTOR: 

STATE OF IDAHO 
:ss. 

BVASB TEN MILE RETAIL FOOD BUILDING, INC. 
an Idaho limited liability company 

By: BV Management Services, Inc., Executive Manager 

Robert L. Phillips, President 

County of Bonneville 

-rd 
On this the 3 day of August, in the year 2021, before me a Notary Public of said State, 

personally Cortney Liddiard, known or identified to me to be the President of BV Management Services, 
Inc., the corporation that executed the instrument or the person who executed the instrument on 
behalf of said corporation, and acknowledged to me that such company executed the same. 

IN WITESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed by official seal the day and year in 
this certificate first written above. 

BRANDI LOVE 
COMMISSION NO. 37925 

NOTARY PUBLIC 
STATE OF IDAHO 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 04/12/26 

9.1:::: 
Notary Public for Idaho 
My Commission expires: J-\ -\ � -,;?.o:x'.g 

Page 168

Item #13.



STATE OF IDAHO 
:ss. 

County of Ada 

On thisq+l, day of August, in the year 2021, before me a Notary Public of said State, personally 
appeared Robert L. Phillips, known or identified to me to be the President of Brighton Corporation, the 
corporation that executed the instrument or the person who executed the instrument on behalf of said 
corporation, and acknowledged to me that such company executed the same. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed by official seal the day and year 
in this certificate first written above. 

Notary Public - State of Idaho 

Commission Number 20181002 
My Commission Expires Jun 1, 2024 

JL-J� L
Notary Public for Idaho & 
My Commission expires: k- 1-an:if 

Page 169

Item #13.



GRANTEE: CITY OF MERIDIAN 

Robert E. Simison, Mayor 

Attest by Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

STATE OF IDAHO, ) 
ss. 

County of Ada ) 

This record was acknowledged before me on _______ (date) by 
R o b e r t  E . S i m i  s o n  and Chris Johnson on behalf of the City of Meridian, m 
their capacities as Mayor and City Clerk, respectively. 

Notary Signature 
My Commission Expires.:._: _______ _ 

Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement REV.01/01/2020 

4-5-2022

4-5-2022

4-5-2022

Page 170

Item #13.



ENGINEERING 

March 15, 2022 

Project No. 21-050 

TM Crossing Subdivision No. 5 

City of Meridian Water and Sewer Easement 

Legal Description 

Exhibit A 

A parcel of land for a City of Meridian Water and Sewer Easement situated in a portion of the Southwest 1/4 

of the Northwest 1/ 4 of Section 14, Township 3 North, Range 1 West, Boise Meridian, City of Meridian, Ada 

County, Idaho and being more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at a found aluminum cap marking the West 1/4 corner of said Section 14, which bears 

N89
°

11'30"W a distance of 2,656.47 feet from a found aluminum cap marking the Center 1/4 corner of said 

Section 14; 

Thence following the southerly line of said Southwest 1/4, S89
°

11'30"E a distance of 355.97 feet to the POINT

OF BEGINNING. 

Thence leaving said southerly line, N00
°

48'26"E a distance of 3.88 feet; 

Thence N89
°

11'34"W a distance of 97.92 feet; 

Thence N00°48'26"E a distance of 15.52 feet; 

Thence S89
°

11'30"E a distance of 90.32 feet; 

Thence N00
°

48'26"E a distance of 17.48 feet; 

Thence S89
°

11'34"E a distance of 40.56 feet; 
Thence N00

°

48'26"E a distance of 15.50 feet; 

Thence S89
°

11'34"E a distance of 26.00 feet; 

Thence S00
° 

48'26"W a distance of 48.50 feet; 

Thence N89
°

11'34"W a distance of 38.95 feet; 

Thence S00
° 

48'26''W a distance of 3.88 feet to the southerly line of said Southwest 1/4; 

Thence following said southerly line, N89
°

11'30''W a distance of 20.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Said parcel contains 4,079 square feet, more or less, and is subject to all existing easements and/or rights-of

way of record or implied. 

Attached hereto is Exhibit Band by this reference is made a part hereof. 

5725 North Discovery Way • Boise, Idaho 83713 • 208.639.6939 • kmengllp.com 
. . . 

Page 171

Item #13.



;a 
:i: 

u 
Q 

�... 
:::; 

,.; 
N 
0 

a 
� 
z
Q 
a: 
� 
19" 

a:i 

r-z ... 
::;; 

� 
a: 

� 
IVI -ci Q z 0:: ..: 

a: 

-� I� 
� �I z ..: 
5 C: 
a: � I... 
::;; ... 
0 V) 

j!: 

� I 15

iii 
:i: 

i;; 
:, 

§. 
0 

D. 

Lot 10, 
Block 1 

Lot 9, 
Block 1 

Noa· 4B'26"E 
15.52' 

Proposed 
TM Crossing 

Subdivision No. 5 

Lot 11, Block 1 

s. van 'Cl.Jard IA. vvay

LEGEND 

� 
& 

@ 
so 100 

Plan Scale: 1" = 50' 

FOUND ALUMINUM CAP 
CALCULATED POINT 

-
- SECTION LINE 

LOT LINE 

150 

- - - - - - � -
PROPOSED EASEMENT LINE 

E:'.: Z z:z:z:,r_,-_,ci PROPOSED EASEMENT AREA

CURV.ETABLE 

CURVE I RADIUS I LENGTH I DELTA I CHORD BRG I CHORD 

NOO' 48'26"E� SR9" 11 '34"E 
15.50' �6°]j0-;i? Noo·4s

. 

•3o"�

J

s���fW //1 f17.48 40.56/ / �g1.N 

· N89"11'34"W 97.92'� 38·95' I� 

Lot 12, Block 1 
ss9·11 •3o"E 90.32' • {s9(, 1 •34"W�.;1 �

...L .............. ...._.._.__.__,_�LJ.J. L 4 
S89'11 '30"E 355.97' -N00"48'26"E -3 88' - • -, - - ---. 

S00'48'26"W 

2280.50' 

"" 
'-..__ 

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT 
FOUND ALUMINUM CAP 
W 1 / 4 CORNER SECTION 14 

NB9" 11 '30"W 20.00' 
_ BASIS OF BEARINGS 

N89' 11 '30"W 2556.4 7' 
TM Crossing 

Subdivision No. 1 

3.88' 
/ 

- - -- ___,,.-

FOUND ALUMINUM CAP
CENTER 1 / 4 CORNER SECTION 14 

..... 
C 
QJ 

E
QJ 
V) 
ro 

LU 

s... 

al� 
...., ro

:.0$·-
.c C 
X ro 

LU•-

"tJ 

DATE: 

·-
s... 
QJ 

� 
'+-
0 
>, 
-�u

PROJECT: 

SHEET: 

Cl 

i-c 
'+- ::J
0 0
q- u 

:::;- �
5 < 

z 
c:"' 

QJ -�.c "'C
+"' ·-i... 

- QJ 0 �
�rl 0 
5 -� 
V) u

0 :
c: � 
0 ·- cc 
t: :-
0 5 0.. rl 
m 
C: 0:: ·- ..

"'C za, m..., .
(tJ 1-
::i ... 
. '!: o:::f" V) rl

C:0
·,.::;u
QJ 

V) 

MARCH 2022 

21-050 

1 OF 1 

ENGINEERING 
5725 N. DISCOVERY WAY 

BOISE, IDAHO 83713 
PHONE (208) 639-6939 

kmengllp.com 

Page 172

Item #13.



90.32 

s89° 1 l '30"e 

n89° 1 l '34"w 

97.92 

Title: Sewer and Water Easement - BV ASB

Scale: I inch= 50 feet I File: 

26.00 

40.56 

s89°11'34"e 

- 12 

n89°11'34"w 

38.95 

� � 
"" . 

.,,. 00 
0 .,,. 
0 

I Date: 03-15-2022 

Tract I: 0.094 Acres: 4079 Sq Feet: Closure = n81.2538w 0.01 Feet: Precision =1/41467: Perimeter = 419 Feet 

001=n00.4826e 3.88 006=s89.1134e 40.56 01 I=s00.4826w 3.88 
002=n89.1134w 97.92 007=n00.4826e 15.50 012=n89.1130w 20.00 
003=n00.4826e 15.52 008=s89.1134e 26.00 
004=s89. l l 30e 90 .32 009=s00.4826w 48.50 
005=n00.4826e 17.48 OIO=n89.1134w 38.95 

Page 173

Item #13.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Topgolf Water Main Easement

Page 174

Item #14.



WATER MAIN EASEMENT 

THIS Easement Agreement, made this __ day of ____ , 20 22 between BVABC Eagle View, LLC 

("Grantor"), and the City of Meridian, an Idaho Municipal Corporation ("Grantee"); 

WHEREAS, the Grantor desires to provide a water main right-of-way across the premises and prope11y 
hereinafter pa11icularly bounded and described; and 

WHEREAS, the water main is to be provided for through underground pipelines to be 
constructed by others; and 

WHEREAS, it will be necessary to maintain and service said pipelines from time to time by the 
Grantee; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits to be received by the Grantor, and other good 
and valuable consideration, the Grantor does hereby give, grant and convey unto the Grantee the 
right-of-way for an easement for the operation and maintenance of water mains over and across the 
following described property: 

(SEE ATTACHED EXHIBITS A and B) 

The easement hereby granted is for the purpose of construction and operation of water mains and 
their allied facilities, together with their maintenance, repair and replacement at the 
convenience of the Grantee, with the free right of access to such facilities at any and all times. 

TO HA VE AND TO HOLD, the said easement and right-of-way unto the said Grantee, it's 
successors and assigns forever. 

IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED, by and between the parties hereto, that after 
making repairs or performing other maintenance, Grantee shall restore the area of the easement 
and adjacent property to that existent prior to undertaking such repairs and maintenance. 
However, Grantee shall not be responsible for repairing, replacing or restoring anything placed 
within the area described in this easement that was placed there in violation of this easement. 

THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees that Grantor will not place or allow to be placed any 
permanent structures, trees, brush, or perennial shrubs or flowers within the area described for this 
easement, which would interfere with the use of said easement, for the purposes stated herein. 

THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees with the Grantee that should any part of the right-ofway 
and easement hereby granted shall become pa11 of, or lie within the boundaries of any 

Water Main Easement 
Version 01/01/2020 

ESMT-2022-0119 Topgolf

5th April

Page 175

Item #14.



Page 176

Item #14.



4-5-2022

4-5-2022

4-5-2022

Page 177

Item #14.



Page 178

Item #14.



Page 179

Item #14.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Final Plat for Graycliff Estates Subdivision No. 2 (FP-2022-0005) by KB Home, 

Located at 684 W. Harris St.

Page 180

Item #15.



 

 

 

MEMO TO CITY COUNCIL 
 

Staff Contact: Sonya Allen Meeting Date: March 8, 2022 

Topic: Final Plat for Graycliff Estates Subdivision No. 2 (FP-2022-0005) by KB Home, 
Located at 684 W. Harris St. 

 

Request: 

Final Plat consisting of 54 building lots and 6 common lots on 13.26 acres of land in the R-8 zoning 
district. 

Information Resources: 

Click Here for Application Materials 

 

Page 181

Item #15.

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/Browse.aspx?id=253494&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity


 

  
 

 
 

 
Page 1 

 
  

HEARING 

DATE: 
4/5/2022 

 

 

TO: Mayor & City Council 

FROM: Sonya Allen, Associate Planner 

208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: FP-2022-0005 

Graycliff Estates No. 2 

LOCATION: 684 W. Harris St., in the SE ¼ of Section 

25, Township 3N., Range 1W. 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Final plat consisting of 54 buildable lots and 6 common lots on 13.26 acres of land in the R-8 zoning 

district for the second phase of Graycliff Estates Subdivision. 

II. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant: 

Sabrina Durtschi, KB Home – 1414 Bannock, Boise, ID 83702 

B. Owner: 

Thomas Coleman, KB Home – 1414 Bannock, Boise, ID 83702 

C. Representative: 

Same as Applicant 

III. STAFF ANALYSIS 

Staff has reviewed the proposed final plat for substantial compliance with the approved preliminary 

plat (H-2019-0129) in accord with the requirements listed in UDC 11-6B-3C.2.  

In order for the proposed final plat to be deemed in substantial compliance with the approved 

preliminary plat as set forth in UDC 11-6B-3C.2, the number of buildable lots cannot increase and the 

amount of common area cannot decrease. There is no change to the number of buildable lots or 

common open space, therefore, Staff deems the proposed final plat to be in substantial compliance 

with the approved preliminary plat as required.  

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Page 182

Item #15.



IV. DECISION 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed final plat with the conditions noted in Section VI of this 

report. 

V. EXHIBITS  

A. Preliminary Plat (dated: 1/31/2020) 

 

  

Page 183

Item #15.



 
 

  
 

 

 
Page 3 

 
  

B. Final Plat (dated: 1/6/22) 

 

   

Page 184

Item #15.



C. Landscape Plan (dated: 05/21/2020) & Site Amenity Details 

 

 

 

Page 185

Item #15.



 
 

  
 

 

 
Page 5 

 
  

 

 

Page 186

Item #15.



D. Common Driveway Exhibits 

 

Page 187

Item #15.



 
 

  
 

 

 
Page 7 

 
  

 

  

Page 188

Item #15.



VI. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

A. Planning Division 

Site Specific Conditions: 

1. Applicant shall meet all terms of the approved annexation (Development Agreement - Inst. 

#2015-112095, 1st Addendum Inst. #2019-086664, and 2nd Addendum Inst. #2020-066784) and 

preliminary plat (H-2019-0129) applications approved for this site. 

2. The applicant shall obtain the City Engineer’s signature on the subject final plat within two years 

of the City Engineer’s signature on the previous phase final plat (on or before December 23, 

2023); or apply for a time extension, in accord with UDC 11-6B-7.  

3. Prior to submittal for the City Engineer’s signature, have the Certificate of Owners and the 

accompanying acknowledgement signed and notarized. 

4. The final plat prepared by Land Solutions, stamped by Clinton W. Hansen, dated: 1/6/2022, 

included in Section V.B shall be revised as follows: 

a. Note #8: “. . . Lot 1, Block 27 is reserved for a City of Meridian well lot. Lot 2, Block 27 is 

reserved for a City of Meridian Park, unless the City Council determines a public park is not 

preferred in this development. . .” 

b. Graphically depict the ACHD storm water drainage easements referenced in Note # 9.  

c. Note #12: Include the recorded instrument number for the CC&R’s. 

d. Add note: “The bottom of structural footing shall be set a minimum of 12-inches above the 

highest established normal ground water elevation.” 

e. Include the recorded instrument number for the ACHD permanent easement line noted in the 

Legend. 

f. Include the recorded instrument number for the existing ACHD permanent easement 

graphically depicted on the plat. 

g. Depict the public pedestrian easement for the multi-use pathway across Lot 2, Block 7 and 

include the recorded instrument number for the easement.  

A copy of the revised plat shall be submitted with the final plat for City Engineer signature. 

5. The landscape plan prepared by Kimley Horn, dated 01/14/2022, included in Section V.C, shall 

be revised as follows: 

a. The street buffer along S. Oakbriar Way shall include shrubs and other vegetative 

groundcover; and trees shall be depicted within the buffer south of W. Learmont St. outside 

of the Sundell lateral easement as set forth in UDC 11-3B-7C.3 and as depicted on the 

preliminary plat landscape plan. Revise the Landscape Requirements table accordingly. 

b. Depict shrubs and other vegetative groundcover along all pathways as set forth in UDC 11-

3B-12C.2. 

c. Include the total linear footage of parkways (minus 26’ for each driveway) and the required 

vs. provided number of trees in the Landscape Requirements table. In areas where there is an 

ACHD storm water drainage easement that prohibits trees, the required trees shall be placed 

elsewhere on the site.  

d. Depict landscaping within Lot 2, Block 7 in accord with the standards listed in UDC 11-3G-

3E; and a 10-foot wide multi-use pathway with landscaping along the pathway in accord with 

the standards listed in UDC 11-3B-12C. Note: The improvements in this lot are not required 

Page 189

Item #15.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances/370371?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTGCOOPSPSIAMRE_11-3G-3ST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances/370371?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTGCOOPSPSIAMRE_11-3G-3ST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-12PALA


 
 

  
 

 

 
Page 9 

 
  

to be installed until the larger park area develops. If the City Council determines a public 

park is not preferred in this development, the area shall be developed as private open space 

for the development. 

A copy of the revised landscape plan shall be submitted with the final plat for City Engineer 

signature. 

Note: Alternative Compliance to UDC 11-3B-12C for the landscaping (i.e. trees) required 

adjacent to the multi-use pathway and to UDC 11-3G-3E.2 for the landscaping (i.e. trees) 

required within common open space within the Williams pipeline easement on Lot 2, Block 7 was 

previously approved with H-2018-0054. A total of 35 additional trees were required to be 

provided within the development (or within another City park as determined appropriate by the 

Planning Division and Park’s Department) based on the calculations provided. 

6. All development within the Williams Northwest Pipeline easement must adhere to the most 

current standards in the Williams Gas Pipeline Developers’ Handbook. 

7. Future development shall be consistent with the minimum dimensional standards listed in UDC 

Table 11-2A-6 for the R-8 zoning district. 

8. Future homes within the development shall be generally consistent with the building elevations 

referenced in the Development Agreement (Inst. #2020-066784). 

9. The rear and/or side elevations of 2-story homes abutting the collector streets (W. Harris St. and 

S. Oakbriar Way) on Lots 14-15, Block 1 and Lots 21-32, Block 5, shall incorporate articulation 

through changes in two or more of the following: modulation (e.g. projections, recesses, step-

backs, pop-outs), bays, banding, porches, balconies, material types, or other integrated 

architectural elements to break up monotonous wall planes and roof lines that are visible from the 

public street. Single-story structures are exempt from this requirement. 

10. Common driveways shall be paved with a surface with the capability of supporting fire vehicles 

and equipment in accord with UDC 11-6C-3D.4. 

11. A perpetual ingress/egress easement shall be filed with the Ada County Recorder for the common 

driveways, which shall include a requirement for maintenance of a paved surface capable of 

supporting fire vehicles and equipment as set forth in UDC 11-6C-3D.8; a copy of said easement 

shall be submitted to the Planning Division prior to signature on the final plat by the City 

Engineer. 

12. Homes on Lots 11-13 and 21-23, Block 5 shall comply with the setbacks depicted on the common 

driveway exhibits in Section V.D. 

13. The well lot (i.e. Lot 1, Block 7) shall be conveyed to the City of Meridian by deed after the plat 

is recorded, prior to issuance of the first Certificate of Occupancy within the development.  

14. The City park lot (i.e. Lot 2, Block 7) shall be conveyed to the City of Meridian by deed at such 

time as the larger park area is also conveyed to the City that lies in the adjacent Brundage Estates 

and Biltmore Estates subdivisions. If determined by the City Council that a public park is not 

preferred in this development, this lot shall be improved as private open space for the 

development. In the interim, this lot shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association and 

kept free of weeds. 

15. A surety valid for a period of three (3) years shall be submitted to the City for the 10’ wide multi-

use pathway, landscaping and irrigation improvements on Lot 2, Block 7, the future City park lot, 

prior to signature on the final plat by the City Engineer; the surety may be required to be extended 

if the remainder of the land designated for a City Park isn’t ready to develop at that time. If the 

City Council determines a City park is not preferred in this development during the 

Page 190

Item #15.

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/index.php?book_id=306&chapter_id=20919#s1165279
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/index.php?book_id=306&chapter_id=20919#s1165279
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=189678&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity&searchid=c0dcb6de-f776-4639-86c8-2edbe52ff778


aforementioned time period (or the extended time period, as applicable), the surety will be 

released and the lot shall be improved as private open space for the development; or, if ownership 

of the lot is transferred to the developer of the adjacent parcels for improvement as a City Park 

and that developer agrees to improve the lot as part of the future City Park, the surety will be 

released. Landscaping/irrigation shall not be installed on this lot until the larger 11+/- acre park 

area is ready to be developed that is also part of Biltmore Estates and Brundage Estates 

subdivisions. 

16. Prior to signature of the final plat by the City Engineer, the applicant shall provide a letter from 

the United States Postal Service stating that the applicant has received approval for the location of 

mailboxes. Contact the Meridian Postmaster, Sue Prescott, at 208-887-1620 or 

Susan.L.Prescott@usps.gov for more information. 

17. All fencing shall comply with the standards of UDC 11-3A-7C.  

18. Staff’s failure to cite specific ordinance provisions or conditions from the preliminary plat and/or 

development agreement does not relieve the Applicant of responsibility for compliance. 

B. Public Works   

 Site Specific Conditions: 

1. Water valve spacing shall not exceed 800 feet. 

2. Water blowoffs should be installed per City standard drawing W13.  

3. Manholes shall be placed in the roadway whenever possible. Manhole SSMH B3 and SSMH B2 

are currently located in the sidewalk and common driveway and must be moved to the roadway. 

4. Separation between infiltration trench and sewer main is 10 foot minimum.  

5. The streetlight plan has not been approved. The streetlights will need to be installed and operational, 

with approved record drawing, before any form of occupancy.  

6. No geotechnical report was provided with this application. A geotechnical report will be required 

to be submitted and reviewed prior to signature of the final plat.  

 General Conditions: 

7. Sanitary sewer service to this development is available via extension of existing mains adjacent to 

the development. The applicant shall install mains to and through this subdivision; applicant shall 

coordinate main size and routing with the Public Works Department, and execute standard forms of 

easements for any mains that are required to provide service.  Minimum cover over sewer mains is 

three feet, if cover from top of pipe to sub-grade is less than three feet than alternate materials shall 

be used in conformance of City of Meridian Public Works Departments Standard Specifications.   

8. Water service to this site is available via extension of existing mains adjacent to the development. 

The applicant shall be responsible to install water mains to and through this development, coordinate 

main size and routing with Public Works. 

9. All improvements related to public life, safety and health shall be completed prior to occupancy of 

the structures. Where approved by the City Engineer, an owner may post a performance surety for 

such improvements in order to obtain City Engineer signature on the final plat as set forth in UDC 

11-5C-3B. 

10. Upon installation of the landscaping and prior to inspection by Planning Department staff, the 

applicant shall provide a written certificate of completion as set forth in UDC 11-3B-14A. 

11. A letter of credit or cash surety in the amount of 110% will be required for all incomplete fencing, 

landscaping, amenities, pressurized irrigation, prior to signature on the final plat. 

Page 191

Item #15.

mailto:Susan.L.Prescott@usps.gov


 
 

  
 

 

 
Page 11 

 
  

12. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post with the City a performance surety in the amount 

of 125% of the total construction cost for all incomplete sewer, water infrastructure prior to final 

plat signature. This surety will be verified by a line item cost estimate provided by the owner to the 

City.  The applicant shall be required to enter into a Development Surety Agreement with the City 

of Meridian. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit or 

bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be found on the Community 

Development Department website.  Please contact Land Development Service for more 

information at 887-2211. 

13. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a warranty surety in the amount of 

20% of the total construction cost for all completed sewer, and water infrastructure for a duration 

of two years. This surety amount will be verified by a line item final cost invoicing provided by the 

owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash 

deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be found on the 

Community Development Department website.  Please contact Land Development Service for 

more information at 887-2211. 

14. In the event that an applicant and/or owner cannot complete non-life, non-safety and non-health 

improvements, prior to City Engineer signature on the final plat and/or prior to occupancy, a surety 

agreement may be approved as set forth in UDC 11-5C-3C. 

15. Applicant shall be required to pay Public Works development plan review, and construction 

inspection fees, as determined during the plan review process, prior to the issuance of a plan 

approval letter. 

16. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all development features comply with 

the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act. 

17. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with any Section 404 Permitting that 

may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers. 

18. Developer shall coordinate mailbox locations with the Meridian Post Office. 

19. All grading of the site shall be performed in conformance with MCC 11-1-4B. 

20. Compaction test results shall be submitted to the Meridian Building Department for all building 

pads receiving engineered backfill, where footing would sit atop fill material. 

21. The engineer shall be required to certify that the street centerline elevations are set a minimum of 

3-feet above the highest established peak groundwater elevation.  This is to ensure that the bottom 

elevation of the crawl spaces of homes is at least 1-foot above. 

22. The applicants design engineer shall be responsible for inspection of all irrigation and/or    drainage 

facility within this project that do not fall under the jurisdiction of an irrigation district or ACHD. 

The design engineer shall provide certification that the facilities have been installed in accordance 

with the approved design plans. This certification will be required before a certificate of occupancy 

is issued for any structures within the project.  

23. At the completion of the project, the applicant shall be responsible to submit record drawings per 

the City of Meridian AutoCAD standards.  These record drawings must be received and approved 

prior to the issuance of a certification of occupancy for any structures within the project.  

24. Street light plan requirements are listed in section 6-7 of the Improvement Standards for Street 

Lighting (http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272).  All street lights shall be 

installed at developer’s expense.  Final design shall be submitted as part of the development plan 

set for approval, which must include the location of any existing street lights.  The contractor’s 

work and materials shall conform to the ISPWC and the City of Meridian Supplemental 

Page 192

Item #15.



Specifications to the ISPWC. Contact the City of Meridian Transportation and Utility Coordinator 

at 898-5500 for information on the locations of existing street lighting. 

25. The applicant shall provide easement(s) for all public water/sewer mains outside of public right of 

way (include all water services and hydrants).  The easement widths shall be 20-feet wide for a 

single utility, or 30-feet wide for two.  The easements shall not be dedicated via the plat, but rather 

dedicated outside the plat process using the City of Meridian’s standard forms. The easement shall 

be graphically depicted on the plat for reference purposes. Submit an executed easement (on the 

form available from Public Works), a legal description prepared by an Idaho Licensed Professional 

Land Surveyor, which must include the area of the easement (marked EXHIBIT A) and an 81/2” x 

11” map with bearings and distances (marked EXHIBIT B) for review. Both exhibits must be 

sealed, signed and dated by a Professional Land Surveyor. DO NOT RECORD.  Add a note to the 

plat referencing this document.  All easements must be submitted, reviewed, and approved prior to 

signature of the final plat by the City Engineer. 

26. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with and NPDES permitting that 

may be required by the Environmental Protection Agency. 

27. Any wells that will not continue to be used must be properly abandoned according to Idaho Well 

Construction Standards Rules administered by the Idaho Department of Water Resources.  The 

Developer’s Engineer shall provide a statement addressing whether there are any existing wells in 

the development, and if so, how they will continue to be used, or provide record of their 

abandonment.   

28. Any existing septic systems within this project shall be removed from service per City Ordinance 

Section 9-1-4 and 9 4 8. Contact the Central District Health Department for abandonment 

procedures and inspections. 

29. The City of Meridian requires that pressurized irrigation systems be supplied by a year-round 

source of water (MCC 9-1-28.C.1). The applicant should be required to use any existing surface or 

well water for the primary source.  If a surface or well source is not available, a single-point 

connection to the culinary water system shall be required. If a single-point connection is utilized, 

the developer will be responsible for the payment of assessments for the common areas prior to 

development plan approval. 

30. All irrigation ditches, canals, laterals, or drains, exclusive of natural waterways, intersecting, 

crossing or laying adjacent and contiguous to the area being subdivided shall be addressed per UDC 

11-3A-6.  In performing such work, the applicant shall comply with Idaho Code 42-1207 and any 

other applicable law or regulation. 

 

Page 193

Item #15.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Final Plat for Skybreak No. 1 (FP-2021-0058) by DevCo, LLC, Located at 3487 E. 

Adler Hoff Ln. and 7020 S. Eagle Rd.

Page 194

Item #16.



 

 

 

MEMO TO CITY COUNCIL 
 

Staff Contact: Alan Tiefenbach Meeting Date: April 5, 2022 

Topic: Final Plat for Skybreak No. 1 (FP-2021-0058) by DevCo, LLC, Located at 3487 E. 
Adler Hoff Ln. and 7020 S. Eagle Rd. 

 

Request: 

Final plat consisting of 84 buildable lots and 21 common lots (including a private road) on 35.67 
acres of land in the R-8 and R-15 zoning districts.  

Information Resources: 

Click Here for Application Materials 

 

Page 195

Item #16.

https://bit.ly/FP-2021-0058


 
 

 Page 1  
  

HEARING 
DATE: 

4/5/2022 

 

TO: Mayor & City Council 

FROM: Alan Tiefenbach, Associate Planner 
208-489-0573 

SUBJECT: FP-2021-0058 
Skybreak No. 1 

LOCATION: 7020 S. Eagle Rd. & 3487 E. Adler Hof 
Ln., in the south ½ of the NW ¼ of 
Section 4, T.2N., R.1E. (Parcels # 
S1404244250 & S1404233650) 
 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Final plat consisting of 84 lots and 21 common lots on 35.67 acres of land in the R-8 and R-15 zoning 
districts.  

II.  APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant: 

Conger Group – 4824 W. Fairview Ave., Boise, ID 83706 

 B. Owners: 

C4 Land LLC – 7020 S. Eagle Rd, Meridian, ID 83642 

Peter and Dana Eisenman – 3487 E. Adler Hof Ln., Meridian, ID 83642 

III. STAFF ANALYSIS 

In 2020, the property received approval of an annexation, zoning to R-8 and R-15, and a preliminary 
plat to construct 316 single family lots on 80.46 acres of land (H-2020-0127, Instr. # 2021-119175). 
This included approval for private streets. 

A condition of approval of the development agreement required the applicant to submit a wildland 
safety plan for the hillside area to be approved by the Meridian Fire Department with the first final 
plat. The applicant did submit this plan and it was deemed to be satisfactory by Meridian Fire.  

Another condition of approval of the development agreement required an increased rear setback (as 
shown in applicant' s narrative as a “no-build area” dated June 14, 2021) for Lot 74, Block 5, abutting 

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Page 196

Item #16.



 

 Page 2  
  

Vantage Pointe (now Lot 36, Block 3). This no build area is not indicated on the final plat. Staff has 
added this as a condition of approval.  

At time of annexation and preliminary plat the applicant received the following from the City Council 
that would apply to this phase: 

1. Alternative compliance from UDC 11- 3F4 that limits gated developments to 50 lots, to allow 106 
gated lots. 

2. Alternative compliance from UDC 11- 3F- 4 prohibiting common driveways off private streets, to 
allow 3 common driveways. 

3. Alternative compliance from UDC 11- 3B- 12 and UDC 11- 3G- 3 requiring minimum 
landscaping along pathways and within common open space to allow the area surrounding the 
pathway in Lot 46 of Block 5 to remain in a natural state. 

4. A wavier from UDC 11- 6C- 3 limiting block face to no more than seven hundred fifty (750) feet 
in length without an intersecting street or alley to allow Block 3, along the southern boundary of 
the property, to be approximately 1,190 feet in length. 

Staff notes although the applicant did receive alternative compliance from UDC 11-3B-12 and UDC 
11-3G-3 to allow the area surrounding the pathway along Lot 46, Block 5 to remain in a natural state 
(now indicated as Lot 19, Block 3), this was intended for the area surrounding the natural pathway 
shown bisecting Lot 19, Block 3 from north to south. This did not extend to the paved golf cart 
pathway shown in both Lot 18 and 19, Block 3, as the approved preliminary plat landscape plan does 
show trees along this pathway. Also, the approved preliminary plat and landscape plan indicates 
sidewalk extending south along Lot 46, Block 3 to the Vantage Pointe subdivision, whereas this is 
absent on the final plat. Finally, the common drive exhibit indicates a 5 ft. wide landscape strip 
adjacent to the solid fence as required per UDC11-6C-3C, but this landscape strip is not shown on the 
landscape plan.  

Staff has reviewed the proposed final plat for substantial compliance with the approved preliminary 
plat in accord with the requirements listed in UDC 11-6B-3C.2. Because the final plat does not 
increase the number of building lots and/or decrease the amount of qualified open space as shown on 
the approved preliminary plat, with the exceptions listed above, Staff finds the proposed final plat is 
in substantial compliance with the approved preliminary plat as required.  

IV. DECISION 
 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed final plat within the conditions noted in Section VI of this 
report.  

 
  

Page 197

Item #16.



 

 Page 3  
  

V. EXHIBITS 

A. Preliminary Plat red-marked to show area of Phase One (date: 6/16/2021) 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 198

Item #16.



 

 Page 4  
  

B. Final Plat (date: 11/19/2021) 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

C.  Graphic on narrative included with DA indicating area of no-build (date: 6/14/2021) 

 

 

 

  

“No build” required at the southeast 
portion of this lot. 

Page 199

Item #16.



 

 Page 5  
  

C. Landscape Plan (date: 11/17/2021) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 200

Item #16.



 

 Page 6  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 201

Item #16.



 

 Page 7  
  

  

Same area from approved landscape plan 

Page 202

Item #16.



 

 Page 8  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 203

Item #16.



 

 Page 9  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Approved landscape plan 
showing sidewalk 

 

Approved landscape plan shows 
sidewalk continuing south here 

 

Page 204

Item #16.



 

 Page 10  
  

 

 

D. Approved Landscape Plan (date: 6/16/2021) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 205

Item #16.



 

 Page 11  
  

E. Common Drive Exhibit (date: 11/22/2021) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

F. Common Drive Exhibits 

 

 

  

This landscape strip is not shown 
on the proposed landscape plan 

 

Page 206

Item #16.



 

 Page 12  
  

VI. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

A. PLANNING DIVISION 

1. Applicant shall meet all terms of the approved annexation and preliminary plat applications 
(Development Agreement - Inst. #2021-119175, AZ, PP H-2020-0127) approved for this site. 

2. The applicant shall construct the street buffers and pathway along S. Eagle Rd. with the first 
phase of development. 

3. The existing residence at 3487 E. Adler Hof Ln. (Lot 23, Block 3) will be required to 
abandon the well and septic system and connect to City water and sewer prior to the first 
building permit. 

4. Per UDC 11-3F-3, the applicant or owner shall provide documentation of a binding contract 
that establishes the party or parties responsible for the repair and maintenance of the private 
street, including regulations for the funding thereof. 

5. Prior to City Engineer signature on the final plat, the final plat prepared by Civil Site Works, 
stamped by Corinne Graham, dated: 11/12/21, included in Section V.B shall be revised as 
follows: 

a. A 15 ft. side yard setback and no build area (as shown in Exhibit V.B) shall be 
indicated on the plat for Lot 36, Block 3, abutting Vantage Pointe. 

b. A 30 ft. rear yard setback (as shown in Exhibit V.B) shall be indicated on the plat 
along Lots 36-45, Block 3.  

c. Plat Note No. 5 – add instrument number. 

d. Plat Note No. 14 – add instrument number. 

6. Prior to City Engineer signature on the final plat, the landscape plan, prepared by Jensen 
Belts Associates on 11/17/21 included in Section V.B shall be revised as follows: 

a. Sidewalk meeting the requirements of UDC 11-3A-17 shall be added within Lot 46, 
Block 3 as shown on the approved preliminary plat landscape plan.  

b. Trees meeting the requirements of UDC 11-3B-12 shall be provided along the golf 
cart path in Lots 18 and 19, Block 3 shown on the approved preliminary plat 
landscape plan. 

c. A landscape strip meeting the requirements of 11-6C-3D shall be provided on the 
south side of the common drive in Lot 10, Block 3.  

d. The landscape plan shall indicate any existing trees on the subject property that are 
four-inch caliper or greater; or mitigate for the loss of such trees as set forth in UDC 
11-3B-10C. 

7. Pathways and adjoining fencings and landscaping shall be constructed consistent with the 
standards as set forth in UDC 11-3A-7A7, 11-3A-8 and 11-3B-12C. 

8. The development shall comply with all subdivision design and improvement standards as set 
forth in UDC 11-6C-3, including but not limited to driveways, easements, blocks, street 
buffers, and mailbox placement. 

9. Developer shall comply with all ACHD conditions of approval. 

10. The plat shall comply with the provisions for irrigation ditches, laterals, canals and/or 
drainage courses, as set forth in UDC 11-3A-6. 

Page 207

Item #16.



 

 Page 13  
  

11. Prior to signature of the final plat by the City Engineer, the applicant shall provide a letter 
from the United States Postal Service stating that the applicant has received approval for the 
location of mailboxes. Contact the Meridian Postmaster, Sue Prescott, at 887-1620 for more 
information. 

12. The applicant shall obtain the City Engineer’s signature on the subject final plat by July 20, 
2023, within two years of the City Council’s approval of the preliminary plat; or apply for a 
time extension, in accord with UDC 11-6B-7. 

13. Staff’s failure to cite specific ordinance provisions does not relieve the applicant of 
responsibility for compliance. 

B. PUBLIC WORKS 

SITE SPECIFIC CONDITIONS: 

1. Applicant may consider adding a valve cluster at any location along the water main that will be 
connected to a future phase because hot tap water connections will not be allowed.  

2. Ensure that future sewer connections into manholes are installed at a minimum 90 degrees.  

3. The City does not want manholes in sidewalks because they can be a tripping hazard. Sanitary 
Sewer Manhole A-3 and A-11 are currently shown in the sidewalk and will need to be moved into 
the right of way. This may require reconfiguration of the water line and additional manholes.  

4. A 30-foot Type 1 streetlight with an 8 foot mast arm is needed 220 feet south of the southernmost 
existing streetlight on South Eagle Road on your plans.  

5. Call out the LED fixtures that will be used for both types of streetlights.  

GENERAL CONDITIONS: 

1. Sanitary sewer service to this development is available via extension of existing mains adjacent to 
the development. The applicant shall install mains to and through this subdivision; applicant shall 
coordinate main size and routing with the Public Works Department, and execute standard forms 
of easements for any mains that are required to provide service.  Minimum cover over sewer mains 
is three feet, if cover from top of pipe to sub-grade is less than three feet than alternate materials 
shall be used in conformance of City of Meridian Public Works Departments Standard 
Specifications.   

2. Water service to this site is available via extension of existing mains adjacent to the development. 
The applicant shall be responsible to install water mains to and through this development, 
coordinate main size and routing with Public Works. 

3. All improvements related to public life, safety and health shall be completed prior to occupancy of 
the structures. Where approved by the City Engineer, an owner may post a performance surety for 
such improvements in order to obtain City Engineer signature on the final plat as set forth in UDC 
11-5C-3B. 

4. Upon installation of the landscaping and prior to inspection by Planning Department staff, the 
applicant shall provide a written certificate of completion as set forth in UDC 11-3B-14A. 

5. A letter of credit or cash surety in the amount of 110% will be required for all incomplete fencing, 
landscaping, amenities, pressurized irrigation, prior to signature on the final plat. 

6. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post with the City a performance surety in the amount 
of 125% of the total construction cost for all incomplete sewer, water infrastructure prior to final 
plat signature. This surety will be verified by a line item cost estimate provided by the owner to the 
City.  The applicant shall be required to enter into a Development Surety Agreement with the City 

Page 208

Item #16.



 

 Page 14  
  

of Meridian. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit or 
bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be found on the Community 
Development Department website.  Please contact Land Development Service for more 
information at 887-2211. 

7. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a warranty surety in the amount of 
20% of the total construction cost for all completed sewer, and water infrastructure for a duration 
of two years. This surety amount will be verified by a line item final cost invoicing provided by the 
owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash 
deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be found on the 
Community Development Department website.  Please contact Land Development Service for 
more information at 887-2211. 

8. In the event that an applicant and/or owner cannot complete non-life, non-safety and non-health 
improvements, prior to City Engineer signature on the final plat and/or prior to occupancy, a surety 
agreement may be approved as set forth in UDC 11-5C-3C. 

9. Applicant shall be required to pay Public Works development plan review, and construction 
inspection fees, as determined during the plan review process, prior to the issuance of a plan 
approval letter. 

10. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all development features comply with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act. 

11. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with any Section 404 Permitting that 
may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers. 

12. Developer shall coordinate mailbox locations with the Meridian Post Office. 

13. All grading of the site shall be performed in conformance with MCC 11-1-4B. 

14. Compaction test results shall be submitted to the Meridian Building Department for all building 
pads receiving engineered backfill, where footing would sit atop fill material. 

15. The engineer shall be required to certify that the street centerline elevations are set a minimum of 
3-feet above the highest established peak groundwater elevation.  This is to ensure that the bottom 
elevation of the crawl spaces of homes is at least 1-foot above. 

16. The applicants design engineer shall be responsible for inspection of all irrigation and/or    drainage 
facility within this project that do not fall under the jurisdiction of an irrigation district or ACHD. 
The design engineer shall provide certification that the facilities have been installed in accordance 
with the approved design plans. This certification will be required before a certificate of occupancy 
is issued for any structures within the project.  

17. At the completion of the project, the applicant shall be responsible to submit record drawings per 
the City of Meridian AutoCAD standards.  These record drawings must be received and approved 
prior to the issuance of a certification of occupancy for any structures within the project.  

18. Street light plan requirements are listed in section 6-7 of the Improvement Standards for Street 
Lighting (http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272).  All street lights shall be 
installed at developer’s expense.  Final design shall be submitted as part of the development plan 
set for approval, which must include the location of any existing street lights.  The contractor’s 
work and materials shall conform to the ISPWC and the City of Meridian Supplemental 
Specifications to the ISPWC. Contact the City of Meridian Transportation and Utility Coordinator 
at 898-5500 for information on the locations of existing street lighting. 

19. The applicant shall provide easement(s) for all public water/sewer mains outside of public right of 

Page 209

Item #16.



 

 Page 15  
  

way (include all water services and hydrants).  The easement widths shall be 20-feet wide for a 
single utility, or 30-feet wide for two.  The easements shall not be dedicated via the plat, but rather 
dedicated outside the plat process using the City of Meridian’s standard forms. The easement shall 
be graphically depicted on the plat for reference purposes. Submit an executed easement (on the 
form available from Public Works), a legal description prepared by an Idaho Licensed Professional 
Land Surveyor, which must include the area of the easement (marked EXHIBIT A) and an 81/2” x 
11” map with bearings and distances (marked EXHIBIT B) for review. Both exhibits must be 
sealed, signed and dated by a Professional Land Surveyor. DO NOT RECORD.  Add a note to the 
plat referencing this document.  All easements must be submitted, reviewed, and approved prior to 
signature of the final plat by the City Engineer. 

20. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with and NPDES permitting that 
may be required by the Environmental Protection Agency. 

21. Any wells that will not continue to be used must be properly abandoned according to Idaho Well 
Construction Standards Rules administered by the Idaho Department of Water Resources.  The 
Developer’s Engineer shall provide a statement addressing whether there are any existing wells in 
the development, and if so, how they will continue to be used, or provide record of their 
abandonment.   

22. Any existing septic systems within this project shall be removed from service per City Ordinance 
Section 9-1-4 and 9 4 8. Contact the Central District Health Department for abandonment 
procedures and inspections. 

23. The City of Meridian requires that pressurized irrigation systems be supplied by a year-round 
source of water (MCC 9-1-28.C.1). The applicant should be required to use any existing surface or 
well water for the primary source.  If a surface or well source is not available, a single-point 
connection to the culinary water system shall be required. If a single-point connection is utilized, 
the developer will be responsible for the payment of assessments for the common areas prior to 
development plan approval. 

24. All irrigation ditches, canals, laterals, or drains, exclusive of natural waterways, intersecting, 
crossing or laying adjacent and contiguous to the area being subdivided shall be addressed per UDC 
11-3A-6.  In performing such work, the applicant shall comply with Idaho Code 42-1207 and any 
other applicable law or regulation. 
 

 

Page 210

Item #16.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Final Order for TM Center No. 1 (FP-2022-0009) by Brighton Development, 
Inc., Generally Located on the East Side of S. Ten Mile Rd. Between S. Vanguard Way and W. 
Cobalt Dr.

Page 211

Item #17.



 

 

ORDER OF CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT  

FOR TM CENTER NO. 1 FP-2022-0009 

Page 1 of 3 

 BEFORE THE MERIDIAN CITY COUNCIL  

 

 

HEARING DATE: MARCH 22, 2022 

ORDER APPROVAL DATE: APRIL 5, 2022 

 

 

IN THE MATTER OF THE 

REQUEST FOR FINAL PLAT 

CONSISTING OF 7 BUILDING 

LOTS ON 7.44 ACRES OF LAND IN 

THE C-G ZONING DISTRICT FOR 

TM CENTER SUBDIVISION NO. 1. 

 

BY: BRIGHTON DEVELOPMENT, 

INC. 

APPLICANT 

  

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

 

CASE NO. FP-2022-0009 

 

ORDER OF CONDITIONAL 

APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT 

 

 

This matter coming before the City Council on March 22, 2022 for final plat approval 

pursuant to Unified Development Code (UDC) 11-6B-3 and the Council finding that the 

Administrative Review is complete by the Planning and Development Services Divisions of the 

Community Development Department, to the Mayor and Council, and the Council having 

considered the requirements of the preliminary plat, the Council takes the following action: 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

 1. The Final Plat of “PLAT SHOWING TM CENTER SUBDIVISION NO. 1, 

LOCATED IN A PORTION OF THE WEST ½ OF THE NORTHWEST ¼ OF 

SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 3 NORTH, RANGE 1 WEST, B.M., CITY OF 

MERIDIAN, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, 2022, HANDWRITTEN DATE: 

Page 212

Item #17.



 

 

ORDER OF CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT  

FOR TM CENTER NO. 1 FP-2022-0009 

Page 2 of 3 

1/27/2022, by AARON L. BALLARD, PLS, SHEET 1 OF 3,” is conditionally 

approved subject to those conditions of Staff as set forth in the staff report to the 

Mayor and City Council from the Planning and Development Services divisions 

of the Community Development Department dated March 22, 2022, a true and 

correct copy of which is attached hereto marked “Exhibit A” and by this reference 

incorporated herein, and the response letter from Josh Beach, Brighton 

Corporation, a true and correct copy of which is attached  hereto marked “Exhibit 

B” and by this reference incorporated herein.  

 2. The final plat upon which there is contained the certification and signature of the  

City Clerk and the City Engineer verifying that the plat meets the City’s 

requirements shall be signed only at such time as: 

2.1 The plat dimensions are approved by the City Engineer; and 

2.2 The City Engineer has verified that all off-site improvements are 

completed and/or the appropriate letter of credit or cash surety has been 

issued guaranteeing the completion of off-site and required on-site 

improvements. 

 

NOTICE OF FINAL ACTION 

AND RIGHT TO REGULATORY TAKINGS ANALYSIS 

 The Applicant is hereby notified that pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-8003, the Owner may 

request a regulatory taking analysis.  Such request must be in writing, and must be filed with the 

City Clerk not more than twenty-eight (28) days after the final decision concerning the matter at 

Page 213

Item #17.



 

 

ORDER OF CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT  

FOR TM CENTER NO. 1 FP-2022-0009 

Page 3 of 3 

issue.  A request for a regulatory takings analysis will toll the time period within which a Petition 

for Judicial Review may be filed. 

 Please take notice that this is a final action of the governing body of the City of 

Meridian, pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-6521. An affected person being a person who has an 

interest in real property which may be adversely affected by this decision may, within twenty-

eight (28) days after the date of this decision and order, seek a judicial review pursuant to Idaho 

Code§ 67-52. 

            By action of the City Council at its regular meeting held on the _____________ day of 

________________________, 2022. 

       By:  

 

 

              

Robert Simison  

Mayor, City of Meridian 

 

Attest: 

 

 

     

Chris Johnson 

City Clerk 

  

 

Copy served upon the Applicant, Planning and Development Services Divisions of the Community 

Development Department and City Attorney. 

 

By:         Dated:      

 

 

Page 214

Item #17.



 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 

 

 
Page 1 

 
  

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 
DATE: 3/22/2022 

 

TO: City Council 

FROM: Sonya Allen, Associate Planner 

208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: FP-2022-0009 

TM Center No. 1 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 

 Northeast corner of S. Ten Mile Rd. & S. 

Vanguard Way in the NW ¼ of Section 

14, T.3N., R.1W. 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Final plat consisting of 7 building lots on 7.44 acres of land in the C-G zoning district for TM 

Center No. 1. 

Note: The proposed final plat is actually the fourth phase of the TM Center Subdivision preliminary 

plat (H-2020-0074). [TM Creek No. 5 (1st phase FP-2021-0027); TM Crossing No. 5 (2nd phase FP-

2021-0045); TM Frontline (3rd phase FP-2021-0047)] 

II. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant 

Josh Beach, Brighton Development, Inc. – 2929 W. Navigator Dr., Ste. 400, Meridian, ID 83642 

B. Owner: 

Robert Phillips, DWT Investments, LLC – 2929 W. Navigator Dr., Ste. 400, Meridian, ID 83642 

C. Representative: 

Same as Applicant 

III. STAFF ANALYSIS 

Staff has reviewed the proposed final plat for substantial compliance with the preliminary plat (H-

2020-0074) as required by UDC 11-6B-3C.2. The proposed final plat depicts three (3) fewer 

buildable lots than shown on the approved preliminary plat. Therefore, Staff finds the proposed 

final plat is in substantial compliance with the approved preliminary as required by UDC 11-6B-

3C. 

Page 215

Item #17.



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

IV. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed final plat with the conditions of approval in Section 

VII of this report. 

 

V. EXHIBITS  

A. Preliminary Plat (dated: May 29, 2020) 

 

  

Page 216

Item #17.



 

 
Page 3 

 
  

B. Final Plat (dated: 1/27/22) 

 

Page 217

Item #17.



 

 
Page 4 

 
  

 

  

Page 218

Item #17.



 

 
Page 5 

 
  

C. Landscape Plan (dated: 2/17/21) 

 

 

Page 219

Item #17.



 

 
Page 6 

 
  

 

  

Page 220

Item #17.



 

 
Page 7 

 
  

VI. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

A. Planning Division 

Site Specific Conditions: 

1. Applicant shall comply with all previous conditions of approval associated with this 

development [TM Center H-2020-0074, DA Inst. #2021-089157]. 

2. The applicant shall obtain the City Engineer’s signature on the subject final plat within 

two years of the City Engineer’s signature on the previous phase final plat, or apply for a 

time extension, in accord with UDC 11-6B-7.  

3. Prior to submittal for the City Engineer’s signature, have the Certificate of Owners and 

the accompanying acknowledgement signed and notarized. 

4. The final plat prepared by KM Engineering, stamped on 1/27/22 by Aaron L. Ballard, 

included in Exhibit B shall be revised as follows: 

a. Note #13: Include the recorded instrument number of the ACHD license agreement. 

b. References: R4 – Include the recorded book and page numbers of the TM Crossing 

Subdivision No. 5 plat. 

5. The landscape plan prepared by KM Engineering, dated 2/17/22 included in Exhibit C, is 

approved as submitted. 

6. Submit a private street application and obtain approval for S. Innovation Ln. prior to 

submittal of the final plat for City Engineer signature. 

7. The subject property shall be subdivided prior to issuance of any Certificates of Occupancy 

for the site per requirement of the Development Agreement. 

8. Staff’s failure to cite specific ordinance provisions or conditions from the preliminary plat 

and/or development agreement does not relieve the Applicant of responsibility for 

compliance. 

B. Public Works  

Site Specific Conditions: 

1. Sewer on the southern boundary needs to run in South Vanguard Way right-of-way, not in 

the easement.  

2. Ensure no sewer services pass through infiltration trenches. 

3. Water services to properties should be 8-inch diameter main to allow for future connection. 

4. Fire lines, fire hydrants, and water services should be connected outside of right-of-way; 

multiple connection points in right-of-way is not desirable. Installing an 8-inch water main 

on a property boundary line to serve two properties is acceptable. 

5. All dead-end water mains must have a blow-off and two valves at the tee.  

6. A streetlight plan has not been approved. The streetlights will need to be installed and 

operational, with approved record drawings submitted, before any form of occupancy will 

be granted. 

7. Streetlights are required on the South Ten Mile Road frontage.  

 

Page 221

Item #17.



 

 
Page 8 

 
  

General Conditions: 

1. Sanitary sewer service to this development is available via extension of existing mains 

adjacent to the development. The applicant shall install mains to and through this 

subdivision; applicant shall coordinate main size and routing with the Public Works 

Department, and execute standard forms of easements for any mains that are required to 

provide service.  Minimum cover over sewer mains is three feet, if cover from top of pipe 

to sub-grade is less than three feet than alternate materials shall be used in conformance of 

City of Meridian Public Works Departments Standard Specifications.   

2. Water service to this site is available via extension of existing mains adjacent to the 

development. The applicant shall be responsible to install water mains to and through this 

development, coordinate main size and routing with Public Works. 

3. All improvements related to public life, safety and health shall be completed prior to 

occupancy of the structures. Where approved by the City Engineer, an owner may post a 

performance surety for such improvements in order to obtain City Engineer signature on 

the final plat as set forth in UDC 11-5C-3B. 

4. Upon installation of the landscaping and prior to inspection by Planning Department staff, 

the applicant shall provide a written certificate of completion as set forth in UDC 11-3B-

14A. 

5. A letter of credit or cash surety in the amount of 110% will be required for all incomplete 

fencing, landscaping, amenities, pressurized irrigation, prior to signature on the final plat. 

6. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post with the City a performance surety in 

the amount of 125% of the total construction cost for all incomplete sewer, water 

infrastructure prior to final plat signature. This surety will be verified by a line item cost 

estimate provided by the owner to the City.  The applicant shall be required to enter into a 

Development Surety Agreement with the City of Meridian. The surety can be posted in the 

form of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit or bond. Applicant must file an 

application for surety, which can be found on the Community Development Department 

website.  Please contact Land Development Service for more information at 887-2211. 

7. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a warranty surety in the 

amount of 20% of the total construction cost for all completed sewer, and water 

infrastructure for a duration of two years. This surety amount will be verified by a line item 

final cost invoicing provided by the owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form 

of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application 

for surety, which can be found on the Community Development Department website.  

Please contact Land Development Service for more information at 887-2211. 

8. In the event that an applicant and/or owner cannot complete non-life, non-safety and non-

health improvements, prior to City Engineer signature on the final plat and/or prior to 

occupancy, a surety agreement may be approved as set forth in UDC 11-5C-3C. 

9. Applicant shall be required to pay Public Works development plan review, and 

construction inspection fees, as determined during the plan review process, prior to the 

issuance of a plan approval letter. 

10. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all development features comply 

with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act. 

11. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with any Section 404 

Permitting that may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers. 

Page 222

Item #17.



 

 
Page 9 

 
  

12. Developer shall coordinate mailbox locations with the Meridian Post Office. 

13. All grading of the site shall be performed in conformance with MCC 11-1-4B. 

14. Compaction test results shall be submitted to the Meridian Building Department for all 

building pads receiving engineered backfill, where footing would sit atop fill material. 

15. The engineer shall be required to certify that the street centerline elevations are set a 

minimum of 3-feet above the highest established peak groundwater elevation.  This is to 

ensure that the bottom elevation of the crawl spaces of homes is at least 1-foot above. 

16. The applicants design engineer shall be responsible for inspection of all irrigation and/or    

drainage facility within this project that do not fall under the jurisdiction of an irrigation 

district or ACHD. The design engineer shall provide certification that the facilities have 

been installed in accordance with the approved design plans. This certification will be 

required before a certificate of occupancy is issued for any structures within the project.  

17. At the completion of the project, the applicant shall be responsible to submit record 

drawings per the City of Meridian AutoCAD standards.  These record drawings must be 

received and approved prior to the issuance of a certification of occupancy for any 

structures within the project.  

18. Street light plan requirements are listed in section 6-7 of the Improvement Standards for 

Street Lighting (http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272).  All street 

lights shall be installed at developer’s expense.  Final design shall be submitted as part of 

the development plan set for approval, which must include the location of any existing 

street lights.  The contractor’s work and materials shall conform to the ISPWC and the City 

of Meridian Supplemental Specifications to the ISPWC. Contact the City of Meridian 

Transportation and Utility Coordinator at 898-5500 for information on the locations of 

existing street lighting. 

19. The applicant shall provide easement(s) for all public water/sewer mains outside of public 

right of way (include all water services and hydrants).  The easement widths shall be 20-

feet wide for a single utility, or 30-feet wide for two.  The easements shall not be dedicated 

via the plat, but rather dedicated outside the plat process using the City of Meridian’s 

standard forms. The easement shall be graphically depicted on the plat for reference 

purposes. Submit an executed easement (on the form available from Public Works), a legal 

description prepared by an Idaho Licensed Professional Land Surveyor, which must 

include the area of the easement (marked EXHIBIT A) and an 81/2” x 11” map with 

bearings and distances (marked EXHIBIT B) for review. Both exhibits must be sealed, 

signed and dated by a Professional Land Surveyor. DO NOT RECORD.  Add a note to the 

plat referencing this document.  All easements must be submitted, reviewed, and approved 

prior to signature of the final plat by the City Engineer. 

20. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with and NPDES permitting 

that may be required by the Environmental Protection Agency. 

21. Any wells that will not continue to be used must be properly abandoned according to Idaho 

Well Construction Standards Rules administered by the Idaho Department of Water 

Resources.  The Developer’s Engineer shall provide a statement addressing whether there 

are any existing wells in the development, and if so, how they will continue to be used, or 

provide record of their abandonment.   

22. Any existing septic systems within this project shall be removed from service per City 

Ordinance Section 9-1-4 and 9 4 8. Contact the Central District Health Department for 

abandonment procedures and inspections. 

Page 223

Item #17.



 

 
Page 10 

 
  

23. The City of Meridian requires that pressurized irrigation systems be supplied by a year-

round source of water (MCC 9-1-28.C.1). The applicant should be required to use any 

existing surface or well water for the primary source.  If a surface or well source is not 

available, a single-point connection to the culinary water system shall be required. If a 

single-point connection is utilized, the developer will be responsible for the payment of 

assessments for the common areas prior to development plan approval. 

24. All irrigation ditches, canals, laterals, or drains, exclusive of natural waterways, 

intersecting, crossing or laying adjacent and contiguous to the area being subdivided shall 

be addressed per UDC 11-3A-6.  In performing such work, the applicant shall comply with 

Idaho Code 42-1207 and any other applicable law or regulation. 

 

Page 224

Item #17.



From: Joshua Beach
To: Sonya Allen; Adrienne Weatherly; Charlene Way; Chris Johnson
Cc: Bill Parsons
Subject: RE: TM Center No. 1 FP-2022-0009 Staff Report for March 22nd City Council Meeting
Date: Monday, March 14, 2022 2:19:01 PM
Attachments: image006.png

External Sender - Please use caution with links or attachments.

Sonya, we are in agreement with the condition of approval.

Josh Beach | Assistant Project Manager-Entitlement
BRIGHTON CORPORATION
Brighton – Creating Great Places
2929 W. Navigator Dr., Suite 400, Meridian, ID 83642
Mobile 208.871.3812
brightoncorp.com

From: Sonya Allen <sallen@meridiancity.org> 
Sent: Monday, March 14, 2022 11:55 AM
To: Adrienne Weatherly <aweatherly@meridiancity.org>; Charlene Way <cway@meridiancity.org>;
Chris Johnson <cjohnson@meridiancity.org>
Cc: Bill Parsons <bparsons@meridiancity.org>; Joshua Beach <JBeach@brightoncorp.com>
Subject: TM Center No. 1 FP-2022-0009 Staff Report for March 22nd City Council Meeting

Attached is the staff report for the final plat for TM Center No. 1. This item is scheduled to be on the

consent agenda at the City Council work session on March 22nd. The meeting will be held at City
Hall, 33 E. Broadway Avenue, beginning at 4:30 pm. Please call or e-mail with any questions.

If you are not in agreement with the provisions in the staff report, please submit a written response
to the staff report to the City Clerk’s office (cityclerk@meridiancity.org) and me as soon as possible
and the item will be placed on the regular meeting agenda at a subsequent meeting for discussion.

Thanks,

Sonya Allen | Associate Planner
City of Meridian | Community Development Department | Planning Division
33 E. Broadway Ave., Ste. 102, Meridian, Idaho 83642
Phone: 208-884-5533 | Direct/Fax: 208-489-0578

Built for Business, Designed for Living

All e-mail messages sent to or received by City of Meridian e-mail accounts are subject to the Idaho law, 
in regards to both release and retention, and may be released upon request, unless exempt from disclosure by law.

EXHIBIT B

Page 225

Item #17.


mailto:JBeach@brightoncorp.com
mailto:sallen@meridiancity.org
mailto:aweatherly@meridiancity.org
mailto:cway@meridiancity.org
mailto:cjohnson@meridiancity.org
mailto:bparsons@meridiancity.org
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/mKFOCqxmGwf0LBXHZ285h?domain=brightonhomes-idaho.com/
mailto:cityclerk@meridiancity.org
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/FlW1CrknJyhVwM2uzdUG7?domain=urldefense.proofpoint.com
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/k4XoCv2rNKfNO1AfzhTGN?domain=urldefense.proofpoint.com
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/zDNuCwpvOMH806ycKqXQQ?domain=urldefense.proofpoint.com
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/dbWPCxkwPOhMm8xuRnQBe?domain=urldefense.proofpoint.com
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/MimWCyPx0QiX6DLSAcuFy?domain=urldefense.proofpoint.com
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/J4Y-CzpyRVHg8D4hBv7Lq?domain=urldefense.proofpoint.com


AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Budget Blinds Subdivision (SHP-2022-
0003) by Stephanie Hopkins of KM Engineering, LLP, Located at 1850 W. Everest Ln., at the 
Southwest Corner of W. Chinden Blvd. and N. Linder Rd.

Page 226

Item #18.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (BUDGET BLINDS SUBDIVISION – FILE# SHP-2022-0003) 
 - 1 - 

          CITY OF MERIDIAN 
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW  

AND DECISION & ORDER 

 

In the Matter of the Request for Short Plat to Create Two (2) Buildable Lots on Approximately 
1.76 Acres in the C-N Zoning District., by KM Engineering. 

Case No(s). SHP-2022-0003 

For the City Council Hearing Date of: March 15, 2022 (Findings on April 5, 2022) 
 
A. Findings of Fact 
 

1. Hearing Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of March 15, 2022, incorporated by 
reference) 

 
2.   Process Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of March 15, 2022, incorporated by 

reference) 
 
3.  Application and Property Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of March 15, 2022, 

incorporated by reference) 
 
4.  Required Findings per the Unified Development Code (see attached Staff Report for the hearing 

date of March 15, 2022, incorporated by reference) 
 

B.  Conclusions of Law 
 

1. The City of Meridian shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use 
Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503). 

 
2. The Meridian City Council takes judicial notice of its Unified Development Code codified as 

Title 11 Meridian City Code, and all current zoning maps thereof. The City of Meridian has, by 
ordinance, established the Impact Area and the Comprehensive Plan of the City of Meridian, 
which was adopted December 17, 2019, Resolution No. 19-2179 and Maps. 

 
3. The conditions shall be reviewable by the City Council pursuant to Meridian City Code § 11-5A. 
 
4. Due consideration has been given to the comment(s) received from the governmental 

subdivisions providing services in the City of Meridian planning jurisdiction. 
 
5. It is found public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose 

expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed. 
 
6. That the City has granted an order of approval in  accordance with this Decision, which shall be 

signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and then a copy served by the Clerk upon the applicant, the 
Community Development Department, the Public Works Department and any affected party 
requesting notice.  

 
7. That this approval is subject to the Conditions of Approval all in the attached Staff Report for the 

hearing date of March 15, 2022, incorporated by reference. The conditions are concluded to be 

Page 227

Item #18.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (BUDGET BLINDS SUBDIVISION – FILE# SHP-2022-0003) 
 - 2 - 

reasonable and the applicant shall meet such requirements as a condition of approval of the 
application. 

 
C.  Decision and Order   

 
Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Meridian City Code § 11-5A and based upon 
the above and foregoing Findings of Fact which are herein adopted, it is hereby ordered that:  

 
1. The applicant’s request for Short Plat is hereby approved per the conditions of approval in the 

Staff Report for the hearing date of March 15, 2022, attached as Exhibit A. 
 

D.  Notice of Applicable Time Limits  
 

Notice of Preliminary Plat Duration 
 

Please take notice that approval of a preliminary plat, combined preliminary and final plat, or 
short plat shall become null and void if the applicant fails to obtain the city engineer’s signature 
on the final plat within two (2) years of the approval of the preliminary plat or the combined 
preliminary and final plat or short plat (UDC 11-6B-7A). 
 
In the event that the development of the preliminary plat is made in successive phases in an 
orderly and reasonable manner, and conforms substantially to the approved preliminary plat, 
such segments, if submitted within successive intervals of two (2) years, may be considered for 
final approval without resubmission for preliminary plat approval (UDC 11-6B-7B).  
 
Upon written request and filed by the applicant prior to the termination of the period in accord 
with 11-6B-7.A, the Director may authorize a single extension of time to obtain the City 
Engineer’s signature on the final plat not to exceed two (2) years. Additional time extensions up 
to two (2) years as determined and approved by the City Council may be granted. With all 
extensions, the Director or City Council may require the preliminary plat, combined 
preliminary and final plat or short plat to comply with the current provisions of Meridian City 
Code Title 11. If the above timetable is not met and the applicant does not receive a time 
extension, the property shall be required to go through the platting procedure again (UDC 11-
6B-7C).  

Notice of Development Agreement Duration 

The city and/or an applicant may request a development agreement or a modification to a 
development agreement consistent with Idaho Code section 67-6511A. The development 
agreement may be initiated by the city or applicant as part of a request for annexation and/or 
rezone at any time prior to the adoption of findings for such request. 

A development agreement may be modified by the city or an affected party of the development 
agreement. Decision on the development agreement modification is made by the city council in 
accord with this chapter. When approved, said development agreement shall be signed by the 
property owner(s) and returned to the city within six (6) months of the city council granting the 
modification. 

A modification to the development agreement may be initiated prior to signature of the 
agreement by all parties and/or may be requested to extend the time allowed for the agreement 
to be signed and returned to the city if filed prior to the end of the six (6) month approval 

Page 228

Item #18.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (BUDGET BLINDS SUBDIVISION – FILE# SHP-2022-0003) 
 - 3 - 

period.  

E.  Judicial Review 

 Pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-6521(1)(d), if this final decision concerns a matter enumerated in Idaho 
Code § 67-6521(1)(a), an affected person aggrieved by this final  decision may, within twenty-eight 
(28) days after all remedies  have been exhausted, including requesting reconsideration of this final 
decision as provided by Meridian City Code § 1-7-10, seek judicial review of this final decision as 
provided by chapter 52, title 67, Idaho Code. This notice is provided as a courtesy;  the City of 
Meridian does not admit by this notice that this decision is subject to judicial review under LLUPA.  

F.  Notice of Right to Regulatory Takings Analysis 

 Pursuant to Idaho Code §§ 67-6521(1)(d) and  67-8003, an owner of private property that is the 
subject of a final decision may submit a written request with the Meridian City Clerk for a regulatory 
takings analysis. 

G. Attached:  Staff Report for the hearing date of March 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 229

Item #18.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (BUDGET BLINDS SUBDIVISION – FILE# SHP-2022-0003) 
 - 4 - 

By action of the City Council at its regular meeting held on the ___________ day of ________________, 
[year]. 

 
COUNCIL PRESIDENT BRAD HOAGLUN   VOTED_______ 

 
 
COUNCIL VICE PRESIDENT JOE BORTON   VOTED_______  

  
 
COUNCIL MEMBER JESSICA PERREAULT   VOTED_______ 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER LUKE CAVENER    VOTED_______ 
 
 

 COUNCIL MEMBER TREG BERNT    VOTED_______ 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER LIZ STRADER    VOTED_______ 

 
MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON     VOTED_______ 
(TIE BREAKER) 
 

 
            
     Mayor Robert Simison 

   

 Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Chris Johnson 
City Clerk 

 

Copy served upon Applicant, Community Development Department, Public Works Department and City 
Attorney. 
 
 

By: __________________________________   Dated: ________________________ 
     City Clerk’s Office 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 230

Item #18.



 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 
 

 Page 1  
  

HEARING 
DATE: 

3/15/2022 

 

TO: Mayor & City Council 

FROM: Alan Tiefenbach, Associate Planner 
208-498-0573 

SUBJECT: SHP-2022-0003  
Budget Blinds Subdivision Short Plat 

LOCATION: 1850 W. Everest Ln 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The Applicant proposes a Short Plat to create two (2) buildable lots on approximately 1.76 acres in 
the C-N zoning district.  

II. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant/ Representative: 

Amanda Wiemiller – KM Engineering – 5725 N. Discovery Wy, Boise, ID 83713 

B. Owner: 

Quent Blodgett – 3230 N. Eagle Rd. STE 150, Meridian, ID 83646 

III. NOTICING 

 City Council 
Posting Date 

Newspaper Notification 02/27/2022 
Radius notification mailed to 
properties within 300 feet 02/28/2022 

  
  
  

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Page 231

Item #18.



 

 Page 2  
  

 

IV. STAFF ANALYSIS 

The subject property was annexed into the City in 2002 and zoned R-4 as part of the 354.38-acre 
Lochsa Falls Subdivision (AZ-02-010, PP 02-009). Per the Lochsa Falls Development Agreement 
(Instr. 103012598) and CUP-02-012, a conditional use permit was required prior to any commercial 
development on the lot. In 2004 it was platted as part of Lochsa Falls Subdivision No 12 (FP-04-054), 
and in 2007 the subject property was rezoned from R-4 to C-N (RZ-06-008). When the property was 
rezoned to C-N, a Conditional Use Permit Modification was also approved to remove the requirement 
for conditional use permit approval (MCU-06-008).  

The Applicant proposes to subdivide the subject property (Lot 41 Block 49 of the Lochsa Falls 
Subdivision 12) into a new plat consisting of 2 lots. The northern lot (Lot 2) will be 42,608 sq. ft. in 
size and is proposed for an 8,100 sq. ft. retail business. The southern 33,916 sq. ft. lot (Lot 1) is 
proposed for a future commercial lot.  

Staff has reviewed the proposed short plat for substantial compliance with the criteria set forth in 
UDC 11-6B-5 and deems the short plat to be in substantial compliance with said requirements. As 
required per UDC 11-2B-3, a 35 ft. wide landscape buffer in a common lot has already been provided 
along W. Chinden Blvd, and there is already a 10 ft. wide residential buffer within a common lot 
provided along the southern property line as required by the development agreement. A landscape 
buffer is not required along the eastern property line as this is adjacent to a private driveway, but a 15 
ft. wide easement for the north slough lateral is provided in this same area. 

Access is shown to be provided by W. Everest Ln, a private road, which parallels the property along 
the south and east property lines, including access to W. Chinden Blvd. However, W. Everest Ln, 
along the eastern boundary of the property, is shown to be within the Knighthill Center Subdivision 
No 1 and 2. The applicant will need to provide proof of cross access to the properties to the east (Lot 
3, Block 1 of the Knighthill Center Subdivision No 1 and Lot 6, Block 1 of the Knighthill Subdivision 
No 2) or configure future site plans for access only from the south. The applicant should be required 
to dedicate cross access easements from Lot 1 to Lot 2 as a condition of approval of this short plat.  

Staff has reviewed the requested short plat proposal and has determined that it meets the criteria for 
approval per UDC 11-6B-5. 

V. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed short plat with the conditions noted in Section VII of 
this report. 

B.  The Meridian City Council heard these items on March 15, 2022. At the public hearing, the 
Council moved to approve the subject short plat request. 
 

 1. Summary of the City Council public hearing: 
  a. In favor: Stephanie Hopkins 
  b. In opposition: None 
  c. Commenting: Stephanie Hopkins 
  d. Written testimony: None 
  e. Staff presenting application: Alan Tiefenbach 
  f. Other Staff commenting on application: None 
 2. Key issue(s) of public testimony: 

Page 232

Item #18.



 

 Page 3  
  

  a. None 
 3. Key issue(s) of discussion by City Council: 
  a. Questions regarding the access to the east, and parking issues along W. Everest Ln.  
 4. City Council change(s): 
  a. None 

  

Page 233

Item #18.



 

 Page 4  
  

VI. EXHIBITS  

A. Existing Lochsa Falls Subdivision No 12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 234

Item #18.



 

 Page 5  
  

B. Proposed Short Plat (date: 1/26/2022) 

 

   

Page 235

Item #18.



 

 Page 6  
  

C.  Proposed Landscape Plan (date: 1/28/2022) 

 

 

Page 236

Item #18.



 

 Page 7  
  

D.   Conceptual Site Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 237

Item #18.



 

 Page 8  
  

VII. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

A. Planning Division 

Site Specific Conditions: 

1. The short plat prepared by Kelly Kehrer of KM Engineering included in Section VI.B shall 
be revised as follows: 

a) Add a note to the plat that specifies the shared access between the two lots or 
graphically depict a cross-access/ingress-egress easement between Lot 1 and Lot 
2 in accord with the provisions of UDC 11-3A-3A2.  

b) Applicant shall provide proof of cross access with the Knighthill Center 
Subdivision No 1 & 2 (at the east) or all access shall occur from the south.  

c) Add a note to the plat that prohibits direct lot access to W. Chinden Blvd. 

2. Applicant shall comply with all previous conditions of approval associated with this 
development (AZ-02-010, DA Inst. 104022054, PP 02-009, CUP 02-012, DA Instr. 
103012598, MCU 06-002, RZ-06-008). 

3. If the City Engineer’s signature has not been obtained within two (2) years of the City 
Council’s approval of the short plat, the short plat shall become null and void unless a time 
extension is obtained, per UDC 11-6B-7. 

4. Development of any lot shall require submission of Certificate of Zoning Compliance and 
Design Review per UDC-11-5B-1 and shall meet all applicable requirements of City of 
Meridian code. 

5. Existing landscape buffer along W. Chinden Blvd shall be protected during all construction 
activities.  

6. A public access easement and sidewalk meeting the requirements of UDC 11-3A-17 shall be 
provided along the south side of Lot 1, Block 1.  

7. Staff’s failure to cite specific ordinance provisions or conditions from the previous approvals 
as noted in condition 3. above, does not relieve the Applicant of responsibility for compliance. 

B. Public Works 

(Common) SITE SPECIFIC CONDITIONS: 

1. Developer is required to enter into a reimbursement agreement for the installation of one 
streetlight that was installed on Chinden Boulevard as part of the widening project. The 
developer is required to sign the reimbursement agreement and pay the installation amount of 
$8,465.00 prior to signature of the plat.  

2. No changes to public works infrastructure was shown with the application, any public works 
changes must be reviewed by public works engineering prior to approval or construction.  

  

Page 238

Item #18.



 

 Page 9  
  

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS: 

1. Sanitary sewer service to this development is available via extension of existing mains adjacent 
to the development. The applicant shall install mains to and through this subdivision; applicant 
shall coordinate main size and routing with the Public Works Department, and execute standard 
forms of easements for any mains that are required to provide service.  Minimum cover over 
sewer mains is three feet, if cover from top of pipe to sub-grade is less than three feet than 
alternate materials shall be used in conformance of City of Meridian Public Works Departments 
Standard Specifications.   

2. Water service to this site is available via extension of existing mains adjacent to the 
development. The applicant shall be responsible to install water mains to and through this 
development, coordinate main size and routing with Public Works. 

3. All improvements related to public life, safety and health shall be completed prior to occupancy 
of the structures. Where approved by the City Engineer, an owner may post a performance 
surety for such improvements in order to obtain City Engineer signature on the final plat as set 
forth in UDC 11-5C-3B. 

4. Upon installation of the landscaping and prior to inspection by Planning Department staff, the 
applicant shall provide a written certificate of completion as set forth in UDC 11-3B-14A. 

5. A letter of credit or cash surety in the amount of 110% will be required for all incomplete 
fencing, landscaping, amenities, pressurized irrigation, prior to signature on the final plat. 

6. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post with the City a performance surety in the 
amount of 125% of the total construction cost for all incomplete sewer, water infrastructure 
prior to final plat signature. This surety will be verified by a line item cost estimate provided 
by the owner to the City.  The applicant shall be required to enter into a Development Surety 
Agreement with the City of Meridian. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable 
letter of credit, cash deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can 
be found on the Community Development Department website.  Please contact Land 
Development Service for more information at 887-2211. 

7. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a warranty surety in the amount 
of 20% of the total construction cost for all completed sewer, and water infrastructure for a 
duration of two years. This surety amount will be verified by a line item final cost invoicing 
provided by the owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter 
of credit, cash deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be 
found on the Community Development Department website.  Please contact Land 
Development Service for more information at 887-2211. 

8. In the event that an applicant and/or owner cannot complete non-life, non-safety and non-health 
improvements, prior to City Engineer signature on the final plat and/or prior to occupancy, a 
surety agreement may be approved as set forth in UDC 11-5C-3C. 

9. Applicant shall be required to pay Public Works development plan review, and construction 
inspection fees, as determined during the plan review process, prior to the issuance of a plan 
approval letter. 

10. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all development features comply 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act. 

11. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with any Section 404 Permitting 
that may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers. 

Page 239

Item #18.



 

 Page 10  
  

12. Developer shall coordinate mailbox locations with the Meridian Post Office. 

13. All grading of the site shall be performed in conformance with MCC 11-1-4B. 

14. Compaction test results shall be submitted to the Meridian Building Department for all building 
pads receiving engineered backfill, where footing would sit atop fill material. 

15. The engineer shall be required to certify that the street centerline elevations are set a minimum 
of 3-feet above the highest established peak groundwater elevation.  This is to ensure that the 
bottom elevation of the crawl spaces of homes is at least 1-foot above. 

16. The applicants design engineer shall be responsible for inspection of all irrigation and/or    
drainage facility within this project that do not fall under the jurisdiction of an irrigation district 
or ACHD. The design engineer shall provide certification that the facilities have been installed 
in accordance with the approved design plans. This certification will be required before a 
certificate of occupancy is issued for any structures within the project.  

17. At the completion of the project, the applicant shall be responsible to submit record drawings 
per the City of Meridian AutoCAD standards.  These record drawings must be received and 
approved prior to the issuance of a certification of occupancy for any structures within the 
project.  

18. Street light plan requirements are listed in section 6-7 of the Improvement Standards for Street 
Lighting (http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272).  All street lights shall be 
installed at developer’s expense.  Final design shall be submitted as part of the development 
plan set for approval, which must include the location of any existing street lights.  The 
contractor’s work and materials shall conform to the ISPWC and the City of Meridian 
Supplemental Specifications to the ISPWC. Contact the City of Meridian Transportation and 
Utility Coordinator at 898-5500 for information on the locations of existing street lighting. 

19. The applicant shall provide easement(s) for all public water/sewer mains outside of public right 
of way (include all water services and hydrants).  The easement widths shall be 20-feet wide 
for a single utility, or 30-feet wide for two.  The easements shall not be dedicated via the plat, 
but rather dedicated outside the plat process using the City of Meridian’s standard forms. The 
easement shall be graphically depicted on the plat for reference purposes. Submit an executed 
easement (on the form available from Public Works), a legal description prepared by an Idaho 
Licensed Professional Land Surveyor, which must include the area of the easement (marked 
EXHIBIT A) and an 81/2” x 11” map with bearings and distances (marked EXHIBIT B) for 
review. Both exhibits must be sealed, signed and dated by a Professional Land Surveyor. DO 
NOT RECORD.  Add a note to the plat referencing this document.  All easements must be 
submitted, reviewed, and approved prior to signature of the final plat by the City Engineer. 

20. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with and NPDES permitting that 
may be required by the Environmental Protection Agency. 

21. Any wells that will not continue to be used must be properly abandoned according to Idaho 
Well Construction Standards Rules administered by the Idaho Department of Water 
Resources.  The Developer’s Engineer shall provide a statement addressing whether there are 
any existing wells in the development, and if so, how they will continue to be used, or provide 
record of their abandonment.   

22. Any existing septic systems within this project shall be removed from service per City 
Ordinance Section 9-1-4 and 9 4 8. Contact the Central District Health Department for 
abandonment procedures and inspections. 

23. The City of Meridian requires that pressurized irrigation systems be supplied by a year-round 

Page 240

Item #18.



 

 Page 11  
  

source of water (MCC 9-1-28.C.1). The applicant should be required to use any existing surface 
or well water for the primary source.  If a surface or well source is not available, a single-point 
connection to the culinary water system shall be required. If a single-point connection is 
utilized, the developer will be responsible for the payment of assessments for the common areas 
prior to development plan approval. 

24. All irrigation ditches, canals, laterals, or drains, exclusive of natural waterways, intersecting, 
crossing or laying adjacent and contiguous to the area being subdivided shall be addressed per 
UDC 11-3A-6.  In performing such work, the applicant shall comply with Idaho Code 42-1207 
and any other applicable law or regulation. 

VIII. REQUIRED FINDINGS FROM THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 

In consideration of a short plat, the decision-making body shall make the following findings: 

A. The plat is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan and is consistent with the Unified 
Development Code; 

The Comprehensive Plan designates the future land use of this property as Mixed Use Community. 
The current zoning district of the site is C-N. The proposed short plat complies with the 
Comprehensive Plan and is developed in accord with UDC standards.  

B. Public services are available or can be made available and are adequate to accommodate the 
proposed development; 

Council finds that public services are adequate to serve the site. 

C. The plat is in conformance with scheduled public improvements in accord with the City’s 
capital improvements program; 

Council finds that the development will not require the expenditure of capital improvement funds. 
All required utilities are being provided with the development of the property at the developer’s 
expense. 

D. There is public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed development; 

Council finds that the development will not require major expenditures for providing supporting 
services. The developer and/or future lot owner(s) will finance improvements for sewer, water, 
utilities and pressurized irrigation to serve the project.  

E. The development will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or general welfare; and 

Council finds the proposed short plat will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or general 
welfare. 

F. The development preserves significant natural, scenic or historic features. 

 Council is not aware of any significant natural, scenic or historic features associated with the 
development of this site. 

Page 241

Item #18.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Heron Village Expansion (H-2021-
0027) by Tamara Thompson of The Land Group, Inc., Located at 51, 125 and 185 E. Blue Heron 
Ln.

Page 242

Item #19.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (HERON VILLAGE PHASE TWO – FILE # H-2021-0027) 
 - 1 - 

          CITY OF MERIDIAN 
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW  

AND DECISION & ORDER 

 
In the Matter of the Request for Annexation of 1.36 Acres of Land with the R-40 Zoning District, 
Rezoning of 4.18 Acres of Land from C-G and R-8 to R-40, and a Conditional Use Permit to Allow 
Expansion of an Existing Multifamily Complex to Allow 36 Additional Units in Two New Buildings, 
by Tamara Thompson with The Land Group, Inc. 

Case No(s). H-2021-0027 

For the City Council Hearing Date of: March 22, 2022 (Findings on April 5, 2022) 
 
A. Findings of Fact 
 

1. Hearing Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of October 12, 2021, incorporated 
by reference) 

 
2.   Process Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of October 12, 2021, incorporated by 

reference) 
 
3.  Application and Property Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of October 12, 

2021, incorporated by reference) 
 
4.  Required Findings per the Unified Development Code (see attached Staff Report for the hearing 

date of October 12, 2021, incorporated by reference) 
 

B.  Conclusions of Law 
 

1. The City of Meridian shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use 
Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503). 

 
2. The Meridian City Council takes judicial notice of its Unified Development Code codified as 

Title 11 Meridian City Code, and all current zoning maps thereof. The City of Meridian has, by 
ordinance, established the Impact Area and the Comprehensive Plan of the City of Meridian, 
which was adopted December 17, 2019, Resolution No. 19-2179 and Maps. 

 
3. The conditions shall be reviewable by the City Council pursuant to Meridian City Code § 11-5A. 
 
4. Due consideration has been given to the comment(s) received from the governmental 

subdivisions providing services in the City of Meridian planning jurisdiction. 
 
5. It is found public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose 

expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed. 
 
6. That the City has granted an order of approval in  accordance with this Decision, which shall be 

signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and then a copy served by the Clerk upon the applicant, the 
Community Development Department, the Public Works Department and any affected party 
requesting notice.  

 

Page 243

Item #19.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (HERON VILLAGE PHASE TWO – FILE # H-2021-0027) 
 - 2 - 

7. That this approval is subject to the Conditions of Approval all in the attached Staff Report for the 
hearing date of October 12, 2021, incorporated by reference. The conditions are concluded to be 
reasonable and the applicant shall meet such requirements as a condition of approval of the 
application. 

 
C.  Decision and Order   

 
Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Meridian City Code § 11-5A and based upon 
the above and foregoing Findings of Fact which are herein adopted, it is hereby ordered that:  

 
1. The applicant’s request for annexation, zoning to R-40 and conditional use permit is hereby 

approved per the conditions of approval in the Staff Report for the hearing date of October 12, 
2021, attached as Exhibit A. 

 
D.  Notice of Applicable Time Limits  
 

Notice of Preliminary Plat Duration 
 

Please take notice that approval of a preliminary plat, combined preliminary and final plat, or 
short plat shall become null and void if the applicant fails to obtain the city engineer’s signature 
on the final plat within two (2) years of the approval of the preliminary plat or the combined 
preliminary and final plat or short plat (UDC 11-6B-7A). 
 
In the event that the development of the preliminary plat is made in successive phases in an 
orderly and reasonable manner, and conforms substantially to the approved preliminary plat, 
such segments, if submitted within successive intervals of two (2) years, may be considered for 
final approval without resubmission for preliminary plat approval (UDC 11-6B-7B).  
 
Upon written request and filed by the applicant prior to the termination of the period in accord 
with 11-6B-7.A, the Director may authorize a single extension of time to obtain the City 
Engineer’s signature on the final plat not to exceed two (2) years. Additional time extensions up 
to two (2) years as determined and approved by the City Council may be granted. With all 
extensions, the Director or City Council may require the preliminary plat, combined 
preliminary and final plat or short plat to comply with the current provisions of Meridian City 
Code Title 11. If the above timetable is not met and the applicant does not receive a time 
extension, the property shall be required to go through the platting procedure again (UDC 11-
6B-7C).  

Notice of Conditional Use Permit Duration  

Please take notice that the conditional use permit, when granted, shall be valid for a maximum 
period of two (2) years unless otherwise approved by the City. During this time, the applicant 
shall commence the use as permitted in accord with the conditions of approval, satisfy the 
requirements set forth in the conditions of approval, and acquire building permits and 
commence construction of permanent footings or structures on or in the ground.  For 
conditional use permits that also require platting, the final plat must be signed by the City 
Engineer within this two (2) year period.  

Upon written request and filed by the applicant prior to the termination of the period in accord 
with 11-5B-6.G.1, the Director may authorize a single extension of the time to commence the 
use not to exceed one (1) two (2) year period. Additional time extensions up to two (2) years as 

Page 244

Item #19.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (HERON VILLAGE PHASE TWO – FILE # H-2021-0027) 
 - 3 - 

determined and approved by the City Council may be granted. With all extensions, the Director 
or City Council may require the conditional use comply with the current provisions of Meridian 
City Code Title 11(UDC 11-5B-6F). 

Notice of Development Agreement Duration 

The city and/or an applicant may request a development agreement or a modification to a 
development agreement consistent with Idaho Code section 67-6511A. The development 
agreement may be initiated by the city or applicant as part of a request for annexation and/or 
rezone at any time prior to the adoption of findings for such request. 

A development agreement may be modified by the city or an affected party of the development 
agreement. Decision on the development agreement modification is made by the city council in 
accord with this chapter. When approved, said development agreement shall be signed by the 
property owner(s) and returned to the city within six (6) months of the city council granting the 
modification. 

A modification to the development agreement may be initiated prior to signature of the 
agreement by all parties and/or may be requested to extend the time allowed for the agreement 
to be signed and returned to the city if filed prior to the end of the six (6) month approval 
period.  

E.  Judicial Review 

 Pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-6521(1)(d), if this final decision concerns a matter enumerated in Idaho 
Code § 67-6521(1)(a), an affected person aggrieved by this final  decision may, within twenty-eight 
(28) days after all remedies  have been exhausted, including requesting reconsideration of this final 
decision as provided by Meridian City Code § 1-7-10, seek judicial review of this final decision as 
provided by chapter 52, title 67, Idaho Code. This notice is provided as a courtesy;  the City of 
Meridian does not admit by this notice that this decision is subject to judicial review under LLUPA.  

F.  Notice of Right to Regulatory Takings Analysis 

 Pursuant to Idaho Code §§ 67-6521(1)(d) and  67-8003, an owner of private property that is the 
subject of a final decision may submit a written request with the Meridian City Clerk for a regulatory 
takings analysis. 

G. Attached:  Staff Report for the hearing date of October 12, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 245

Item #19.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (HERON VILLAGE PHASE TWO – FILE # H-2021-0027) 
 - 4 - 

By action of the City Council at its regular meeting held on the ___________ day of ________________, 
2022. 

 
COUNCIL PRESIDENT BRAD HOAGLUN   VOTED_______ 

 
 
COUNCIL VICE PRESIDENT JOE BORTON   VOTED_______  

  
 
COUNCIL MEMBER JESSICA PERREAULT   VOTED_______ 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER LUKE CAVENER    VOTED_______ 
 
 

 COUNCIL MEMBER TREG BERNT    VOTED_______ 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER LIZ STRADER    VOTED_______ 

 
MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON     VOTED_______ 
(TIE BREAKER) 
 

 
            
     Mayor Robert Simison 

   

 Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Chris Johnson 
City Clerk 

 

Copy served upon Applicant, Community Development Department, Public Works Department and City 
Attorney. 
 
 

By: __________________________________   Dated: ________________________ 
     City Clerk’s Office 
 
 

Page 246

Item #19.



 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 
 

 Page 1  
  

HEARING 
DATE: 

10/12/2021 

 

TO: Mayor & City Council 

FROM: Alan Tiefenbach, Associate Planner 
208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: H-2021-0027 
Heron Village (Phase 2) 

LOCATION: The site is located at 51, 125 and 185 E. 
Blue Heron Ln, in a portion of 
Government Lot 6 of Section 6, 
Township 3 North, Range 1 East. 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

This is a proposal for annexation of 1.36 acres of land with the R-40 zoning district, rezoning of 4.18 
acres of land from C-G and R-8 to R-40, and a Conditional Use Permit to allow expansion of an 
existing multifamily complex to allow 36 additional units in two new buildings.  

 

II. SUMMARY OF REPORT 

A. Project Summary 
Description Details Page 
Acreage 1.36 acres being annexed, 5.54 acres being rezoned to R-40  
Future Land Use Designation MU-N  
Existing Land Use(s) Single Family Residential / Rural  
Proposed Land Use(s) Multifamily  
Lots (# and type; bldg./common) Existing development is on 5 lots, one more lot would be 

annexed.  
 

Phasing Plan (# of phases) One phase  
Number of Residential Units (type 
of units) 

108 existing, 36 more proposed  

Density  19.6 du/acre (total)  
Open Space (acres, total 
[%]/buffer/qualified) 

Existing – 1.58 acres (29%), Usable .96 acres (17%) 
Proposed – 10,200 sq. ft. req’d, 15,300 sq. ft. proposed 

 

Amenities Existing amenities include half basketball court, plaza 
containing benches and trellis, 1,620 sq. ft. clubhouse with 
exercise room, playground, horseshoe pit, barbeques and 
picnic tables. 

 

STAFF REPORT 
  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT  

Page 247

Item #19.



 

 Page 2  
  

Description Details Page 
Proposed amenities include 70’x100’ grassy area, park 
benches and picnic tables, enclosed bike storage.  

Physical Features (waterways, 
hazards, flood plain, hillside) 

None  

Neighborhood meeting date; # of 
attendees: 

February 10, 2021 – 7 attendees 
Staff has received 2 letters and 5 voicemails in opposition 
to this request. Issues expressed include parking along E. 
Blue Heron and lack of emergency access.  

 

History (previous approvals) AZ 01-014, CUP 12-0021, MCU 13-005, CZC 13-038, 
DES 13-039) 

 

 
B. Community Metrics 

Description Details Page 
Ada County Highway District   

• Staff report (yes/no) Yes  
• Requires ACHD 

Commission Action 
(yes/no) 

No  

Access (Arterial/Collectors/State 
Hwy/Local)(Existing and Proposed) 

One existing access from E. Blue Heron Ln (local road), 
one additional access proposed from E. Blue Heron Ln 

 

Existing Road Network E. Blue Heron Ln (local road) and N. Meridian Rd 
(arterial) 

 

Existing Arterial Sidewalks / 
Buffers 

• Sidewalk already exists along N. Meridian Rd.  
• 5’ wide sidewalk is constructed along the portion of 

Blue Heron Ln of which the existing multifamily 
development exists 

• The landscape plan indicates this sidewalk will be 
extended along the frontage of the additional property 
where the expansions are proposed.   

 

Proposed Road Improvements Staff is recommending an existing pathway connecting the 
east terminus of E. Blue Heron to N. Eureka Ave be 
widened for emergency access only.  

 

Distance to nearest City Park (+ 
size) 

½ mile to Settler’s Park, ¾ mile to 8th St Park,   

Distance to other key services  0.5 mile +/- to shopping center and commercial services at 
N. Meridian Rd / E. Fairview Ave intersection. 

 

Fire Service   
• Distance to Fire Station 1.8 miles to Fire Station 3  
• Fire Response Time < 5 minutes  
• Resource Reliability 78%  
• Risk Identification 2 – current resources not adequate to supply service  
• Accessibility Meets all requirements  
• Special/resource needs Aerial device will be required  
• Water Supply 2,250 gpm  
• Other Comments • All buildings must be sprinklered.  

• Fire has expressed issues with parking availability 
and cars parked along W. Blue Heron. 

• Fire has recommended secondary emergency 
access to N. Eureka Rd.  

 

Police Service   
• No comments   

West Ada School District   

Page 248

Item #19.



 

 Page 3  
  

Description Details Page 
• Distance (elem, ms, hs) 4.4 elem, 1.7 ms, 2.6 hs  
• # of Students Enrolled 4 additional school-aged children projected  

Wastewater   
• Distance to Sewer 

Services 
N/A  

• Sewer Shed Five Mile Trunkshed  
• Estimated Project Sewer 

ERU’s 
See application  

• WRRF Declining Balance 14.16  
• Project Consistent with 

WW Master Plan/Facility 
Plan 

Yes  

Water   
• Distance to Water Services 0  
• Pressure Zone 2  
• Estimated Project Water 

ERU’s 
See application  

• Water Quality No concerns  
• Project Consistent with 

Water Master Plan 
Yes  

• Impacts/Concerns • No proposed water infrastructure submitted with this 
record. Engineering must review any new 
infrastructure.  Connect to existing apartment 
development to west and to Blue Heron Ln. 

• Existing water services must be abandoned at the main 
in Blue Heron Ln. 

• Both addresses (125 and 185 E Blue Heron Ln) have a 
meter to the site. If these meters are not used they need 
to be abandoned at the main. 

• Provide looping of water line from Blue Heron Rd to 
existing water line to the west in Heron Village. 

• Provide water stub to east property boundary to facility 
future looping. 

• Ensure no permanent structures (trees, bushes, 
buildings, carports, trash receptacle walls, fences, 
infiltration trenches, light poles, etc.) are built within 
the utility easement. 
 

 

 
  

Page 249

Item #19.



 

 Page 4  
  

 
C.  Project Area Maps 

 Zoning Map Future Land Use 

  
Aerial Map Planned Development Map 

  

Page 250

Item #19.



 

 Page 5  
  

 III. Applicant Information 

A.  Applicant / Representative: 

Tamara Thompson – The Land Group, Inc – 462 E. Shore Dr, Ste. 100, Eagle, ID, 83616 

B.  Owner: 

PPHC Heron Property LLC – 28717 Grumman Dr., Eugene, OR 97402 

IV.  NOTICING 

 Planning & Zoning 
Posting Date 

City Council 
Posting Date 

Newspaper Notification 6/25/2021   
Radius notification mailed to 
properties within 300 feet 6/22/2021   

Nextdoor posting 6/22/2021   
Sign Posting 9/7/2021  

V.  STAFF ANALYSIS 

Background 

The existing Heron Village Apartments consist of 108 units in 5 buildings on 5.5 acres. 0.65 acres are 
zoned R-8 and were platted with the J. E. Pfost's Subdivision in 1908. The remaining 4.86 acres are 
zoned R-40 and C-G and were annexed in 2002 as the Ted Williams Annexation. There are several 
conditions of approval of this annexation regarding road and infrastructure improvements, but no 
development agreement. A conditional use permit was approved for the multifamily complex in 2013 
(CUP 12-021). In 2014 a modification to the conditional use was approved (MCU-13-005) to allow 
replacement of several of the amenities. A Certificate of Zoning Compliance was approved in April 
of 2013 (CZC 13-038). 

In September of 2020, the applicant requested a pre-application meeting with staff to discuss 
annexation of an additional 1.36 acres of land to the east of the existing complex (185 E. Blue Heron 
Ln) to construct 36 more units in two buildings. Because the Heron Village Apartments were on 
several properties within different zone districts (C-G, R-40 and R-8) and because they were annexing 
and zoning additional property anyway, Staff recommended to the applicant that it would be 
preferable to rezone all of the associated properties to R-40. 

A. Annexation  

The proposed annexation area is contiguous to City annexed property and is within the Area of City 
Impact Boundary. A legal description and exhibit map for the annexation and rezone area is included 
in Section VII.  

There is not a development agreement with the existing development. As will be discussed below, 
staff and the applicant have discussed this project with the understanding that what is currently being 
proposed is a second phase and expansion to the existing development with shared parking, amenities 
and open space. To ensure this intent is met and the project develops cohesively, staff recommends 
this be reflected in a development agreement.  

Page 251

Item #19.



 

 Page 6  
  

B. Future Land Use Map Designation (https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan) 

The Future Land Use Map designates the subject property for Mixed Use Neighborhood (MU-N). 
The purpose of this designation is to assign areas where neighborhood-serving uses and dwellings are 
seamlessly integrated into the urban fabric. The intent is to avoid predominantly single-use 
developments by incorporating a variety of uses. Land uses in these areas should be primarily 
residential with supporting non-residential services. Non-residential uses in these areas tend to be 
smaller scale and provide goods or services that people typically do not travel far for (approximately 
one mile) and need regularly.  

This proposal is to annex a 1.2-acre lot zoned R-1 in the County, and zone it and a 0.65-acre lot to the 
west (already zoned R-8 in the City) to R-40. The purpose is to proceed with a conditional use for a 
36-unit expansion to an existing multifamily development. This application also includes rezoning the 
portion of the existing multifamily development that is C-G to R-40 so the entire development is in 
the same zone district. The subject property is between high density residential at north and south, 
with uses becoming progressively more commercial to very intensive commercial uses at the N. 
Meridian Rd. E. Fairview Ave intersection. As this project is to allow expansion of the existing 
multifamily to an infill vacant parcel to the east, staff believes at the regional scale this proposal 
meets the intent of the Plan.  

C. Comprehensive Plan Policies (https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan): 

• Encourage a variety of housing types that meet the needs, preferences, and financial 
capabilities of Meridian’s present and future residents. 2.01.02D 

The proposed multifamily residential development will contribute to the variety of housing 
types available within the City. 

• Support infill development that does not negatively impact the abutting, existing 
development. (2.02.02C) 

This proposal is to allow infill of an existing vacant parcel on the northeast portion of the 
subject properties to allow expansion of an existing multifamily development, surrounded by 
existing multifamily development to the north and south, industrial uses to the east, and 
religious and single family residential across N. Meridian Rd to the west. Although there 
could be some incremental impacts associated with additional units, the impacts associated 
with this development are already primarily established and there would be few or negligible 
impacts on the single family residential across N. Meridian Rd.  

• Encourage the development of high quality, dense residential and mixed-use areas near in and 
around Downtown, near employment, large shopping centers, public open spaces and parks, 
and along major transportation corridors, as shown on the Future Land Use Map. (2.02.01E) 

This expansion to an existing multifamily development is located along N. Meridian Rd, in 
close proximity to a variety of commercial uses, including approximately ½ mile to a 
shopping center, along the intensely commercial E. Fairview / N. Meridian Rd. intersection. 

• Encourage infill development. (3.03.01E) 

The proposed annexation of an additional parcel of land surrounded by existing development 
to allow expansion of an existing multifamily complex would be considered an infill 
development.  

• Permit new development only where it can be adequately served by critical public facilities 
and urban services at the time of final approval, and in accord with any adopted levels of 
service for public facilities and services. (3.03.03F) 

Page 252

Item #19.

https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan
https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan


 

 Page 7  
  

Urban services and public facilities are already being provided to the existing multifamily 
complex. This proposal would allow an additional 36 units in two buildings.  

D. Existing Structures/Site Improvements: 

There is an existing residence, which was constructed in 1954, and accessory structures on the 
property that is currently zoned R-8. All structures will be removed with development of the 
additional 36 units.  

E. Proposed Use Analysis:  

The request is to annex 1.36 acres with an R-40 zone, and rezone a R-8 zoned parcel as well as 
the C-G zoned portion of the existing multifamily development to R-40 to clean-up the zoning for 
the existing development and to allow 36 additional multifamily units. This is allowed by 
conditional use per UDC  11-2A-8.  

F. Specific Use Standards (UDC 11-4-3): 

The specific use standards for multi-family developments listed in UDC 11-4-3-27 apply to 
development of this site as follows: 

i. Buildings shall provide a minimum setback of ten (10) feet. 

The site plan indicates both buildings meet a minimum setback of at least 10’ on all sides.  

ii. All on-site service areas, outdoor storage areas, waste storage, disposal facilities, and 
transformer and utility vaults shall be located in an area not visible from a public street, 
or shall be fully screened from view from a public street. 

The submitted landscape plan reflects dumpsters in an enclosure and screened by 
landscaping at the east portion of the property. Details regarding this enclosure and any 
additional ground or roof mounted mechanical or electrical equipment meeting the 
requirements of 11-3A-12 and 11-4-27 will be required to be submitted with the 
Certificate of Zoning Compliance (CZC).  

The landscape plan indicates ground-mounted condenser units. One of these groups of 
condenser units is at the north side of Building F, directly along E. Blue Heron Ln. 
Although the landscape plan suggests 4’ high vinyl fencing screening these unit, staff 
believes there should be additional mitigation to soften the view from the street. Staff 
recommends additional shrubs be grouped in this area. It should be noted shrubs are 
required along the building foundation already per the specific use standards, so this 
would be in addition to that requirement.  

iii. A minimum of eighty (80) square feet of private, usable open space shall be provided for 
each unit. This requirement can be satisfied through porches, patios, decks, and/or 
enclosed yards. Landscaping, entryway and other accessways shall not count toward this 
requirement. 

Floorplans of the units indicating this requirement is met shall be required at the time of 
CZC. 

iv. Developments with twenty (20) units or more shall provide a property management 
office, maintenance storage area, central mailbox location, including provisions for parcel 
mail, and a directory and map of the development at an entrance or convenient location 
for those entering the development. 

All of these requirements have already been provided and shown on the site plan 
associated with the CZC approved for the existing development.  

Page 253

Item #19.

https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?chapter_id=6513#1230415_id=6513


 

 Page 8  
  

v. A minimum of 250 sq. ft. of common open space shall be provided for each unit of 
between 500 sq. ft. and 1,200 sq. ft in area; 350 sq. ft. of common open space is required 
for all units greater than 1,200 sq. ft in area.   

The applicant has provided an open space exhibit which reflects the required open space 
for both Phase 1 and Phase 2. 41,870 sq. ft. of open space was required with Phase One 
whereas 53,000 sq. ft. is provided. 10,200 square feet of qualified open space is required 
with Phase 2, whereas 15,330 sq. ft. is proposed. The proposal meets the minimum 
requirements of UDC 11-4-3-27.  

vi. Amenities 

The existing development consists of 108 units, and an additional 36 units are proposed. 
The existing development provides a half basketball court, plaza containing benches and 
trellis, 1,620 sq. ft. clubhouse with exercise room, playground, horseshoe pit, barbeques 
and picnic tables. This proposal proposes two additional amenities - an approximately 
8,600 sq. ft. open space park and 52 new bicycle storage spaces.  

 UDC 11-4-3-27-D states “for multifamily developments with more than one hundred 
(100) units, the decision-making body shall require additional amenities commensurate 
to the size of the proposed development.” The Planning Commission should decide if the 
amenities are sufficient for the existing development as well as the proposed expansion.  

vii. All street facing elevations shall have landscaping along their foundation. The landscaped 
area shall be at least three (3) feet wide. For every three (3) linear feet of foundation, an 
evergreen shrub having a minimum mature height of twenty-four (24) inches shall be 
planted. 

The landscape plan does show landscaped areas around the foundations of the buildings, 
although it does not indicate whether this includes shrubs. As mentioned above, staff is 
recommending additional landscaping around the mechanical equipment visible from E. 
Blue Heron Ln.  

G. Dimensional Standards (UDC 11-2): 

Dimensional standards of the R-40 zoning district include 10’ front setbacks, 12’ rear setbacks, 3’ 
side setbacks, and a maximum building height of 60’. However, as mentioned in the specific use 
standards above, 10’ setbacks are applied to all multifamily projects (on all sides).  The 
development as proposed meets these setbacks, and the elevations provided indicate a maximum 
height of approximately 42’ from the highest roof pitch. The proposal meets all the dimensional 
requirements.  

H. Access (UDC 11-3A-3, 11-3H-4): 

There is one existing access from E. Blue Heron Ln. (local road) serving the existing 108 units; 
one additional access is proposed from E. Blue Heron Ln.  

Meridian Fire has commented that although the site does provide two points of access, both of 
these accesses are from E. Blue Heron Ln. with the only way in and out occurring from N. 
Meridian Rd. Fire; they prefer another point of access that does not solely rely on N. Meridian 
Rd.  

E. Blue Heron Ln. terminates into a pathway at the east end which then connects to N. Eureka 
Ave. Based on discussion with the applicant, they agreed to widen this pathway to 20 feet wide or 
as approved by Meridian Fire, and provide bollards on either end to allow secondary fire access.  

Page 254

Item #19.

https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?chapter_id=6499#183704
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=20923&keywords=#1165290
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=734279#734279


 

 Page 9  
  

I. Parking (UDC 11-3C): 

UDC 11-3C-6 requires 1.5 parking spaces per each one-bedroom dwelling unit and at least 2 
parking spaces for 2-3 bedrooms units. At least one parking space for each of these units must be 
in a covered carport or garage. 

As requested by staff, the applicant submitted a site plan which indicates the required and 
proposed parking for both Phase One (the 108 units) and Phase Two (the 36 additional units).  

Phase One was required to provide 204 parking spaces with 102 of them covered spaces. 207 
parking spaces are provided, with 195 of them being covered. Phase Two is required to provide 
69 parking spaces, with 36 of them covered spaces. 87 spaces are provided, with 71 of them being 
covered. 6 total bicycle parking spaces are required with this development. The parking exceeds 
the requirements by 21 parking spaces.  

The site plan indicates 17’ long parking spaces on the south side of Building F, east side of 
Building G and surrounding the open space. As required by UDC 11-3C-5, sidewalks are at least 
7’ in width in these areas to allow for vehicle overhang. The remaining parking spaces are shown 
to be 19’ in length. The applicant should be aware that all off-street parking areas shall be 
provided with a substantial wheel restraint to prevent cars from encroaching upon abutting private 
and public property or overhanging beyond the designated parking stall dimensions. Wheel stops 
are not indicated on the site plan or landscape plan. These should be indicated on the site plan 
with the CZC.  

Meridian Fire, Police and the surrounding residents have commented that parking has been a 
continuous issue for this development, as residents and guests often park on both sides of E. Blue 
Heron Dr, making emergency access difficult. One cause of this issue is that many of the garages 
that are intended to be used to satisfy parking requirements are being used for storage, leading to 
spill-over in other areas of the development and along the local streets. As 71 parking spaces are 
proposed to be covered with Phase II, staff recommends these covered spaces be accommodated 
by carports and not garages, to avoid dedicated covered spaces being used for storage.  

Elevations of the carports have not been provided. At the time of CZC, the applicant will need to 
provide elevations that reflect the accessory structures are compatible with the primary buildings 
and meet all the minimum dimensional requirements of UDC 11-3C-6. The applicant should also 
be aware that the site plan indicates striped pedestrian crossing areas across the parking lots. UDC 
11-3A-19-4 requires internal pedestrian walkways to be distinguished from the vehicular driving 
surfaces through the use of pavers, colored or scored concrete, or bricks. 

J. Sidewalks (UDC 11-3A-17): 

Sidewalk already exists along N. Meridian Rd, which has recently been reconstructed. 5’ wide 
sidewalk is constructed along the portion of Blue Heron Ln. of which the existing multifamily 
development exists; the landscape plan indicates this sidewalk will be extended along the 
frontage of the additional property where the expansions are proposed in accord with UDC 
standards.   

K. Landscaping (UDC 11-3B): 

A 25’ wide landscape buffer has already been provided along N. Meridian Rd as required by 
UDC Table 11-2B-3. W. Blue Heron Lane is classified as a local street and as such does not 
require a street buffer in the R-40 zoning district. However, a 17’ wide landscape buffer was 
installed along the portion of the property frontage developed with Phase One, and the landscape 
plan indicates this buffer is proposed to continue along the frontage to the property line with 
Phase Two. A 12’ +/- landscape buffer is proposed along the eastern property line, although a 

Page 255

Item #19.

https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=20924&keywords=#20924
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=20923&keywords=#1165304
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=6506&keywords=#6506


 

 Page 10  
  

residential buffer is not a requirement for multifamily in the R-40 zoning district and this property 
is directly adjacent to an existing meat packing plant.  

It does appear there is at least 3’ wide landscaping areas along the foundations of both buildings 
with street facing elevations as required per the specific use standards for multifamily, but the 
landscape plan does not specifically identify shrubs in this area. As mentioned, staff believes 
there should be additional landscape screening along the street-facing sides of the condenser unit 
screen fences along E. Blue Heron Ln. The landscape plan submitted with the Certificate of 
Zoning Compliance application shall comply with all landscaping requirements and is required to 
be prepared by a landscape architect, landscape designer, or qualified nurseryman, per UDC 
131C-3B.  

L. Qualified Open Space (UDC 11-3G):   

The applicant has provided an open space exhibit which reflects the required open space for both 
Phase 1 and Phase 2. 41,870 sq. ft. of open space was required with Phase One whereas 53,000 
sq. ft. is provided. 10,200 square feet of qualified open space is required with Phase 2, whereas 
15,330 sq. ft. is proposed. The open space provided for Phase 2 exceeds the requirements.  

M. Qualified Site Amenities (UDC 11-3G): 

UDC 11-4-3-27 requires 4 amenities from each category for multifamily developments of more 
than 75 units, but for multifamily developments with more than one hundred (100) units, the 
decision-making body shall require additional amenities commensurate to the size of the 
proposed development. 

 The existing development provides a half basketball court, plaza containing benches and trellis, 
1,620 sq. ft. clubhouse with exercise room, playground, horseshoe pit, barbeques and picnic 
tables. With the proposed expansion the applicant proposes a 50’x 100’ sq. ft. open space area 
and 52 additional enclosed bike storage facilities. The Planning Commission should decide if the 
amenities are sufficient for the existing development as well as the proposed expansion. 

N. Fencing (UDC 11-3A-6, 11-3A-7): 

The landscape plan reflects perimeter fencing that is to match existing fencing. At the time of the 
CZC, the applicant shall provide all fencing details on the landscape plan.  

O. Utilities (UDC 11-3A-21): 

There is infrastructure serving the existing development. All development is required to connect 
to the City water and sewer system unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer in accord 
with UDC 11-3A-21.  

P. Building Elevations (UDC 11-3A-19 | Architectural Standards Manual): 

Conceptual elevations were submitted with this proposal. The elevations utilize architecture that 
is consistent with the existing buildings including multiple roof pitches, dormers, canopies and 
outdoor second and third story railings. Building materials include hardiboard lap siding, 
hardishake shingle siding, cultured stone columns and asphalt singles. Building elevations will be 
reviewed against the ASM manual at time of CZC.  

VI. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the annexation of 1.36 acres of land with the R-40 zoning district, 
rezoning of 4.18 acres of land from C-G and R-8 to R-40, and a Conditional Use Permit to allow 
expansion of an existing multifamily complex to allow 36 additional units in two new buildings 

Page 256

Item #19.

https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=6511&keywords=#6511
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=6511&keywords=#6511
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165293#1165293
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165294#1165294
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165308#1165308
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165306#1165306
https://meridiancity.org/designreview


 

 Page 11  
  

per the provisions and comments included in Section VII in accord with the Findings in Section 
VIII 

B.  The Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission heard this item on September 16, 2021. At the 
public hearing, the Commission moved to recommend approval of the subject annexation, zoning 
and conditional use request. 
 

 1. Summary of the Commission public hearing: 
  a. In favor: Tamara Thompson 
  b. In opposition: None 
  c. Commenting: Tamara Thompson 
  d. Written testimony: Staff has received 5 voicemails and three letters in opposition. 
  e. Staff presenting application: Alan Tiefenbach 
  f. Other Staff commenting on application: None 
 2. Key issue(s) of public testimony:  
  a. Three citizens testified in opposition. Concerns expressed regarded traffic, parking, 

emergency access and litter 
 3. Key issue(s) of discussion by Commission: 
  a. Commission discussed whether parking could be increased, their understanding that 

parking is an issue along E. Blue Heron Ln, problems associated with litter, whether the 
applicant could work with ACHD to limit parking along E. Blue Heron Ln, and whether 
a parking enforcement company can be utilized,   

 4. Commission change(s) to Staff recommendation: 
  a. Prior to City Council, the applicant will have a parking plan that has been addressed 

with ACHD,  
  b.  Prior to City Council, the applicant shall have an agreement in place with the property 

management company on enforcement of the parking regulations 
  c. The applicant shall add additional trash receptacles. 
  d. Condition 2-C shall be amended that the applicant widen and improve the pathway 

between E. Blue Heron Ln. and N. Eureka Ave. to 15 feet wide instead of 20-feet wide. 
 

C.  The Meridian City Council heard these items on October 12, 2021 and continued the hearing to 
December 7, 2021 and March 22, 2022. At the public hearing, the Council moved to approve the 
subject annexation, rezoning and conditional use permit requests. 

 1. Summary of the City Council public hearing: 
  a. In favor: Tamara Thompson, Mysti Stelluto 
  b. In opposition: Valinda Sorenson,  Summer Hazen 
  c. Commenting: Valinda Sorenson,  Summer Hazen, Tamara Thompson, Mysti Stelluto, 

Joe Bongiorno 
  d. Written testimony: Carrie Shuter, Jim and Marie Kast, Bonita Ghoulson, Gail Simpson, 

Jim Lane, Kathryn Small, Sandra Rogers, Valinda Sorenson 
  e. Staff presenting application: Alan Tiefenbach 
  f. Other Staff commenting on application: None 
 2. Key issue(s) of public testimony: 
  a. Parking impacts, particularly spill over parking along E. Blue Heron impacting the 

residents of the Heronbrook townhomes 
  b. Trash in and around the complex 
  c. Traffic impacting E. Blue Heron Ln, trucks and emergency vehicles using E. Waterbury 

Ln and N. Richter Ln to turn around.  
 3. Key issue(s) of discussion by City Council: 

Page 257

Item #19.



 

 Page 12  
  

  a. Council continued this case several times for the applicant to address parking and traffic 
impacts, have management do a parking analysis, and discuss solutions with the 
neighbors and ACHD.  

 4. City Council change(s) to Commission recommendation: 
  a. Applicant shall convert all existing enclosed garages within Phase One to carports 
  b.  Applicant shall work with City and ACHD for ACHD to consider striping no parking 

areas along E. Blue Heron Ln. particularly west of N. Richter Ln.  
  c. Applicant and staff shall work with ACHD to consider no parking and dead-end signage 

along E. Blue Heron Ln 
 

VII. EXHIBITS 

A. Site Plan (date: 3/18/2021 March 18, 2022) 

 

Page 258

Item #19.



 

 Page 13  
  

B. Landscape Plan (date: 4/2/2021) 

 

Page 259

Item #19.



 

 Page 14  
  

C. Qualified Open Space Exhibit (date: 8/20/2021) 

 
  

Page 260

Item #19.



 

 Page 15  
  

D. Building Elevations (date: 3/18/2021) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 261

Item #19.



 

 Page 16  
  

E. Annexation Legal Description  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 262

Item #19.



 

 Page 17  
  

 

 

  

Page 263

Item #19.



 

 Page 18  
  

F.  Rezoning Legal Description  

 

 

 

  

Page 264

Item #19.



 

 Page 19  
  

   

Page 265

Item #19.



 

 Page 20  
  

VIII. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

A. PLANNING DIVISION 

Site Specific Conditions of Approval 

1. A Development Agreement (DA) is required as a provision of annexation of this property. 
Prior to approval of the annexation ordinance, a DA shall be entered into between the City of 
Meridian, the property owner(s) at the time of annexation ordinance adoption, and the 
developer.   

2. Currently, a fee of $303.00 shall be paid by the Applicant to the Planning Division prior to 
commencement of the DA. The DA shall be signed by the property owner and returned to the 
Planning Division within six (6) months of the City Council granting the annexation. The DA 
shall, at minimum, incorporate the following provisions: 

a. Future development of this site shall be generally consistent with the conceptual site plan, 
landscape plan, qualified open space exhibit and elevations submitted with the annexation 
application contained herein. 

b.  Phase One and Two shall share access, parking, amenities and open space.   

c. The applicant shall widen and improve the pathway between E. Blue Heron Ln. and N. 
Eureka Ave. to 2015 feet wide (or as approved by Meridian Fire), capable of supporting 
an 80,000-pound fire truck with bollards on either end to allow secondary emergency 
access. 

d. Applicant shall convert all existing enclosed garages within Phase One to carports. 

e. Only carports are permitted for covered parking in Phase Two.  

3. Prior to City Council, the applicant shall have a parking plan that has been addressed 
with ACHD to address the concerns discussed at the September 16, 2021 Planning 
Commission meeting. 

4. Prior to City Council, the applicant shall have an agreement in place with the property 
management company on enforcement of the parking regulations. 

5. Additional trash receptacles will be added near E. Blue Heron Dr. 

6. Applicant shall work with City and ACHD for ACHD to consider striping no parking 
areas along E. Blue Heron Ln. particularly west of N. Richter Ln. 

7. Applicant and staff shall work with ACHD to consider no parking and dead-end 
signage along E. Blue Heron Ln 

8. The developer shall comply with the specific use standards for multi-family developments 
listed in UDC 11-4-3-27. 

9. All condenser units on the north side of Building F which are visible from E. Blue Heron Ln. 
shall have additional landscape screening in addition to 4’ high vinyl fencing. 

10. Off-street vehicle parking shall be provided on the site in accord with UDC 11-3c-4 for multi-
family dwellings. Covered parking shall be provided only by carports. 

11. All carports shall be constructed to be compatible with the associated residential buildings i.e. 
similar building and roof forms, architectural elements and details, and materials and colors 

Page 266

Item #19.



 

 Page 21  
  

to maintain the quality of the architectural character) in accord with the Meridian 
Architectural Standards Manual. 

12. The applicant shall record legally binding documents that state the maintenance and 
ownership responsibilities for the management of both phase of the development, including, 
but not limited to, structures, parking, common areas, and other development features. 
Documentation of compliance with this requirement shall be with submitted with the first 
Certificate of Zoning Compliance application. 

13. All off street parking areas shall be provided with a substantial wheel restraint to prevent cars 
from encroaching upon abutting private and public property or overhanging beyond the 
designated parking stall dimensions per UDC 11-3C-5. When a bumper overhangs onto a 
sidewalk or landscape area, the parking stall dimensions may be reduced two (2) feet in 
length if two (2) feet is added to the width of the sidewalk or landscaped area planted in 
ground cover 

PLANNING GENERAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

1. Any fencing constructed on the site shall be consistent with the standards as set forth in UDC 
11-3A-6, 11-3A-7. 

2. Comply with all bulk, use, and development standards of the applicable district listed in UDC 
Chapter 2 District regulations. 

3. Install lighting consistent with the provisions as set forth in UDC 11-3A-11. 

4. Construct all off-street parking areas consistent with the standards as set forth in UDC 11-3C-
1. 

5. Protect any existing trees on the subject property that are greater than four-inch caliper and/or 
mitigate for the loss of such trees as set forth in UDC 11-3B-10. 

B. PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT: 

Site Specific Conditions: 

1. 125 and 185 E Blue Heron Lane have existing water meters which must be used or abandoned at 
the main. 

2. Water must be looped from Blue Heron Road to the existing water line to the west in Heron 
Village Subdivision.  

3. Provide a water main stub to the east property boundary. 

4. No permanent structures including but not limited to trees, bushes, buildings, fences, carports 
(including overhanging eves), trash enclosures, fences, infiltration trenches, streetlights, etc. are 
allowed within any City utility easement.  

5. Infiltration trenches should be built to avoid sewer services crossing through them.  

6. A streetlight plan is required with building permit application.  

7. A geotechnical report will be required with building permit application, and all recommendations 
made therein shall be adhered to by the builder and developer.  

GENERAL CONDITIONS: 

1. Sanitary sewer service to this development is available via extension of existing mains adjacent to 
the development. The applicant shall install mains to and through this subdivision; applicant shall 

Page 267

Item #19.



 

 Page 22  
  

coordinate main size and routing with the Public Works Department, and execute standard forms 
of easements for any mains that are required to provide service.  Minimum cover over sewer mains 
is three feet, if cover from top of pipe to sub-grade is less than three feet than alternate materials 
shall be used in conformance of City of Meridian Public Works Departments Standard 
Specifications.   

2. Water service to this site is available via extension of existing mains adjacent to the development. 
The applicant shall be responsible to install water mains to and through this development, 
coordinate main size and routing with Public Works. 

3. All improvements related to public life, safety and health shall be completed prior to occupancy of 
the structures.  

4. Upon installation of the landscaping and prior to inspection by Planning Department staff, the 
applicant shall provide a written certificate of completion as set forth in UDC 11-3B-14A. 

5. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a warranty surety in the amount of 
20% of the total construction cost for all completed sewer, and water infrastructure for a duration 
of two years. This surety amount will be verified by a line item final cost invoicing provided by the 
owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash 
deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be found on the 
Community Development Department website.  Please contact Land Development Service for 
more information at 887-2211. 

6. Applicant shall be required to pay Public Works development plan review, and construction 
inspection fees, as determined during the plan review process, prior to the issuance of a plan 
approval letter. 

7. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all development features comply with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act. 

8. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with any Section 404 Permitting that 
may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers. 

9. Developer shall coordinate mailbox locations with the Meridian Post Office. 

10. All grading of the site shall be performed in conformance with MCC 11-1-4B. 

11. Compaction test results shall be submitted to the Meridian Building Department for all building 
pads receiving engineered backfill, where footing would sit atop fill material. 

12. The engineer shall be required to certify that the street centerline elevations are set a minimum of 
3-feet above the highest established peak groundwater elevation.  This is to ensure that the bottom 
elevation of the crawl spaces of homes is at least 1-foot above. 

13. The applicants design engineer shall be responsible for inspection of all irrigation and/or    drainage 
facility within this project that do not fall under the jurisdiction of an irrigation district or ACHD. 
The design engineer shall provide certification that the facilities have been installed in accordance 
with the approved design plans. This certification will be required before a certificate of occupancy 
is issued for any structures within the project.  

14. At the completion of the project, the applicant shall be responsible to submit record drawings per 
the City of Meridian AutoCAD standards.  These record drawings must be received and approved 
prior to the issuance of a certification of occupancy for any structures within the project.  

15. Street light plan requirements are listed in section 6-7 of the Improvement Standards for Street 
Lighting (http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272).  All street lights shall be 
installed at developer’s expense.  Final design shall be submitted as part of the development plan 

Page 268

Item #19.



 

 Page 23  
  

set for approval, which must include the location of any existing street lights.  The contractor’s 
work and materials shall conform to the ISPWC and the City of Meridian Supplemental 
Specifications to the ISPWC. Contact the City of Meridian Transportation and Utility Coordinator 
at 898-5500 for information on the locations of existing street lighting. 

16. The applicant shall provide easement(s) for all public water/sewer mains outside of public right of 
way (include all water services and hydrants).  The easement widths shall be 20-feet wide for a 
single utility, or 30-feet wide for two.  The easements shall not be dedicated via the plat, but rather 
dedicated outside the plat process using the City of Meridian’s standard forms. The easement shall 
be graphically depicted on the plat for reference purposes. Submit an executed easement (on the 
form available from Public Works), a legal description prepared by an Idaho Licensed Professional 
Land Surveyor, which must include the area of the easement (marked EXHIBIT A) and an 81/2” x 
11” map with bearings and distances (marked EXHIBIT B) for review. Both exhibits must be 
sealed, signed and dated by a Professional Land Surveyor. DO NOT RECORD.  Add a note to the 
plat referencing this document.  All easements must be submitted, reviewed, and approved prior to 
signature of the final plat by the City Engineer. 

17. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with and NPDES permitting that 
may be required by the Environmental Protection Agency. 

18. Any wells that will not continue to be used must be properly abandoned according to Idaho Well 
Construction Standards Rules administered by the Idaho Department of Water Resources.  The 
Developer’s Engineer shall provide a statement addressing whether there are any existing wells in 
the development, and if so, how they will continue to be used, or provide record of their 
abandonment.   

19. Any existing septic systems within this project shall be removed from service per City Ordinance 
Section 9-1-4 and 9 4 8. Contact the Central District Health Department for abandonment 
procedures and inspections. 

20. The City of Meridian requires that pressurized irrigation systems be supplied by a year-round 
source of water (MCC 9-1-28.C.1). The applicant should be required to use any existing surface or 
well water for the primary source.  If a surface or well source is not available, a single-point 
connection to the culinary water system shall be required. If a single-point connection is utilized, 
the developer will be responsible for the payment of assessments for the common areas prior to 
development plan approval. 

21. All irrigation ditches, canals, laterals, or drains, exclusive of natural waterways, intersecting, 
crossing or laying adjacent and contiguous to the area being subdivided shall be addressed per UDC 
11-3A-6.  In performing such work, the applicant shall comply with Idaho Code 42-1207 and any 
other applicable law or regulation. 

  

Page 269

Item #19.



 

 Page 24  
  

IV. FINDINGS 

Required Findings: Upon recommendation from the commission, the council shall make a full 
investigation and shall, at the public hearing, review the application. In order to grant an annexation 
and/or rezone, the council shall make the following findings: 
 
A. ANNEXATION AND REZONE 

1. The map amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the comprehensive plan; 

This is a proposal for annexation of 1.36 acres of land with a R-40 zoning district, rezoning of 4.18 
acres of land from C-G and R-8 to R-40 to allow the expansion of an existing multifamily complex. 
This complies with the applicable provisions of the comprehensive plan, particularly to provide a 
diversity in housing opportunities and to encourage infill development.  

2.  The map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the proposed district, 
specifically the purpose statement; 

Council finds the proposed map amendment to R-40 generally complies with the purpose 
statement of the residential districts in that it will contribute to the range of housing opportunities 
available in the City consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

3.  The map amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, and 
welfare; 

Council finds with the recommended conditions of approval the proposed R-40 map amendment 
should not be detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare as the property is surrounded 
by multifamily to the north and south, industrial in the County to the east, and N. Meridian Rd to 
the west.  

4.  The map amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services by 
any political subdivision providing public services within the city including, but not limited 
to, school districts; and 

Council finds that the proposed zoning amendment will not result in any adverse impact upon the 
delivery of services by any political subdivision providing services to this site. 

5.  The annexation (as applicable) is in the best interest of city. 

Council finds the proposed annexation and rezone is in the best interest of the City if the property 
is developed in accord with the provisions in Section VII. 

B. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT: 

The Commission and Council shall review the particular facts and circumstances of each proposed 
conditional use in terms of the following, and may approve a conditional use permit if they shall find 
evidence presented at the hearing(s)is adequate to establish: 

a. That the site is large enough to accommodate the proposed use and meet all the dimensional 
and development regulations in the district in which the use is located. 
 
Council finds that if the site is designed in accord with the site plan in Exhibit A and the 
conditions of approval in Exhibit B, the site will be large enough to accommodate the proposed 
use and meet the dimensional and development regulations of the R-40 zoning district and the 
multi-family specific use standards. 
 

Page 270

Item #19.



 

 Page 25  
  

b. That the proposed use will be harmonious with the Meridian Comprehensive Plan and in 
accord with the requirements of this Title. 
 
The proposed multi-family residential use in the R-40 zone meets the objectives of the 
Comprehensive Plan and UDC. 
 

c. That the design, construction, operation and maintenance will be compatible with 
other uses in the general neighborhood and with the existing or intended character 
of the general vicinity and that such use will not adversely change the essential 
character of the same area. 

 
This proposal would allow an additional 36 units to be added to an existing 108-unit multifamily 
development. Most impacts have already been established. The general design, construction, 
operation and maintenance of the multi-family use will be compatible with other residential and 
commercial uses in the general neighborhood and with the existing and intended character of the 
vicinity and will not adversely change the character of the area. 

 
d. That the proposed use, if it complies with all conditions of the approval imposed, 

will not adversely affect other property in the vicinity. 
 
As this is an addition of 36 units to an existing 108-unit multifamily development, impacts have 
already been mostly established and Council finds that the proposed development should not 
adversely affect other property in the vicinity if the applicant complies with all conditions of 
approval listed in Exhibit B of this staff report. 
 

e. That the proposed use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and 
services such as highways, streets, schools, parks, police and fire protection, 
drainage structures, refuse disposal, water, and sewer. 

 
Essential public facilities and services are presently serving the existing development. Sanitary 
sewer, domestic water and irrigation can be made available to additional property.  Please refer 
to comments prepared by the Public Works Department, Fire Department, Police Department 
and other agencies. 

 
f. That the proposed use will not create excessive additional costs for public facilities 

and services and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 
 
This addition will be part of a larger existing multifamily development. The applicant will pay to 
extend the sanitary sewer and water mains into the site. No additional capital facility costs are 
expected from the City. The applicant and/or future property owners will be required to pay 
impact fees. 

 
g.  That the proposed use will not involve activities or processes, materials, equipment and 

conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property or the general 
welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 

 
Council finds that the proposed development will not involve uses that will create nuisances that 
would be detrimental to the general welfare of the surrounding area. Council recognizes there 
will be an increase of traffic and noise with the approval of this development; whenever 
undeveloped property is developed the amount of traffic generation does increase. 

Page 271

Item #19.



 

 Page 26  
  

  
h.  That the proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural, scenic 

or historic feature considered to be of major importance. 
 

Council finds that the proposed development will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of 
any natural feature(s)of major importance. 

 
 

Page 272

Item #19.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Moberly Rezone (H-2021-0089) by 
Carl Argon, Located on Parcel R0406010125, South of W. Broadway Ave. Between NW 2nd St. 
and NW 1st St.

Page 273

Item #20.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (MOBERLY REZONING – FILE # H-2021-0089)  - 1 - 

          CITY OF MERIDIAN 
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW  

AND DECISION & ORDER 

 

In the Matter of the Request for Rezoning 0.16 Acres of Land from I-L to O-T to Allow the 
Construction of a Duplex, by Carl Argon. 

Case No(s). H-2021-0089 

For the City Council Hearing Date of: March 22, 2022 (Findings on April 5, 2022) 
 
A. Findings of Fact 
 

1. Hearing Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of March 22, 2022, incorporated by 
reference) 

 
2.   Process Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of March 22, 2022, incorporated by 

reference) 
 
3.  Application and Property Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of March 22, 2022, 

incorporated by reference) 
 
4.  Required Findings per the Unified Development Code (see attached Staff Report for the hearing 

date of March 22, 2022, incorporated by reference) 
 

B.  Conclusions of Law 
 

1. The City of Meridian shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use 
Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503). 

 
2. The Meridian City Council takes judicial notice of its Unified Development Code codified as 

Title 11 Meridian City Code, and all current zoning maps thereof. The City of Meridian has, by 
ordinance, established the Impact Area and the Comprehensive Plan of the City of Meridian, 
which was adopted December 17, 2019, Resolution No. 19-2179 and Maps. 

 
3. The conditions shall be reviewable by the City Council pursuant to Meridian City Code § 11-5A. 
 
4. Due consideration has been given to the comment(s) received from the governmental 

subdivisions providing services in the City of Meridian planning jurisdiction. 
 
5. It is found public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose 

expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed. 
 
6. That the City has granted an order of approval in  accordance with this Decision, which shall be 

signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and then a copy served by the Clerk upon the applicant, the 
Community Development Department, the Public Works Department and any affected party 
requesting notice.  

 
7. That this approval is subject to the Conditions of Approval all in the attached Staff Report for the 

hearing date of March 22, 2022, incorporated by reference. The conditions are concluded to be 

Page 274

Item #20.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (MOBERLY REZONING – FILE # H-2021-0089)  - 2 - 

reasonable and the applicant shall meet such requirements as a condition of approval of the 
application. 

 
C.  Decision and Order   

 
Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Meridian City Code § 11-5A and based upon 
the above and foregoing Findings of Fact which are herein adopted, it is hereby ordered that:  

 
1. The applicant’s request for rezoning is hereby approved per the conditions of approval in the 

Staff Report for the hearing date of March 22, 2022, attached as Exhibit A. 
 

D.  Notice of Applicable Time Limits  
 

Notice of Preliminary Plat Duration 
 

Please take notice that approval of a preliminary plat, combined preliminary and final plat, or 
short plat shall become null and void if the applicant fails to obtain the city engineer’s signature 
on the final plat within two (2) years of the approval of the preliminary plat or the combined 
preliminary and final plat or short plat (UDC 11-6B-7A). 
 
In the event that the development of the preliminary plat is made in successive phases in an 
orderly and reasonable manner, and conforms substantially to the approved preliminary plat, 
such segments, if submitted within successive intervals of two (2) years, may be considered for 
final approval without resubmission for preliminary plat approval (UDC 11-6B-7B).  
 
Upon written request and filed by the applicant prior to the termination of the period in accord 
with 11-6B-7.A, the Director may authorize a single extension of time to obtain the City 
Engineer’s signature on the final plat not to exceed two (2) years. Additional time extensions up 
to two (2) years as determined and approved by the City Council may be granted. With all 
extensions, the Director or City Council may require the preliminary plat, combined 
preliminary and final plat or short plat to comply with the current provisions of Meridian City 
Code Title 11. If the above timetable is not met and the applicant does not receive a time 
extension, the property shall be required to go through the platting procedure again (UDC 11-
6B-7C).  

Notice of Development Agreement Duration 

The city and/or an applicant may request a development agreement or a modification to a 
development agreement consistent with Idaho Code section 67-6511A. The development 
agreement may be initiated by the city or applicant as part of a request for annexation and/or 
rezone at any time prior to the adoption of findings for such request. 

A development agreement may be modified by the city or an affected party of the development 
agreement. Decision on the development agreement modification is made by the city council in 
accord with this chapter. When approved, said development agreement shall be signed by the 
property owner(s) and returned to the city within six (6) months of the city council granting the 
modification. 

A modification to the development agreement may be initiated prior to signature of the 
agreement by all parties and/or may be requested to extend the time allowed for the agreement 
to be signed and returned to the city if filed prior to the end of the six (6) month approval 

Page 275

Item #20.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (MOBERLY REZONING – FILE # H-2021-0089)  - 3 - 

period.  

E.  Judicial Review 

 Pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-6521(1)(d), if this final decision concerns a matter enumerated in Idaho 
Code § 67-6521(1)(a), an affected person aggrieved by this final  decision may, within twenty-eight 
(28) days after all remedies  have been exhausted, including requesting reconsideration of this final 
decision as provided by Meridian City Code § 1-7-10, seek judicial review of this final decision as 
provided by chapter 52, title 67, Idaho Code. This notice is provided as a courtesy;  the City of 
Meridian does not admit by this notice that this decision is subject to judicial review under LLUPA.  

F.  Notice of Right to Regulatory Takings Analysis 

 Pursuant to Idaho Code §§ 67-6521(1)(d) and 67-8003, an owner of private property that is the 
subject of a final decision may submit a written request with the Meridian City Clerk for a regulatory 
takings analysis. 

G. Attached:  Staff Report for the hearing date of March 22, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 276

Item #20.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (MOBERLY REZONING – FILE # H-2021-0089)  - 4 - 

By action of the City Council at its regular meeting held on the ___________ day of ________________, 
[year]. 

 
COUNCIL PRESIDENT BRAD HOAGLUN   VOTED_______ 

 
 
COUNCIL VICE PRESIDENT JOE BORTON   VOTED_______  

  
 
COUNCIL MEMBER JESSICA PERREAULT   VOTED_______ 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER LUKE CAVENER    VOTED_______ 
 
 

 COUNCIL MEMBER TREG BERNT    VOTED_______ 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER LIZ STRADER    VOTED_______ 

 
MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON     VOTED_______ 
(TIE BREAKER) 
 

 
            
     Mayor Robert Simison 

   

 Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Chris Johnson 
City Clerk 

 

Copy served upon Applicant, Community Development Department, Public Works Department and City 
Attorney. 
 
 

By: __________________________________   Dated: ________________________ 
     City Clerk’s Office 
 
 

Page 277

Item #20.



 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 
 

 Page 1  
  

HEARING 
DATE: 

3/22/2022 

 

TO: Mayor & City Council 

FROM: Alan Tiefenbach, Associate Planner 
208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: H-2021-0089 
Moberly Rezone 

LOCATION: Parcel R0406010125, located south of W. 
Broadway Ave., between NW 2nd St and 
NW 1st St. 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

This is a request to rezone 0.16 acres of land from I-L to O-T to allow the construction of a 
duplex. 

II. SUMMARY OF REPORT 

1. Project Summary 
Description Details Page 
Acreage 0.16 acres  
Future Land Use Designation Old Town (O-T)  
Existing Land Use(s) Vacant  
Proposed Land Use(s) One duplex  
Lots (# and type; bldg./common) 1 lot  
Phasing Plan (# of phases) NA  
Number of Residential Units (type 
of units) 

2  

Density  12 du/ac  
Open Space (acres, total 
[%]/buffer/qualified) 

None required  

Amenities NA  
Physical Features (waterways, 
hazards, flood plain, hillside) 

No unique physical features  

Neighborhood meeting date; # of 
attendees: 

Octboer 19, 2021 – 4 attendees  

History (previous approvals) J.M. Anderson’s Second Addition, platted in 1905  
 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Page 278

Item #20.



 

 Page 2  
  

2. Community Metrics 
Description Details Page 
Ada County Highway District No traffic impact study required  
• Staff report (yes/no) No  
• Requires ACHD Commission 

Action (yes/no) 
No  

Access (Arterial/Collectors/State 
Hwy/Local)(Existing and Proposed) 

Access will occur from an alley accessed from W. 
Broadway Ave and W. Railroad St  

 

Stub Street/Interconnectivity/Cross 
Access 

None  

Existing Road Network NW 2nd St, W. Broadway Ave, W. Railroad St and NW 1st 
St. 

 

Existing Arterial Sidewalks / 
Buffers 

No buffers proposed or required  

Proposed Road Improvements No road improvements required, sidewalk will be required 
along the NW 2nd St frontage 

 

Distance to nearest City Park (+ 
size) 

Approx. 1/4 mile to Centennial Park  

Fire Service No comments  
Police Service No comments  
Wastewater   
• Comments • Additional 306 gpd committed to model. Total 

committed flow to treatment plant is 14.25 MGD. 
• Currently sewer is from back alleyway to the west. 

However, City is planning on abandoning the line in 
the alley and installing a new main in W 1st St. The 
plan is for this project to start Spring of 2022. If the 
applicant wishes to connect to sewer in the alleyway 
before the new sewer is installed they will be required 
to install a dry line to the east property boundary for 
easy connection to the new main once built. 

 

Water   
Distance to Water Services 0  
Pressure Zone 2  
Water Quality No concerns  
Project Consistent with Water 

Master Plan 
Yes  

Impacts/Concerns A utility plan will need to be submitted, reviewed and 
approved by PW.   

 

 
  

Page 279

Item #20.



 

 Page 3  
  

 
3. Project Area Maps 

III. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant: 

Carl Argon – 4515 E. Copper Point Dr. Meridian, ID 83642 

B. Owner: 

Moberly Holdings, LLC -  4408 W. Saddle Ridge Dr., Nampa, ID 83687 

Future Land Use Map 

 

Aerial Map 

 
Zoning Map Planned Development Map 

 
 

 
 

Page 280

Item #20.



 

 Page 4  
  

IV. NOTICING 

 Planning & Zoning 
Posting Date 

City Council 
Posting Date 

Newspaper Notification 1/18/2022 3/7/2022 
Radius notification mailed to 
properties within 300 feet 1/14/2022 3/7/2022 

Sign Posting 1/24/2022 3/8/2022 
Nextdoor posting 1/14/2022 3/8/2022 

V. STAFF ANALYSIS 

This is a proposal to rezone from I-L to O-T to allow for the construction of duplex.  

The subject property is a vacant lot comprising 0.16-acres which is zoned I-L. Along NW 1st St. (east 
side of the property) is predominately single family, multifamily and duplexes, nearly all of which is 
at least 50 years of age (with many dating back to the early 1900s). West of the property is a mixture 
of industrial uses, a food bank, religious facility and residential, both single family and attached. 
North of the property is single family attached and multifamily. One of the properties approximately 
100 feet to the north is already zoned O-T (631 NW 1ST St). Railroad tracks are approximately 200 
feet south of the property. An alley borders the property along the west. 

1. Rezoning 

The applicant proposes to rezone from I-L to O-T to construct a duplex. A duplex is a principally-
permitted use in the O-T zoning district and the zoning would be in conformance with the FLUM 
as described below. 

The City may require a development agreement (DA) in conjunction with a rezoning pursuant to 
Idaho Code section 67-6511A. As this property is already within the City, the infrastructure 
surrounding the property has already been installed, and all other requirements have been 
addressed through pertinent regulations, staff comments, and the design review required for the 
duplex, staff is not recommending a development agreement with this rezoning.  

2. Future Land Use Map Designation (https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan) 

The FLUM recommends the property for Old Town. This designation includes the historic 
downtown and the true community center. Sample uses include offices, retail and lodging, 
theatres, restaurants, and service retail for surrounding residents and visitors. A variety of 
residential uses are also envisioned and could include reuse of existing buildings, new 
construction of multi-family residential over ground floor retail or office uses. 

The purpose of the O-T district is to accommodate and encourage further intensification of the 
historical city center in accord with the Meridian Comprehensive Plan. The intent of the O-T 
district is to delineate a centralized activity center and to encourage its renewal, revitalization and 
growth as the public, quasi-public, cultural, financial and recreational center of the city. Public 
and quasi- public uses integrated with general business, and medium high to high density 
residential is encouraged to provide the appropriate mix and intensity of activities necessary to 
establish a truly urban city center. 

The applicant proposes to construct a duplex (2units) on the subject property once the rezone 
process is concluded. Although the Plan does specifically mention multi-family residential over 
ground floor retail or office uses, the property is surrounded on three sides by existing one story 
residential and multifamily with only a small number of industrial or non-residential uses in close 

Page 281

Item #20.

https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan


 

 Page 5  
  

proximity. Although a work / live situation is feasible, because the subject property is on a 
residential street with no commercial frontage, staff finds the proposed residential use in this area 
appropriate.  

3. Comprehensive Plan Policies (https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan): 

• Encourage diverse housing options suitable for various income levels, household sizes, and 
lifestyle preferences. (2.01.01) 

This application is for a rezoning from I-L to O-T to allow a duplex on an infill site. This would 
allow for more diversity in housing. 

• Maintain a range of residential land use designations that allow diverse lot sizes, housing types, 
and densities. (2.01.01C) 

A duplex would increase the diversity in lot sizes, housing types and densities.  

• Encourage the development of high quality, dense residential and mixed-use areas near in and 
around Downtown, near employment, large shopping centers, public open spaces and parks, and 
along major transportation corridors, as shown on the Future Land Use Map. (2.02.01E) 

The subject property is an infill site near the downtown core, within a large area which is 
designated for Old Town zoning by the Comprehensive Plan, near N. Meridian Rd., a principal 
arterial, and is within walking distance of a large amount of goods, services and jobs. 

• Encourage infill development. (3.03.01E.) 

The property is vacant property, surrounded by existing residential development on all sides, 
except for a body repair shop directly to the west. This is an infill development.  

• Ensure development is connected to City of Meridian water and sanitary sewer systems and the 
extension to and through said developments are constructed in conformance with the City of 
Meridian Water and Sewer System Master Plans in effect at the time of development. (3.03.03A) 

This project can be serviced by City of Meridian water and sewer, and all infrastructure will be 
designed in conformance with City standards.  

4. Existing Structures/Site Improvements: 

The property is presently vacant.  

5. Proposed Use Analysis:  

The applicant proposes to rezone from I-L to O-T to construct a duplex. This is a principally-
permitted use in the O-T zoning district subject to applicable standards for development in the 
traditional neighborhood districts.   

6. Dimensional Standards (UDC 11-2): 

UDC 11-2D-4 requires a minimum height of 35 feet and all buildings should be a minimum of 2-
stories. There are no minimum setbacks in the O-T zoning district. The proposed elevations 
reflect a building that is 2-stories.  

7. Access (UDC 11-3A-3, 11-3H-4): 

The subject property would be alley-loaded. This brings the building closer to the street and 
removes garages and driveways from the front view of the home. This is consistent with new 
urbanist principles in an old town zone district.  Access will occur via an alley at the west which 
connects from W. Broadway to W. Railroad St. At present, there is a dumpster blocking the alley 
north of the property. This requires access to occur by traveling southbound on NW 2nd St and 

Page 282

Item #20.

https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?chapter_id=6499#183704
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=20923&keywords=#1165290
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=734279#734279


 

 Page 6  
  

then eastbound on W. Railroad St, which is a one-way street. There is presently a fence in the 
location where the driveway is proposed, but staff did confirm by a site visit that the 16 ft. wide 
alley to the location of the proposed driveway is adequate. ACHD and Fire have reviewed the 
proposed access configuration and have not expressed comments or concerns.  

8. Parking (UDC 11-3C): 

The applicant proposes a duplex with two-bedroom units. UDC 11-3C-6 requires 2 parking 
spaces per dwelling unit with at least one in an enclosed garage, other spaces may be enclosed or 
a minimum 10-foot by 20-foot parking pad. 

The concept site plan reflects two one-car garages with a driveway area of 30 ft. long by 44 ft. 
wide. In addition, there is plenty of on-street guest parking along NW 1st Street. The parking 
provided meets the minimum requirements of 11-3C. As required per UDC 11-3C-5, all off street 
parking areas and driveways into and through a parking area shall be improved with a compacted 
gravel base, not less than four (4) inches thick, surfaced with asphaltic pavement. 

9. Sidewalks (UDC 11-3A-17): 

There is presently no sidewalk, curb or gutter along NW 1st St. The applicant will be required to 
install a sidewalk a minimum of 5 ft. in width as required per UDC 11-3A-17. 

10. Landscaping (UDC 11-3B): 

A landscape buffer is not required for a duplex in the O-T zone district. The UDC does not 
regulate landscaping on residential lots.    

11. Fencing (UDC 11-3A-6, 11-3A-7): 

There is existing fencing along the side and rear property line. The rear fencing would need to be 
removed to accommodate parking at the alley-loaded structure. Any new or relocated fencing 
should comply with fencing regulations per UDC 11-3A-7. 

12. Utilities (UDC 11-3A-21): 

Public services are available to accommodate the proposed development.  

13. Building Elevations (UDC 11-3A-19 | Architectural Standards Manual): 

A conceptual elevation was provided with this application. The elevation indicates a structure 
with pitched roofs, fishscale accents, clapboard siding, shuttered windows and a small ground 
level patio on each side. As is required by the O-T zoning district, the units are at least two-
stories, although the elevations do not indicate whether the minimum required 35’ height is met.  

Design review is required prior to building permit. The dwelling units will be reviewed against 
the Architectural Standards Manual (ASM). The ASM for residential requires visually heavier 
and more massive elements or materials, such as stone or masonry, primarily at the base of 
buildings, and lighter elements and materials such as siding. Also, the ASM states primary 
building entries to be clearly defined using any unique combination of architectural elements, 
materials, or façade modulation meeting other architectural standards in the Manual.  

The elevations show a combined front entrance inset for both units with minimal overhang. This 
project is near the downtown core and is being proposed for Old-Town zoning. A key element of 
old-town design is walkability in residential areas, bringing houses to the street with narrow 
setbacks (or build-to’s) and offering a sense of community and gathering places through the uses 
of useable porches. In order to set the precedent for how NW 1st develops in the future, staff 
recommends a condition of approval that at time of design review submittal the structure shall 

Page 283

Item #20.

https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=20924&keywords=#20924
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=20923&keywords=#1165304
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=6506&keywords=#6506
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165293#1165293
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165294#1165294
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165308#1165308
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165306#1165306
https://meridiancity.org/designreview


 

 Page 7  
  

include a ground-level covered porch for each unit (individual or combined) of sufficient size to 
allow covered seating at the front.  

VI. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed rezoning from I-L to O-T with the conditions noted 
in Section VII of this report. 

B.  The Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission heard this item on February 3, 2021. At the public 
hearing, the Commission moved to approve the subject rezone request. 

 1. Summary of the Commission public hearing: 
  a. In favor: Carl Argon 
  b. In opposition: Rebecca Weland, Don Weland and Bogdan Martsenyuk  
  c. Commenting: Carl Argon 
  d. Written testimony: None 
  e. Staff presenting application: Alan Tiefenbach 
  f. Other Staff commenting on application: None 
 2. Key issue(s) of public testimony: 
  a. Two-story height of buildings. 
  b Using the alley for access and whether it would impact the food bank. 
  c Desire to keep the neighborhood industrial. 
 3. Key issue(s) of discussion by Commission: 
  a. Whether there were other 2-story buildings in the vicinity. 
  b. Whether the Plan recommendations of Old Town made sense in this area. 
  c. Concerns regarding preservation of buildings and how new buildings could be 

compatible. 
 4. Commission change(s) to Staff recommendation: 
  a. Commission recommended a condition of approval that architectural design and 

materials should be generally consistent with neighborhood aesthetics.  
 

C.  The Meridian City Council heard these items on March 22, 2022. At the public hearing, the 
Council moved to approve the subject rezoning request. 

 1. Summary of the City Council public hearing: 
  a. In favor: Carl Argon 
  b. In opposition: None 
  c. Commenting: None 
  d. Written testimony: None 
  e. Staff presenting application: Alan Tiefenbach 
  f. Other Staff commenting on application: None 
 2. Key issue(s) of public testimony: 
  a. None 
 3. Key issue(s) of discussion by City Council: 
  a. None 
 4. City Council change(s) to Commission recommendation: 
  a. None 

 

  

Page 284

Item #20.



 

 Page 8  
  

VII. EXHIBITS 

1. Building Envelope and Elevations (date: 3/22/2022) 

  
 

 

  

Page 285

Item #20.



 

 Page 9  
  

 

2. Rezoning Legal Description (date: 12/9/2021) 

  

Page 286

Item #20.



 

 Page 10  
  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 287

Item #20.



 

 Page 11  
  

VIII. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

A. PLANNING 
Staff Comments: 

1. Administrative design review is required prior to building permit for all new attached residential 
structures containing two (2) or more dwelling units. Elevations should include at least two field 
materials, accent materials, a heavier accent material around the base of the buildings, covered 
porches, and overhangs matching the rooflines or porches over the garage doors. 

2. The duplex shall include a ground-level covered porch at the front for each unit (individual or 
combined) of sufficient size to allow covered seating. Conformance will be reviewed at time of 
design review.  

3. Architectural design and materials shall be generally consistent with neighborhood 
aesthetics. 

4. All off street parking areas and driveways shall be improved with a compacted gravel base, not 
less than four (4) inches thick, surfaced with asphaltic pavement, as required per UDC 11-3C-5.  

5. Sidewalk should be constructed along NW 1st Street pursuant to UDC 11-3A-17. 

6. Staff’s failure to cite specific ordinance provisions does not relieve the applicant of responsibility 
for compliance. 

7. The applicant shall construct all proposed fencing and/or any fencing required by the UDC, 
consistent with the standards as set forth in UDC 11-3A-7 and 11-3A-6B, as applicable. 

8. The development shall comply with all provisions of the O-T zoning district as set forth in UDC 
11-2D-1. 

B. PUBLIC WORKS CONDITIONS: 

Site Specific Conditions: 

1. There is a sewer main running through the alley on the west side of this parcel that currently 
serves the area, however, the City will be installing a new line in West 1st Street which will need 
to be utilized. The applicant can use the current sewer line, but must install a dry line to the east 
for future connection to the new main once it is built. 

2. A utility plan must be provided for review and approval by the City with the building permit 
application. 

General Conditions: 

3. Any structures that are allowed to remain shall be subject to evaluation and possible reassignment 
of street addressing to be in compliance with MCC. 

4. All irrigation ditches, canals, laterals, or drains, exclusive of natural waterways, intersecting, 
crossing or laying adjacent and contiguous to the area being subdivided shall be addressed per 
UDC 11-3A-6.  In performing such work, the applicant shall comply with Idaho Code 42-1207 
and any other applicable law or regulation. 

5. Any wells that will not continue to be used must be properly abandoned according to Idaho Well 
Construction Standards Rules administered by the Idaho Department of Water Resources.  The 
Developer’s Engineer shall provide a statement addressing whether there are any existing wells in 

Page 288

Item #20.



 

 Page 12  
  

the development, and if so, how they will continue to be used, or provide record of their 
abandonment.   

6. Any existing septic systems within this project shall be removed from service per City Ordinance 
Section 9-1-4 and 9 4 8.  Contact Central District Health for abandonment procedures and 
inspections (208)375-5211. 

7.  All improvements related to public life, safety and health shall be completed prior to occupancy 
of the structures. 

8. Applicant shall be required to pay Public Works development plan review, and construction 
inspection fees, as determined during the plan review process, prior to the issuance of a plan 
approval letter. 
 

9. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all development features comply with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act. 
 

10. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with any Section 404 Permitting 
that may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers. 
 

11.  Developer shall coordinate mailbox locations with the Meridian Post Office. 
 

12. Compaction test results shall be submitted to the Meridian Building Department for all building 
pads receiving engineered backfill, where footing would sit atop fill material. 

 
13.  The applicants design engineer shall be responsible for inspection of all irrigation and/or    

drainage facility within this project that do not fall under the jurisdiction of an irrigation district 
or ACHD. The design engineer shall provide certification that the facilities have been installed in 
accordance with the approved design plans. This certification will be required before a certificate 
of occupancy is issued for any structures within the project. 
 

C. NAMPA & MERIDIAN IRRIGATION DISTRICT (NMID) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=250046&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity 

IX. FINDINGS 

A.  Rezoning 

Required Findings: Upon recommendation from the commission, the council shall make a full 
investigation and shall, at the public hearing, review the application. In order to grant an 
annexation and/or rezone, the council shall make the following findings: 

1. The map amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the comprehensive 
plan; 

Council finds the proposed zoning map amendment to rezone the property from the I-L 
zoning district to the O-T zoning district is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, if all 
conditions of approval are met. 

2. The map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the proposed districts, 
specifically the purpose statement; 

Council finds the proposed zoning map amendment and the request for the development 

Page 289

Item #20.

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=250046&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=250046&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity


 

 Page 13  
  

complies with the regulations outlined in the requested O-T zoning district and is consistent 
with the purpose statement of the requested traditional neighborhood zoning districts in 
general. 

3. The map amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, 
and welfare; 

As this is an infill site surrounded by predominately residential development, Council finds 
the proposed zoning map amendment should not be detrimental to the public health, safety 
and welfare. 

4. The map amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services 
by any political subdivision providing public services within the city including, but not 
limited to, school districts; and 

Council finds the proposed zoning map amendment will not result in an adverse impact on 
the delivery of services by any political subdivision providing public services within the City. 

5. The annexation (as applicable) is in the best interest of city. 

Subject site is already annexed so Council finds this finding nonapplicable. 

 

 

Page 290

Item #20.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Victory Commons Condominiums 
(SHP-2022-0002) by BVA Development, Located at 2976 S. Meridian Rd. (Lot 4, Block 1 of Victory
Commons Subdivision No 2)

Page 291

Item #21.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (Victory Commons Condominiums – FILE #SHP-2022-0002) 
 - 1 - 

          CITY OF MERIDIAN 
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW  

AND DECISION & ORDER 

 

In the Matter of the Request for a Short Plat to Condominiumize an Existing Building to Create 
Ten (10) Units for Ownership Purposes, on 2.419 Acres of Land in the C-G Zoning District, by 
BVA Development. 

Case No(s). SHP-2022-0002 

For the City Council Hearing Date of: March 22, 2022 (Findings on April 5, 2022) 
 
A. Findings of Fact 
 

1. Hearing Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of March 22, 2022, incorporated by 
reference) 

 
2.   Process Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of March 22, 2022, incorporated by 

reference) 
 
3.  Application and Property Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of March 22, 2022, 

incorporated by reference) 
 
4.  Required Findings per the Unified Development Code (see attached Staff Report for the hearing 

date of March 22, 2022, incorporated by reference) 
 

B.  Conclusions of Law 
 

1. The City of Meridian shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use 
Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503). 

 
2. The Meridian City Council takes judicial notice of its Unified Development Code codified as 

Title 11 Meridian City Code, and all current zoning maps thereof. The City of Meridian has, by 
ordinance, established the Impact Area and the Comprehensive Plan of the City of Meridian, 
which was adopted December 17, 2019, Resolution No. 19-2179 and Maps. 

 
3. The conditions shall be reviewable by the City Council pursuant to Meridian City Code § 11-5A. 
 
4. Due consideration has been given to the comment(s) received from the governmental 

subdivisions providing services in the City of Meridian planning jurisdiction. 
 
5. It is found public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose 

expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed. 
 
6. That the City has granted an order of approval in  accordance with this Decision, which shall be 

signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and then a copy served by the Clerk upon the applicant, the 
Community Development Department, the Public Works Department and any affected party 
requesting notice.  

 

Page 292

Item #21.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (Victory Commons Condominiums – FILE #SHP-2022-0002) 
 - 2 - 

7. That this approval is subject to the Conditions of Approval all in the attached Staff Report for the 
hearing date of March 22, 2022, incorporated by reference. The conditions are concluded to be 
reasonable and the applicant shall meet such requirements as a condition of approval of the 
application. 

 
C.  Decision and Order   

 
Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Meridian City Code § 11-5A and based upon 
the above and foregoing Findings of Fact which are herein adopted, it is hereby ordered that:  

 
1. The applicant’s request for Short Plat is hereby approved per the conditions of approval in the 

Staff Report for the hearing date of March 22, 2022, attached as Exhibit A. 
 

D.  Notice of Applicable Time Limits  
 

Notice of Preliminary Plat Duration 
 

Please take notice that approval of a preliminary plat, combined preliminary and final plat, or 
short plat shall become null and void if the applicant fails to obtain the city engineer’s signature 
on the final plat within two (2) years of the approval of the preliminary plat or the combined 
preliminary and final plat or short plat (UDC 11-6B-7A). 
 
In the event that the development of the preliminary plat is made in successive phases in an 
orderly and reasonable manner, and conforms substantially to the approved preliminary plat, 
such segments, if submitted within successive intervals of two (2) years, may be considered for 
final approval without resubmission for preliminary plat approval (UDC 11-6B-7B).  
 
Upon written request and filed by the applicant prior to the termination of the period in accord 
with 11-6B-7.A, the Director may authorize a single extension of time to obtain the City 
Engineer’s signature on the final plat not to exceed two (2) years. Additional time extensions up 
to two (2) years as determined and approved by the City Council may be granted. With all 
extensions, the Director or City Council may require the preliminary plat, combined 
preliminary and final plat or short plat to comply with the current provisions of Meridian City 
Code Title 11. If the above timetable is not met and the applicant does not receive a time 
extension, the property shall be required to go through the platting procedure again (UDC 11-
6B-7C).  

Notice of Development Agreement Duration 

The city and/or an applicant may request a development agreement or a modification to a 
development agreement consistent with Idaho Code section 67-6511A. The development 
agreement may be initiated by the city or applicant as part of a request for annexation and/or 
rezone at any time prior to the adoption of findings for such request. 

A development agreement may be modified by the city or an affected party of the development 
agreement. Decision on the development agreement modification is made by the city council in 
accord with this chapter. When approved, said development agreement shall be signed by the 
property owner(s) and returned to the city within six (6) months of the city council granting the 
modification. 

A modification to the development agreement may be initiated prior to signature of the 
agreement by all parties and/or may be requested to extend the time allowed for the agreement 

Page 293

Item #21.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (Victory Commons Condominiums – FILE #SHP-2022-0002) 
 - 3 - 

to be signed and returned to the city if filed prior to the end of the six (6) month approval 
period.  

E.  Notice of Final Action and Right to Regulatory Takings Analysis 

1. Please take notice that this is a final action of the governing body of the City of Meridian. 
When applicable and pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-6521, any affected person being a person 
who has an interest in real property which may be adversely affected by the final action of the 
governing board may within twenty-eight (28) days after the date of this decision and order 
seek a judicial review as provided by Chapter 52, Title 67, Idaho Code. 

F. Attached:  Staff Report for the hearing date of March 22, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 294

Item #21.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (Victory Commons Condominiums – FILE #SHP-2022-0002) 
 - 4 - 

By action of the City Council at its regular meeting held on the ___________ day of ________________, 
2022. 

 
COUNCIL PRESIDENT TREG BERNT    VOTED_______ 

 
 
COUNCIL VICE PRESIDENT BRAD HOAGLUN  VOTED_______ 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER JESSICA PERREAULT   VOTED_______ 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER LUKE CAVENER    VOTED_______ 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER JOE BORTON    VOTED_______ 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER LIZ STRADER    VOTED_______ 

 
 

MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON     VOTED_______ 
(TIE BREAKER) 
 

 
            
     Mayor Robert Simison 

   

 Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Chris Johnson 
City Clerk 

 

Copy served upon Applicant, Community Development Department, Public Works Department and City 
Attorney. 
 
 

By: __________________________________   Dated: ________________________ 
     City Clerk’s Office 
 
 

Page 295

Item #21.



 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 
 

 Page 1  
  

HEARING 
DATE: 

3/22/2022 

 

TO: Mayor & City Council 

FROM: Alan Tiefenbach, Associate Planner 
208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: SHP-2022-0002 
Victory Commons Condominiums 

LOCATION: The site is located at 2976 S. Meridian 
Rd., in the southwest ¼ of Section 19, 
T.3N. R.1E. 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Short plat to condominiumize an existing building to create ten (10) units for ownership purposes, by 
BVA Development. 

II. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant: 

Jackson Cleverley, BVA Development – 2775 W. Navigator Dr, Meridian, ID 83642 

B. Owner: 

BVA Victory Commons Flex No 1 LLC - PO Box 51298, Idaho Falls, Idaho 83405 

C. Representative: 

Same as Applicant 

III. NOTICING 

 City Council 
Posting Date 

Legal notice published in 
newspaper 3/6/2022 

Radius notice mailed to property 
owners within 500 feet 3/7/2022 

Posted to Next Door 3/8/2022 

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Page 296

Item #21.



 

 Page 2  
  

IV. STAFF ANALYSIS 

The subject property contains an existing 29,600 sq. ft. flex building which was approved by 
Certificate of Zoning Compliance in April of 2020 (A-2020-0007). At the time the CZC was 
approved, the property was being constructed on a lot that was platted with the Mussell Corner 
Subdivision.  

In June of 2020, the property was replatted as Lot 4, Block 1 of Victory Commons Subdivision (H-
2020-0086). In March of 2022, the lot was reconfigured as Lot 4, Block 2 of Victory Commons 
Subdivision No. 2 (H-2021-0054).  

The present proposal is to condominiumize the existing building into 10 units of air space.  The 
individual unit spaces can be seen on Page 2 of the short plat shown in Section VI.A.  

Staff has reviewed the proposed short plat for substantial compliance with the criteria set forth in 
UDC 11-6B-5A.2 and deems the short plat to be in compliance with said requirements.  

V. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed short plat with the conditions noted in Section VII of 
this report and in accord with the findings in Section VIII. 

B.  The Meridian City Council heard these items on March 22, 2022. At the public hearing, the 
Council moved to approve the subject short plat request. 

 1. Summary of the City Council public hearing: 
  a. In favor: Tom Peterson 
  b. In opposition: None 
  c. Commenting: None 
  d. Written testimony: None 
  e. Staff presenting application: Alan Tiefenbach 
  f. Other Staff commenting on application: None 
 2. Key issue(s) of public testimony: 
  a. One citizen testified with concerns regarding traffic and construction impacts of the 

Victory Commons development.  
 3. Key issue(s) of discussion by City Council: 
  a. None 
 4. City Council change(s) to Commission recommendation: 
  a. None 

 

  

Page 297

Item #21.



 

 Page 3  
  

VI. EXHIBITS  

A. Short Plat (date: 11/8/2021) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 298

Item #21.



 

 Page 4  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 299

Item #21.



 

 Page 5  
  

VII. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

A. PLANNING DIVISION 

Site Specific Conditions: 
 
1. All development shall comply with the terms of the approved preliminary plat (H-2019-

0150), development agreement (Inst. 2019-119405), final plat (H-2021-0054), certificate of 
zoning compliance (A-2020-0007) and any future amendments to that agreement as 
applicable. 

2. Prior to submittal for the City Engineer’s signature, have the Certificate of Owners and the 
accompanying acknowledgement signed and notarized, as well as the signatures of the Ada 
County Highway District and the Central District Health Department. 

3. Staff’s failure to cite specific ordinance provisions or conditions from the previous approvals 
noted above does not relieve the Applicant of responsibility for compliance. 

B. PUBLIC WORKS   

(Common) SITE SPECIFIC CONDITIONS: 

1. Developer is required to enter into a reimbursement agreement for the installation of one streetlight 
that was installed on Chinden Boulevard as part of the widening project. The developer is required 
to sign the reimbursement agreement and pay the installation amount of $8,465.00 prior to signature 
of the plat.  

2. No changes to public works infrastructure was shown with the application, any public works 
changes must be reviewed by public works engineering prior to approval or construction.  

GENERAL CONDITIONS: 

1. Sanitary sewer service to this development is available via extension of existing mains adjacent to 
the development. The applicant shall install mains to and through this subdivision; applicant shall 
coordinate main size and routing with the Public Works Department, and execute standard forms 
of easements for any mains that are required to provide service.  Minimum cover over sewer mains 
is three feet, if cover from top of pipe to sub-grade is less than three feet than alternate materials 
shall be used in conformance of City of Meridian Public Works Departments Standard 
Specifications.   

2. Water service to this site is available via extension of existing mains adjacent to the development. 
The applicant shall be responsible to install water mains to and through this development, 
coordinate main size and routing with Public Works. 

3. All improvements related to public life, safety and health shall be completed prior to occupancy of 
the structures. Where approved by the City Engineer, an owner may post a performance surety for 
such improvements in order to obtain City Engineer signature on the final plat as set forth in UDC 
11-5C-3B. 

4. Upon installation of the landscaping and prior to inspection by Planning Department staff, the 
applicant shall provide a written certificate of completion as set forth in UDC 11-3B-14A. 

5. A letter of credit or cash surety in the amount of 110% will be required for all incomplete fencing, 
landscaping, amenities, pressurized irrigation, prior to signature on the final plat. 

6. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post with the City a performance surety in the amount 
of 125% of the total construction cost for all incomplete sewer, water infrastructure prior to final 
plat signature. This surety will be verified by a line item cost estimate provided by the owner to the 

Page 300

Item #21.



 

 Page 6  
  

City.  The applicant shall be required to enter into a Development Surety Agreement with the City 
of Meridian. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit or 
bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be found on the Community 
Development Department website.  Please contact Land Development Service for more 
information at 887-2211. 

7. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a warranty surety in the amount of 
20% of the total construction cost for all completed sewer, and water infrastructure for a duration 
of two years. This surety amount will be verified by a line item final cost invoicing provided by the 
owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash 
deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be found on the 
Community Development Department website.  Please contact Land Development Service for 
more information at 887-2211. 

8. In the event that an applicant and/or owner cannot complete non-life, non-safety and non-health 
improvements, prior to City Engineer signature on the final plat and/or prior to occupancy, a surety 
agreement may be approved as set forth in UDC 11-5C-3C. 

9. Applicant shall be required to pay Public Works development plan review, and construction 
inspection fees, as determined during the plan review process, prior to the issuance of a plan 
approval letter. 

10. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all development features comply with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act. 

11. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with any Section 404 Permitting that 
may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers. 

12. Developer shall coordinate mailbox locations with the Meridian Post Office. 

13. All grading of the site shall be performed in conformance with MCC 11-1-4B. 

14. Compaction test results shall be submitted to the Meridian Building Department for all building 
pads receiving engineered backfill, where footing would sit atop fill material. 

15. The engineer shall be required to certify that the street centerline elevations are set a minimum of 
3-feet above the highest established peak groundwater elevation.  This is to ensure that the bottom 
elevation of the crawl spaces of homes is at least 1-foot above. 

16. The applicants design engineer shall be responsible for inspection of all irrigation and/or    drainage 
facility within this project that do not fall under the jurisdiction of an irrigation district or ACHD. 
The design engineer shall provide certification that the facilities have been installed in accordance 
with the approved design plans. This certification will be required before a certificate of occupancy 
is issued for any structures within the project.  

17. At the completion of the project, the applicant shall be responsible to submit record drawings per 
the City of Meridian AutoCAD standards.  These record drawings must be received and approved 
prior to the issuance of a certification of occupancy for any structures within the project.  

18. Street light plan requirements are listed in section 6-7 of the Improvement Standards for Street 
Lighting (http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272).  All street lights shall be 
installed at developer’s expense.  Final design shall be submitted as part of the development plan 
set for approval, which must include the location of any existing street lights.  The contractor’s 
work and materials shall conform to the ISPWC and the City of Meridian Supplemental 
Specifications to the ISPWC. Contact the City of Meridian Transportation and Utility Coordinator 
at 898-5500 for information on the locations of existing street lighting. 

Page 301

Item #21.



 

 Page 7  
  

19. The applicant shall provide easement(s) for all public water/sewer mains outside of public right of 
way (include all water services and hydrants).  The easement widths shall be 20-feet wide for a 
single utility, or 30-feet wide for two.  The easements shall not be dedicated via the plat, but rather 
dedicated outside the plat process using the City of Meridian’s standard forms. The easement shall 
be graphically depicted on the plat for reference purposes. Submit an executed easement (on the 
form available from Public Works), a legal description prepared by an Idaho Licensed Professional 
Land Surveyor, which must include the area of the easement (marked EXHIBIT A) and an 81/2” x 
11” map with bearings and distances (marked EXHIBIT B) for review. Both exhibits must be 
sealed, signed and dated by a Professional Land Surveyor. DO NOT RECORD.  Add a note to the 
plat referencing this document.  All easements must be submitted, reviewed, and approved prior to 
signature of the final plat by the City Engineer. 

20. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with and NPDES permitting that 
may be required by the Environmental Protection Agency. 

21. Any wells that will not continue to be used must be properly abandoned according to Idaho Well 
Construction Standards Rules administered by the Idaho Department of Water Resources.  The 
Developer’s Engineer shall provide a statement addressing whether there are any existing wells in 
the development, and if so, how they will continue to be used, or provide record of their 
abandonment.   

22. Any existing septic systems within this project shall be removed from service per City Ordinance 
Section 9-1-4 and 9 4 8. Contact the Central District Health Department for abandonment 
procedures and inspections. 

23. The City of Meridian requires that pressurized irrigation systems be supplied by a year-round 
source of water (MCC 9-1-28.C.1). The applicant should be required to use any existing surface or 
well water for the primary source.  If a surface or well source is not available, a single-point 
connection to the culinary water system shall be required. If a single-point connection is utilized, 
the developer will be responsible for the payment of assessments for the common areas prior to 
development plan approval. 

24. All irrigation ditches, canals, laterals, or drains, exclusive of natural waterways, intersecting, 
crossing or laying adjacent and contiguous to the area being subdivided shall be addressed per UDC 
11-3A-6.  In performing such work, the applicant shall comply with Idaho Code 42-1207 and any 
other applicable law or regulation. 

VIII. REQUIRED FINDINGS FROM THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 

In consideration of a short plat, the decision-making body shall make the following findings: 

A. The plat is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan and is consistent with the 
Unified Development Code; 

 The Comprehensive Plan designates the future land use of this property as Commercial. The 
current zoning district of the site is C-G. Council finds the proposed short plat complies with 
the Comprehensive Plan and the dimensional standards in the UDC for the C-N district. 

B. Public services are available or can be made available and are adequate to accommodate 
the proposed development; 

 Council finds that public services are adequate to serve the site. 

C. The plat is in conformance with scheduled public improvements in accord with the City’s 
capital improvements program; 

Page 302

Item #21.



 

 Page 8  
  

 Council finds that the development will not require the expenditure of capital improvement 
funds. All required utilities are being provided with the development of the property at the 
developer’s expense. 

D. There is public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed development; 

 Council finds that the development will not require major expenditures for providing 
supporting services. Sewer, water, utilities and pressurized irrigation already serve the project. 

E. The development will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or general welfare; 
and 

Council finds the proposed short plat to condominiumize the existing structure will not be 
detrimental to the public health, safety or general welfare. 

F. The development preserves significant natural, scenic or historic features. 

 Council is not aware of any significant natural, scenic or historic features associated with short 
platting the structure on this site. 

Page 303

Item #21.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Development Agreement (H-2021-0095 Inglewood Commercial) Between the
City of Meridian and James Peterson for Property Located at 3330 E. Victory Rd.

Page 304

Item #22.



Page 305

Item #22.



Page 306

Item #22.



Page 307

Item #22.



CITY OF MERIDIAN

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW C f[EPI N,,
AND DECISION& ORDER

In the Matter of the Request for Modification to the Existing Development Agreement( Inst.# 2019-

124424) to Update the Conceptual Development Plan to Include a Daycare Facility instead of a
Retail Use and Removal of the 3- Story Office Building in Favor of a Smaller Retail/ Office Building,
by Gold Stream.

Case No( s). H- 2021- 0095

For the City Council Hearing Date of: February 22, 2022 ( Findings on March 8, 2022)

A.  Findings of Fact

1.   Hearing Facts( see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of February 22, 2022, incorporated
by reference)

2.  Process Facts( see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of February 22, 2022, incorporated
by reference)

3.   Application and Property Facts ( see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of February 22,
2022, incorporated by reference)

4.   Required Findings per the Unified Development Code( see attached Staff Report for the hearing
date of February 22, 2022, incorporated by reference)

B.  Conclusions of Law

1.   The City of Meridian shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the" Local Land Use
Planning Act of 1975," codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code ( I.C. § 67- 6503).

2.   The Meridian City Council takes judicial notice of its Unified Development Code codified as
Title 11 Meridian City Code, and all current zoning maps thereof. The City of Meridian has, by
ordinance, established the Impact Area and the Comprehensive Plan of the City ofMeridian,
which was adopted December 17, 2019, Resolution No. 19- 2179 and Maps.

3.   The conditions shall be reviewable by the City Council pursuant to Meridian City Code § 11- 5A.

4.   Due consideration has been given to the comment( s) received from the governmental
subdivisions providing services in the City of Meridian planning jurisdiction.

5.   It is found public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose
expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.

6.   That the City has granted an order of approval in accordance with this Decision, which shall be
signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and then a copy served by the Clerk upon the applicant, the
Community Development Department, the Public Works Department and any affected party
requesting notice.

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR INGLEWOOD COMMERCIAL MDA H- 2021- 0095 1 -

EXHIBIT A

Page 308

Item #22.



7.   That this approval is subject to the Conditions of Approval all in the attached Staff Report for the

hearing date of February 22, 2022, incorporated by reference. The conditions are concluded to be
reasonable and the applicant shall meet such requirements as a condition of approval of the

application.

C. Decision and Order

Pursuant to the City Council' s authority as provided in Meridian City Code § 11- 5A and based upon

the above and foregoing Findings of Fact which are herein adopted, it is hereby ordered that:

1.   The applicant' s request for a modification to the existing Development Agreement( Inst.
20190124424) is hereby approved per the conditions of approval in the Staff Report for the

hearing date of February 22, 2022, attached as Exhibit A.

D.  Notice of Applicable Time Limits

Notice of Development Agreement Duration

The city and/or an applicant may request a development agreement or a modification to a
development agreement consistent with Idaho Code section 67- 6511A. The development

agreement may be initiated by the city or applicant as part of a request for annexation and/ or
rezone at any time prior to the adoption of findings for such request.

A development agreement may be modified by the city or an affected party of the development
agreement. Decision on the development agreement modification is made by the city council in
accord with this chapter. When approved, said development agreement shall be signed by the
property owner( s) and returned to the city within six( 6) months of the city council granting the
modification.

A modification to the development agreement may be initiated prior to signature of the
agreement by all parties and/ or may be requested to extend the time allowed for the agreement
to be signed and returned to the city if filed prior to the end of the six( 6) month approval
period.

E.  Notice of Final Action and Right to Regulatory Takings Analysis

1.  Please take notice that this is a final action of the governing body of the City of Meridian.
When applicable and pursuant to Idaho Code § 67- 6521, any affected person being a person
who has an interest in real property which may be adversely affected by the final action of the
governing board may within twenty- eight( 28) days after the date of this decision and order
seek a judicial review as provided by Chapter 52, Title 67, Idaho Code.

F.  Attached:  Staff Report for the hearing date of February 22, 2022

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR INGLEWOOD COMMERCIAL MDA H- 2021- 0095 2- Page 309

Item #22.



By action of the City Council at its regular meeting held on the 8th day of
March

2022.

COUNCIL PRESIDENT BRAD HOAGLUN VOTED

COUNCIL VICE PRESIDENT JOE BORTON VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER JESSICA PERREAULT VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER LUKE CAVENER VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER TREG BERNT VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER LIZ STRADER VOTED

MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON VOTED

TIE BREAKER)

Mayor Robert E. Simison 3- 8- 2022

Attest:

Chris Johnson 3- 8- 2022

City Clerk

Copy served upon Applicant, Community Development Department, Public Works Department and City
Attorney.

By: Dated:     
3- 8- 2022

City Clerk' s Office

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR INGLEWOOD COMMERCIAL MDA H- 2021- 0095 3- Page 310

Item #22.

S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382




EXHIBIT A

STAFF REPORT E
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENTDEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT I D A H O

HEARING 2/ 22/ 22
41116VER

DATE:   a-a r`     

aK

S16

TO:      Mayor& City Council
E LCM CFM

i-
E M{ I44Y? R IRR1 EAAC+ LkvbeI

FROAM:       Sonya Allen, Associate Planner 4
I

208- 884- 5533 h DIP,   r

6
f 406h o WM  

iP4lpJil+4#-

SUBJECT:     H- 2021- 0095 I
ER-   1-.

Inglewood Commercial
L.    

L„
E- w rraRr- ao=

r

LOCATION:  3330 E. Victory Rd., in the SW 1/ 4 of UP.       Y cr iflll I. N. T

Section 21, T.3N., R. 1E.       

f  ; rr• oa W

Et

I.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Modification to the existing Development Agreement( Inst. # 2019- 124424) to update the conceptual

development plan to include a daycare facility instead of a retail use and removal of the 3- story office
building in favor of a smaller retail/ office building.

II.  SUMMARY OF REPORT

A.  Applicant:

Clint Tolman, Gold Stream— 197 W. 4860 S., Murray, UT 84107

B.  Owner:

James Petersen— 197 W. 4860 S., Murray, UT 84107

C.  Representative:

Emily Muller, Gold Stream— 197 W. 4860 S., Murray, UT 84107

III.  NOTICING

City Council
Posting Date

Notification published in
newspaper

2/ 6/ 2022

Notification mailed to property
owners within 300 feet

2/ 3/ 2022

Page 1

Page 311

Item #22.



EXHIBIT A

Applicant posted public hearing
notice on site

2/ 11/ 2022

Nextdoor posting 2/ 3/ 2022

IV.  STAFF ANALYSIS

The Applicant proposes to modify the existing Development Agreement( DA) (H- 2019- 0099, Inst.

2019- 124424) in effect for this property to update the conceptual development plan approved for the
overall development.

The existing conceptual development plan depicts a mix of uses including a 3- story
nursing/ residential care facility with independent living, assisted living and memory care in the center
of the development with single- family attached homes for independent living to the east; a 12, 300
square foot( s.£) 3- story office is depicted on the west side of the senior living facility; and
retail/commercial uses are depicted on the 3 pads along S. Eagle Rd. ( see plan in Section VI.A).

No changes to the retirement community or the two retail/commercial building pads at the southwest
corner of the site are proposed, except to enlarge the northern building pad and include office as a
possible use. The pad at the southwest corner of the site is planned to develop with a drive- through
restaurant( i.e. coffee shop) with indoor and outdoor seating. The 3- story office building is proposed
to be removed as there is not adequate space for the building and there is a sewer easement in the
middle of the roadway and through where the building is depicted; and a daycare is proposed in place
of the northern retail pad( see plan in Section VI.B). The Applicant' s narrative states that walkways
are planned from the daycare to the senior living as part of the plan is for children to visit the seniors.

The proposed development plan, which includes a mix of residential and commercial
retail/ office/ restaurant/ daycare) uses, demonstrates compliance with the Mixed Use— Community
MU-C) Future Land Use Map( FLUM) designation in the Comprehensive Plan for this site. The

proposed uses will provide employment opportunities and services for those living nearby.

The existing DA provisions will ensure supportive and proportional public and/ or quasi-public
spaces, including but not limited to parks, plazas, outdoor gathering areas, open space, etc. is
provided within the mixed use/ commercial portion of the development.

V.  DECISION

A.  Staff:

Staff recommends approval of the modification to the DA as proposed.

B.  The Meridian City Council heard this item on February 22, 2022. At the public hearing, the

Council moved to approve the subject MDA request.

I.   Summary of the City Council public hearing:

a.    In favor: Jim Petersen. Gold Stream

b.    In opposition: None

C.    Commenting: None

d.    Written testimony: Clint Tolman, Gold Stream( in agreement with staff reportl

e.    Staff presenting application: Joe Dodson

f.    Other Staff commenting on application: None

2.  Key issue( s) ofpublic testimony:
a.    Existing site conditions and development plans for the overall site.

3.  Key issue( s) of discussion by City Council:

Page 2

Page 152Page 312

Item #22.



EXHIBIT A

a.    Pedestrian connectivity within the site and with"& cent residential development to east

there are no pathway stubs to this sitel:

b.    Vehicular access for the proposed daycare facility.

4.  City Council change( s) to Commission recommendation:

a.    None

VI.  EXHIBITS

A.  Existing Conceptual Development Plan& Perspective Elevations

cuwlcom^ wxo^ Sign at the end

of Titanium

ai naC uY ww ne In t. ne[ ao+ a+r..     

w o

6 A A B
Moved units

5' a dditional

feet away from
easement

Orire aisles Re IFf h

expanded to ZY
nma

A B

Padxd Replacefence

ing, Zane: R- 13 Eline: R- 13  {
along eastern

Senior Living uItl- Famlly
border

Retail
Facility

Pad Pad
a aoo so rr

B A A B
rL

Tiatanium

updated to

33' width with

O rolling curb

y   

Mom crosswalks   W

indicated d eA B

a.   Victory Rd
sidmalks no

longer meander

UPDATED SITE PEAK

INGLEWOOD PLACE SUBDIVISION
Meritll Itlnho

Nov r.] e] 9

Ar[ rli:[: ure canes e awezurnnouuornr_ eiuucdaesunv vnnr e[ cnn Heave aaee¢ urnnou

Page 3

Page 153Page 313

Item #22.



lam

it 1   Ti

JAI Ils i;    
r

lom

r         C r

Think

MOM IF

y

Page 314

Item #22.



Item# 8.

EXHIBIT A

B.  Proposed Conceptual Development Plan

PUBLICCONNECTION

II B A A B

I
w

rurumun DAYCARE

II U
I Z

II Y

Q 

L a

O it A B

w=?

ZONES R 13

w
SENIOR LIVING 8

FACILITY S I
UO

wO w

z

IRESTAURANT)"
Q

a U B A A B

Y
Z4

w a
a F

w0

M06—

B A A B

L, LMnt INGLEWOOD PACE SUBDIVISION

c'ARCHITEC1 RE

Page 5

Page 155Page 315

Item #22.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Development Agreement (H-2021-0101 Meridian U-Haul Moving and 
Storage) Between the City of Meridian and Amerco Real Estate Company for Property Located at 
1230 and 1270 E. Overland Rd.

Page 316

Item #23.



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT – MERIDIAN U-HAUL MOVING AND STORAGE (H-2021-0101)  PAGE 1 OF 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
PARTIES:  1. City of Meridian 
  2. Matthew F. Braccia, Amerco Real Estate Company, Owner/Developer 
  
 THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this Agreement), is made and entered into this______ 
day of________________, 2022, by and between City of Meridian, a municipal corporation of the 
State of Idaho, hereafter called CITY whose address is 33 E. Broadway Avenue, Meridian, Idaho 
83642 and Matthew F. Braccia, Amerco Real Estate Company, whose address is 2727 N. Central 
Avenue, Ste. 500, Phoenix, AZ 85004, hereinafter called OWNER/DEVELOPER. 
   
1. RECITALS:  
 

1.1 WHEREAS, Owner is the sole owner, in law and/or equity, of certain tract of 
land in the County of Ada, State of Idaho, described in Exhibit “A”, which is 
attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein as if set forth in full, 
herein after referred to as the Property; and 

 
1.2 WHEREAS, Idaho Code § 67-6511A provides that cities may, by ordinance, 

require or permit as a condition of zoning that the Owner and/or Developer 
make a written commitment concerning the use or development of the subject 
Property; and 

 
1.3 WHEREAS, City has exercised its statutory authority by the enactment of 

Section 11-5B-3 of the Unified Development Code (“UDC”), which authorizes 
development agreements upon the annexation and/or re-zoning of land; and 

 
1.4 WHEREAS, Owner/Developer has submitted an application for a modification 

of an existing Development Agreement (Instrument # 100029704) on the 
property as shown in Exhibit “A” under the Unified Development Code, which 
generally describes how the Property will be developed and what improvements 
will be made; and 
 

1.5 WHEREAS, Owner/Developer made representations at the public hearings 
before Planning and Zoning Commission and the Meridian City Council, as to 
how the Property will be developed and what improvements will be made; and 

  
1.6 WHEREAS, the record of the proceedings for requested rezoning held before 

Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council, includes responses of 
government subdivisions providing services within the City of Meridian 
planning jurisdiction, and includes further testimony and comment; and 

 

Page 317

Item #23.



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT – MERIDIAN U-HAUL MOVING AND STORAGE (H-2021-0101)  PAGE 2 OF 7 

1.7 WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of February, 2022, the Meridian City Council 
approved certain Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Decision and 
Order (“Findings”), which have been incorporated into this Agreement and 
attached as Exhibit “B”; and 

 
1.8  WHEREAS, the Findings require the Owner/Developer to enter into a 

Development Agreement before the City Council takes final action on final 
plat; and 

 
1.9 WHEREAS, Owner/ Developer deem it to be in its best interest to be able to 

enter into this Agreement and acknowledges that this Agreement was entered 
into voluntarily and at its urging and request; and 

 
1.10 WHEREAS, The Property contained in Exhibit “A” shall no longer be subject 

to the terms of the existing Development Agreement (Inst. #100029704) or any 
prior development agreement and shall be bound only by the terms contained in 
this Agreement. 

 
1.11 WHEREAS, City requires the Owner/Developer to enter into a development 

agreement for the purpose of ensuring that the Property is developed and the 
subsequent use of the Property is in accordance with the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement, herein being established as a result of evidence received by 
the City in the proceedings for zoning designation from government 
subdivisions providing services within the planning jurisdiction and from 
affected property owners and to ensure zoning designation are in accordance 
with the amended Comprehensive Plan of the City of Meridian on December 
19, 2019, Resolution No. 19-2179, and the UDC, Title 11. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and conditions set forth 

herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 
2. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS: That the above recitals are contractual and 
binding and are incorporated herein as if set forth in full. 
 
3.                    DEFINITIONS:   For all purposes of this Agreement the following words, terms, and 
phrases herein contained in this section shall be defined and interpreted as herein provided for, unless 
the clear context of the presentation of the same requires otherwise: 
 

3.1 CITY: means and refers to the City of Meridian, a party to this Agreement, 
which is a municipal Corporation and government subdivision of the state of 
Idaho, organized and existing by virtue of law of the State of Idaho, whose 
address is 33 East Broadway Avenue, Meridian, Idaho 83642. 

 
  3.2 OWNER/DEVELOPER:  means and refers to Matthew F. Braccia, Amerco 

Real Estate Company, whose address is 2727 N. Central Avenue, Ste. 500, 
Phoenix, AZ 85004, hereinafter called OWNER/DEVELOPER, the party that 
owns and is developing said Property and shall include any subsequent 
owner(s) and/or developer(s) of the Property. 

Page 318

Item #23.



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT – MERIDIAN U-HAUL MOVING AND STORAGE (H-2021-0101)  PAGE 3 OF 7 

 
  3.3 PROPERTY:   means and refers to that certain parcel(s) of Property located in 

the County of Ada, City of Meridian as in Exhibit “A” describing a parcel to 
bound by this Development Agreement and attached hereto and by this 
reference incorporated herein as if set forth at length. 

 
4. USES PERMITTED BY THIS AGREEMENT:  This Agreement shall vest the right 
to develop the Property in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
  4.1  The uses allowed pursuant to this Agreement are only those uses allowed under 

the UDC. 
 

4.2 No change in the uses specified in this Agreement shall be allowed without 
modification of this Agreement.   

 
5. CONDITIONS GOVERNING DEVELOPMENT OF SUBJECT PROPERTY:   
 
  5.1. Owners/ Developer shall develop the Property in accordance with the following 

special conditions:  

a. Future development of this site shall comply with the site plan, landscape plan and be 
conceptual building elevations for the self-storage and rental facility included in 
Section VII of the Staff Report attached to the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 
Law attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, and the provisions contained herein. 

b. Uses on the property shall conform with the uses codified in UDC Table 11-2B-2 and 
the specific use standards set forth in UDC 11-4/ 
 

6. COMPLIANCE PERIOD This Agreement must be fully executed within six (6) 
months after the date of the Findings for the annexation and zoning or it is null and void. 
 
7. DEFAULT/CONSENT TO DE-ANNEXATION AND REVERSAL OF 
ZONING DESIGNATION: 

 
 7.1 Acts of Default. In the event Owner/Developer, or Owner’s/Developer’s heirs, 

successors, assigns, or subsequent owners of the Property or any other person 
acquiring an interest in the Property, fail to faithfully comply with all of the terms and 
conditions included in this Agreement in connection with the Property, this 
Agreement may be terminated by the City upon compliance with the requirements of 
the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
 7.2 Notice and Cure Period. In the event of Owner/Developer’s default of this agreement, 

Owner/Developer shall have thirty (30) days from receipt of written notice from City 
to initiate commencement of action to correct the breach and cure the default, which 
action must be prosecuted with diligence and completed within one hundred eighty 
(180) days; provided, however, that in the case of any such default that cannot with 
diligence be cured within such one hundred eighty (180) day period, then the time 
allowed to cure such failure may be extended for such period as may be necessary to 
complete the curing of the same with diligence and continuity. 

Page 319

Item #23.



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT – MERIDIAN U-HAUL MOVING AND STORAGE (H-2021-0101)  PAGE 4 OF 7 

 
 7.3 Remedies. In the event of default by Owner/Developer that is not cured after notice 

from City as described in Section 7.2, City shall, upon satisfaction of the notice and 
hearing procedures set forth in Idaho Code section 67-6511A, have the right, but not a 
duty, to de-annex all or a portion of the Property, reverse the zoning designations 
described herein, and terminate City services to the de-annexed Property, including 
water service and/or sewer service. Further, City shall have the right to file an action 
at law or in equity to enforce the provisions of this Agreement. Because the covenants, 
agreements, conditions, and obligations contained herein are unique to the Property 
and integral to City’s decision to annex and/or re-zone the Property, City and 
Owner/Developer stipulate that specific performance is an appropriate, but not 
exclusive, remedy in the event of default. Owner/Developer reserves all rights to 
contest whether a default has occurred. 

 
 7.4 Choice of Law and Venue. This Agreement and the rights of the parties hereto shall 

be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho, 
including all matters of construction, validity, performance, and enforcement. Any 
action brought by any party hereto shall be brought within Ada County, Idaho. 

 
 7.5 Delay. In the event the performance of any covenant to be performed hereunder by 

either Owner/Developer or City is delayed for causes that are beyond the reasonable 
control of the party responsible for such performance, which shall include, without 
limitation, acts of civil disobedience, strikes or similar causes, the time for such 
performance shall be extended by the amount of time of such delay. 

 
7.6 Waiver. A waiver by City of any default by Owner/Developer of any one or more of 

the covenants or conditions hereof shall apply solely to the default and defaults 
waived and shall neither bar any other rights or remedies of City nor apply to any 
subsequent default of any such or other covenants and conditions. 

 
8. INSPECTION:   Owner/Developer shall, immediately upon completion of any portion 
or the entirety of said development of the Property as required by this Agreement or by City ordinance 
or policy, notify the City Engineer and request the City Engineer’s inspections and written approval of 
such completed improvements or portion thereof in accordance with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and all other ordinances of the City that apply to said Property. 
 
9. REQUIREMENT FOR RECORDATION:  City shall record this Agreement, 
including all of the Exhibits, and submit proof of such recording to Owner/Developer, prior to the third 
reading of the Meridian Zoning Ordinance in connection with the re-zoning of the Property by the City 
Council.   If for any reason after such recordation, the City Council fails to adopt the ordinance in 
connection with the annexation and zoning of the Property contemplated hereby, the City shall execute 
and record an appropriate instrument of release of this Agreement. 
 
10. ZONING:  City shall, following recordation of the duly approved Agreement, enact a 
valid and binding ordinance zoning the Property as specified herein. 
 
11. SURETY OF PERFORMANCE:  The City may also require surety bonds, irrevocable 
letters of credit, cash deposits, certified check or negotiable bonds, as allowed under the UDC, to 

Page 320

Item #23.



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT – MERIDIAN U-HAUL MOVING AND STORAGE (H-2021-0101)  PAGE 5 OF 7 

insure the installation of required improvements, which the Owner/Developer agree to provide, if 
required by the City. 
 
12. CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY:  No Certificates of Occupancy shall be issued in 
any phase in which the improvements have not been installed, completed, and accepted by the City, or 
sufficient surety of performance is provided by Owner/Developer to the City in accordance with 
Paragraph 11 above. 
 
13. ABIDE BY ALL CITY ORDINANCES:  That Owners and/or Developer agree to 
abide by all ordinances of the City of Meridian unless otherwise provided by this Agreement. 
 
14. NOTICES:  Any notice desired by the parties and/or required by this Agreement shall 
be deemed delivered if and when personally delivered or three (3) days after deposit in the United 
States Mail, registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed as 
follows: 
 
CITY:     with copy to:  
City Clerk     City Attorney   
City of Meridian    City of Meridian  
33 E. Broadway Ave.    33 E. Broadway Avenue 
Meridian, Idaho 83642   Meridian, Idaho  83642  
 
OWNER/DEVELOPER:    
Matthew F. Braccia, Amerco Real Estate Company 
2727 N. Central Avenue, Ste. 500 
Phoenix, AZ 85004 
  
 14.1 A party shall have the right to change its address by delivering to the other party 
a written notification thereof in accordance with the requirements of this section. 
 
15. ATTORNEY FEES: Should any litigation be commenced between the parties hereto 
concerning this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled, in addition to any other relief as may 
be granted, to court costs and reasonable attorney’s fees as determined by a Court of competent 
jurisdiction.  This provision shall be deemed to be a separate contract between the parties and shall 
survive any default, termination or forfeiture of this Agreement. 
 
16. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that time is 
strictly of the essence with respect to each and every term, condition and provision hereof, and that the 
failure to timely perform any of the obligations hereunder shall constitute a breach of and a default 
under this Agreement by the other party so failing to perform. 
 
17. BINDING UPON SUCCESSORS:  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure 
to the benefit of the parties’ respective heirs, successors, assigns and personal representatives, 
including City’s corporate authorities and their successors in office.  This Agreement shall be binding 
on the Owner/Developer, each subsequent owner and any other person acquiring an interest in the 
Property.  Nothing herein shall in any way prevent sale or alienation of the Property, or portions 
thereof, except that any sale or alienation shall be subject to the provisions hereof and any successor 
owner or owners shall be both benefited and bound by the conditions and restrictions herein expressed. 

Page 321

Item #23.



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT – MERIDIAN U-HAUL MOVING AND STORAGE (H-2021-0101)  PAGE 6 OF 7 

 City agrees, upon written request of Owner/Developer, to execute appropriate and recordable evidence 
of termination of this Agreement if City, in its sole and reasonable discretion, had determined that 
Owner/Developer have fully performed their obligations under this Agreement. 
 
18. INVALID PROVISION:  If any provision of this Agreement is held not valid by a 
court of competent jurisdiction, such provision shall be deemed to be excised from this Agreement and 
the invalidity thereof shall not affect any of the other provisions contained herein. 
 
19. DUTY TO ACT REASONABLY:  Unless otherwise expressly provided, each party 
shall act reasonably in giving any consent, approval, or taking any other action under this Agreement. 
 
20. COOPERATION OF THE PARTIES:  In the event of any legal or equitable action 
or other proceeding instituted by any third party (including a governmental entity or official) 
challenging the validity of any provision in this Agreement, the parties agree to cooperate in defending 
such action or proceeding. 
 
21. FINAL AGREEMENT: This Agreement sets forth all promises, inducements, 
agreements, condition and understandings between Owner/Developer and City relative to the subject 
matter hereof, and there are no promises, agreements, conditions or understanding, either oral or 
written, express or implied, between Owner/Developer and City, other than as are stated herein.  
Except as herein otherwise provided, no subsequent alteration, amendment, change or addition to this 
Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto unless reduced to writing and signed by them or 
their successors in interest or their assigns, and pursuant, with respect to City, to a duly adopted 
ordinance or resolution of City. 
 

21.1 No condition governing the uses and/or conditions governing re-zoning of the subject 
Property herein provided for can be modified or amended without the approval of the 
City Council after the City has conducted public hearing(s) in accordance with the 
notice provisions provided for a zoning designation and/or amendment in force at the 
time of the proposed amendment. 

 
22. EFFECTIVE DATE OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall be effective on the 
date the Meridian City Council shall adopt the amendment to the Meridian Zoning Ordinance in 
connection with the annexation and zoning of the Property and execution of the Mayor and City Clerk. 

 
[end of text; acknowledgements, signatures and Exhibits A and B follow] 

Page 322

Item #23.



Page 323

Item #23.



A. Development Agreement Legal Description and Exhibit Map (date: 10/1/2021)

LO IIN BLOCK 1 OF PACK rr U.P SUBDIVISION, ACCOll�ING TO RfE PLAT liHEltEOF, FIL80 IN IIOOK 84 Of PLA.TS AT PAGES 9.360AND 
9·361, REOO RD5 OF A�A COUNTI, I DAIHO . 

PARCflll: 

A PARCEL OF LAND BEING ALL OF LOT 3,. AND A PORTION OF LO 2 BLOCK 1 OF PACK IT l!JP SUBDIVISION LOCATED IN llfE 
SOIIJTIHEAST O:UARliER Of SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 3 NOR H, RANGE 1 EAST, BOISE t.tElll DltiN, ADA COil N , IDA HO, AND AL.SO• 
SHOWN A5 PAll:CEL .. B,. ON RECORD OF S.URVE't NO_ 6.228. ANO BE.ING MORE PA.RTIC ULAIUY DE5CRl8ED AS. FOU.OWS.: 

COMM6NCING AT THE SO'UilfEAST CORNER Of SAm SECTION 16, FROM WHIClf T�E50U It QUAil ER CORNER OF SAID SECTION 
BEARS SOURf s9•44'1S" WEST, 264£1.09• FEE1, liH ENCE 

SOUTiH ggc-441118" WEST A.LONG liHE :soun, ElOUNDAFn' OF SAID SECTION 1.8 AND THE CE!NTERL INE Of WEST OVERLAND FtOAO FOFt A 
DISTANCE OF 1097.27 FEIT� TiHENCf LEAVING SAID BOUINDARV AND CENliEIUINE NORTH 00128151" EAST FOR A Dl51.ANCE OF 48.JOO 
FE,ET TO A POINT ON llfE NORTH RIGH -Of-WAY LINE OF WEST OVERLAND ROAf) AND THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT J BLOCK 1 
OF PACK IT IIJP SUBDIVISION , BEING THE REAL POINT Of 8EGINNING;liHENCE 

r..tOIRTtl 00�2a,s1• EAST ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY Of SAID LOT .3 E:uEIND•ED FOR A DISTANCE Of 165.40 FEET; TltEN,CE 

SOIUTIH 89°

.31'09" EAST FO R A DISTANCcE OF 195 .. 56 FEET TO THE NOR If EAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 3; THENCE 

SOILJTiH O0,°'..2. si:5,1" WEST ALONG TiHE EA.ST BO'UNDAll:r OF SAID WT J FOR A Dl:STA!NCE Of 162.87 FEET; illEN,CE 

SOIJJTiH 39-=-4-4•1s" WEST ALONG TiHE :SOUftH BOUNDARY"OF :SAID WT 3, FOR A Dl:STAINCE Of 195.57 lriECT TO TiHE 11:EAL PO Im Of 
BEG NNING. 

PARCfllll: 

A PARCEL OF LAND BEING LOT 1, BLOCK 1, Of SWIN�ELL SUB,DIVISION, A RECORDED S IIJBDIVLSION ON FILE IN BOOK 113 0� PLATS -"if 
PAGES. 16,S.D6THR:OUGHI 1651.0

J 
FtECORD.S. Of ADA CO UNTY. IDAHO

1
.AND A POR ION OF LO 2

J 
BLOCK 1. Of PA.ct:: IT UP SUBDIVISION� 

A RECORf)ED SIIJ BDI\IISION ON FILE IN BOOK MO F '  PLATS A PAGES 9360 AND 9361., RECORDS OF ADA COIIJ NTY, ID!l:HO, SITIJATED IN 
TiHE 
SOliJTltEAST 1/,4 OF SECRON 13, TOWNSH IP 3 NORRfl, RANGE I EAST, IIOISE MERIDIAN, CIT

Y 

OF MERIDIAN , ADA COUNTI, IDAHO, 
AND AS StHOWN ON RECORD OF :S URVEY IN:STll:UMEN T NU M BE II: 2D20-17 2.777 � AND MORE PARTIOULA.11: L 't DE5iCRI BED AS. fOl!..LOWS.: 

BEG NNING ATl"HE MO.ST SOIJJTHElll!."/. CORNER Of SAID LOT 1. Bl!.OCI< l, OF S.WINDELL SUBDIVISION; 

TIHENGf ALONG Rf E WEST5UY BO'IJNDARYOF' 5AID LOiT 1 NOil H 29'04'02" WEST 183.41FEE TO llfE SOUTHERLY EIOUNf)ARY Of 
SAi D LOT 2, BLOCK 1, OF PACK IT UP SUSDIVISIOII; 

TiHENCf LIEAVING 5.AID 'WE:STE ltl Y BO UN�Aitl'· A!N [) ALONG SAID :SOUiH EltL If BOUNDARY .AN D THE WES.TEIU V EXTENS.ION THEREOF 
NOil H 89''"32.�27• WES 353.06 FEET; 

TiHENCf S.OIJJTiH 0"12713 :1,11 WEST 115-.5.40 FEET TO TltE NORTHER!!. Y RIGHi-0 F-WAY Of OVERLAND ROAD; 

TiHENCE ALONG SAi D NORTHERLY RIGHT-0 F-W.A"r SOILJTtrl _g9ii;.43ioor WEST :1,,0.00, F EETj. 

T1HENCE LJEAVI G SAID NORTHERLY IUGtfT-OF-WAVAND ALONG :SAID SOU HEIRl!.V BOUNDARY Of LOT 2 NOIHl-11 O
ii;27"33• EA5T 1165.79' 

FE.ET; 

TiHENCE 00 NTIN U ING .ALONG s.AID SOl:.JTHERLV BOUNDARY NORTH :gg-=-32'27" WEST 2.09.44 FEET TO THE WESTERU BO'UNDAR't Of 
S.AID LOT2_j 

TiHENCE LEAVING ,SAID SOUliHERl!.Y BOUN DAR't AN D ALONG S.AI D W E.sTEFtL Y BOUNDARY NO IHH 0'" 2713311 EMT 413.J"S,O FEET i"O Tll E 
IWllTH ERL Y BOUNDARY OF SAi D LOT 2; 

TIHENC'f LEAVING .SA ID WESTERLY BO IJNDARY tiN D ALO'NG SAID NOil If ERLY l!OIJNDARY NORTH 51 •2,•14• EAST 21.83 FEE
T

; 

TIHENGE COfilRNUING ALONG SAID NORliHEltLY BOUNDARY SOU If 68° 23'15" EA 410.39 FEET TO 1HE NORRfERLY IIOUIIDARY OF 
SAi D LOT l

J 
BLOCK 1, OF SWINDELL SU8"DIVISIO N;; 

TiHENCf LJEA.VI Gs.AID NORTHERLY BOUNDAR"'i Of L OT 2 AND ALONG SAID !NORTHE RLY SOUND.ARY Of LOT 1 SOUftrl 84 .. 24 155,11 EAST 
51 .. 5.3 FEE TO liHE WESHRLY RIGlfT-OF-WAY OF LABRADOR WAY; 

TiHENCf ALONG SAID WE.S.TERL't RIGHT-Ofr-WA"/THE FOLLOWING 6 COUFtSIES: 

ALONG THE ARC Of A CIRCULAR CURVE TO HE LEFT 75.64 FEET, SAID CURVE IHA\/ING A RADIUS OF 62.00 fEEi;A CENTRAL !l!NGLE OF 
69, .. 53,157,.

J 
AND A CHORD !BEARING SOUJTH 2.9"2.0�1311 EA.ST 71.03, FEET_j 

TIHENC'f ALONG if1f E Al!C OF A Cl RCllJ LAR CUIIVE O TIHE RIG H 18,01 FBET, SAID OUl!VE H'.AVI NG A RADIUS Of20.0D FE ET; A CENTRAL 
A.NGU OF 51 c.35'1o"� AND A CHORD BE.AR ING S.O'Ulll 3812.913711 EA.:ST 17 ,40 FEET; 

TIHENGE ALONG Rf E Al!G OF A CIRC�LAR CUIIVE O T,HE LEFT 28.49 FEET, SA ID GURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 102.00· FEET;A CENTRAL 
A.NG·tf OF 16"00�031\ ANO A CHOll:D BE.�R. ING 5,,Q'Ulll 20142 10.3.11 EMT 2:8.39' FEET; 

TiHENDE S.OILJTiH 28142'04.11 E ASI 3.55.66 FEET; 

liHENCE ALONG Rf E Al!C OF A Cl RCl!J LAR CUl!VE TO TIHE RIG H 74.20 FBET, SAID OUIIVE HAVING A RADIUS Of 173.DO FEI
T 

A 
OENTRAL A GLE Of 24'3-4'.l.1", ANf) A OHORf) BEARING SOIJiH 1�•24•54• EAST73.63 FEIT; 

TIHENCE �OUTIH �•07•17" WE5-T 2:i.H FEET TO llfE POINT Of BEGIIINIIIG .. 

 

EXHIBIT A

Page 324

Item #23.



...----@ 

[iJ 

E. OVERLAND ROAD 

PARCEL Ill 

1250 OVERLAND ROAD 

5 . .32± ACRES 

s w�.roo'' 

1t5'S CJ-=" BEARlNGS 

,l'= 1 

I -

"" 
I I �il 

T T E 

,_ 

 

CJ 102.00· 1e.◄9- 1er·o0-·o.
r 

2a.�,- 10·4r-0.r [ 

c,a 11J.oo· r-1.�· H"J•·z,• 13.t.3• 117••�
M 

I!: 

<.i rwoc,' 9'i.20' 21f2S'◊4- 98.19' H'Z<J'.:!2� E 

a ,�.c<f ,.6 oa· 58'o,.a· n e& 0"21'38" c 

m 

I l ·TI 
T 1 E 

,_ 

Page 325

Item #23.



CITY OF MERIDIAN

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW C f[EFI DIAN,
AND DECISION& ORDER A

In the Matter of the Request for a Development Agreement Modification to Enter into a New

Development Agreement to Allow Self- Storage, Vehicle and Equipment Rental of Vehicles and

Equipment with Outdoor Display, and Ancillary Retail on 6. 86 acres in the C- G Zoning District, by
Gurnoor Kaur, Amerco Real Estate Company.

Case No( s). H- 2021- 0101

For the City Council Hearing Date of: February 8, 2022 ( Findings on February 22, 2022)

A.  Findings of Fact

1.   Hearing Facts( see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of February 8, 2022, incorporated by
reference)

2.  Process Facts( see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of February 8, 2022, incorporated by
reference)

3.   Application and Property Facts( see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of February 8,
2022, incorporated by reference)

4.   Required Findings per the Unified Development Code( see attached Staff Report for the hearing
date of February 8, 2022, incorporated by reference)

B.  Conclusions of Law

1.   The City ofMeridian shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the" Local Land Use
Planning Act of 1975," codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code( I.C. § 67- 6503).

2.   The Meridian City Council takes judicial notice of its Unified Development Code codified as
Title 11 Meridian City Code, and all current zoning maps thereof. The City of Meridian has, by
ordinance, established the Impact Area and the Comprehensive Plan of the City of Meridian,
which was adopted December 17, 2019, Resolution No. 19- 2179 and Maps.

3.   The conditions shall be reviewable by the City Council pursuant to Meridian City Code § 11- 5A.

4.   Due consideration has been given to the comment( s) received from the governmental
subdivisions providing services in the City of Meridian planning jurisdiction.

5.   It is found public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose
expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.

6.   That the City has granted an order of approval in accordance with this Decision, which shall be
signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and then a copy served by the Clerk upon the applicant, the
Community Development Department, the Public Works Department and any affected party
requesting notice.

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR( MERIDIAN U- HAUL MOVING AND STORAGE- FILE# H- 2021- 0101)

1 -

EXHIBIT B

Page 326

Item #23.



7.   That this approval is subject to the Conditions of Approval all in the attached Staff Report for the

hearing date of February 8, 2022, incorporated by reference. The conditions are concluded to be
reasonable and the applicant shall meet such requirements as a condition of approval of the

application.

C. Decision and Order

Pursuant to the City Council' s authority as provided in Meridian City Code § 11- 5A and based upon

the above and foregoing Findings of Fact which are herein adopted, it is hereby ordered that:

1.   The applicant' s request for development agreement modification is hereby approved per the
conditions of approval in the Staff Report for the hearing date of February 8, 2022, attached as
Exhibit A.

D.  Notice of Applicable Time Limits

Notice of Development Agreement Duration

The city and/ or an applicant may request a development agreement or a modification to a
development agreement consistent with Idaho Code section 67- 6511A. The development

agreement may be initiated by the city or applicant as part of a request for annexation and/ or
rezone at any time prior to the adoption of findings for such request.

A development agreement may be modified by the city or an affected party of the development
agreement. Decision on the development agreement modification is made by the city council in
accord with this chapter. When approved, said development agreement shall be signed by the
property owner( s) and returned to the city within six( 6) months of the city council granting the
modification.

A modification to the development agreement may be initiated prior to signature of the
agreement by all parties and/or may be requested to extend the time allowed for the agreement
to be signed and returned to the city if filed prior to the end of the six( 6) month approval
period.

E.  Notice of Final Action and Right to Regulatory Takings Analysis

1.  Please take notice that this is a final action of the governing body of the City of Meridian.
When applicable and pursuant to Idaho Code § 67- 6521, any affected person being a person
who has an interest in real property which may be adversely affected by the final action of the
governing board may within twenty- eight( 28) days after the date of this decision and order
seek a judicial review as provided by Chapter 52, Title 67, Idaho Code.

F.  Attached:  Staff Report for the hearing date of February 8, 2022

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR( MERIDIAN U- HAUL MOVING AND STORAGE- FILE# H- 2021- 0101)

2- Page 327

Item #23.



By action of the City Council at its regular meeting held on the 22 day of February 2022

COUNCIL PRESIDENT BRAD HOAGLUN VOTED

COUNCIL VICE PRESIDENT JOE BORTON VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER JESSICA PERREAULT VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER LUKE CAVENER VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER TREG BERNT VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER LIZ STRADER VOTED

MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON VOTED

TIE BREAKER)

Mayor Robert E. Simison 2- 22- 2022

Attest:

Chris Johnson 2- 22- 2022

City Clerk

Copy served upon Applicant, Community Development Department, Public Works Department and City
Attorney.

By: Dated:  2- 22- 2022

City Clerk' s Office

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR( MERIDIAN U- HAUL MOVING AND STORAGE- FILE# H- 2021- 0101)

3- Page 328

Item #23.

S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382




EXHIBIT A

STAFF REPORT E IDIANn-=-
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT A H O

HEARING 2/ 8/ 2022 Legend
w

DATE: F• ; eo Lxo: on

TO:      Mayor& City Council

FROM: Alan Tiefenbach, Associate Planner

SUBJECT:     H- 2021- 0101

Meridian U-Haul Moving and Storage

LOCATION:   1230 and 1270 E. Overland Rd. and
RB

Parcel# R8257510015, at the northwest

corner of E. Overland Rd and S. Locust

Grove Rd.

I.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Request for a Development Agreement Modification to enter into a new development agreement to allow

self-storage, vehicle and equipment rental of vehicles and equipment with outdoor display, and ancillary
retail on 6. 86 acres in the C- G zoning district, by Gurnoor Kaur, Amerco Real Estate Company. A
conditional use permit is being processed concurrently with this request.

II.  APPLICANT INFORMATION

A.  Applicant/ Representative:

Gurnoor Kaur, Amerco Real Estate— 2727 N. Central Ave, Ste 500, Phoenix, AZ, 85004

B.  Owner:

Adler AB Owner 1, LLC— 8665 W. Emerald St. Ste 200, Boise, ID, 83704

III.  NOTICING

Planning& Zoning City Council
Posting Date Posting Date

Notification published in
newspaper

1/ 18/ 2022

Notification mailed to property
owners within 300' 

1/ 14/ 2022

Applicant posted public hearing
notice sign on site

1/ 28/ 2022

Nextdoor posting 1/ 14/ 2022

Page 1

Page 147Page 329

Item #23.



Item# 10.

IV.  BACKGROUND

This is a proposal for a development agreement modification to allow self-storage, rental and outdoor
display of vehicles and equipment, and ancillary retail to allow a U-Haul business. A conditional use
is being processed concurrently with this request through the Planning Commission.

The property consists of three lots totaling 6. 86 acres. It was annexed into the City in 1999 as the
Overland Storage Annexation( AZ-99- 018, DA Instr. # 100029704, Preliminary Plat PP- 99- 015). The
development agreement allows only the construction, development and use of a self- service storage
facility consisting of eight buildings of various sizes and one caretaker unit pursuant a conditional use
permit. A Conditional Use Permit( CUP-99- 033) was approved for this use in October of 1999 and a
final plat was recorded in 2002 ( Pack it Up Subdivision, FP- 00- 005). There was also a parcel
boundary adjustment approved in 2021 to allow consolidation ofproperties( PBA 2020-0006). The
approved self-storage facility was never developed.

Staff and the applicant have had numerous discussions regarding the location of a new facility, and
due to the location, surrounding uses, and C- G zoning this particular location was selected. However,
in addition to self-storage, as is typical for a U-Haul facility, the applicant intends to display U-Haul
trucks and equipment for rental. A conditional use permit is required for these uses in the C-G zone
district. As the existing development agreement is very specific to allowed uses, the applicant is also
pursuing a request through the City Council for a development agreement modification to allow the
outdoor display and ancillary retail.

V.  ANALYSIS

Existing Development Agreement

Section 4. 1 ( Uses Permitted by This Agreement) of the Overland Storage Development Agreement
reads as follows:

The construction, development, use, and maintenance of a ministorage facility consisting of eight
buildings of various sizes and one caretaker unit which development shall be pursuant to the City' s
Planned Unit Development procedures and pursuant to the conditional use permit process, in which
process conditions shall be provided for but are herein not limited to landscape/common area
requirements, right-of-way dedication prior to submitting for building permits, signage restrictions,
and bike lanes."

Section 6. 1. 1 ( Conditions Governing Development of the Subject Property) lists the same allowance,
with the clarification that" ministorage buildings of various sizes not to exceed 80, 430 sq. ft. in total"
are allowed.

The applicant proposes to modify Section 4. 1 as such:

The uses allowed pursuant to this Agreement are those uses allowed under City' s Zoning Ordinance
codified at Section 11- 213- 2 and Complied Ordinances of the City of Meridian and further limited

to:

The construction, development, use, and maintenance of a ministorage facility consisting of at least
eight buildings of various sizes; a caretaker unit, an interior climatized self-service storage facility

with a related retail sales showroom, outside self-storage facility, a warehouse and, vehicle

truck and trailer) rentals with outdoor display; which development shall be pursuant to the City's
Planned Unit Development procedures and pursuant to the conditional use permit process, in which
process conditions shall be provided for but are herein not limited to landscape/ common area
requirements, right- of-dedication prior to submitting for building permits, signage restrictions, and
bike lanes."

Page 2

Page 148Page 330

Item #23.



Item# 10.

Staff Response:

Staff notes the C-G zoning district allows vehicle sales, rental and service as a principally permitted
use, equipment rental, sales and service, and self-storage facilities by conditional use, and
warehousing and outdoor storage as an accessory use. Staff believes the simplest method to achieve
the applicant' s intent is to terminate the existing development agreement and enter into a new
development agreement that requires compliance with the submitted site plan, landscape plan and
building elevations.

VI.  DECISION

A.  Staff:

Staff recommends the City Council approve termination of the Overland Storage Development
Agreement( Instr. # 100029704) and establishment of a new development agreement to include

the following provisions:

1.   Future development of the site shall comply with the site plan, landscape plan and conceptual
building elevations for the self-storage and rental facility included in Section V11. and the
provisions contained herein.

2.  Uses on the property shall conform with the uses codified in UDC Table 11- 2B- 2 and the
specific use standards set forth in UDC 11- 4.

B.  The Meridian City Council heard this item on February 8, 2022. At the public hearing the
Council moved to approve the subject development agreement modification request.

1.   Summary of the City Council public hearing:

a.    In favor: Gurnoor Kaur

b.    In opposition: None

C.    Commenting: Gurnoor Kaur

d.    Written testimony: None

e.    Staff presenting application: Alan Tiefenbach

f.    Other Staff commenting on application: None

2.  Key issue( s) ofpublic testimony:
a.    None

3.  Key issue( s) of discussion by City Council:
a.    None

4.  City Council change( s) to Commission recommendation:
a.    None

Page 3

Page 149Page 331

Item #23.



Item# 10.

VII. EXHIBITS

A.  Development Agreement Legal Description and Exhibit Map( date: 10/ 1/ 2021)

PARCEL I-

LOT 1 IN BLOCK 1 OF PACK TT UP SUBDIVISION, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, FILED IN BOOK 84 OF PLATS AT PAGES 9360 AND

9361, RECORDS OF ADA COUNTY, IDAHO.

PARCEL II:

A PARCEL OF LAND BEING ALL OF LOT 5, AND A PORTION OF LOT 2IN BLOCK 1 OF PACK IT UP SUBDIVISION LOCATED IN THE

SOUTHEASTQUARTER OF SECTION 16, TOW NSHIP 3 NORTH, RANGE 1 EAST, BOISE MERIDIAN, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, AND ALSO

SHOWN AS PARCEL' B' ON RECORD OF SURVEY NO- 6228. AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

CID M MENCING AT THE SO UTII EAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 1S, FROM WHICH THE SOUTH QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION

BEARS SOUTH 69' 44' 18" WEST, 26496. 119 FEET, TH ENCE

SOUTH 89" 44' 16" WEST ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 18 AND THE CE NTERLINE OF W EST OVERLAND ROAD FOR A

DISTANCE OF 11197. 27 FEET; THENCE LEAVING SAID BOUNDARY AND CENTERLINE NORTH 00' Z8' 51" EAST FOR A DISTANCE O F 4& DO

FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE OF W EST 13VERLA. N D ROAD AND THE SOUTHWEST CC RHER OF LOT 3 BLOCK 1

OF PACK IT UP SUBDIVISION, BEING THE REAL PC INT OF BEG INNI NG; TH ENCE

NORTH DW28' 51' EAST ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY OF SAID LOT 3 EKTE LADED FOR A DISTANCE OF 165. 40 FEET; THENCE

SOUTH 89' 51' 09" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 195. 56 FEET TO THE NORTH EAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 3; THENCE

SOUTH 00" 28' 51" WEST ALONG THE EAST DO UNDARY OF SAID LOT 3 FOR A DISTANCE OF 162. 67 FEET; THENCE

SOUTH 89" 44' 18" WEST ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID LOT 3 FOR A DISTANCE OF 195. 57 FEET TO THE REAL POINT OF

BEGINNING-

PARCEL III:

A PARCEL OF LAND BEING LOT 1, BLOCK 1, OF SWIN DELL SUBDIVISION, A RECORDED 5U BDIV15I0N ON FILE IN BOOK 113 OF PLATS AT

PAGES 165D6 TH ROU GH 16510, RECOR D5 OF ADA CO UNTY, IDAH O, AND A PORTION OF LOT 2, BLOCK 1, OF PACK IT UP 5UBDVISION,

A R ECORDED SUBDIVISION ON FILE IN BOOK 84 OF PLATS AT PAGES 9360 AND 9361, RECORDS OF ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, SITUATED IN

THE

SOUTHEAST 0' 0 F 5 ECTION 19, TO W NSH I P 3 NO RTH, RANG E 1 EAST, BOISE M ER IDIAH, CITY 0 F M ERIDIAN, ADA COUNTY, I DAHO,

AND AS SHOWN ON RECORD' DF 5 URV EY INSTRUM ENT NU M BE R 21120- 172777, AND MORE PARTICULAR LY DESCRI BED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE MOST SOUTHERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT 1, BLOCK 1, OF SWI N DELL SUBDIVISION;

THENCE ALONG TH E W ESTERLY BO UNDARY OF SAID LOT 1 NORTH 29° 04' 02" W EST 183. 41 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF

SAID LOT 2, BLOCK 1, OF PACK IT UP SUBDIVISION;

THENCE LEAVING SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY AND ALO NG SAID SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY AND THE WESTERLY EXTEN5I0H THEREOF

NORTH EW32' 27' WEST 358. 06 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH W27' 33" W EST 165. 411 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIG HT-0E- WAY OF OVERLAND ROAD;

THENCE ALONG SAI D NORTHERLY R IG HT- D F- WAY SOUTH 89' 43' 00" WEST 30- DO F EET;

THENCE LEAVING SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT- OF- WAY AND ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF LOT 2 NORTH 0' 27' 33' EAST 165- 79

FEET;

THENCE CID NTIN U INC ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY& DUN DARY NORTH 89" 3Z27" WEST 209. 44 FEET TO TH E WESTERLY BO UNDARY OF

SAID LOT 2;

THENCE LEAVING SAID SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY AND ALONG 5AID W ESTERLY BOUNDARY NORTH W27' 33" EAST 483. 50 FEET TO THE

NORTH ER LY BOU NDARY OF 5AI D LOT 2;

THENCE LEAVING SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY AND ALO NG SAID NORTHERLY BOUNDARY NORTH 51' 25' 14' EAST 21. 63 FEET;

THENCE CD NnN U ING ALONG SAID NORTHERLY BOUN DARY SOUTH 66' 23' 15" EAST 410. 39 FEET TO THE NO RTH ER LY BOU N DARY OF

SAID LOT 1, BLOCK 1, OF SWIN DELL SUD DIVISIO N;

THENCE LEAVING SAID NORTHERLY BOON DARY OF LOT 2 AND ALONG SAID NORTHER LY BOUNDARY OF LOT 1 SOUTH 64° 24' 55" EAST

51. 53 FEET TO THE W ESTERLY RIGHT- OF- WAY OF LABRADOR WAY;

THENCE ALONG SAID W E5TERLY RIGHT- OF- WAY THE FOLLOW ING B COURSES:

ALONG THE ARC OF A CIRCULAR CURVE TO THE LEFT 75. 64 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 62. 00 FEET; A CENTRAL ANGLE OF

69' 53' 57', AND A CHORD BEARING SOUTH 2920' 13" EAST 71. 03 FEET;

THENCE ALONG TH E ARC OF A CI RCU LAR CURVE TO THE RIGHT 16A1 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 20. 00 FEET; A CENTRAL

ANGLE OF 51" 35' Sd', AND A CHORD BEAR ING SO UTH 38' 29' 37" E45T 17. 40 FEET;

THENCE ALONG TH E ARC OF A CI RCU LAR CURVE TO THE LEFT 2.8. 49 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 102. 00 FEET; A CENTRAL

ANGLE OF 1153" 00' 03", AND A CHORD BEAR ING SO UTH 20- 42' 03" EAST 28. 39 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 28' 42' 04" EAST 355- 66 FEET;

THENCE ALONG TH E ARC OF A CI RCU LAR CURVE TO THE RIGHT 74. 20 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 173. 00 FEET A

C ENTRAL ANG LE OF 24' 34- 21", AND A CHORD DEARING SOUTH 16324' 54" EAST 73- 83 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 34' 07' 17" WEST 25. 82 FEET TO TH E PO INT OF DEC I NNI NG.

Page 4

Page 150Page 332

Item #23.



Item# 10.

a A9' 10b0' 3' } y 39'  a0' A' lu3' E L]  N Bp' 3

c I. 14' S5" E LA IS 89M3' p0' 11'  ] 0. 00'

YB' 25' 04 69. 19' S fAZ9'] 2" E LS M 5125' 11' E 21. 93'

If i H L LL 15. 09' 5P Y}. S' l2g@' ry ty21" 9" E L6 N O' 2Y17" E    . 00'

E'     EL  • E
L1 H p' aT33" E CN. pO'

r riE
37

I

I

I I _  cy .

wl SSs w

of PARCEL III
1250 DVERLAND ROAD

5. 32f ACRES

II x

vn Pdllf] INGS OASEPVEp I'•_

I I Er

nF
I    PARCEL I

1230 OVERLAND ROAD      !       PARCEL II c

0. 80f ACRES 13_  1274 OVERLAND ROAD

0, 74t ACRES g
E

to N I   - 1 r•:    I#    _ £    - E ELH .. E£       tl
I-

Ix In

w 

I zl c PLH i. l i  . L'>. I.
a rnncEL u

I A
r 1

5 89- 00W W 209- 48' 89' 4.]' Oa" w 5-19s Y'       In

1.  V--_ 2635 1    r—   1      —   
I I

1.    ——      ——  
A     _ •

I     

s
z

L III

O HIM

E OWRLAIJO ROAD
seev] oo•      

8A- 9S OE B AAGNGS

Page 5

Page 151Page 333

Item #23.



Item# 10.

B.  Existing Development Agreement Language

USES PERMITTED BY THIS ,AGREEMENT:

4, 1 The uses allowed pursuant to this Agreement are those Uses
allowed under" City"' s Zoning Ordinance_ codified at Section

11- 2- 408 B 11 Revised and Complied Ordinances of the City of
Meridian and further limited to:

The construction, development, use, and maintenance of a
min istorage facility consisting ofeight buildings of various sizes
and one caretaker unit which development shall be pursuant to
the City' s Planned Unit Development procedures andpursuant to
the conditional use permit process, in which process conditions
shall be providedfor but are herein not limited to
landscape%ommon area requirements, right- of-way dedication
prior to submitting for building permits, signage restrictions, and
bike lames.

6.       CONDITIONS GOVERINING DEVELOPMENT OF SUBJECT
PROPERTY:

6. 1     " Developer" shall develop the " Property" in accordance with the
following special conditions:

6. 1. 1 The construction, development, use, and maintenance of a

ministorage facility consisting of mi.nistorage buildings of
various sizes not to exceed 80, 430 square feet in total of all

such buildings and one caretaker unit which development

shall be pursuant to the City' s Planned Unit Development
procedures and pursuant to the conditional use permit
process, in which process conditions shall be provided for
but are herein not limited to landscape/ common area

requirements, right-of-way dedication prior to submitting
for building permits, signage restrictions, and bike lanes.

Page 6

Page 152Page 334

Item #23.



Item# 10.

C.  Site Plan/ Landscape Plan( date: 8/ 12/ 2021)

IT H LI LL

E     - EL E

o ereTIOET
T T E

43

I
l•.

III

0 EL— 1 0 1 a

El s .

II   JL  
1     

d

pN

S

IL E E L

I r 4 1 1

IT r     --       - ——- --

EL

E H- - LEE L iV4 E     - EL E

ll0 i T4 l
EL II

ELL

dl ul Ir m If. DI      '

EL III

oI

Q ETE

I I_ TM

Page 7

Page 153Page 335

Item #23.



Item# 10.

D.  Landscape Plan( date: November 12, 20210

P
tl I T- I H L I LL

EL

C

L

i Fff I 4 T I- LE

EL 11

E L-

E L-   EL 11

E

E +- LEE

TWr- T I T

Page 8

Page 336

Item #23.



E.  Building Elevations d.    6/ 1/ 2021)

k

s

IN

ONTROLLED

JIM

EAST ELEVATION: BUILDING A

MRIV

fir'      w

I

a rf

RYE- UP SYOfL4

LOA1l1NLOA6 I I

II

I

I II• I       .

III III::l.

gi l ry    

SOUTH ELEVATION. BUILDING A NORTH ELEVATION, BUILDING A

WEST ELEVATION:

I- f

BUILDING

Pagea •-

Page 337

Item #23.



Item# 10.  
P

ORWE- UP_

STORAGE

r`

l l l l 171 1 1 1

l f L_ I__ L_ L_ L_ J       _  _

OUTH ELEVATION: BUILDING 13 EAST ELEVATION: BUILDING B

DRIVE- UP
I 5' f pFtAGt I

Ll

74
IURTH ELEVATION= BUILDING B WEST ELEVATION_ BUILDING B

ale: s•= xa• vase: t•= 2w

AIPZ

YAIAti
YvuJw. M

SIERRA fAN'   BONE WHITE"      SER1ap, TWq'   —       ' SRNDSTSNJE'  R11" ROCK'

0
AThS

0
ATAS

sANn:, rnNr"       ra3ocrxnrr

SDTRM-
1 P

STORAGE

SW 6% 7

4QI3ARR3M- --

VOOOT7tJE

E GFAIJITE"

OINC 8

AlAB VwQwTONE ATAS

uIERRA FAN'      RNFJR ROCK-      gANTO - 
ATAS SIN 6A51

SAN TONE"     NLIRILIW- GREEN'

6ESf RAW-1- COM ATAS SWtiT6T

RCG4L GAK-41[' L J' GAU'ALl1A='  A: x1PfllI. 1M"

OR[ ft-UP
STORAW

L
YiuwL_

H
f

I I I I ILI

7rip7177I_      T 
ING B

Page 10

Page 156Page 338

Item #23.



Item# 10.     
ATAS

RIGID WALL II ATAS ISOLEREN ML

MFN122 12" CORNICE DETAIL STUCCO EMBOSSED VERTICAL

HORIZONTAL SANDSTONE
ATAS

SIERRA TAN
RIGID WALL II

MPN122

DRIVE- UP HORIZONTAL

STORAGE SIERRA TAN

G' H X G' D

ARCHITECTURAL AWNING DETAIL

I

WOODTONE

RUSTICSERIES LAP p1 II'

WHITE GRANITE

JAMES HARDIE

8" D(POSURE

SOUTH ELEVATION: BUILDINGS
s 0ia: ins.= 1•

BEST PANEL COMPANY WOODTONE
ATAS

REVOLUTION SERIES RUSTTCSERIES LAP
RIGID WALL II

TUMBLED RIVER ROCK
MFN12

ATAS

REGAL OAK JAMES HARDIE
HORIZONTAL

RIGID WALL II
B" EXPOSURE

GALVALUME
MFN122

HORIZONTAL

SIERRA TAN

u Au

ATAS ISOLEREN ML

D-    STUCCO EMBOSSED VERTICAL

STORAG0741SANDSTONE

dlllllll

EAST ELEVATION_ BUILDING B
srsie: irls•- 1

Page 11

Page 157Page 339

Item #23.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Development Agreement (H-2021-0052 Bright Star Care Meridian) Between 
the City of Meridian and Brightstar Meridian Road, LLC for Property Located at 3336 and 3340 N.
Meridian Rd.

Page 340

Item #24.



Page 341

Item #24.



Page 342

Item #24.



Page 343

Item #24.



Page 344

Item #24.



Page 345

Item #24.



Page 346

Item #24.



Page 347

Item #24.



Bright Star Care Meridian - H-2021-0052 Page 348

Item #24.



Bright Star Care Meridian - H-2021-0052
Page 349

Item #24.



CITY OF MERIDIAN

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW C f[EFI DIAN:-~-'
AND DECISION& ORDER q

In the Matter of the Request for Modification to the existing Sundance Subdivision Development
Agreement and Addendum( Instrument Ws 102056126 and 106133465) to remove the subject

property( Parcel A& B, ROS 8756 which is a portion of Lot 46& all of Lot 47 of Block 7, Sundance

Subdivision No. 5) for the purpose of entering a new agreement to allow a reduction to the existing
20- foot residential landscape buffer to construct 5,800 sq. ft. nursing and residential care facility
consistent with the approved conditional use permit( H- 2021- 0040), by Hatch Design Architecture.

Case No( s). MDA H-2021- 0052

For the City Council Hearing Date of. September 14, 2021 ( Findings on October 5, 2021)

A.  Findings of Fact

1.   Hearing Facts( see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of September 14, 2021, incorporated
by reference)

2.  Process Facts( see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of September 14, 2021, incorporated
by reference)

3.   Application and Property Facts( see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of September 14,
2021, incorporated by reference)

4.   Required Findings per the Unified Development Code( see attached Staff Report for the hearing
date of September 14, 2021, incorporated by reference)

B.  Conclusions of Law

1.   The City of Meridian shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the" Local Land Use
Planning Act of 1975," codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code( I.C. § 67- 6503).

2.   The Meridian City Council takes judicial notice of its Unified Development Code codified as
Title 11 Meridian City Code, and all current zoning maps thereof. The City of Meridian has, by
ordinance, established the Impact Area and the Comprehensive Plan of the City of Meridian,
which was adopted December 17, 2019, Resolution No. 19- 2179 and Maps.

3.   The conditions shall be reviewable by the City Council pursuant to Meridian City Code § 11- 5A.

4.   Due consideration has been given to the comment( s) received from the governmental
subdivisions providing services in the City of Meridian planning jurisdiction.

5.   It is found public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose
expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.

6.   That the City has granted an order of approval in accordance with this Decision, which shall be
signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and then a copy served by the Clerk upon the applicant, the

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR BRIGHT STAR CARE MERIDIAN- MDA H- 2021- 0052

1 - Page 350

Item #24.



Community Development Department, the Public Works Department and any affected party
requesting notice.

7.   That this approval is subject to the Conditions of Approval all in the attached Staff Report for the

hearing date of September 14, 2021, incorporated by reference. The conditions are concluded to
be reasonable and the applicant shall meet such requirements as a condition of approval of the

application.

C. Decision and Order

Pursuant to the City Council' s authority as provided in Meridian City Code § 11- 5A and based upon

the above and foregoing Findings of Fact which are herein adopted, it is hereby ordered that:

1.   The applicant' s request for Development Agreement Modification is hereby approved per the
conditions of approval in the Staff Report for the hearing date of September 14, 2021, attached
as Exhibit A.

D.  Notice of Applicable Time Limits

Notice of Development Agreement Duration

The city and/ or an applicant may request a development agreement or a modification to a
development agreement consistent with Idaho Code section 67- 6511A. The development

agreement may be initiated by the city or applicant as part of a request for annexation and/ or
rezone at any time prior to the adoption of findings for such request.

A development agreement may be modified by the city or an affected party of the development
agreement. Decision on the development agreement modification is made by the city council in
accord with this chapter. When approved, said development agreement shall be signed by the
property owner( s) and returned to the city within six( 6) months of the city council granting the
modification.

A modification to the development agreement may be initiated prior to signature of the
agreement by all parties and/ or may be requested to extend the time allowed for the agreement
to be signed and returned to the city if filed prior to the end of the six( 6) month approval
period.

E.  Notice of Final Action and Right to Regulatory Takings Analysis

1.  Please take notice that this is a final action of the governing body of the City of Meridian.
When applicable and pursuant to Idaho Code § 67- 6521, any affected person being a person
who has an interest in real property which may be adversely affected by the final action of the
governing board may within twenty- eight( 28) days after the date of this decision and order
seek a judicial review as provided by Chapter 52, Title 67, Idaho Code.

F.  Attached:  Staff Report for the hearing date of September 14, 2021

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR BRIGHT STAR CARE MERIDIAN- MDA H- 2021- 0052

2- Page 351

Item #24.



By action of the City Council at its regular meeting held on the 28th day of
September

2021.

COUNCIL PRESIDENT TREG BERNT VOTED

COUNCIL VICE PRESIDENT BRAD HOAGLUN VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER JESSICA PERREAULT VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER LUKE CAVENER VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER JOE BORTON VOTED

COUNCIL MEMBER LIZ STRADER VOTED

MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON VOTED

TIE BREAKER)

Mayor Robert E. Simison 9- 28- 2022

Attest:

Chris Johnson 9- 28- 2022

City Clerk

Copy served upon Applicant, Community Development Department, Public Works Department and City
Attorney.

By: Dated:
9- 28- 2022

City Clerk' s Office

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION& ORDER

FOR BRIGHT STAR CARE MERIDIAN- MDA H- 2021- 0052

3- Page 352

Item #24.

S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382


S-1-5-21-1594229760-3363526362-947595461-18382




EXHIBIT A

STAFF REPORT E IDIANn-=-
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT A H O

HEARING 09/ 14/ 2021 Legend

DATE:
Proms- _ zm_ -  cm

TO:      Mayor& City Council
a it

FROM: Alan Tiefenbach, Associate Planner ku

208- 489- 0573 f

SUBJECT:     H-2021- 0052

Bright Star Care Meridian MDA

W-llST1 RQ E_LJSTI{' R
LOCATION:  The site is located at 3336& 3340 N. 

Meridian Rd, in the SW '/ a of Section 31,

Township 4N, Range IE.

PTT

I.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Modification to the existing Sundance Subdivision Development Agreement and Addendum
Instrument Ws 102056126 and 106133465) to remove the subject property for the purpose of

entering into a new agreement to allow a reduction to the required 20- foot residential landscape buffer
to construct a 5, 800 sq. ft. nursing and residential care facility consistent with approved conditional
use permit( H-2021- 0040), by Hatch Design Architecture.

II.  SUMMARY OF REPORT

A.  Applicant/ Representative:

Jeff Hatch, Hatch Design Architecture- 200 W. 36th St., Boise, ID, 83714

B.  Owner:

Settler' s Crossing LOC— 7761 W. Riverside Dr, Ste 100, Boise, ID, 83714

III.  STAFF ANALYSIS

The subject property is presently two vacant lots comprising 0.43 acres and is within the Settlers
Business Park( Sundance Subdivision No. 5). The subject property is within the Sundance
Subdivision Development Agreement, originally recorded in 2002 and modified in 2006.

On July 15, 2021, the Planning Commission approved a conditional use on the subject property to
allow a 5, 800 sq. ft. nursing and residential care facility. The landscape plan of this facility reflected a
10' wide buffer adjacent to the residential properties to the north. However, a requirement of the
Sundance Subdivision Development Agreement is that due to the single family uses abutting the
boundary of the subject property, a minimum 20- foot planting strip is required along the northern
property line. Because this is a requirement of the DA, it can only be reduced through action of the
Council. Consequently, the Planning Commission approved the conditional use with the condition

Page 1

Page 353

Item #24.



item#, o.  EX H I BIT A

that the applicant either meet the 20' residential landscape buffer requirement, or request a

development agreement modification through the City Council prior to submitting a certificate of
zoning compliance application. As the Sundance Subdivision Development Agreement contains
several hundred residential properties as well as all the commercial properties within the Settler' s
Business Park, staff recommended the applicant remove the subject properties from the existing
development agreement and enter into a new development specifically for the subject property.

The applicant states that per the Settlers Business Park Property Owners Association, the original
intent of this buffer requirement was to mitigate the impact of commercial properties on the adjacent
residential. According to the applicant, this development is a residential type use, so the requirement
was not meant to apply in this situation. The applicant added that fencing is provided between the
subject property and the properties to the north, and trees are provided in the proposed buffer at
approximately 12. 5' spacing, which is almost three times the density required by 11- 313- 9 ( requiring
35' spacing). The applicant submitted a letter of no objection from the Settlers Business Park
Property Owners Association and held a neighborhood meeting on August 17, 2021 of which there
were no comments.

Because there are no objections, the applicant is providing fencing and nearly three times as much
density in the landscaping, and because of the low impacts to adjacent residential associated with a
nursing and residential care facility, staff does not object to the reduction in the buffer width. Staff
has reviewed the requirements of the original DA and the DA addendum. As the subject property is
located internally within the Settler' s Business Park and all parking, infrastructure and public
improvements for the Sundance Subdivision and Settles' Business Park have already been
constructed, the only pertinent requirements of the existing DA are regarding the allowed uses and the
landscape buffer.

IV.  DECISION

A.  Staff:

Staff recommends the City Council approve removing the subject property from the Sundance
Subdivision Agreement and Addendum( Instrument Ws 102056126 and 106133465) and

establishing a new development agreement.:

1.   The property is approved to develop with a nursing and residential care facility). The
applicant shall substantially comply with the site plan, landscape plan and building
elevations approved with conditional use permit( H-2021- 0040).

2.   The applicant shall be allowed to construct a 10- foot wide landscape buffer along the
northern boundary of the site as shown in Exhibit B.

B.  The Meridian City Council heard these items on September 14, 2021. At the public hearing the
Council moved to approve the subject development agreement modification request.

1.   Summary of the City Council public hearing:

a.    In favor: Jeff Hatch, Hatch Design Architecture

b.    In opposition: None

C.    Commenting: None

d.    Written testimony: None

e.    Staff presenting application: Alan Tiefenbach

f.    Other Staff commenting on application: None

2.  Key issue( s) ofpublic testimony:
a.    None

Page 2

Page 219Page 354

Item #24.



item#, o.  EXHIBIT A

3.  Key issue( s) of discussion by City Council:

a.    None

Page 3

Page 220Page 355

Item #24.



item#, o.  EXHIBIT A

V.  EXHIBITS

A.  Legal Description

EXHIBIT" A"

Parcel A— Description

A parcel of land being a portion of Lot 47, Block 7 ofSUNDANCE SUBDIVISTON No. 5, filed in
Book 98 of Plats at Pages 12523- 12526, in the Office of the Ada County Recorder, located in the SW l̀a
of Section 31, Township 4 North, Range 1 East, Boise Meridian, City ofMcridian, Ada County, Idaho,
and as shown on Record of Survey No. 8756, filed as Instru nent Igo_110034523, heing more particularly
described as follows-

BEGINNINGNING at the northwesterly corner of I. ot 47, Block 7 of said subdivision; thence, along the

northerly line of said Lot 47,
1.  S. 89" 0913" E., 101. 48 feet; thence, leaving said northerly line,
2.  5.00°51' 50" W., 88.09 feet to the southerly line of said 1. ot 47; thence, along said southerly line,
3.  M89° 08' 10" W., 101. 48 feet to the southwesterly corner of said Lot 47; thence, along the

westerly line of said Lot 47,
4.  N. 00P51' 5D" E., 88. 08 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNfNG.

CONTAINING: 0.205 Acres, more or less.

SUBJECT TO. All Covenants, Rights, Rights- of Way and Easements of Record.

rA%STT

31

Page 4

Page 221Page 356

Item #24.



item#, o.  EX H I BIT A

EXHIBIT" A"

Parcel B— Description

A parcel of land being a portion of Trots 46 and 47, Block 7 of SUNDANCE SUBDIVISION No. 5,
filed in Book 98 of Plats at Pages 12523- 12526, in the Office of the Ada County Recorder, located in the
SW '/ 4 of Section 31, Township 4 North, Range 1 East, Boise Meridian, City of Meridian, Ada County,
Idaho, and as shown on Record of Survey No. 8756, filed as Instrument No. 110034523, being more
particularly described as follows:

COMMENCING at the northwesterly corner of Lot 47, Block 7 of said subdivision; thence, along

the northerly line of said Lot 47,
A) S. 89008' 33" E., 101. 48 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence, continuing along said

northerly line,
1.  S. 89° 08' 33" E., 60. 00 feet; thence, leaving said northerly line,
2.  S. 00051' 50" W., 177. 90 feet to the southerly line of said Lot 46; thence, along said southerly

line,

3.  N.90" 00' 00" W., 49.44 feet to the southwesterly corner of said Lot 46; thence, along the
westerly line of said Lot 46,

4.  N.00051' 50" E., 90. 55 feet to the southeasterly corner of said Lot 47; thence, along the
southerly line of said Lot 47,

5.  N.89008' 10" W., 10. 56 feet; thence, the southerly line of said Lot 47,
6.  N.00051' 50" E., 88. 09 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING: 0.224 Acres, more or less.

SUBJECT TO. All Covenants, Rights, Rights-of Way and Easements of Record.

T

7316
H: W5141%WPfiks\ SURVEYIPBA PARCEL DESCRIPTIONSTARCEL B.doc 4 IsIto     f

OF

Page 5

Page 222Page 357

Item #24.



item#, o.  EX H I BIT A

B.  Site Plan( approved by Planning Commission on July 15, 2021)

i GENERAL NOTES SITE RECAP
N

ti:..exrr
I i wo xx ir1e51`a'.•'n'. m      e, roairt=rscr:. uexuo4 n m+s+ vsrsl a ol e;S.t.   -_,—  

f_.  —_       I.        —    
wnm. un srera na, ssr..: um tt pp 5'

74Ar p o ur

mrnnwo nxnoaa     

x'1196T
Y'- Y      

b  L CPwMfi li.' 8l i lrGrril

APPLICANT INFO_       
I

wTa r uo-mv. r¢       
icenr nix+ia"'
c ecrsca     I srvns

GWLeR rAk Li Y[ xi     "; 

I r_ 5 74
I I rx     

n T3AG34 1 i; :: d il i
PRflP4g1}    

01° 1°: w
nao, oc l-0 i

I1E51LfIQTfAL 7l : i± qv F°•_CeRE fACL1TY u   I' i,
r:

7,7 i°'
Ay S. R"?

SFFRE
an I• I.• t

rk
xw-•       EKESMW

i

i•     

KEYNdTESny- u

ewLo ac

E1d$ T] NG as:. vxrs rhn ws Arc.•.. 00 r`ou`

T
APAIW- LOT— 

5    - 
T rawcn.. wrcoan uuI_

Yi'     err 3r..... ra rwrcarnw;

I

I xw• ae.., x,. s W—  
h i

wxasm. xmua:+: u

g

1'

yl 7
L4

fEwsnF,r,  

pl
r

I ExISTING

EXISTING I ARKIM.`., LOI

j
E e/yar

P," ING LOT
I

Li

m

LLLf
I

I

4
APPROVAL STAMP

L_T  _       —_ _—   —_ _—      __       _—_    
I

wrar ro• w pow__—  •  • —__    — T;       _

I            
1' 11'. 1,'•.-{

dam      ,,-- r- r  r- rT

PARR7lJG LOT L      -•       N SITE

P W 4

SITE REFERENCE PLAN  !

Page 6

Page 223Page 358

Item #24.



rem#, o.  EX H I BIT A

C.  Landscape Plan of approved Brightstar Meridian Conditional Use

3.  ALL TREES THAT ARE OAMOJCfD. DE.SfROY

THE MITIGATION STANDARDS PER THE CIT
4.  SEE TREE MITIG4TlON NOTES FOR ADD[ ff

Adjacent Single Family

BEGIN 6 4) END
CB1

iR.      
C6

xowew- R- e

A

Area of buffer reduction

L

DENDLLJ5
I JH

777

7

CA

4
mv.«..,,    BT EXISTING

rJ .,   
ogtn'. nFm

B
BUILDING

a SJ

EXISTING
y:    iM e

PARKING LOT 4 CA 5

6 BEGIN vM CA

Py

9" 0g' 0' Y+«•^       4 BEGIN

LS SJ CA

6 END

END    £

AF       
6 BEIG] N IT

simmswti o. s i- 1  

EXCITING I o
I I

BUILDING

EXFSTING8
EDfI57ING PARKING LOT

PARKING LOT

l—   

I

I

EXISTING

R

1

Page 7  —

Page 224Page 359

Item #24.



rem#, o.  EX H I BIT A

D.  Approved Elevations of Brightstar Meridian Facility

HATCH DE5ioN
ARCHITECTURE

1

Front ( west) elevation

11rt it

oo

fi.+- Via.:,':    
t• t::..

a••s

NORTH ELEVATION

Rear ( north) elevation facing residential ( fence and
landscaping will be in front of this elevation.

Page 8

Page 225Page 360

Item #24.



item#, o.  EXHIBIT A

E. Existing DA language

permitted.

S.       Provide five- foot- wide sidewalks in accozdar. ce -Witia City
Ordinance Section 12- 5- 2. 1 ,

9.       All construction , skull conform to & Le rrquicenxent-5 of the
Americans with Disabilities Act.

10,     M---  dian City Ozdina,nce 1  - 6 sets forth the requirentenu for

Planned Developments.  My conditions attached to a Final
Development Plan for Played Develapmcnt projects run with
the] arid and shall not lapse or be waived as the result of any
subsequent change in tenancy or ownership.

11,     That any proposed uses other than an office use on Lots 45, 47.
49 and 50, Block 7 shall require a CUP. The office uses are

allovied under the Planned Development process and would not
require a CUP if constructed in accordance with an approved

CUP site plan and Plat.

12.     Due to the single-family uses abutting the boundaries of Lots 45.
47 and 49, Block 7 ( proposed as future office use), a mznimum

20- foot planting strip, in accozdarice with City Ordinary 12- 4-
i-A., is required along the property lines of these three lots.

13_     Dedicate 48- Fcct of right-of-way frorrl the c.eflterline of Ustick
Road abuttirLg the parcel by means of record-ation of a final
subdivision plat or execution of a warrarlty d d prior to issuance
of a building permit (or other regt:lred permits), whichever occurs

first.

Dedicate 48-feet of right-of-way From the ce-m-e lirie of Meridian
Road abutting the parcel by means of recordation of a final
subdivision plat or execution of a waz: anty deed prior to issuance
of a building permit ( or other required permits), whichever occurs

Firs-[.

15,     Construct the main entrance off Ustick Road, located

approximately 900- feet east of the west property lime, as
propose,d.  Construct the main entrance with one inbound

DFVELC) PMENT AGENT( AZyO1- 412)   - 6

rage Y

Page 226Page 361

Item #24.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Artist Acceptance Agreements for Display of Artwork in Initial Point Gallery in
2022

Page 362

Item #25.



ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY PAGE 1 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT: 

DISPLAY OF ARTWORK IN INITIAL POINT GALLERY, MERIDIAN CITY HALL 

 

This ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT: DISPLAY OF ARTWORK IN INITIAL POINT 

GALLERY, MERIDIAN CITY HALL (“Agreement”) is made on the ____ day of _____________, 

20___ (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Meridian, a municipal corporation organized 

under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and Cara Hinkson (“Organizer”), on behalf of the 

West Ada School District (“District”).  (City and Organizer may hereinafter be collectively referred 

to as “Parties.”) 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires that public art will be a component of Meridian City Hall and 

to that end, the Meridian Arts Commission has invited District to display artwork in Initial Point 

Gallery, an art gallery on the third floor of Meridian City Hall, the address of which is 33 E. 

Broadway Ave., Meridian, Idaho (“Initial Point Gallery”); 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge that Meridian City Hall is primarily a place of public 

business, that Initial Point Gallery is a public place, and that while the City seeks to encourage 

artistic expression and public dialogue, the City must simultaneously ensure that Meridian City Hall 

is a place where citizens, employees, and visitors of diverse ages and perspectives feel welcome and 

comfortable;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which is hereby acknowledged and agreed, and in consideration of the mutual promises and 

covenants herein contained, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 
 

Organizer shall deliver artwork to Initial Point Gallery, on May 6, 2022, at such time as is 

specified by the Gallery Curator.  Organizer shall be responsible for installing such artwork on 

May 6, 2022 at the direction of the Gallery Curator; shall allow the display of such work in 

Initial Point Gallery from May 6, 2022 through June 2, 2022, in accordance with the terms of 

this Agreement; and shall be responsible for removal of such artwork on June 2, 2022, at such 

time as is specified by the Gallery Curator.  Organizer acknowledges and agrees that time is 

strictly of the essence with respect to this Agreement, and that the failure to timely perform any 

of the obligations hereunder shall constitute a default of this Agreement. 

 

II. INSTALLATION. 

 

A. Coordination with Curator.  Prior to the installation, removal, replacement, and/or substitution 

of the display in Initial Point Gallery or any portion or component thereof, Organization shall 

coordinate any and all such activity with the Gallery Curator.  Organization shall be responsible 

for contacting the Gallery Curator at least thirty (30) days prior prior to the date of delivery of 

artwork to Initial Point Gallery to confirm details regarding the installation, removal, publicity, and 

promotion of the exhibit.  Organization’s failure to affirmatively contact the Gallery Curator as 

required by this paragraph shall constitute a default of this Agreement.   

 

B. Inspection of display.  Prior to or after installation, the Gallery Curator and/or the City may 

inspect and/or review the artwork proposed by Organization for display in Initial Point Gallery 

Page 363

Item #25.



Page 364

Item #25.



Page 365

Item #25.



Page 366

Item #25.



Page 367

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 1 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT: 
DISPLAY OF ARTWORK IN INITIAL POINT GALLERY, MERIDIAN CITY HALL 

 
This ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT: DISPLAY OF ARTWORK IN INITIAL POINT 

GALLERY, MERIDIAN CITY HALL (“Agreement”) is made on the ____ day of ___________, 
20___ (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Meridian, a municipal corporation 
organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and Josh Udesen, an individual person 
(“Artist”).  (City and Artist may hereinafter be collectively referred to as “Parties.”) 
 

WHEREAS, the City desires that public art will be a component of Meridian City Hall 
by the display of artwork in Initial Point Gallery, an art gallery on the third floor of Meridian 
City Hall, the address of which is 33 E. Broadway Ave., Meridian, Idaho (“Initial Point 
Gallery”); 
 

WHEREAS, the Meridian Arts Commission (“Commission”) recommends to the 
Meridian City Council that Artist’s artwork be displayed in Initial Point Gallery; 
 

WHEREAS, the Meridian City Council accepts such recommendation and directs the 
Commission to work with Artist to establish a display of Artist’s artwork in Initial Point Gallery; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge that Meridian City Hall is primarily a place of 

public business, that Initial Point Gallery is a public place, and that while the City seeks to 
encourage artistic expression and public dialogue, the City must simultaneously ensure that 
Meridian City Hall is a place where citizens, employees, and visitors of diverse ages and 
perspectives feel welcome and comfortable;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged and agreed, and in consideration of the mutual promises and 
covenants herein contained, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
I. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

 
Artist shall personally deliver artwork to Initial Point Gallery, on July 1, 2022, at such time as is 
specified by the Gallery Curator.  Artist shall be responsible for installing such artwork on July 
1, 2022, at the direction of the Gallery Curator; shall allow the display of such work in Initial 
Point Gallery from July 1, 2022 through August 5, 2022, in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement; and shall be responsible for removal of such artwork on August 5, 2022, at such time 
as is specified by the Gallery Curator. 

 
II. COMPENSATION AND SALE OF ARTWORK. 
 
A. No compensation.  Artist shall display Artist’s artwork in Initial Point Gallery at the 

pleasure of the Meridian City Council.  City shall not provide compensation to Artist for 
services, work, and/or any activity undertaken pursuant to or related to this Agreement. 

 
B. Sale of artwork.  Artist may, at the direction of and in the manner established by the Gallery 

Page 368

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 2 

Curator, passively offer the artwork on display in Initial Point Gallery for sale.  No price 
shall be displayed on or be proximate to any piece on display in Initial Point Gallery.  City 
personnel shall not facilitate in any way the sale of Artist’s work; any transaction related to 
the sale of artwork shall be handled solely by Artist.  Artist acknowledges the Commission’s 
request that Artist voluntarily donate to the Commission twenty percent (20%) of proceeds 
from any artwork sold due to its display in Initial Point Gallery.  Upon the sale of a piece of 
artwork on display in Initial Point Gallery, Artist may remove such artwork from the Gallery, 
provided that Artist replaces the removed piece with another piece of artwork within twenty-
four (24) hours of such removal.  Artist shall coordinate the removal, replacement, and/or 
substitution of any and all artwork with the Gallery Curator prior to such activity. 
 

III. TIME OF PERFORMANCE. 
 
Artist shall provide services described in this Agreement in a timely manner, as described herein.  
Artist acknowledges and agrees that time is strictly of the essence with respect to this 
Agreement, and that the failure to timely perform any of the obligations hereunder shall 
constitute a default of this Agreement. 

 
IV. INSTALLATION. 

 
A. Coordination with Curator.  Prior to the installation, removal, replacement, and/or 

substitution of the display in Initial Point Gallery or any portion or component thereof, Artist 
shall coordinate any and all such activity with the Gallery Curator.  Artist shall be 
responsible for contacting the Gallery Curator at least thirty (30) days prior prior to the date 
of delivery of artwork to Initial Point Gallery to confirm details regarding the installation, 
removal, publicity, and promotion of the exhibit.  Artist’s failure to affirmatively contact the 
Gallery Curator as required by this paragraph shall constitute a default of this Agreement.   

 
B. Inspection of display.  Prior to or after installation, the Gallery Curator and/or the City may 

inspect and/or review the artwork proposed by Artist for display in Initial Point Gallery to 
ensure compliance with all criteria set forth in the most recent Call to Artists issued for Initial 
Point Gallery, and the Application and Acknowledgements Form completed by Artist, as 
well as to ensure that such artwork may be safely and appropriately displayed in Initial Point 
Gallery.  If the Gallery Curator or the City concludes that the display or any portion or 
component thereof does not meet the criteria set forth in these enumerated documents, does 
not reflect artwork as described to the Commission or the Gallery Curator, or cannot be 
safely and/or appropriately displayed in Initial Point Gallery, the Gallery Curator or the City 
may require the immediate removal of such artwork from Initial Point Gallery.  Further, the 
Gallery Curator or the City may require the immediate removal of such artwork from Initial 
Point Gallery where such removal serves the best interest of the City. 
 

V. DISPLAY. 
 
A. Original artwork.  Artist warrants that any and all artwork provided by Artist for display in 

Initial Point Gallery shall be, and is, original work conceived and created by Artist. 
 

Page 369

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 3 

B. Photographs of artwork.  City may photograph the artwork displayed in Initial Point 
Gallery, as City may desire for purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information.  
Where practicable and to the extent of City’s authority, Artist shall be acknowledged on each 
such photograph to be the creator of the original subject thereof, provided that photographic 
reproductions of artwork shall not be identified as or represented to be the finished artwork. 

 
C. Use of Artist’s name.  Artist hereby conveys to City permission to use Artist’s name for 

purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information, without violation of Artist’s 
rights of privacy or any other rights Artist may possess under this Agreement, provided that 
City shall not use Artist’s logo, if any, for any purpose without the express, written 
permission of Artist. 

 
D. Use of City’s name.  City hereby conveys to Artist permission to use City’s name for 

purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information, without violation of City’s rights 
of privacy or any other rights City may possess under this Agreement, provided that Artist 
shall not use City’s logo for any purpose without the express, written permission of the 
Mayor’s Chief of Staff. 

 
E. Removal of artwork by City.  City shall have the right to remove Artist’s artwork from 

public display at any time and for any reason.  Such removal may be temporary or permanent 
in nature.  Where such artwork is or is intended to be removed from public display for longer 
than forty-eight (48) hours, City shall notify Artist in the manner set forth herein.  While it is 
intended that Artist’s artwork will be displayed in Initial Point Gallery for the period set forth 
herein, this period may be shortened by City for any reason, without notice to the Artist. 

 
F. Removal of artwork by Artist.  Artist shall coordinate with the Gallery Curator the 

removal, replacement, and/or substitution of any and all artwork prior to such activity, 
whether such activity is necessary due to the sale of a piece or for any other reason. 

 
G. Simultaneous display.  City may elect to display the work of more than one Artist or 

Organization in Initial Point Gallery at any time, at the City’s sole discretion.  The manner 
and arrangement of the display(s) in Initial Point Gallery shall be determined by the Gallery 
Curator. 

 
VI. INDEMNIFICATION, WAIVER, AND INSURANCE. 
 
A. Indemnification.  Artist shall, and hereby does, indemnify, save, and hold harmless the City 

and any and all of its employees, agents, volunteers, and/or elected officials from any and all 
losses, claims, and judgments for damages or injury to persons or property, and from any and 
all losses and expenses caused or incurred by Artist or Artist’s servants, agents, employees, 
guests, and/or invitees. 

 
B. Waiver.  Artist shall, and hereby does, waive any and all claims and recourse against City, 

including the right of contribution for loss and damage to persons or property arising from, 
growing out of, or in any way connected with or incident to Artist’s performance of this 
Agreement, whether such loss or damage may be attributable to known or unknown 

Page 370

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 4 

conditions, except for liability arising out of the tortious conduct of City or its officers, 
agents or employees.  

 
C. Insurance Artist’s responsibility.  City shall not provide insurance to cover loss, theft, or 

damage of artwork displayed in Initial Point Gallery or to cover any activity undertaken by 
Artist in the furtherance of Artists’ rights or obligations described herein.  Insurance of the 
artwork; of the Artist’s person, property, or interests; and/or of the Artist’s employees or 
agents shall be the sole responsibility of Artist.  Artist shall obtain all necessary insurance as 
may be required in order to protect Artist’s insurable interests for its rights and obligations 
described within this Agreement, including, but not limited to, liability insurance, automobile 
insurance, worker’s compensation insurance, and/or insurance of the artwork to be displayed 
in Initial Point Gallery. Artist shall bear any and all risks of, and actual, loss of, theft of, 
and/or damage to the artwork prepared for, transported to, transported from, installed or hung 
in, and/or displayed in Initial Point Gallery. 

 
VII. TERMINATION. 
 
A. Termination for cause.  If City determines that Artist has failed to comply with or is in 

default of any term or condition of this Agreement, violated any of the covenants, 
agreements, and/or stipulations of this Agreement, falsified any record or document required 
to be prepared under this Agreement, engaged in fraud, dishonesty, or any other act of 
misconduct in the performance of this Agreement; or if either Party willfully or negligently 
defaults in, or fails to fulfill, its material obligations under this Agreement; the other Party 
shall have the right to terminate the Agreement by providing written notice to the defaulting 
party of its intent to terminate, and shall specify the grounds for termination.  The defaulting 
party shall have two (2) calendar days, not including Sundays or federal holidays, after the 
other party mails such notice to cure the default.  If the default is not cured within such 
period, this Agreement shall be terminated immediately upon mailing of written notice of 
termination. 

 
B. Termination without cause.  City may immediately terminate this Agreement for any 

reason at any time without prior notice to Artist.  
 
C. Termination upon death or incapacity of Artist.  This Agreement shall automatically 

terminate upon the death or incapacity of Artist.   
 
D. Non-waiver.  A waiver of any breach or default of any provision of this Agreement shall not 

be construed as a waiver of a breach of the same or any other provision hereof. 
 

VIII. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
 
A. Relationship of Parties.  It is the express intention of Parties that Artist is an independent 

party and not an employee, agent, joint venturer, or partner of City.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of 
employer and employee between Artist and City or between Artist and any official, agent, or 

Page 371

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 5 

employee of City.  Both parties acknowledge that Artist is not an employee of City.  Artist 
shall retain the right to perform services for others during the term of this Agreement. 

 
B. Compliance with law.  Throughout the course of this Agreement, Artist shall comply with 

any and all applicable federal, state, and local laws. 
 
C. Non-Discrimination. In fulfilling or exercising any right or obligation under this Agreement, 

Artist shall not discriminate against any person as to race, creed, religion, sex, age, national 
origin, sexual orientation or any physical, mental, or sensory disability. 

 
D. Entire agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the Parties.  

This Agreement supersedes any and all statements, promises, or inducements made by either 
party, or agents of either party, whether oral or written, and whether previous to the 
execution hereof or contemporaneous herewith.  The terms of this Agreement may not be 
enlarged, modified or altered except upon written agreement signed by both parties hereto.   

 
E. Agreement governed by Idaho law. The laws of the State of Idaho shall govern the validity, 

interpretation, performance and enforcement of this Agreement.  Venue shall be in the courts 
of Ada County, Idaho. 

 
F. Cumulative rights and remedies. All rights and remedies herein enumerated shall be 

cumulative and none shall exclude any other right or remedy allowed by law. Likewise, the 
exercise of any remedy provided for herein or allowed by law shall not be to the exclusion of 
any other remedy. 

 
G. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not 
be affected. 

 
H. Successors and assigns.  Artist shall not subcontract or assign any of Artist’s obligations 

under this Agreement that require or that may require Artist’s artistic talent or expertise.  
Artist may subcontract or assign obligations that do not require Artist’s artistic talent or 
expertise.  All of the terms, provisions, covenants and conditions of this Agreement shall 
inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon, each party and their successors, assigns, 
legal representatives, heirs, executors, and administrators. 

 
I. Notice. Any and all notice required to be provided by the Parties hereto, unless otherwise 

stated in this Agreement, shall be in writing and shall be deemed communicated upon 
mailing by United States Mail, addressed, if to the Artist, to the address written below, and if 
to the City, to: 33 E. Broadway Avenue, Meridian, Idaho, 83642.  Either party may change 
its respective mailing address by giving written notice of such change in the manner herein 
provided. 

 
J. City Council approval required.  The validity of this Agreement shall be expressly 

conditioned upon City Council action approving the Agreement.  Execution of this 

Page 372

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 6 

Agreement by the persons referenced below prior to such ratification or approval shall not be 
construed as proof of validity in the absence of Meridian City Council approval. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the 

Effective Date written above. 
 
ARTIST:      
 
 
__________________________________ 
Josh Udesen 
 
Address: __________________________________ 
 
  __________________________________ 
 
Phone:  __________________________________ 
 
E-mail: __________________________________      
  
         
 
CITY OF MERIDIAN: 
 
 
BY: __________________________________ 

Robert E. Simison, Mayor 
 
 

Attest: ______________________________ 
 Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

Page 373

Item #25.

Josh Udesen
6022 W Castle Dr

Josh Udesen
Boise, ID 83703 

Josh Udesen
208-559-4423

Josh Udesen
udesenj@gmail.com



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 1 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT: 
DISPLAY OF ARTWORK IN INITIAL POINT GALLERY, MERIDIAN CITY HALL 

 
This ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT: DISPLAY OF ARTWORK IN INITIAL POINT 

GALLERY, MERIDIAN CITY HALL (“Agreement”) is made on the ____ day of ___________, 
20___ (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Meridian, a municipal corporation 
organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and Connie Wood, an individual person 
(“Artist”).  (City and Artist may hereinafter be collectively referred to as “Parties.”) 
 

WHEREAS, the City desires that public art will be a component of Meridian City Hall 
by the display of artwork in Initial Point Gallery, an art gallery on the third floor of Meridian 
City Hall, the address of which is 33 E. Broadway Ave., Meridian, Idaho (“Initial Point 
Gallery”); 
 

WHEREAS, the Meridian Arts Commission (“Commission”) recommends to the 
Meridian City Council that Artist’s artwork be displayed in Initial Point Gallery; 
 

WHEREAS, the Meridian City Council accepts such recommendation and directs the 
Commission to work with Artist to establish a display of Artist’s artwork in Initial Point Gallery; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge that Meridian City Hall is primarily a place of 

public business, that Initial Point Gallery is a public place, and that while the City seeks to 
encourage artistic expression and public dialogue, the City must simultaneously ensure that 
Meridian City Hall is a place where citizens, employees, and visitors of diverse ages and 
perspectives feel welcome and comfortable;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged and agreed, and in consideration of the mutual promises and 
covenants herein contained, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
I. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

 
Artist shall personally deliver artwork to Initial Point Gallery, on August 5, 2022, at such time as 
is specified by the Gallery Curator.  Artist shall be responsible for installing such artwork on 
August 5, 2022, at the direction of the Gallery Curator; shall allow the display of such work in 
Initial Point Gallery from August 5, 2022 through September 2, 2022, in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement; and shall be responsible for removal of such artwork on September 2, 
2022, at such time as is specified by the Gallery Curator. 

 
II. COMPENSATION AND SALE OF ARTWORK. 
 
A. No compensation.  Artist shall display Artist’s artwork in Initial Point Gallery at the 

pleasure of the Meridian City Council.  City shall not provide compensation to Artist for 
services, work, and/or any activity undertaken pursuant to or related to this Agreement. 

 
B. Sale of artwork.  Artist may, at the direction of and in the manner established by the Gallery 

Page 374

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 2 

Curator, passively offer the artwork on display in Initial Point Gallery for sale.  No price 
shall be displayed on or be proximate to any piece on display in Initial Point Gallery.  City 
personnel shall not facilitate in any way the sale of Artist’s work; any transaction related to 
the sale of artwork shall be handled solely by Artist.  Artist acknowledges the Commission’s 
request that Artist voluntarily donate to the Commission twenty percent (20%) of proceeds 
from any artwork sold due to its display in Initial Point Gallery.  Upon the sale of a piece of 
artwork on display in Initial Point Gallery, Artist may remove such artwork from the Gallery, 
provided that Artist replaces the removed piece with another piece of artwork within twenty-
four (24) hours of such removal.  Artist shall coordinate the removal, replacement, and/or 
substitution of any and all artwork with the Gallery Curator prior to such activity. 
 

III. TIME OF PERFORMANCE. 
 
Artist shall provide services described in this Agreement in a timely manner, as described herein.  
Artist acknowledges and agrees that time is strictly of the essence with respect to this 
Agreement, and that the failure to timely perform any of the obligations hereunder shall 
constitute a default of this Agreement. 

 
IV. INSTALLATION. 

 
A. Coordination with Curator.  Prior to the installation, removal, replacement, and/or 

substitution of the display in Initial Point Gallery or any portion or component thereof, Artist 
shall coordinate any and all such activity with the Gallery Curator.  Artist shall be 
responsible for contacting the Gallery Curator at least thirty (30) days prior prior to the date 
of delivery of artwork to Initial Point Gallery to confirm details regarding the installation, 
removal, publicity, and promotion of the exhibit.  Artist’s failure to affirmatively contact the 
Gallery Curator as required by this paragraph shall constitute a default of this Agreement.   

 
B. Inspection of display.  Prior to or after installation, the Gallery Curator and/or the City may 

inspect and/or review the artwork proposed by Artist for display in Initial Point Gallery to 
ensure compliance with all criteria set forth in the most recent Call to Artists issued for Initial 
Point Gallery, and the Application and Acknowledgements Form completed by Artist, as 
well as to ensure that such artwork may be safely and appropriately displayed in Initial Point 
Gallery.  If the Gallery Curator or the City concludes that the display or any portion or 
component thereof does not meet the criteria set forth in these enumerated documents, does 
not reflect artwork as described to the Commission or the Gallery Curator, or cannot be 
safely and/or appropriately displayed in Initial Point Gallery, the Gallery Curator or the City 
may require the immediate removal of such artwork from Initial Point Gallery.  Further, the 
Gallery Curator or the City may require the immediate removal of such artwork from Initial 
Point Gallery where such removal serves the best interest of the City. 
 

V. DISPLAY. 
 
A. Original artwork.  Artist warrants that any and all artwork provided by Artist for display in 

Initial Point Gallery shall be, and is, original work conceived and created by Artist. 
 

Page 375

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 3 

B. Photographs of artwork.  City may photograph the artwork displayed in Initial Point 
Gallery, as City may desire for purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information.  
Where practicable and to the extent of City’s authority, Artist shall be acknowledged on each 
such photograph to be the creator of the original subject thereof, provided that photographic 
reproductions of artwork shall not be identified as or represented to be the finished artwork. 

 
C. Use of Artist’s name.  Artist hereby conveys to City permission to use Artist’s name for 

purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information, without violation of Artist’s 
rights of privacy or any other rights Artist may possess under this Agreement, provided that 
City shall not use Artist’s logo, if any, for any purpose without the express, written 
permission of Artist. 

 
D. Use of City’s name.  City hereby conveys to Artist permission to use City’s name for 

purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information, without violation of City’s rights 
of privacy or any other rights City may possess under this Agreement, provided that Artist 
shall not use City’s logo for any purpose without the express, written permission of the 
Mayor’s Chief of Staff. 

 
E. Removal of artwork by City.  City shall have the right to remove Artist’s artwork from 

public display at any time and for any reason.  Such removal may be temporary or permanent 
in nature.  Where such artwork is or is intended to be removed from public display for longer 
than forty-eight (48) hours, City shall notify Artist in the manner set forth herein.  While it is 
intended that Artist’s artwork will be displayed in Initial Point Gallery for the period set forth 
herein, this period may be shortened by City for any reason, without notice to the Artist. 

 
F. Removal of artwork by Artist.  Artist shall coordinate with the Gallery Curator the 

removal, replacement, and/or substitution of any and all artwork prior to such activity, 
whether such activity is necessary due to the sale of a piece or for any other reason. 

 
G. Simultaneous display.  City may elect to display the work of more than one Artist or 

Organization in Initial Point Gallery at any time, at the City’s sole discretion.  The manner 
and arrangement of the display(s) in Initial Point Gallery shall be determined by the Gallery 
Curator. 

 
VI. INDEMNIFICATION, WAIVER, AND INSURANCE. 
 
A. Indemnification.  Artist shall, and hereby does, indemnify, save, and hold harmless the City 

and any and all of its employees, agents, volunteers, and/or elected officials from any and all 
losses, claims, and judgments for damages or injury to persons or property, and from any and 
all losses and expenses caused or incurred by Artist or Artist’s servants, agents, employees, 
guests, and/or invitees. 

 
B. Waiver.  Artist shall, and hereby does, waive any and all claims and recourse against City, 

including the right of contribution for loss and damage to persons or property arising from, 
growing out of, or in any way connected with or incident to Artist’s performance of this 
Agreement, whether such loss or damage may be attributable to known or unknown 

Page 376

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 4 

conditions, except for liability arising out of the tortious conduct of City or its officers, 
agents or employees.  

 
C. Insurance Artist’s responsibility.  City shall not provide insurance to cover loss, theft, or 

damage of artwork displayed in Initial Point Gallery or to cover any activity undertaken by 
Artist in the furtherance of Artists’ rights or obligations described herein.  Insurance of the 
artwork; of the Artist’s person, property, or interests; and/or of the Artist’s employees or 
agents shall be the sole responsibility of Artist.  Artist shall obtain all necessary insurance as 
may be required in order to protect Artist’s insurable interests for its rights and obligations 
described within this Agreement, including, but not limited to, liability insurance, automobile 
insurance, worker’s compensation insurance, and/or insurance of the artwork to be displayed 
in Initial Point Gallery. Artist shall bear any and all risks of, and actual, loss of, theft of, 
and/or damage to the artwork prepared for, transported to, transported from, installed or hung 
in, and/or displayed in Initial Point Gallery. 

 
VII. TERMINATION. 
 
A. Termination for cause.  If City determines that Artist has failed to comply with or is in 

default of any term or condition of this Agreement, violated any of the covenants, 
agreements, and/or stipulations of this Agreement, falsified any record or document required 
to be prepared under this Agreement, engaged in fraud, dishonesty, or any other act of 
misconduct in the performance of this Agreement; or if either Party willfully or negligently 
defaults in, or fails to fulfill, its material obligations under this Agreement; the other Party 
shall have the right to terminate the Agreement by providing written notice to the defaulting 
party of its intent to terminate, and shall specify the grounds for termination.  The defaulting 
party shall have two (2) calendar days, not including Sundays or federal holidays, after the 
other party mails such notice to cure the default.  If the default is not cured within such 
period, this Agreement shall be terminated immediately upon mailing of written notice of 
termination. 

 
B. Termination without cause.  City may immediately terminate this Agreement for any 

reason at any time without prior notice to Artist.  
 
C. Termination upon death or incapacity of Artist.  This Agreement shall automatically 

terminate upon the death or incapacity of Artist.   
 
D. Non-waiver.  A waiver of any breach or default of any provision of this Agreement shall not 

be construed as a waiver of a breach of the same or any other provision hereof. 
 

VIII. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
 
A. Relationship of Parties.  It is the express intention of Parties that Artist is an independent 

party and not an employee, agent, joint venturer, or partner of City.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of 
employer and employee between Artist and City or between Artist and any official, agent, or 

Page 377

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 5 

employee of City.  Both parties acknowledge that Artist is not an employee of City.  Artist 
shall retain the right to perform services for others during the term of this Agreement. 

 
B. Compliance with law.  Throughout the course of this Agreement, Artist shall comply with 

any and all applicable federal, state, and local laws. 
 
C. Non-Discrimination. In fulfilling or exercising any right or obligation under this Agreement, 

Artist shall not discriminate against any person as to race, creed, religion, sex, age, national 
origin, sexual orientation or any physical, mental, or sensory disability. 

 
D. Entire agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the Parties.  

This Agreement supersedes any and all statements, promises, or inducements made by either 
party, or agents of either party, whether oral or written, and whether previous to the 
execution hereof or contemporaneous herewith.  The terms of this Agreement may not be 
enlarged, modified or altered except upon written agreement signed by both parties hereto.   

 
E. Agreement governed by Idaho law. The laws of the State of Idaho shall govern the validity, 

interpretation, performance and enforcement of this Agreement.  Venue shall be in the courts 
of Ada County, Idaho. 

 
F. Cumulative rights and remedies. All rights and remedies herein enumerated shall be 

cumulative and none shall exclude any other right or remedy allowed by law. Likewise, the 
exercise of any remedy provided for herein or allowed by law shall not be to the exclusion of 
any other remedy. 

 
G. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not 
be affected. 

 
H. Successors and assigns.  Artist shall not subcontract or assign any of Artist’s obligations 

under this Agreement that require or that may require Artist’s artistic talent or expertise.  
Artist may subcontract or assign obligations that do not require Artist’s artistic talent or 
expertise.  All of the terms, provisions, covenants and conditions of this Agreement shall 
inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon, each party and their successors, assigns, 
legal representatives, heirs, executors, and administrators. 

 
I. Notice. Any and all notice required to be provided by the Parties hereto, unless otherwise 

stated in this Agreement, shall be in writing and shall be deemed communicated upon 
mailing by United States Mail, addressed, if to the Artist, to the address written below, and if 
to the City, to: 33 E. Broadway Avenue, Meridian, Idaho, 83642.  Either party may change 
its respective mailing address by giving written notice of such change in the manner herein 
provided. 

 
J. City Council approval required.  The validity of this Agreement shall be expressly 

conditioned upon City Council action approving the Agreement.  Execution of this 

Page 378

Item #25.



Page 379

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 1 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT: 
DISPLAY OF ARTWORK IN INITIAL POINT GALLERY, MERIDIAN CITY HALL 

 
This ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT: DISPLAY OF ARTWORK IN INITIAL POINT 

GALLERY, MERIDIAN CITY HALL (“Agreement”) is made on the ____ day of ___________, 
20___ (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Meridian, a municipal corporation 
organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and Jerry Hendershot, an individual 
person (“Artist”).  (City and Artist may hereinafter be collectively referred to as “Parties.”) 
 

WHEREAS, the City desires that public art will be a component of Meridian City Hall 
by the display of artwork in Initial Point Gallery, an art gallery on the third floor of Meridian 
City Hall, the address of which is 33 E. Broadway Ave., Meridian, Idaho (“Initial Point 
Gallery”); 
 

WHEREAS, the Meridian Arts Commission (“Commission”) recommends to the 
Meridian City Council that Artist’s artwork be displayed in Initial Point Gallery; 
 

WHEREAS, the Meridian City Council accepts such recommendation and directs the 
Commission to work with Artist to establish a display of Artist’s artwork in Initial Point Gallery; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge that Meridian City Hall is primarily a place of 

public business, that Initial Point Gallery is a public place, and that while the City seeks to 
encourage artistic expression and public dialogue, the City must simultaneously ensure that 
Meridian City Hall is a place where citizens, employees, and visitors of diverse ages and 
perspectives feel welcome and comfortable;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged and agreed, and in consideration of the mutual promises and 
covenants herein contained, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
I. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

 
Artist shall personally deliver artwork to Initial Point Gallery, on August 5, 2022, at such time as 
is specified by the Gallery Curator.  Artist shall be responsible for installing such artwork on 
August 5, 2022, at the direction of the Gallery Curator; shall allow the display of such work in 
Initial Point Gallery from August 5, 2022 through September 2, 2022, in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement; and shall be responsible for removal of such artwork on September 2, 
2022, at such time as is specified by the Gallery Curator. 

 
II. COMPENSATION AND SALE OF ARTWORK. 
 
A. No compensation.  Artist shall display Artist’s artwork in Initial Point Gallery at the 

pleasure of the Meridian City Council.  City shall not provide compensation to Artist for 
services, work, and/or any activity undertaken pursuant to or related to this Agreement. 

 
B. Sale of artwork.  Artist may, at the direction of and in the manner established by the Gallery 

Page 380

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 2 

Curator, passively offer the artwork on display in Initial Point Gallery for sale.  No price 
shall be displayed on or be proximate to any piece on display in Initial Point Gallery.  City 
personnel shall not facilitate in any way the sale of Artist’s work; any transaction related to 
the sale of artwork shall be handled solely by Artist.  Artist acknowledges the Commission’s 
request that Artist voluntarily donate to the Commission twenty percent (20%) of proceeds 
from any artwork sold due to its display in Initial Point Gallery.  Upon the sale of a piece of 
artwork on display in Initial Point Gallery, Artist may remove such artwork from the Gallery, 
provided that Artist replaces the removed piece with another piece of artwork within twenty-
four (24) hours of such removal.  Artist shall coordinate the removal, replacement, and/or 
substitution of any and all artwork with the Gallery Curator prior to such activity. 
 

III. TIME OF PERFORMANCE. 
 
Artist shall provide services described in this Agreement in a timely manner, as described herein.  
Artist acknowledges and agrees that time is strictly of the essence with respect to this 
Agreement, and that the failure to timely perform any of the obligations hereunder shall 
constitute a default of this Agreement. 

 
IV. INSTALLATION. 

 
A. Coordination with Curator.  Prior to the installation, removal, replacement, and/or 

substitution of the display in Initial Point Gallery or any portion or component thereof, Artist 
shall coordinate any and all such activity with the Gallery Curator.  Artist shall be 
responsible for contacting the Gallery Curator at least thirty (30) days prior prior to the date 
of delivery of artwork to Initial Point Gallery to confirm details regarding the installation, 
removal, publicity, and promotion of the exhibit.  Artist’s failure to affirmatively contact the 
Gallery Curator as required by this paragraph shall constitute a default of this Agreement.   

 
B. Inspection of display.  Prior to or after installation, the Gallery Curator and/or the City may 

inspect and/or review the artwork proposed by Artist for display in Initial Point Gallery to 
ensure compliance with all criteria set forth in the most recent Call to Artists issued for Initial 
Point Gallery, and the Application and Acknowledgements Form completed by Artist, as 
well as to ensure that such artwork may be safely and appropriately displayed in Initial Point 
Gallery.  If the Gallery Curator or the City concludes that the display or any portion or 
component thereof does not meet the criteria set forth in these enumerated documents, does 
not reflect artwork as described to the Commission or the Gallery Curator, or cannot be 
safely and/or appropriately displayed in Initial Point Gallery, the Gallery Curator or the City 
may require the immediate removal of such artwork from Initial Point Gallery.  Further, the 
Gallery Curator or the City may require the immediate removal of such artwork from Initial 
Point Gallery where such removal serves the best interest of the City. 
 

V. DISPLAY. 
 
A. Original artwork.  Artist warrants that any and all artwork provided by Artist for display in 

Initial Point Gallery shall be, and is, original work conceived and created by Artist. 
 

Page 381

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 3 

B. Photographs of artwork.  City may photograph the artwork displayed in Initial Point 
Gallery, as City may desire for purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information.  
Where practicable and to the extent of City’s authority, Artist shall be acknowledged on each 
such photograph to be the creator of the original subject thereof, provided that photographic 
reproductions of artwork shall not be identified as or represented to be the finished artwork. 

 
C. Use of Artist’s name.  Artist hereby conveys to City permission to use Artist’s name for 

purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information, without violation of Artist’s 
rights of privacy or any other rights Artist may possess under this Agreement, provided that 
City shall not use Artist’s logo, if any, for any purpose without the express, written 
permission of Artist. 

 
D. Use of City’s name.  City hereby conveys to Artist permission to use City’s name for 

purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information, without violation of City’s rights 
of privacy or any other rights City may possess under this Agreement, provided that Artist 
shall not use City’s logo for any purpose without the express, written permission of the 
Mayor’s Chief of Staff. 

 
E. Removal of artwork by City.  City shall have the right to remove Artist’s artwork from 

public display at any time and for any reason.  Such removal may be temporary or permanent 
in nature.  Where such artwork is or is intended to be removed from public display for longer 
than forty-eight (48) hours, City shall notify Artist in the manner set forth herein.  While it is 
intended that Artist’s artwork will be displayed in Initial Point Gallery for the period set forth 
herein, this period may be shortened by City for any reason, without notice to the Artist. 

 
F. Removal of artwork by Artist.  Artist shall coordinate with the Gallery Curator the 

removal, replacement, and/or substitution of any and all artwork prior to such activity, 
whether such activity is necessary due to the sale of a piece or for any other reason. 

 
G. Simultaneous display.  City may elect to display the work of more than one Artist or 

Organization in Initial Point Gallery at any time, at the City’s sole discretion.  The manner 
and arrangement of the display(s) in Initial Point Gallery shall be determined by the Gallery 
Curator. 

 
VI. INDEMNIFICATION, WAIVER, AND INSURANCE. 
 
A. Indemnification.  Artist shall, and hereby does, indemnify, save, and hold harmless the City 

and any and all of its employees, agents, volunteers, and/or elected officials from any and all 
losses, claims, and judgments for damages or injury to persons or property, and from any and 
all losses and expenses caused or incurred by Artist or Artist’s servants, agents, employees, 
guests, and/or invitees. 

 
B. Waiver.  Artist shall, and hereby does, waive any and all claims and recourse against City, 

including the right of contribution for loss and damage to persons or property arising from, 
growing out of, or in any way connected with or incident to Artist’s performance of this 
Agreement, whether such loss or damage may be attributable to known or unknown 

Page 382

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 4 

conditions, except for liability arising out of the tortious conduct of City or its officers, 
agents or employees.  

 
C. Insurance Artist’s responsibility.  City shall not provide insurance to cover loss, theft, or 

damage of artwork displayed in Initial Point Gallery or to cover any activity undertaken by 
Artist in the furtherance of Artists’ rights or obligations described herein.  Insurance of the 
artwork; of the Artist’s person, property, or interests; and/or of the Artist’s employees or 
agents shall be the sole responsibility of Artist.  Artist shall obtain all necessary insurance as 
may be required in order to protect Artist’s insurable interests for its rights and obligations 
described within this Agreement, including, but not limited to, liability insurance, automobile 
insurance, worker’s compensation insurance, and/or insurance of the artwork to be displayed 
in Initial Point Gallery. Artist shall bear any and all risks of, and actual, loss of, theft of, 
and/or damage to the artwork prepared for, transported to, transported from, installed or hung 
in, and/or displayed in Initial Point Gallery. 

 
VII. TERMINATION. 
 
A. Termination for cause.  If City determines that Artist has failed to comply with or is in 

default of any term or condition of this Agreement, violated any of the covenants, 
agreements, and/or stipulations of this Agreement, falsified any record or document required 
to be prepared under this Agreement, engaged in fraud, dishonesty, or any other act of 
misconduct in the performance of this Agreement; or if either Party willfully or negligently 
defaults in, or fails to fulfill, its material obligations under this Agreement; the other Party 
shall have the right to terminate the Agreement by providing written notice to the defaulting 
party of its intent to terminate, and shall specify the grounds for termination.  The defaulting 
party shall have two (2) calendar days, not including Sundays or federal holidays, after the 
other party mails such notice to cure the default.  If the default is not cured within such 
period, this Agreement shall be terminated immediately upon mailing of written notice of 
termination. 

 
B. Termination without cause.  City may immediately terminate this Agreement for any 

reason at any time without prior notice to Artist.  
 
C. Termination upon death or incapacity of Artist.  This Agreement shall automatically 

terminate upon the death or incapacity of Artist.   
 
D. Non-waiver.  A waiver of any breach or default of any provision of this Agreement shall not 

be construed as a waiver of a breach of the same or any other provision hereof. 
 

VIII. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
 
A. Relationship of Parties.  It is the express intention of Parties that Artist is an independent 

party and not an employee, agent, joint venturer, or partner of City.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of 
employer and employee between Artist and City or between Artist and any official, agent, or 

Page 383

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 5 

employee of City.  Both parties acknowledge that Artist is not an employee of City.  Artist 
shall retain the right to perform services for others during the term of this Agreement. 

 
B. Compliance with law.  Throughout the course of this Agreement, Artist shall comply with 

any and all applicable federal, state, and local laws. 
 
C. Non-Discrimination. In fulfilling or exercising any right or obligation under this Agreement, 

Artist shall not discriminate against any person as to race, creed, religion, sex, age, national 
origin, sexual orientation or any physical, mental, or sensory disability. 

 
D. Entire agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the Parties.  

This Agreement supersedes any and all statements, promises, or inducements made by either 
party, or agents of either party, whether oral or written, and whether previous to the 
execution hereof or contemporaneous herewith.  The terms of this Agreement may not be 
enlarged, modified or altered except upon written agreement signed by both parties hereto.   

 
E. Agreement governed by Idaho law. The laws of the State of Idaho shall govern the validity, 

interpretation, performance and enforcement of this Agreement.  Venue shall be in the courts 
of Ada County, Idaho. 

 
F. Cumulative rights and remedies. All rights and remedies herein enumerated shall be 

cumulative and none shall exclude any other right or remedy allowed by law. Likewise, the 
exercise of any remedy provided for herein or allowed by law shall not be to the exclusion of 
any other remedy. 

 
G. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not 
be affected. 

 
H. Successors and assigns.  Artist shall not subcontract or assign any of Artist’s obligations 

under this Agreement that require or that may require Artist’s artistic talent or expertise.  
Artist may subcontract or assign obligations that do not require Artist’s artistic talent or 
expertise.  All of the terms, provisions, covenants and conditions of this Agreement shall 
inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon, each party and their successors, assigns, 
legal representatives, heirs, executors, and administrators. 

 
I. Notice. Any and all notice required to be provided by the Parties hereto, unless otherwise 

stated in this Agreement, shall be in writing and shall be deemed communicated upon 
mailing by United States Mail, addressed, if to the Artist, to the address written below, and if 
to the City, to: 33 E. Broadway Avenue, Meridian, Idaho, 83642.  Either party may change 
its respective mailing address by giving written notice of such change in the manner herein 
provided. 

 
J. City Council approval required.  The validity of this Agreement shall be expressly 

conditioned upon City Council action approving the Agreement.  Execution of this 

Page 384

Item #25.



Page 385

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 1 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT: 
DISPLAY OF ARTWORK IN INITIAL POINT GALLERY, MERIDIAN CITY HALL 

 
This ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT: DISPLAY OF ARTWORK IN INITIAL POINT 

GALLERY, MERIDIAN CITY HALL (“Agreement”) is made on the ____ day of ___________, 
20___ (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Meridian, a municipal corporation 
organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and Monte Stiles, an individual person 
(“Artist”).  (City and Artist may hereinafter be collectively referred to as “Parties.”) 
 

WHEREAS, the City desires that public art will be a component of Meridian City Hall 
by the display of artwork in Initial Point Gallery, an art gallery on the third floor of Meridian 
City Hall, the address of which is 33 E. Broadway Ave., Meridian, Idaho (“Initial Point 
Gallery”); 
 

WHEREAS, the Meridian Arts Commission (“Commission”) recommends to the 
Meridian City Council that Artist’s artwork be displayed in Initial Point Gallery; 
 

WHEREAS, the Meridian City Council accepts such recommendation and directs the 
Commission to work with Artist to establish a display of Artist’s artwork in Initial Point Gallery; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge that Meridian City Hall is primarily a place of 

public business, that Initial Point Gallery is a public place, and that while the City seeks to 
encourage artistic expression and public dialogue, the City must simultaneously ensure that 
Meridian City Hall is a place where citizens, employees, and visitors of diverse ages and 
perspectives feel welcome and comfortable;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged and agreed, and in consideration of the mutual promises and 
covenants herein contained, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
I. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

 
Artist shall personally deliver artwork to Initial Point Gallery, on August 5, 2022, at such time as 
is specified by the Gallery Curator.  Artist shall be responsible for installing such artwork on 
August 5, 2022, at the direction of the Gallery Curator; shall allow the display of such work in 
Initial Point Gallery from August 5, 2022 through September 2, 2022, in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement; and shall be responsible for removal of such artwork on September 2, 
2022, at such time as is specified by the Gallery Curator. 

 
II. COMPENSATION AND SALE OF ARTWORK. 
 
A. No compensation.  Artist shall display Artist’s artwork in Initial Point Gallery at the 

pleasure of the Meridian City Council.  City shall not provide compensation to Artist for 
services, work, and/or any activity undertaken pursuant to or related to this Agreement. 

 
B. Sale of artwork.  Artist may, at the direction of and in the manner established by the Gallery 

Page 386

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 2 

Curator, passively offer the artwork on display in Initial Point Gallery for sale.  No price 
shall be displayed on or be proximate to any piece on display in Initial Point Gallery.  City 
personnel shall not facilitate in any way the sale of Artist’s work; any transaction related to 
the sale of artwork shall be handled solely by Artist.  Artist acknowledges the Commission’s 
request that Artist voluntarily donate to the Commission twenty percent (20%) of proceeds 
from any artwork sold due to its display in Initial Point Gallery.  Upon the sale of a piece of 
artwork on display in Initial Point Gallery, Artist may remove such artwork from the Gallery, 
provided that Artist replaces the removed piece with another piece of artwork within twenty-
four (24) hours of such removal.  Artist shall coordinate the removal, replacement, and/or 
substitution of any and all artwork with the Gallery Curator prior to such activity. 
 

III. TIME OF PERFORMANCE. 
 
Artist shall provide services described in this Agreement in a timely manner, as described herein.  
Artist acknowledges and agrees that time is strictly of the essence with respect to this 
Agreement, and that the failure to timely perform any of the obligations hereunder shall 
constitute a default of this Agreement. 

 
IV. INSTALLATION. 

 
A. Coordination with Curator.  Prior to the installation, removal, replacement, and/or 

substitution of the display in Initial Point Gallery or any portion or component thereof, Artist 
shall coordinate any and all such activity with the Gallery Curator.  Artist shall be 
responsible for contacting the Gallery Curator at least thirty (30) days prior prior to the date 
of delivery of artwork to Initial Point Gallery to confirm details regarding the installation, 
removal, publicity, and promotion of the exhibit.  Artist’s failure to affirmatively contact the 
Gallery Curator as required by this paragraph shall constitute a default of this Agreement.   

 
B. Inspection of display.  Prior to or after installation, the Gallery Curator and/or the City may 

inspect and/or review the artwork proposed by Artist for display in Initial Point Gallery to 
ensure compliance with all criteria set forth in the most recent Call to Artists issued for Initial 
Point Gallery, and the Application and Acknowledgements Form completed by Artist, as 
well as to ensure that such artwork may be safely and appropriately displayed in Initial Point 
Gallery.  If the Gallery Curator or the City concludes that the display or any portion or 
component thereof does not meet the criteria set forth in these enumerated documents, does 
not reflect artwork as described to the Commission or the Gallery Curator, or cannot be 
safely and/or appropriately displayed in Initial Point Gallery, the Gallery Curator or the City 
may require the immediate removal of such artwork from Initial Point Gallery.  Further, the 
Gallery Curator or the City may require the immediate removal of such artwork from Initial 
Point Gallery where such removal serves the best interest of the City. 
 

V. DISPLAY. 
 
A. Original artwork.  Artist warrants that any and all artwork provided by Artist for display in 

Initial Point Gallery shall be, and is, original work conceived and created by Artist. 
 

Page 387

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 3 

B. Photographs of artwork.  City may photograph the artwork displayed in Initial Point 
Gallery, as City may desire for purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information.  
Where practicable and to the extent of City’s authority, Artist shall be acknowledged on each 
such photograph to be the creator of the original subject thereof, provided that photographic 
reproductions of artwork shall not be identified as or represented to be the finished artwork. 

 
C. Use of Artist’s name.  Artist hereby conveys to City permission to use Artist’s name for 

purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information, without violation of Artist’s 
rights of privacy or any other rights Artist may possess under this Agreement, provided that 
City shall not use Artist’s logo, if any, for any purpose without the express, written 
permission of Artist. 

 
D. Use of City’s name.  City hereby conveys to Artist permission to use City’s name for 

purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information, without violation of City’s rights 
of privacy or any other rights City may possess under this Agreement, provided that Artist 
shall not use City’s logo for any purpose without the express, written permission of the 
Mayor’s Chief of Staff. 

 
E. Removal of artwork by City.  City shall have the right to remove Artist’s artwork from 

public display at any time and for any reason.  Such removal may be temporary or permanent 
in nature.  Where such artwork is or is intended to be removed from public display for longer 
than forty-eight (48) hours, City shall notify Artist in the manner set forth herein.  While it is 
intended that Artist’s artwork will be displayed in Initial Point Gallery for the period set forth 
herein, this period may be shortened by City for any reason, without notice to the Artist. 

 
F. Removal of artwork by Artist.  Artist shall coordinate with the Gallery Curator the 

removal, replacement, and/or substitution of any and all artwork prior to such activity, 
whether such activity is necessary due to the sale of a piece or for any other reason. 

 
G. Simultaneous display.  City may elect to display the work of more than one Artist or 

Organization in Initial Point Gallery at any time, at the City’s sole discretion.  The manner 
and arrangement of the display(s) in Initial Point Gallery shall be determined by the Gallery 
Curator. 

 
VI. INDEMNIFICATION, WAIVER, AND INSURANCE. 
 
A. Indemnification.  Artist shall, and hereby does, indemnify, save, and hold harmless the City 

and any and all of its employees, agents, volunteers, and/or elected officials from any and all 
losses, claims, and judgments for damages or injury to persons or property, and from any and 
all losses and expenses caused or incurred by Artist or Artist’s servants, agents, employees, 
guests, and/or invitees. 

 
B. Waiver.  Artist shall, and hereby does, waive any and all claims and recourse against City, 

including the right of contribution for loss and damage to persons or property arising from, 
growing out of, or in any way connected with or incident to Artist’s performance of this 
Agreement, whether such loss or damage may be attributable to known or unknown 

Page 388

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 4 

conditions, except for liability arising out of the tortious conduct of City or its officers, 
agents or employees.  

 
C. Insurance Artist’s responsibility.  City shall not provide insurance to cover loss, theft, or 

damage of artwork displayed in Initial Point Gallery or to cover any activity undertaken by 
Artist in the furtherance of Artists’ rights or obligations described herein.  Insurance of the 
artwork; of the Artist’s person, property, or interests; and/or of the Artist’s employees or 
agents shall be the sole responsibility of Artist.  Artist shall obtain all necessary insurance as 
may be required in order to protect Artist’s insurable interests for its rights and obligations 
described within this Agreement, including, but not limited to, liability insurance, automobile 
insurance, worker’s compensation insurance, and/or insurance of the artwork to be displayed 
in Initial Point Gallery. Artist shall bear any and all risks of, and actual, loss of, theft of, 
and/or damage to the artwork prepared for, transported to, transported from, installed or hung 
in, and/or displayed in Initial Point Gallery. 

 
VII. TERMINATION. 
 
A. Termination for cause.  If City determines that Artist has failed to comply with or is in 

default of any term or condition of this Agreement, violated any of the covenants, 
agreements, and/or stipulations of this Agreement, falsified any record or document required 
to be prepared under this Agreement, engaged in fraud, dishonesty, or any other act of 
misconduct in the performance of this Agreement; or if either Party willfully or negligently 
defaults in, or fails to fulfill, its material obligations under this Agreement; the other Party 
shall have the right to terminate the Agreement by providing written notice to the defaulting 
party of its intent to terminate, and shall specify the grounds for termination.  The defaulting 
party shall have two (2) calendar days, not including Sundays or federal holidays, after the 
other party mails such notice to cure the default.  If the default is not cured within such 
period, this Agreement shall be terminated immediately upon mailing of written notice of 
termination. 

 
B. Termination without cause.  City may immediately terminate this Agreement for any 

reason at any time without prior notice to Artist.  
 
C. Termination upon death or incapacity of Artist.  This Agreement shall automatically 

terminate upon the death or incapacity of Artist.   
 
D. Non-waiver.  A waiver of any breach or default of any provision of this Agreement shall not 

be construed as a waiver of a breach of the same or any other provision hereof. 
 

VIII. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
 
A. Relationship of Parties.  It is the express intention of Parties that Artist is an independent 

party and not an employee, agent, joint venturer, or partner of City.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of 
employer and employee between Artist and City or between Artist and any official, agent, or 

Page 389

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 5 

employee of City.  Both parties acknowledge that Artist is not an employee of City.  Artist 
shall retain the right to perform services for others during the term of this Agreement. 

 
B. Compliance with law.  Throughout the course of this Agreement, Artist shall comply with 

any and all applicable federal, state, and local laws. 
 
C. Non-Discrimination. In fulfilling or exercising any right or obligation under this Agreement, 

Artist shall not discriminate against any person as to race, creed, religion, sex, age, national 
origin, sexual orientation or any physical, mental, or sensory disability. 

 
D. Entire agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the Parties.  

This Agreement supersedes any and all statements, promises, or inducements made by either 
party, or agents of either party, whether oral or written, and whether previous to the 
execution hereof or contemporaneous herewith.  The terms of this Agreement may not be 
enlarged, modified or altered except upon written agreement signed by both parties hereto.   

 
E. Agreement governed by Idaho law. The laws of the State of Idaho shall govern the validity, 

interpretation, performance and enforcement of this Agreement.  Venue shall be in the courts 
of Ada County, Idaho. 

 
F. Cumulative rights and remedies. All rights and remedies herein enumerated shall be 

cumulative and none shall exclude any other right or remedy allowed by law. Likewise, the 
exercise of any remedy provided for herein or allowed by law shall not be to the exclusion of 
any other remedy. 

 
G. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not 
be affected. 

 
H. Successors and assigns.  Artist shall not subcontract or assign any of Artist’s obligations 

under this Agreement that require or that may require Artist’s artistic talent or expertise.  
Artist may subcontract or assign obligations that do not require Artist’s artistic talent or 
expertise.  All of the terms, provisions, covenants and conditions of this Agreement shall 
inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon, each party and their successors, assigns, 
legal representatives, heirs, executors, and administrators. 

 
I. Notice. Any and all notice required to be provided by the Parties hereto, unless otherwise 

stated in this Agreement, shall be in writing and shall be deemed communicated upon 
mailing by United States Mail, addressed, if to the Artist, to the address written below, and if 
to the City, to: 33 E. Broadway Avenue, Meridian, Idaho, 83642.  Either party may change 
its respective mailing address by giving written notice of such change in the manner herein 
provided. 

 
J. City Council approval required.  The validity of this Agreement shall be expressly 

conditioned upon City Council action approving the Agreement.  Execution of this 

Page 390

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 6 

Agreement by the persons referenced below prior to such ratification or approval shall not be 
construed as proof of validity in the absence of Meridian City Council approval. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the 

Effective Date written above. 
 
ARTIST:      
 
 
__________________________________ 
Monte Stiles 
 
Address: __________________________________ 
 
  __________________________________ 
 
Phone:  __________________________________ 
 
E-mail: __________________________________      
  
         
 
CITY OF MERIDIAN: 
 
 
BY: __________________________________ 

Robert E. Simison, Mayor 
 
 

Attest: ______________________________ 
 Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

3671 S. Daisy Way

Boise, Idaho 83709

208-841-6682

monte@montestiles.com

Page 391

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 1 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT: 
DISPLAY OF ARTWORK IN INITIAL POINT GALLERY, MERIDIAN CITY HALL 

 
This ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT: DISPLAY OF ARTWORK IN INITIAL POINT 

GALLERY, MERIDIAN CITY HALL (“Agreement”) is made on the ____ day of ___________, 
20___ (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Meridian, a municipal corporation 
organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and Melissa Reché, an individual person 
(“Artist”).  (City and Artist may hereinafter be collectively referred to as “Parties.”) 
 

WHEREAS, the City desires that public art will be a component of Meridian City Hall 
by the display of artwork in Initial Point Gallery, an art gallery on the third floor of Meridian 
City Hall, the address of which is 33 E. Broadway Ave., Meridian, Idaho (“Initial Point 
Gallery”); 
 

WHEREAS, the Meridian Arts Commission (“Commission”) recommends to the 
Meridian City Council that Artist’s artwork be displayed in Initial Point Gallery; 
 

WHEREAS, the Meridian City Council accepts such recommendation and directs the 
Commission to work with Artist to establish a display of Artist’s artwork in Initial Point Gallery; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge that Meridian City Hall is primarily a place of 

public business, that Initial Point Gallery is a public place, and that while the City seeks to 
encourage artistic expression and public dialogue, the City must simultaneously ensure that 
Meridian City Hall is a place where citizens, employees, and visitors of diverse ages and 
perspectives feel welcome and comfortable;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged and agreed, and in consideration of the mutual promises and 
covenants herein contained, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
I. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

 
Artist shall personally deliver artwork to Initial Point Gallery, on October 7, 2022, at such time 
as is specified by the Gallery Curator.  Artist shall be responsible for installing such artwork on 
October 7, 2022, at the direction of the Gallery Curator; shall allow the display of such work in 
Initial Point Gallery from October 7, 2022 through November 4, 2022, in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement; and shall be responsible for removal of such artwork on November 4, 
2022, at such time as is specified by the Gallery Curator. 

 
II. COMPENSATION AND SALE OF ARTWORK. 
 
A. No compensation.  Artist shall display Artist’s artwork in Initial Point Gallery at the 

pleasure of the Meridian City Council.  City shall not provide compensation to Artist for 
services, work, and/or any activity undertaken pursuant to or related to this Agreement. 

 
B. Sale of artwork.  Artist may, at the direction of and in the manner established by the Gallery 

Page 392

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 2 

Curator, passively offer the artwork on display in Initial Point Gallery for sale.  No price 
shall be displayed on or be proximate to any piece on display in Initial Point Gallery.  City 
personnel shall not facilitate in any way the sale of Artist’s work; any transaction related to 
the sale of artwork shall be handled solely by Artist.  Artist acknowledges the Commission’s 
request that Artist voluntarily donate to the Commission twenty percent (20%) of proceeds 
from any artwork sold due to its display in Initial Point Gallery.  Upon the sale of a piece of 
artwork on display in Initial Point Gallery, Artist may remove such artwork from the Gallery, 
provided that Artist replaces the removed piece with another piece of artwork within twenty-
four (24) hours of such removal.  Artist shall coordinate the removal, replacement, and/or 
substitution of any and all artwork with the Gallery Curator prior to such activity. 
 

III. TIME OF PERFORMANCE. 
 
Artist shall provide services described in this Agreement in a timely manner, as described herein.  
Artist acknowledges and agrees that time is strictly of the essence with respect to this 
Agreement, and that the failure to timely perform any of the obligations hereunder shall 
constitute a default of this Agreement. 

 
IV. INSTALLATION. 

 
A. Coordination with Curator.  Prior to the installation, removal, replacement, and/or 

substitution of the display in Initial Point Gallery or any portion or component thereof, Artist 
shall coordinate any and all such activity with the Gallery Curator.  Artist shall be 
responsible for contacting the Gallery Curator at least thirty (30) days prior prior to the date 
of delivery of artwork to Initial Point Gallery to confirm details regarding the installation, 
removal, publicity, and promotion of the exhibit.  Artist’s failure to affirmatively contact the 
Gallery Curator as required by this paragraph shall constitute a default of this Agreement.   

 
B. Inspection of display.  Prior to or after installation, the Gallery Curator and/or the City may 

inspect and/or review the artwork proposed by Artist for display in Initial Point Gallery to 
ensure compliance with all criteria set forth in the most recent Call to Artists issued for Initial 
Point Gallery, and the Application and Acknowledgements Form completed by Artist, as 
well as to ensure that such artwork may be safely and appropriately displayed in Initial Point 
Gallery.  If the Gallery Curator or the City concludes that the display or any portion or 
component thereof does not meet the criteria set forth in these enumerated documents, does 
not reflect artwork as described to the Commission or the Gallery Curator, or cannot be 
safely and/or appropriately displayed in Initial Point Gallery, the Gallery Curator or the City 
may require the immediate removal of such artwork from Initial Point Gallery.  Further, the 
Gallery Curator or the City may require the immediate removal of such artwork from Initial 
Point Gallery where such removal serves the best interest of the City. 
 

V. DISPLAY. 
 
A. Original artwork.  Artist warrants that any and all artwork provided by Artist for display in 

Initial Point Gallery shall be, and is, original work conceived and created by Artist. 
 

Page 393

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 3 

B. Photographs of artwork.  City may photograph the artwork displayed in Initial Point 
Gallery, as City may desire for purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information.  
Where practicable and to the extent of City’s authority, Artist shall be acknowledged on each 
such photograph to be the creator of the original subject thereof, provided that photographic 
reproductions of artwork shall not be identified as or represented to be the finished artwork. 

 
C. Use of Artist’s name.  Artist hereby conveys to City permission to use Artist’s name for 

purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information, without violation of Artist’s 
rights of privacy or any other rights Artist may possess under this Agreement, provided that 
City shall not use Artist’s logo, if any, for any purpose without the express, written 
permission of Artist. 

 
D. Use of City’s name.  City hereby conveys to Artist permission to use City’s name for 

purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information, without violation of City’s rights 
of privacy or any other rights City may possess under this Agreement, provided that Artist 
shall not use City’s logo for any purpose without the express, written permission of the 
Mayor’s Chief of Staff. 

 
E. Removal of artwork by City.  City shall have the right to remove Artist’s artwork from 

public display at any time and for any reason.  Such removal may be temporary or permanent 
in nature.  Where such artwork is or is intended to be removed from public display for longer 
than forty-eight (48) hours, City shall notify Artist in the manner set forth herein.  While it is 
intended that Artist’s artwork will be displayed in Initial Point Gallery for the period set forth 
herein, this period may be shortened by City for any reason, without notice to the Artist. 

 
F. Removal of artwork by Artist.  Artist shall coordinate with the Gallery Curator the 

removal, replacement, and/or substitution of any and all artwork prior to such activity, 
whether such activity is necessary due to the sale of a piece or for any other reason. 

 
G. Simultaneous display.  City may elect to display the work of more than one Artist or 

Organization in Initial Point Gallery at any time, at the City’s sole discretion.  The manner 
and arrangement of the display(s) in Initial Point Gallery shall be determined by the Gallery 
Curator. 

 
VI. INDEMNIFICATION, WAIVER, AND INSURANCE. 
 
A. Indemnification.  Artist shall, and hereby does, indemnify, save, and hold harmless the City 

and any and all of its employees, agents, volunteers, and/or elected officials from any and all 
losses, claims, and judgments for damages or injury to persons or property, and from any and 
all losses and expenses caused or incurred by Artist or Artist’s servants, agents, employees, 
guests, and/or invitees. 

 
B. Waiver.  Artist shall, and hereby does, waive any and all claims and recourse against City, 

including the right of contribution for loss and damage to persons or property arising from, 
growing out of, or in any way connected with or incident to Artist’s performance of this 
Agreement, whether such loss or damage may be attributable to known or unknown 

Page 394

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 4 

conditions, except for liability arising out of the tortious conduct of City or its officers, 
agents or employees.  

 
C. Insurance Artist’s responsibility.  City shall not provide insurance to cover loss, theft, or 

damage of artwork displayed in Initial Point Gallery or to cover any activity undertaken by 
Artist in the furtherance of Artists’ rights or obligations described herein.  Insurance of the 
artwork; of the Artist’s person, property, or interests; and/or of the Artist’s employees or 
agents shall be the sole responsibility of Artist.  Artist shall obtain all necessary insurance as 
may be required in order to protect Artist’s insurable interests for its rights and obligations 
described within this Agreement, including, but not limited to, liability insurance, automobile 
insurance, worker’s compensation insurance, and/or insurance of the artwork to be displayed 
in Initial Point Gallery. Artist shall bear any and all risks of, and actual, loss of, theft of, 
and/or damage to the artwork prepared for, transported to, transported from, installed or hung 
in, and/or displayed in Initial Point Gallery. 

 
VII. TERMINATION. 
 
A. Termination for cause.  If City determines that Artist has failed to comply with or is in 

default of any term or condition of this Agreement, violated any of the covenants, 
agreements, and/or stipulations of this Agreement, falsified any record or document required 
to be prepared under this Agreement, engaged in fraud, dishonesty, or any other act of 
misconduct in the performance of this Agreement; or if either Party willfully or negligently 
defaults in, or fails to fulfill, its material obligations under this Agreement; the other Party 
shall have the right to terminate the Agreement by providing written notice to the defaulting 
party of its intent to terminate, and shall specify the grounds for termination.  The defaulting 
party shall have two (2) calendar days, not including Sundays or federal holidays, after the 
other party mails such notice to cure the default.  If the default is not cured within such 
period, this Agreement shall be terminated immediately upon mailing of written notice of 
termination. 

 
B. Termination without cause.  City may immediately terminate this Agreement for any 

reason at any time without prior notice to Artist.  
 
C. Termination upon death or incapacity of Artist.  This Agreement shall automatically 

terminate upon the death or incapacity of Artist.   
 
D. Non-waiver.  A waiver of any breach or default of any provision of this Agreement shall not 

be construed as a waiver of a breach of the same or any other provision hereof. 
 

VIII. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
 
A. Relationship of Parties.  It is the express intention of Parties that Artist is an independent 

party and not an employee, agent, joint venturer, or partner of City.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of 
employer and employee between Artist and City or between Artist and any official, agent, or 

Page 395

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 5 

employee of City.  Both parties acknowledge that Artist is not an employee of City.  Artist 
shall retain the right to perform services for others during the term of this Agreement. 

 
B. Compliance with law.  Throughout the course of this Agreement, Artist shall comply with 

any and all applicable federal, state, and local laws. 
 
C. Non-Discrimination. In fulfilling or exercising any right or obligation under this Agreement, 

Artist shall not discriminate against any person as to race, creed, religion, sex, age, national 
origin, sexual orientation or any physical, mental, or sensory disability. 

 
D. Entire agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the Parties.  

This Agreement supersedes any and all statements, promises, or inducements made by either 
party, or agents of either party, whether oral or written, and whether previous to the 
execution hereof or contemporaneous herewith.  The terms of this Agreement may not be 
enlarged, modified or altered except upon written agreement signed by both parties hereto.   

 
E. Agreement governed by Idaho law. The laws of the State of Idaho shall govern the validity, 

interpretation, performance and enforcement of this Agreement.  Venue shall be in the courts 
of Ada County, Idaho. 

 
F. Cumulative rights and remedies. All rights and remedies herein enumerated shall be 

cumulative and none shall exclude any other right or remedy allowed by law. Likewise, the 
exercise of any remedy provided for herein or allowed by law shall not be to the exclusion of 
any other remedy. 

 
G. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not 
be affected. 

 
H. Successors and assigns.  Artist shall not subcontract or assign any of Artist’s obligations 

under this Agreement that require or that may require Artist’s artistic talent or expertise.  
Artist may subcontract or assign obligations that do not require Artist’s artistic talent or 
expertise.  All of the terms, provisions, covenants and conditions of this Agreement shall 
inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon, each party and their successors, assigns, 
legal representatives, heirs, executors, and administrators. 

 
I. Notice. Any and all notice required to be provided by the Parties hereto, unless otherwise 

stated in this Agreement, shall be in writing and shall be deemed communicated upon 
mailing by United States Mail, addressed, if to the Artist, to the address written below, and if 
to the City, to: 33 E. Broadway Avenue, Meridian, Idaho, 83642.  Either party may change 
its respective mailing address by giving written notice of such change in the manner herein 
provided. 

 
J. City Council approval required.  The validity of this Agreement shall be expressly 

conditioned upon City Council action approving the Agreement.  Execution of this 

Page 396

Item #25.



 
 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 6 

Agreement by the persons referenced below prior to such ratification or approval shall not be 
construed as proof of validity in the absence of Meridian City Council approval. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the 

Effective Date written above. 
 
ARTIST:      
 
 
__________________________________ 
Melissa Reché 
 
Address: __________________________________ 
 
  __________________________________ 
 
Phone:  __________________________________ 
 
E-mail: __________________________________      
  
         
 
CITY OF MERIDIAN: 
 
 
BY: __________________________________ 

Robert E. Simison, Mayor 
 
 

Attest: ______________________________ 
 Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

Page 397

Item #25.



 

 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 1 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT: 

DISPLAY OF ARTWORK IN INITIAL POINT GALLERY, MERIDIAN CITY HALL 

 

This ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT: DISPLAY OF ARTWORK IN INITIAL POINT 

GALLERY, MERIDIAN CITY HALL (“Agreement”) is made on the ____ day of ___________, 

20___ (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Meridian, a municipal corporation 

organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and Kevin Flynn and Amber Day, doing 

business as Flynn Day Pottery, an assumed business name established pursuant to the laws of 

the state of Idaho (“Organization”).  (City and Organization may hereinafter be collectively 

referred to as “Parties.”) 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires that public art will be a component of Meridian City Hall 

by the display of artwork in Initial Point Gallery, an art gallery on the third floor of Meridian 

City Hall, the address of which is 33 E. Broadway Ave., Meridian, Idaho (“Initial Point 

Gallery”); 

 

WHEREAS, the Meridian Arts Commission (“Commission”) recommends to the 

Meridian City Council that Artist’s artwork be displayed in Initial Point Gallery; 

 

WHEREAS, the Meridian City Council accepts such recommendation and directs the 

Commission to work with Artist to establish a display of Artist’s artwork in Initial Point Gallery; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge that Meridian City Hall is primarily a place of 

public business, that Initial Point Gallery is a public place, and that while the City seeks to 

encourage artistic expression and public dialogue, the City must simultaneously ensure that 

Meridian City Hall is a place where citizens, employees, and visitors of diverse ages and 

perspectives feel welcome and comfortable;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 

of which is hereby acknowledged and agreed, and in consideration of the mutual promises and 

covenants herein contained, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 
 

Artist shall personally deliver artwork to Initial Point Gallery, on November 4, 2022, at such 

time as is specified by the Gallery Curator.  Artist shall be responsible for installing such artwork 

on November 4, 2022, at the direction of the Gallery Curator; shall allow the display of such 

work in Initial Point Gallery from November 4, 2022 through Deember 2, 2022, in accordance 

with the terms of this Agreement; and shall be responsible for removal of such artwork on 

December 2, 2022, at such time as is specified by the Gallery Curator. 

 

II. COMPENSATION AND SALE OF ARTWORK. 

 

A. No compensation.  Artist shall display Artist’s artwork in Initial Point Gallery at the 

pleasure of the Meridian City Council.  City shall not provide compensation to Artist for 

services, work, and/or any activity undertaken pursuant to or related to this Agreement. 

Page 398

Item #25.



 

 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 2 

 

B. Sale of artwork.  Artist may, at the direction of and in the manner established by the Gallery 

Curator, passively offer the artwork on display in Initial Point Gallery for sale.  No price 

shall be displayed on or be proximate to any piece on display in Initial Point Gallery.  City 

personnel shall not facilitate in any way the sale of Artist’s work; any transaction related to 

the sale of artwork shall be handled solely by Artist.  Artist acknowledges the Commission’s 

request that Artist voluntarily donate to the Commission twenty percent (20%) of proceeds 

from any artwork sold due to its display in Initial Point Gallery.  Upon the sale of a piece of 

artwork on display in Initial Point Gallery, Artist may remove such artwork from the Gallery, 

provided that Artist replaces the removed piece with another piece of artwork within twenty-

four (24) hours of such removal.  Artist shall coordinate the removal, replacement, and/or 

substitution of any and all artwork with the Gallery Curator prior to such activity. 

 

III. TIME OF PERFORMANCE. 

 

Artist shall provide services described in this Agreement in a timely manner, as described herein.  

Artist acknowledges and agrees that time is strictly of the essence with respect to this 

Agreement, and that the failure to timely perform any of the obligations hereunder shall 

constitute a default of this Agreement. 

 

IV. INSTALLATION. 

 

A. Coordination with Curator.  Prior to the installation, removal, replacement, and/or 

substitution of the display in Initial Point Gallery or any portion or component thereof, Artist 

shall coordinate any and all such activity with the Gallery Curator.  Artist shall be 

responsible for contacting the Gallery Curator at least thirty (30) days prior prior to the date 

of delivery of artwork to Initial Point Gallery to confirm details regarding the installation, 

removal, publicity, and promotion of the exhibit.  Artist’s failure to affirmatively contact the 

Gallery Curator as required by this paragraph shall constitute a default of this Agreement.   

 

B. Inspection of display.  Prior to or after installation, the Gallery Curator and/or the City may 

inspect and/or review the artwork proposed by Artist for display in Initial Point Gallery to 

ensure compliance with all criteria set forth in the most recent Call to Artists issued for Initial 

Point Gallery, and the Application and Acknowledgements Form completed by Artist, as 

well as to ensure that such artwork may be safely and appropriately displayed in Initial Point 

Gallery.  If the Gallery Curator or the City concludes that the display or any portion or 

component thereof does not meet the criteria set forth in these enumerated documents, does 

not reflect artwork as described to the Commission or the Gallery Curator, or cannot be 

safely and/or appropriately displayed in Initial Point Gallery, the Gallery Curator or the City 

may require the immediate removal of such artwork from Initial Point Gallery.  Further, the 

Gallery Curator or the City may require the immediate removal of such artwork from Initial 

Point Gallery where such removal serves the best interest of the City. 

 

V. DISPLAY. 

 

Page 399

Item #25.



 

 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 3 

A. Original artwork.  Artist warrants that any and all artwork provided by Artist for display in 

Initial Point Gallery shall be, and is, original work conceived and created by Artist. 

 

B. Photographs of artwork.  City may photograph the artwork displayed in Initial Point 

Gallery, as City may desire for purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information.  

Where practicable and to the extent of City’s authority, Artist shall be acknowledged on each 

such photograph to be the creator of the original subject thereof, provided that photographic 

reproductions of artwork shall not be identified as or represented to be the finished artwork. 

 

C. Use of Artist’s name.  Artist hereby conveys to City permission to use Artist’s name for 

purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information, without violation of Artist’s 

rights of privacy or any other rights Artist may possess under this Agreement, provided that 

City shall not use Artist’s logo, if any, for any purpose without the express, written 

permission of Artist. 

 

D. Use of City’s name.  City hereby conveys to Artist permission to use City’s name for 

purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information, without violation of City’s rights 

of privacy or any other rights City may possess under this Agreement, provided that Artist 

shall not use City’s logo for any purpose without the express, written permission of the 

Mayor’s Chief of Staff. 

 

E. Removal of artwork by City.  City shall have the right to remove Artist’s artwork from 

public display at any time and for any reason.  Such removal may be temporary or permanent 

in nature.  Where such artwork is or is intended to be removed from public display for longer 

than forty-eight (48) hours, City shall notify Artist in the manner set forth herein.  While it is 

intended that Artist’s artwork will be displayed in Initial Point Gallery for the period set forth 

herein, this period may be shortened by City for any reason, without notice to the Artist. 

 

F. Removal of artwork by Artist.  Artist shall coordinate with the Gallery Curator the 

removal, replacement, and/or substitution of any and all artwork prior to such activity, 

whether such activity is necessary due to the sale of a piece or for any other reason. 

 

G. Simultaneous display.  City may elect to display the work of more than one Artist or 

Organization in Initial Point Gallery at any time, at the City’s sole discretion.  The manner 

and arrangement of the display(s) in Initial Point Gallery shall be determined by the Gallery 

Curator. 

 

VI. INDEMNIFICATION, WAIVER, AND INSURANCE. 

 

A. Indemnification.  Artist shall, and hereby does, indemnify, save, and hold harmless the City 

and any and all of its employees, agents, volunteers, and/or elected officials from any and all 

losses, claims, and judgments for damages or injury to persons or property, and from any and 

all losses and expenses caused or incurred by Artist or Artist’s servants, agents, employees, 

guests, and/or invitees. 

 

Page 400

Item #25.



 

 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 4 

B. Waiver.  Artist shall, and hereby does, waive any and all claims and recourse against City, 

including the right of contribution for loss and damage to persons or property arising from, 

growing out of, or in any way connected with or incident to Artist’s performance of this 

Agreement, whether such loss or damage may be attributable to known or unknown 

conditions, except for liability arising out of the tortious conduct of City or its officers, 

agents or employees.  

 

C. Insurance Artist’s responsibility.  City shall not provide insurance to cover loss, theft, or 

damage of artwork displayed in Initial Point Gallery or to cover any activity undertaken by 

Artist in the furtherance of Artists’ rights or obligations described herein.  Insurance of the 

artwork; of the Artist’s person, property, or interests; and/or of the Artist’s employees or 

agents shall be the sole responsibility of Artist.  Artist shall obtain all necessary insurance as 

may be required in order to protect Artist’s insurable interests for its rights and obligations 

described within this Agreement, including, but not limited to, liability insurance, automobile 

insurance, worker’s compensation insurance, and/or insurance of the artwork to be displayed 

in Initial Point Gallery. Artist shall bear any and all risks of, and actual, loss of, theft of, 

and/or damage to the artwork prepared for, transported to, transported from, installed or hung 

in, and/or displayed in Initial Point Gallery. 

 

VII. TERMINATION. 

 

A. Termination for cause.  If City determines that Artist has failed to comply with or is in 

default of any term or condition of this Agreement, violated any of the covenants, 

agreements, and/or stipulations of this Agreement, falsified any record or document required 

to be prepared under this Agreement, engaged in fraud, dishonesty, or any other act of 

misconduct in the performance of this Agreement; or if either Party willfully or negligently 

defaults in, or fails to fulfill, its material obligations under this Agreement; the other Party 

shall have the right to terminate the Agreement by providing written notice to the defaulting 

party of its intent to terminate, and shall specify the grounds for termination.  The defaulting 

party shall have two (2) calendar days, not including Sundays or federal holidays, after the 

other party mails such notice to cure the default.  If the default is not cured within such 

period, this Agreement shall be terminated immediately upon mailing of written notice of 

termination. 

 

B. Termination without cause.  City may immediately terminate this Agreement for any 

reason at any time without prior notice to Artist.  

 

C. Termination upon death or incapacity of Artist.  This Agreement shall automatically 

terminate upon the death or incapacity of Artist.   

 

D. Non-waiver.  A waiver of any breach or default of any provision of this Agreement shall not 

be construed as a waiver of a breach of the same or any other provision hereof. 

 

VIII. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

 

Page 401

Item #25.



 

 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 5 

A. Relationship of Parties.  It is the express intention of Parties that Artist is an independent 

party and not an employee, agent, joint venturer, or partner of City.  Nothing in this 

Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of 

employer and employee between Artist and City or between Artist and any official, agent, or 

employee of City.  Both parties acknowledge that Artist is not an employee of City.  Artist 

shall retain the right to perform services for others during the term of this Agreement. 

 

B. Compliance with law.  Throughout the course of this Agreement, Artist shall comply with 

any and all applicable federal, state, and local laws. 

 

C. Non-Discrimination. In fulfilling or exercising any right or obligation under this Agreement, 

Artist shall not discriminate against any person as to race, creed, religion, sex, age, national 

origin, sexual orientation or any physical, mental, or sensory disability. 

 

D. Entire agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the Parties.  

This Agreement supersedes any and all statements, promises, or inducements made by either 

party, or agents of either party, whether oral or written, and whether previous to the 

execution hereof or contemporaneous herewith.  The terms of this Agreement may not be 

enlarged, modified or altered except upon written agreement signed by both parties hereto.   

 

E. Agreement governed by Idaho law. The laws of the State of Idaho shall govern the validity, 

interpretation, performance and enforcement of this Agreement.  Venue shall be in the courts 

of Ada County, Idaho. 

 

F. Cumulative rights and remedies. All rights and remedies herein enumerated shall be 

cumulative and none shall exclude any other right or remedy allowed by law. Likewise, the 

exercise of any remedy provided for herein or allowed by law shall not be to the exclusion of 

any other remedy. 

 

G. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not 

be affected. 

 

H. Successors and assigns.  Artist shall not subcontract or assign any of Artist’s obligations 

under this Agreement that require or that may require Artist’s artistic talent or expertise.  

Artist may subcontract or assign obligations that do not require Artist’s artistic talent or 

expertise.  All of the terms, provisions, covenants and conditions of this Agreement shall 

inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon, each party and their successors, assigns, 

legal representatives, heirs, executors, and administrators. 

 

Page 402

Item #25.



Page 403

Item #25.



 

 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 1 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT: 

DISPLAY OF ARTWORK IN INITIAL POINT GALLERY, MERIDIAN CITY HALL 

 

This ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT: DISPLAY OF ARTWORK IN INITIAL POINT 

GALLERY, MERIDIAN CITY HALL (“Agreement”) is made on the ____ day of ___________, 

20___ (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Meridian, a municipal corporation 

organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and Julie Clemons, an individual person 

(“Artist”).  (City and Artist may hereinafter be collectively referred to as “Parties.”) 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires that public art will be a component of Meridian City Hall 

by the display of artwork in Initial Point Gallery, an art gallery on the third floor of Meridian 

City Hall, the address of which is 33 E. Broadway Ave., Meridian, Idaho (“Initial Point 

Gallery”); 

 

WHEREAS, the Meridian Arts Commission (“Commission”) recommends to the 

Meridian City Council that Artist’s artwork be displayed in Initial Point Gallery; 

 

WHEREAS, the Meridian City Council accepts such recommendation and directs the 

Commission to work with Artist to establish a display of Artist’s artwork in Initial Point Gallery; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge that Meridian City Hall is primarily a place of 

public business, that Initial Point Gallery is a public place, and that while the City seeks to 

encourage artistic expression and public dialogue, the City must simultaneously ensure that 

Meridian City Hall is a place where citizens, employees, and visitors of diverse ages and 

perspectives feel welcome and comfortable;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 

of which is hereby acknowledged and agreed, and in consideration of the mutual promises and 

covenants herein contained, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 
 

Artist shall personally deliver artwork to Initial Point Gallery, on November 4, 2022, at such 

time as is specified by the Gallery Curator.  Artist shall be responsible for installing such artwork 

on November 4, 2022, at the direction of the Gallery Curator; shall allow the display of such 

work in Initial Point Gallery from November 4, 2022 through Deember 2, 2022, in accordance 

with the terms of this Agreement; and shall be responsible for removal of such artwork on 

December 2, 2022, at such time as is specified by the Gallery Curator. 

 

II. COMPENSATION AND SALE OF ARTWORK. 

 

A. No compensation.  Artist shall display Artist’s artwork in Initial Point Gallery at the 

pleasure of the Meridian City Council.  City shall not provide compensation to Artist for 

services, work, and/or any activity undertaken pursuant to or related to this Agreement. 

 

B. Sale of artwork.  Artist may, at the direction of and in the manner established by the Gallery 

Page 404

Item #25.



 

 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 2 

Curator, passively offer the artwork on display in Initial Point Gallery for sale.  No price 

shall be displayed on or be proximate to any piece on display in Initial Point Gallery.  City 

personnel shall not facilitate in any way the sale of Artist’s work; any transaction related to 

the sale of artwork shall be handled solely by Artist.  Artist acknowledges the Commission’s 

request that Artist voluntarily donate to the Commission twenty percent (20%) of proceeds 

from any artwork sold due to its display in Initial Point Gallery.  Upon the sale of a piece of 

artwork on display in Initial Point Gallery, Artist may remove such artwork from the Gallery, 

provided that Artist replaces the removed piece with another piece of artwork within twenty-

four (24) hours of such removal.  Artist shall coordinate the removal, replacement, and/or 

substitution of any and all artwork with the Gallery Curator prior to such activity. 

 

III. TIME OF PERFORMANCE. 

 

Artist shall provide services described in this Agreement in a timely manner, as described herein.  

Artist acknowledges and agrees that time is strictly of the essence with respect to this 

Agreement, and that the failure to timely perform any of the obligations hereunder shall 

constitute a default of this Agreement. 

 

IV. INSTALLATION. 

 

A. Coordination with Curator.  Prior to the installation, removal, replacement, and/or 

substitution of the display in Initial Point Gallery or any portion or component thereof, Artist 

shall coordinate any and all such activity with the Gallery Curator.  Artist shall be 

responsible for contacting the Gallery Curator at least thirty (30) days prior prior to the date 

of delivery of artwork to Initial Point Gallery to confirm details regarding the installation, 

removal, publicity, and promotion of the exhibit.  Artist’s failure to affirmatively contact the 

Gallery Curator as required by this paragraph shall constitute a default of this Agreement.   

 

B. Inspection of display.  Prior to or after installation, the Gallery Curator and/or the City may 

inspect and/or review the artwork proposed by Artist for display in Initial Point Gallery to 

ensure compliance with all criteria set forth in the most recent Call to Artists issued for Initial 

Point Gallery, and the Application and Acknowledgements Form completed by Artist, as 

well as to ensure that such artwork may be safely and appropriately displayed in Initial Point 

Gallery.  If the Gallery Curator or the City concludes that the display or any portion or 

component thereof does not meet the criteria set forth in these enumerated documents, does 

not reflect artwork as described to the Commission or the Gallery Curator, or cannot be 

safely and/or appropriately displayed in Initial Point Gallery, the Gallery Curator or the City 

may require the immediate removal of such artwork from Initial Point Gallery.  Further, the 

Gallery Curator or the City may require the immediate removal of such artwork from Initial 

Point Gallery where such removal serves the best interest of the City. 

 

V. DISPLAY. 

 

A. Original artwork.  Artist warrants that any and all artwork provided by Artist for display in 

Initial Point Gallery shall be, and is, original work conceived and created by Artist. 

 

Page 405

Item #25.



 

 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 3 

B. Photographs of artwork.  City may photograph the artwork displayed in Initial Point 

Gallery, as City may desire for purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information.  

Where practicable and to the extent of City’s authority, Artist shall be acknowledged on each 

such photograph to be the creator of the original subject thereof, provided that photographic 

reproductions of artwork shall not be identified as or represented to be the finished artwork. 

 

C. Use of Artist’s name.  Artist hereby conveys to City permission to use Artist’s name for 

purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information, without violation of Artist’s 

rights of privacy or any other rights Artist may possess under this Agreement, provided that 

City shall not use Artist’s logo, if any, for any purpose without the express, written 

permission of Artist. 

 

D. Use of City’s name.  City hereby conveys to Artist permission to use City’s name for 

purposes of advertising, marketing, and public information, without violation of City’s rights 

of privacy or any other rights City may possess under this Agreement, provided that Artist 

shall not use City’s logo for any purpose without the express, written permission of the 

Mayor’s Chief of Staff. 

 

E. Removal of artwork by City.  City shall have the right to remove Artist’s artwork from 

public display at any time and for any reason.  Such removal may be temporary or permanent 

in nature.  Where such artwork is or is intended to be removed from public display for longer 

than forty-eight (48) hours, City shall notify Artist in the manner set forth herein.  While it is 

intended that Artist’s artwork will be displayed in Initial Point Gallery for the period set forth 

herein, this period may be shortened by City for any reason, without notice to the Artist. 

 

F. Removal of artwork by Artist.  Artist shall coordinate with the Gallery Curator the 

removal, replacement, and/or substitution of any and all artwork prior to such activity, 

whether such activity is necessary due to the sale of a piece or for any other reason. 

 

G. Simultaneous display.  City may elect to display the work of more than one Artist or 

Organization in Initial Point Gallery at any time, at the City’s sole discretion.  The manner 

and arrangement of the display(s) in Initial Point Gallery shall be determined by the Gallery 

Curator. 

 

VI. INDEMNIFICATION, WAIVER, AND INSURANCE. 

 

A. Indemnification.  Artist shall, and hereby does, indemnify, save, and hold harmless the City 

and any and all of its employees, agents, volunteers, and/or elected officials from any and all 

losses, claims, and judgments for damages or injury to persons or property, and from any and 

all losses and expenses caused or incurred by Artist or Artist’s servants, agents, employees, 

guests, and/or invitees. 

 

B. Waiver.  Artist shall, and hereby does, waive any and all claims and recourse against City, 

including the right of contribution for loss and damage to persons or property arising from, 

growing out of, or in any way connected with or incident to Artist’s performance of this 

Agreement, whether such loss or damage may be attributable to known or unknown 

Page 406

Item #25.



 

 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 4 

conditions, except for liability arising out of the tortious conduct of City or its officers, 

agents or employees.  

 

C. Insurance Artist’s responsibility.  City shall not provide insurance to cover loss, theft, or 

damage of artwork displayed in Initial Point Gallery or to cover any activity undertaken by 

Artist in the furtherance of Artists’ rights or obligations described herein.  Insurance of the 

artwork; of the Artist’s person, property, or interests; and/or of the Artist’s employees or 

agents shall be the sole responsibility of Artist.  Artist shall obtain all necessary insurance as 

may be required in order to protect Artist’s insurable interests for its rights and obligations 

described within this Agreement, including, but not limited to, liability insurance, automobile 

insurance, worker’s compensation insurance, and/or insurance of the artwork to be displayed 

in Initial Point Gallery. Artist shall bear any and all risks of, and actual, loss of, theft of, 

and/or damage to the artwork prepared for, transported to, transported from, installed or hung 

in, and/or displayed in Initial Point Gallery. 

 

VII. TERMINATION. 

 

A. Termination for cause.  If City determines that Artist has failed to comply with or is in 

default of any term or condition of this Agreement, violated any of the covenants, 

agreements, and/or stipulations of this Agreement, falsified any record or document required 

to be prepared under this Agreement, engaged in fraud, dishonesty, or any other act of 

misconduct in the performance of this Agreement; or if either Party willfully or negligently 

defaults in, or fails to fulfill, its material obligations under this Agreement; the other Party 

shall have the right to terminate the Agreement by providing written notice to the defaulting 

party of its intent to terminate, and shall specify the grounds for termination.  The defaulting 

party shall have two (2) calendar days, not including Sundays or federal holidays, after the 

other party mails such notice to cure the default.  If the default is not cured within such 

period, this Agreement shall be terminated immediately upon mailing of written notice of 

termination. 

 

B. Termination without cause.  City may immediately terminate this Agreement for any 

reason at any time without prior notice to Artist.  

 

C. Termination upon death or incapacity of Artist.  This Agreement shall automatically 

terminate upon the death or incapacity of Artist.   

 

D. Non-waiver.  A waiver of any breach or default of any provision of this Agreement shall not 

be construed as a waiver of a breach of the same or any other provision hereof. 

 

VIII. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

 

A. Relationship of Parties.  It is the express intention of Parties that Artist is an independent 

party and not an employee, agent, joint venturer, or partner of City.  Nothing in this 

Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of 

employer and employee between Artist and City or between Artist and any official, agent, or 

Page 407

Item #25.



 

 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 5 

employee of City.  Both parties acknowledge that Artist is not an employee of City.  Artist 

shall retain the right to perform services for others during the term of this Agreement. 

 

B. Compliance with law.  Throughout the course of this Agreement, Artist shall comply with 

any and all applicable federal, state, and local laws. 

 

C. Non-Discrimination. In fulfilling or exercising any right or obligation under this Agreement, 

Artist shall not discriminate against any person as to race, creed, religion, sex, age, national 

origin, sexual orientation or any physical, mental, or sensory disability. 

 

D. Entire agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the Parties.  

This Agreement supersedes any and all statements, promises, or inducements made by either 

party, or agents of either party, whether oral or written, and whether previous to the 

execution hereof or contemporaneous herewith.  The terms of this Agreement may not be 

enlarged, modified or altered except upon written agreement signed by both parties hereto.   

 

E. Agreement governed by Idaho law. The laws of the State of Idaho shall govern the validity, 

interpretation, performance and enforcement of this Agreement.  Venue shall be in the courts 

of Ada County, Idaho. 

 

F. Cumulative rights and remedies. All rights and remedies herein enumerated shall be 

cumulative and none shall exclude any other right or remedy allowed by law. Likewise, the 

exercise of any remedy provided for herein or allowed by law shall not be to the exclusion of 

any other remedy. 

 

G. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not 

be affected. 

 

H. Successors and assigns.  Artist shall not subcontract or assign any of Artist’s obligations 

under this Agreement that require or that may require Artist’s artistic talent or expertise.  

Artist may subcontract or assign obligations that do not require Artist’s artistic talent or 

expertise.  All of the terms, provisions, covenants and conditions of this Agreement shall 

inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon, each party and their successors, assigns, 

legal representatives, heirs, executors, and administrators. 

 

I. Notice. Any and all notice required to be provided by the Parties hereto, unless otherwise 

stated in this Agreement, shall be in writing and shall be deemed communicated upon 

mailing by United States Mail, addressed, if to the Artist, to the address written below, and if 

to the City, to: 33 E. Broadway Avenue, Meridian, Idaho, 83642.  Either party may change 

its respective mailing address by giving written notice of such change in the manner herein 

provided. 

 

J. City Council approval required.  The validity of this Agreement shall be expressly 

conditioned upon City Council action approving the Agreement.  Execution of this 

Page 408

Item #25.



 

 

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT – INITIAL POINT GALLERY DISPLAY      PAGE 6 

Agreement by the persons referenced below prior to such ratification or approval shall not be 

construed as proof of validity in the absence of Meridian City Council approval. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the 

Effective Date written above. 

 

ARTIST:      

 

 

__________________________________ 

Julie Clemons 

 

Address: __________________________________ 

 

  __________________________________ 

 

Phone:  __________________________________ 

 

E-mail: __________________________________      

  

         

 

CITY OF MERIDIAN: 

 

 

BY: __________________________________ 

Robert E. Simison, Mayor 

 

 

Attest: ______________________________ 

 Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

4012 W. Nez Perce St.

Boise, ID 83705

208 859-6733

julie@julieclemons.com

Page 409

Item #25.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: License and Indemnity Agreement Between City of Meridian and Coastline 
Equipment for 2022 Public Works Week Mini Heavy Equipment Rodeo

Page 410

Item #26.



Page 411

Item #26.



Page 412

Item #26.



Page 413

Item #26.



Page 414

Item #26.



Page 415

Item #26.



Page 416

Item #26.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Task Order 10567 to JUB Engineers, Inc. for Water and Sewer Replacement at
E. Idaho Ave. from NE 3rd St. to 6th St. for the Not-to-Exceed Amount of $225,515.00

Page 417

Item #27.



 

 

 

MEMO TO CITY COUNCIL 
Request to Include Topic on the City Council Agenda 

From: Sandra Ramirez Meeting Date: 4/5/2022 

Presenter: N/A Estimated Time: N/A 

Topic: Approval of Task Order 10567 – Water & Sewer Replacement  
 

Recommended Council Action: 

Approval of Task Order 10567 to JUB Engineers, Inc. for Water and Sewer Replacement at E Idaho 
Ave. from NE 3rd St.- 6th St. for the Not-to-Exceed amount of $225,515.00 and authorize the 
Procurement Manager to sign the Purchase Order for the Not-to-Exceed amount of $225,515.00.  

Background: 

The Task Order is in conjunction with the current Master Agreement dated October 1, 2019.  

Page 418

Item #27.



Task Order 10567 Water and Sewer Replacement      Page 1 of 13 
JUB Engineers, Inc. 
 

TASK ORDER NO. 10567 
 

Pursuant to the  
   

MASTER AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  
BETWEEN 

 
CITY OF MERIDIAN (OWNER) AND JUB ENGINEERS, INC. (ENGINEER) 

 
This Task Order is made this ___ day of March 2022 and entered into by and between 
the City of Meridian, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of 
Idaho, hereinafter referred to as “City”, and accepted by JUB ENGINEERS, INC., 
hereinafter referred to as “Engineer” pursuant to the mutual promises, covenant and 
conditions contained in the Master Agreement (category 2c) between the above-
mentioned parties dated October 1, 2019.  The Project Name for this Task Order is as 
follows: 
 

WATER AND SEWER REPLACEMENT –  
E IDAHO AVE. NE 3RD TO 6TH ST 

 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING-SUMMARY 

The CITY plans to implement water and sewer improvements in East Idaho Avenue 
between Meridian Road and NE 6th Street.  This project conforms to the CITY’s overall 
objective of decommissioning existing alley sewers in the downtown area.  Overall, this 
project will construct approximately 2,800 lineal feet of 8-inch collection sewer and 
1,500 lineal feet of 8-inch water main.  Potentially some 2,400 lineal feet of alleyway 
sewer could be abandoned.  This project may potentially involve 66 sewer service 
reroutes to new or existing sewers.  Overall project goals for the water and sewer 
improvements include the following and are generally identified on the Project Overview 
Map.     

• Preliminary Cost of Service Evaluation (Sewer):  The initial phase of the project 
will evaluate costs and feasibility of turning services on building fronting E. Idaho 
Avenue between Meridian Road and NE 2nd Street in comparison with 
rehabilitating the existing alley sewer in-place.  New sewer was constructed in E. 
Idaho Avenue between Meridian Road and Main Street to serve development on 
the south side of E. Idaho Avenue.  This area is heavily urbanized and costs for 
rerouting services will likely be high.   

• E. Idaho Ave. between Meridian Rd. and Main St. (Sewer):  Depending on the 
findings of the above, sewer services on the north side of E. Idaho will be 
rerouted to the existing sewer in E. Idaho Avenue.  Buildings fronting the 
southwest corner of Main Street and East Idaho will also be served.   

Page 419

Item #27.



Task Order 10567 Water and Sewer Replacement      Page 2 of 13 
JUB Engineers, Inc. 
 

• Main Street between Pine Avenue and Broadway Avenue (Sewer):  New 
collection sewer in Main Street will likely be required to serve properties that front 
Main Street, north and south of E. Idaho Avenue.     

• E. Idaho Ave. between Main Street and NE 6th Street (Sewer): Extend new 
collection sewer from Main Street to NE 6th Street and reroute services on homes 
fronting East Idaho Street.   

• NE 5th Street between Pine and Broadway (Sewer):  Services will be connected 
to the existing sewer main in NE 5th Street south of Pine Avenue.  These include 
(823 NE 5th, 830 NE 5th, 438 E Idaho, and 506 E Idaho).  Extend new collection 
sewer south of E. Idaho Ave. to pick up properties on NE 5th Street (731, 720, 
714, 704).        

• E. Idaho between NE 2nd and NE 3rd (Water):  Pothole the water main to verify 
the pipe size near the NE 2nd intersection and on both sides of the abandoned 
water main. If the pipe is 6-inch or smaller and/or cast iron, water main will be 
replaced with 8-inch main and new services and meters will be added.   

• E. Idaho between NE 3rd and NE 6th (Water):  Extend new 8-inch water main to 
NE 6th Street along with services and meters and make interconnections at each 
intersection.   

The CITY’s goal is to design these improvements in FY22-23.    

SCOPE OF WORK 
 
Task 1 – Project Administration 

1. Kickoff Meeting:  Attend a kick-off meeting with the CITY for the purpose of 
discussing the project approach, obtaining available information, landowner 
coordination and determining project schedule.   

 
2. Progress Meetings: Attend regular progress meetings during the design phase 

with the CITY as needed throughout the project to discuss project status, provide 
budget status summaries, present deliverables, and receive direction from the 
CITY.  It is assumed that four (4) such meetings will be required at the various 
project deliverable stages.    
 

3. Project Administration and Tracking.  Monitor team progress, action item lists, 
task deadlines, items needed from CITY; provide documentation, subconsultant 
administration, and monthly updates to project team and CITY as needed. 

 
Task 2 – Feasibility Review (Sewer Service Meridian Rd to NE 2nd St) 

1. Feasibility Review:  J-U-B will preliminarily evaluate the feasibility of turning 
services to East Idaho Avenue between Meridian Road and NE 2nd Street. This 
will involve field review of the approximately 24 services in these two blocks and 
potentially meeting with the landowners.  The preliminary evaluation will be 
based on available aerial imagery, site reconnaissance, and review of record 
information.  Preliminary estimates of cost will be prepared for major work 
elements and compared with costs to rehabilitate the existing alley sewers. A 

Page 420

Item #27.



Task Order 10567 Water and Sewer Replacement      Page 3 of 13 
JUB Engineers, Inc. 
 

summary memo will describe the evaluation findings, challenges, concept costs 
and compare relative benefits and disadvantages with rehabilitating the existing 
sewer in-place.  A meeting with the CITY will be held to discuss CITY’s review 
comments and determine which alternative to move forward into the design 
phase.     

 
Deliverables 

• Alternatives exhibit map and summary narrative with conceptual cost estimates.   
 
Task 3 – Topographic Survey and Base Mapping  

1. Survey and Base Mapping:  J-U-B shall complete a topographic survey along the 
proposed project limits as defined below. At this time, it is not known if the existing 
sewer between Meridian Road and NE 2nd Street will remain in-service or if it will be 
abandoned. Survey and base mapping is provided under Task 7 in the area between 
Meridian Road and Main Street.       

 
A. Research and Utility Request:  Research available land monuments, plats, 

records of survey, and rights-of-way on the project sites.  J-U-B shall contact 
utility companies prior to survey via Dig-line to request available utility 
mapping.  Utilities will be shown to the extent they are visible in the field or 
located by the utility or Owner.     

 
B. Survey Control Establish survey control along the alignment using: 

horizontal coordinate system, NAD 1983 translated to the Ada County G.I.S. 
system, and vertical control based on NAVD 1988.  Land monuments will be 
located and shown where found from visual observations during the field 
survey.  Temporary construction benchmarks (T.B.M.’s) will be established on 
each block of the site. 

 
C. Topographic Survey:  Complete topographic survey along the project limits. 

The level of detail for the topographic survey will be commensurate with open 
trench replacement to locate visual physical features, such as fences, utility 
poles, surfacing, utilities to the extent that they are found or field located by 
the utility companies, edge of pavement, face of curb, sidewalks,  signal 
poles, signs, mail boxes, water meter boxes, water valves,  large trees,  and 
include monuments of record and physical survey of monuments and property 
pins that are found.  Width of survey will extend from ROW to ROW on: 1) E. 
Idaho Avenue from NE 3rd Street to NE 6th Street; 2) Main Street 
approximately 200 feet north and south of E. Idaho Avenue; and 3) NE 2nd 
Street approximately 200 feet south of E. Idaho Avenue.  Home or building sill 
elevations fronting the new collection sewers will be established and 
referenced in the sewer and service line design.  Building cleanouts as visible 
in the field will be located.  The presence of basements will be visually 
determined while this work is being completed.  

 

Page 421

Item #27.



Task Order 10567 Water and Sewer Replacement      Page 4 of 13 
JUB Engineers, Inc. 
 

D. Base Mapping:  Prepare topographic mapping in Civil 3D 2021 at a 1” = 20’ 
scale, 11”x17”.  Topographic features will be depicted using standard 
symbols.  Topographic features will be shown on the design plans.  Locations 
(X & Y coordinates) and elevations of local TBMs will be shown.  Street ROW 
will be shown based on the CITY’s G.I.S. mapping. Water system and water 
service will be shown based on CITY’s G.I.S. mapping and as marked by the 
CITY in the field.  Storm drainage systems will be referenced based on 
ACHD’s available G.I.S. information and field survey of visible storm drainage 
facilities.   Roadway will be cross-sectioned at 50’ to 100’ intervals, on 
centerline, edge of pavement, gutter, top of curb and natural ground near 
ROW.  Property addresses and ownership will be shown from available GIS 
information adjacent to the project corridor.   

Task 4 – Preliminary and Final Design Services 
At this time, it is not known if the existing alleyway sewer between Meridian Road and NE 
2nd Street will remain in-service or if it will be abandoned. This task provides preliminary 
and final design for the new collection sewer from Main Street to NE 6th Street, segments 
on Main Street, NE 2nd Street, and NE 5th Street as described in the project 
understanding.  Additional services Task 7 provides design services for service 
connection to the existing sewer between Meridian Road and Main Street.       

 
1. 30% Preliminary Design:   
 

A. Review Existing Data, Information:  J-U-B shall review CCTV inspection 
video on the existing alley sewers adjacent to East Idaho Avenue.  The review 
shall be used to determine approximate location of existing services 
connections at the main.  In addition, major structural deficiencies in the 
existing sewer will also be logged for possible incorporation into the project to 
maintain the viability of the existing sewers until abandonment can occur. A 
review log will be prepared summarizing the CCTV and the approximate 
locations of the service connections will be shown on the base mapping.   

 
B. Preliminary Design of Sewer Alignment: J-U-B shall complete preliminary 

design of the vertical and horizontal alignments of the collection sewer.  The 
preliminary design profile shall include an allowance for service rerouting and 
known basements containing water services.  The properties of apparent 
controlling service lines will be identified based on length of service line, depth 
of service connection at existing sewer, and presence of basement with sewer 
services.  Horizontal alignment shall consider ACHD and City corridor 
compliance, sanitary separation and constructability.  

 
C. Preliminary Sewer Plan/Profile: A preliminary review roll-plot shall be 

prepared showing base mapping, approximate location of existing service 
connections on existing mains, preliminary determination of grade controlling 
services, approximate service line location from sewer main to street ROW, 
vertical profile, known utilities, horizontal alignment showing new manhole 
locations, etc.   

Page 422

Item #27.



Task Order 10567 Water and Sewer Replacement      Page 5 of 13 
JUB Engineers, Inc. 
 

D. Water Main Investigation:  Coordinate with and retain the services of a 
private utility locating contractor to pothole the existing water main on E. Idaho 
Avenue between NE 2nd Street and NE 3rd Street. This investigation work will 
determine the size and pipe material type of the existing water main. Two 
pothole locations are anticipated using a vacuum excavator. CITY personnel 
will be onsite during the locating work to field measure approximate location, 
depth and identify water main type and size.   

 
E. Preliminary Water Main Alignment:  Evaluate the E. Idaho Avenue corridor 

from NE 2nd Street to NE 6th Street to sanitary clearances, constructability, 
maintaining water service along with other design considerations. The water 
main alignment will be shown on the preliminary sewer plan and profile roll plot 
sheet.     

 
F. J-U-B will meet with the CITY to review the preliminary plan and profile and 

gather CITY input on the preliminary design.  Additional or missing information 
on subject properties or services shall be identified for final design at the review 
meetings.  Review meetings are accounted for under Task 1.    
 

2. 75% Complete Design Package:   
 

A. Final Design: J-U-B shall revise the conceptual alignment and profile based on 
the CITY’s review comments and complete 75% final design of the selected 
sewer alignment and water main extension.  Design shall include locating the 
landowner’s preferred location of the sewer service connection at the street 
ROW.  Design of the collection sewer profile will be based on an assumed 
service line routing on the private property; however, only the sewer service 
line from the collection sewer to street ROW will be designed and shown on the 
plans.  Design shall incorporate utility corridor compliance, service connections, 
manhole connections or replacement, utility separations, utility conflicts, sewer 
abandonment where applicable, constructability, construction access, 
excavation depths, minimization of pavement repair and impacts to traffic and 
adjoining properties. Sewer abandonment plans shall be prepared on an 
overall plan sheet.   Water main design shall include new water services from 
the main to the existing water boxes, main connection details, valving, thrust 
restraints and related details.  Pavement section shall be based on ACHD’s 
standards for local roads.  Known utility or non-potable water crossing will be 
indicated on the plans.  Prepare a draft water valve closure plan in coordination 
with Water Department staff.       

B. Construction Plans:  Plan and profile sheets will be prepared showing 
proposed sewer, sewer service connections, surface repair, manhole 
replacements or connections, existing sewer connections, water improvements, 
surface repair and other pertinent details.  Plans will be 11”x17” with a 1” =20’ 
or similar scale.  Details will utilize CITY and ISPWC standard drawings as 
applicable.  

Page 423

Item #27.



Task Order 10567 Water and Sewer Replacement      Page 6 of 13 
JUB Engineers, Inc. 
 

C. ESC Plan:  J-U-B will prepare an ESC plan per the CITY ESC plan 
requirements and standards for initial review by the CITY’s Environmental 
Division.  The CITY’s ESC requirements will be incorporated into the technical 
specifications.  

D. Traffic Control Performance Plan:  J-U-B will prepare an overall traffic control 
plan with typical intersection crossing plan.  The intent is for the Contractor to 
reference the performance requirements shown on the plan and modify as 
required for the construction sequencing, phasing and to secure agency 
(ACHD and CITY) approvals. 

 
E. Water Main Closure Plan:  An overall water shutoff plan will be prepared with 

water department staff input.    
 
F. Technical Specifications:  Prepare revisions to the most current versions of 

the standard specifications (2020 ISPWC and Meridian’s Supplemental 
Specifications and Standard Drawings) for the project.  Special provisions 
shall be developed for specialty work items in conformance with ISPWC 
formatting.  

  
G. An opinion of probable construction cost and preliminary bid schedule will be 

prepared.   
H. A senior engineer will perform a QC of the plans and technical specifications. 

J-U-B will submit the 75% review package to the CITY for review and 
comment.  One (1) set of plans will be submitted to the utility companies for 
informational purposes. J-U-B will meet with the CITY to review submittal 
package and receive comments and direction from Public Works staff on the 
project. 

3. 90% Complete Design Package (Agency Review):   
 

A. Final Design: J-U-B shall revise the alignment, profile and details based on the 
CITY’s 75% review comments as applicable.  Complete final design of the 
collection sewer and water main extension by addressing pertinent issues with 
the alignment, profiles, service line stub-out locations or depths, ACHD/CITY 
corridor compliance, constructability, surface disturbance, sanitary separations, 
utility conflicts, excavation depths, and other pertinent design issues.  Finalize 
the sewer abandonment plans.  Pavement section shall be based on ACHD’s 
standards for local roads.  Known utility or non-potable water crossing will be 
indicated on the plans. 

 
B. Construction Plans:  Plan and profile sheets will be prepared showing 

proposed sewer, sewer service connections, surface repair, manhole 
replacements or connections, existing sewer connections, surface repair and 
other pertinent details.  Plans will be 11”x17” with a 1” =20’ or similar scale.  
Details will utilize CITY and ISPWC standard drawings as applicable.  

 

Page 424

Item #27.



Task Order 10567 Water and Sewer Replacement      Page 7 of 13 
JUB Engineers, Inc. 
 

C. ESC:  Revise the 75% ESC plans per CITY’s comments and incorporate final 
plan modifications.  The City Environmental Division will approve the plan.  

 
D. Traffic Control Performance Plan: Revise the 75% review TCP per CITY 

comments and finalize plan design. Prepare technical specifications for  
 
E. Water Main Closure Plan:  An overall water shutoff plan will be prepared with 

water department staff input.    
 
F. Technical Specifications:  Prepare revisions to the most current versions of 

the standard specifications (2020 ISPWC and Meridian’s Supplemental 
Specifications and Standard Drawings) for the project.  Special provisions shall 
be developed for specialty work items in conformance with ISPWC formatting.   

 
G. An opinion of probable construction cost and preliminary bid schedule will be 

prepared.   
 
H. A senior engineer will perform a QC of the plans and technical specifications. 
 
I. J-U-B will submit the 90% review package to the CITY and the agencies (Task 

5) for review and comment.  The CITY will provide full review can comments 
from the Community Development Divisions as appropriate.  One (1) set of 
ESC plans will be submitted to CITY’s Environmental Division.  One (1) set of 
plans will be submitted to the utility companies for informational purposes. J-U-
B will meet with the CITY to review submittal package and receive comments 
and direction from Public Works staff on the project.   
 

4. 100% Final Design and Project Manual Package (QLPE Review, Bid Ready):   
 

A. J-U-B will incorporate CITY and agency review comments (as applicable) and 
revise the Construction Plans, Technical Specifications, and ESC.   

B. Update opinion of probable construction cost and preliminary bid schedule.   
C. J-U-B will submit electronic copies of the 100% (Bid Ready) submittal 

package for CITY QLPE review and approval.  If revisions are necessary, J-
U-B will incorporate and resubmit submittal the package. 

Deliverables 
• 30% Complete Preliminary Sewer and Water Plan/Profile Roll-plot, (2) copies at 

scale TBD.  
• Four (4) copies of 75% review package, plans, specifications, cost estimate. 
• Electronic pdf copies of the Final (100% QLPE, Bid Ready) Plans and Technical 

Specifications, and final opinion of probable construction cost.  Hard copies if 
required will be provided by the CITY.  

• Four (4) copies of 90% review package, plans, specifications, opinion of probable 
construction cost estimate. 

Page 425

Item #27.



Task Order 10567 Water and Sewer Replacement      Page 8 of 13 
JUB Engineers, Inc. 
 

• Technical specifications in word format for CITY review and editing.  
 

Task 5 – Landowner and Business Coordination 
The budget for this task assumes a level of effort (labor hours) to provide the services 
outlined below.  The number of meetings, coordination time, landowner contacts and 
involvement is unpredictable and will vary.  The anticipated level of effort is shown on 
Attachment A for the budget shown.  Additional budget may be required if an increase in 
the landowner outreach or coordination effort is needed.   

 
1. Public Outreach:   
 

A. J-U-B, with CITY input, shall design and prepare a project flyer with agreed 
upon messaging which will be distributed to all residents, businesses, and 
impacted properties, before the service line coordination meetings.  The flyer 
will have J-U-B and CITY contact information that interested parties can call for 
additional information. A J-U-B public involvement professional will serve as the 
primary point-of-contact, available at all-time to answer questions and address 
stakeholder concerns.  

 
B. Meetings: Additional stakeholders’ outreach will occur with impacted 

businesses, neighborhood/home-owner associations; emergency services; and 
development/property owners.  Follow up meetings or correspondence may be 
required for some landowners and businesses throughout all project phases.  
J-U-B public involvement professional shall conduct site meeting or follow up 
telephone calls with those residents or businesses responding to the project 
flyer distributed prior to the design phase. Meetings notes shall be prepared 
summarizing discussions and copied to the CITY PM. 

 
C. Prior to construction, an additional project flyer is suggested to be distributed 

and will be provided under subsequent additional services task order. 
 

2. Services Coordination and Routing:  J-U-B shall assist the CITY with landowner 
coordination on the project during the design phase which will include the 
following:    

 
A. Right of Entry Letter:  J-U-B will create a right of entry form and project 

vicinity map for CITY review and approval.   The form will have J-U-B and City 
contact information that interested parties can call for additional information 
along with the anticipated timeline to complete the work. All landowner mailings 
will be sent by the CITY. 

 
B. Landowner Meetings for Service Line Routing and Water Meter 

Replacements:  J-U-B will visit each property and meet with each landowner 
(approximately 66) to determine approximately where the existing sewer 
service exits the building, preferred routing of the new sewer service line and 
determination if basements are present.  In addition, J-U-B will coordinate with 

Page 426

Item #27.



Task Order 10567 Water and Sewer Replacement      Page 9 of 13 
JUB Engineers, Inc. 
 

affected landowners on the new water meter replacements.  J-U-B, in 
conjunction with the landowner and CITY staff, will develop a preferred corridor 
for the new sewer service line.  Sewer service depth at the existing structures 
shall be estimated from existing mainline invert elevations at the observed 
service connections from the CITY’s CCTV and assumed grade to the 
structure.  Approximate ground elevation at the building’s connection point will 
be estimated from the sill elevation established in Task 3.   Photo images will 
be used to document each corridor, building service connection location, and 
physical features.  A topographic survey shall not be provided, nor is an 
exhaustive investigation on features such as underground utilities, landscaping 
sprinkler systems, etc. included in this scope of work.  A map sheet shall be 
prepared for each service line showing approximate connection location, 
routing, topographic survey within street ROW, parcel boundary and 
approximate home footprint taken from Ada County GIS aerial 
photogrammetry, property images of service line routing, and other pertinent 
information.   Accompanying the map sheet will be service line corridor images 
edited to identify the preferred corridor and point of connection at the building.  
The map sheet and corridor images for each service line routing shall be 
placed in an Appendix with the Technical Specifications.    
 
Scope of the meetings and service line re-routing will vary for each parcel. The 
anticipated level of effort is shown on Attachment A.  
 

Deliverables 
• Project design and pre-construction informational flyers and a tracking log 

summarizing comments received and meeting notes.   
• Right-of-entry form 
• A project tracking log will be kept to summarize discussions and feedback.   
• Service line map sheet and corridor images for each service line in electronic pdf 

format for inclusion with the Technical Specifications for the deliverables in Task 
4.    
 

Task 6 – Agency Coordination and Permitting 
1. ACHD Coordination and Permitting 
 

A. Coordinate alignments with the Ada County Highway District (ACHD) to establish 
acceptable corridor and surface repair on East Idaho Avenue and the affected 
cross streets.   

 
B. Submit 90% Plans to ACHD for review and approval.   
 

2. Irrigation/Drainage Water Users or District Review and Coordination 
 

A. J-U-B will research the project corridor for irrigation and drainage facilities where 
the proposed improvements may cross or impact.  J-U-B will review available 
records and make inquires on ownership of such water users or sub-irrigation 

Page 427

Item #27.



Task Order 10567 Water and Sewer Replacement      Page 10 of 13 
JUB Engineers, Inc. 
 

districts and advise the CITY if permitting or additional coordination is required.  
An adjustment to the task budget may be required if formal permitting or licensing 
process is determined.      

 
Task 7 – Additional Services 
The following services will only be initiated if specifically authorized by the CITY.   

1. Sewer Service Rerouting (Meridian Road to NE 2nd Street) Survey and Design 
If the CITY elects to abandon existing alleyway sewers between Meridian Road and 
NE 2nd Street, as determined in Task 2, J-U-B will complete the following additional 
services:  
 
A. J-U-B shall complete topographic survey and base mapping on East Idaho 

Avenue between Meridian Road and Main Street.  Scope of the service will be 
defined in Task 3.  

B. Preliminary and final design of sewer service connections will be completed in 
accordance with Task 4, between Meridian Road and NE 2nd Street.   

C. Services coordination and routing will be completed for landowners on the 
approximately 24 services along these two blocks of sewer in accordance with 
the services outlined in Task 5.  

 
2. Water Main Design (NE 2nd Street) Survey and Design 

If the water main investigation (Task 4.1.D) determines that this existing main is not 
suitable in size or material, J-U-B will complete the following additional services:  
 
A. J-U-B shall complete preliminary and final design of the new water main, water 

services and meter replacements between NE 2nd Street and NE 3rd Street in 
accordance with the scope outlined in Task 4.    

ASSUMPTIONS 
 

While preparing our scope of services and fee schedule, we have made the following 
assumptions: 
 
1. City will provide Consultant with the following: 

a) Record drawings of the existing sewer in East Idaho Avenue, Pine Avenue, 
Split-Corridor water and sewer project, and other available development 
projects in the area.  

b) Information on sewers within the alleys in the project areas including CCTV 
inspection video of existing alley sewers, Pine Avenue sewer, E. Idaho 
Sewer in the project area. Additional CCTV may be required and provided 
by the CITY depending on date and quality of existing CCTV.    

c) GIS shape files or CAD drawings of existing utilities along the project 
corridor.   

Page 428

Item #27.



Task Order 10567 Water and Sewer Replacement      Page 11 of 13 
JUB Engineers, Inc. 
 

d) Provide approximate burial depth measurement for existing water mains in 
the project area.  
 

2. The City will: 
a) Provide on-going review of J-U-B’s work and timely consideration of policy 

issues with a time acceptable to the CITY and J-U-B.   
b) Pay for all permits and fees needed for the project that are not provided by 

the General Contractor (GC).   
c) Provide project manager to serve as a liaison with other City departments 

to facilitate the project reviews and approval process.  
d) Provide a liaison with the Engineer for business and residential outreach.  

Assist the Engineer with landowner coordination for the placement of new 
sewer service stub-outs, and general project coordination.  The CITY will 
provide all mailing costs to the landowners.  

e) Provide water department staff to be present during potholing activities to 
field measure existing water mains and establish size and material types. 

 
3. Project Assumptions: 

a) Topographic survey on private property or detailed design of each 
property’s service line on private property is not provided.  The GC will be 
responsible for the actual final design and coordination of each service line 
with the landowners.  

b) Available record drawing data or CCTV data will be used to research 
existing services lines and any stub-outs constructed as part of the Pine 
Avenue project or the E. Idaho development project between Meridian Road 
and Main Street.     

c) Exact locations of utilities are not known and may affect the alignment 
during construction.    

d) A draft traffic control plan (TCP)will be prepared for the project.  The GC 
shall review and amend the TCP per project specific construction 
sequences and submit to ACHD for approval.  

e) The disturbed area is greater than one (1) acre is size and will require a 
project specific SWPPP. These scopes of services provide an ESC plan 
which can be referenced by the GC who will prepare and execute the 
SWPPP.    

f) Full width street restoration is not included in the design.    
g) Existing sewer manholes will be abandoned in-place and include 

abandonment of mainline where accessible from the existing manhole. 
Existing service connections on existing sewer mains will not be 
abandoned, only at the re-routing point of connection where the sewer 
service exits the building. 

h) Exact locations of utilities are not known and may affect the alignment 
during construction.  No potholing is provided to confirm utility locations, 
including the exact elevation of the service line leaving the building.     

Page 429

Item #27.



Task Order 10567 Water and Sewer Replacement      Page 12 of 13 
JUB Engineers, Inc. 
 

i) Right-of-way (ROW) and parcel information will be referenced from the Ada 
County GIS base mapping.  Refer to Task 2 for assumptions regarding 
scope of services on the project research and topographical survey.     

j) J-U-B will utilize ACHD’s standard street section for the trench repair.   
k) No work in Meridian Road is anticipated with this project.  Service to 816 N. 

Meridian Road may require service to Meridian Road depending on the 
results of Task 2.  If service to Meridian is required, an addendum to these 
services will be required.   

l) Water meter sizing will be provided by the CITY.  New water service lines 
will be run from the new water main to the existing meter box. No relocation 
or replacement of meter boxes is anticipated.  New water meters will be 
provided by the CITY for installation by the Contractor. No water service 
lines will be routed from the new meter to the home or building.   

 
TIME OF COMPLETION and COMPENSATION SCHEDULE 
 
Tentatively, construction is targeted in winter 2022-23. 
 

COMPENSATION AND COMPLETION SCHEDULE 
Task Description Estimated Completion Date Compensation 

1 Project Meetings & Administration  On-going throughout other tasks. $7,564 
2 Feasibility Review  Completed within 60 calendar 

days of the NTP $9,641 

3 & 4 Topographic Survey Update & 
Final Design Services 

Completed within 150 calendar 
days as dependent on landowner 
coordination and agency 
approvals.  

$133,479 

5 Public Outreach and Landowner 
Services Coordination 

On-going as required. $47,822 

6 Agency Coordination & Permitting  On-going as required. $7,142 
7 Additional Services (Project 

Meetings & Administration) 
On-going as required. $19,867 

    
TASK ORDER TOTAL:   $225,515.00 

 
The Not-To-Exceed amount to complete all services listed above for this Task Order No. 
10567 is two hundred twenty-five thousand five hundred fifteen dollars ($225,515.00).  No 
compensation will be paid over the Not-to-Exceed amount without prior written approval 
by the City in the form of a Change Order.  No travel or expenses will be reimbursed 
through this agreement.  All costs must be incorporated in the individual tasks within the 
Compensation and Completion Schedule above. 
 
 
 
CITY OF MERIDIAN  JUB ENGINEERS, INC. 
   
   

Page 430

Item #27.



Page 431

Item #27.



Page 432

Item #27.



Page 433

Item #27.



City Of Meridian

Detailed Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Rev and Exp Report - Sandra

60 - Enterprise Fund

3590 - WW Construction Projects

From 10/1/2021 Through 9/30/2022

Amendments
Budget with 

Actual
Current Year 

Remaining
Budget 

Remaining
Budget 

Percent of 

Capital Outlay

95000 Service Line/Main 
Replacement

950,000.04 0.00 950,000.04 100.00%

10594 Waterline Replacement - E. 
State Ave. - Meridian Rd. 
to NE 2

650,000.00 0.00 650,000.00 100.00%

10594.c Water Sewer Main 
Replacement - E State Ave 
Meridian to Cathy

0.00 (23,031.42) 23,031.42 0.00%

10594.d Water & Sewer Main 
Replacement E State Ave 
Construction

0.00 428,709.16 (428,709.16) 0.00%

10917 Sewer Main Replacement - E 
Chateau N Jericho

450,000.00 3.56 449,996.44 100.00%

10917.b Sewer Water Main 
Replacement - Chateau 
Jericho Willowbrook

0.00 333,509.35 (333,509.35) 0.00%

10917.c Sewer Water Main 
Replacement - SDC 
Chateau-Jericho

0.00 9,275.97 (9,275.97) 0.00%

10936 FY19 Sewer Main 
Rehabilitation

1,565.00 (1,565.00) 3,130.00 200.00%

11032.a Sewer Main Replacement - 
NW 1st St Design

0.00 66,280.00 (66,280.00) 0.00%

11073 Sewer Main Replacement - 
Broadway Ave - NE 3rd to 
NE 6th St

68,747.00 0.00 68,747.00 100.00%

11073.a Sewer Main Replace-E 
Broadway-NE 3rd to NE 6th 
St Consult

0.00 17,423.00 (17,423.00) 0.00%

Total Capital Outlay 2,120,312.04 830,604.62 1,289,707.42 60.83%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,120,312.04 830,604.62 1,289,707.42 60.83%

Date: 3/15/22 08:09:54 AM Page: 1
Page 434

Item #27.



CONTRACT CHECKLIST

Date: REQUESTING DEPARTMENT 

Project Name:

Project Manager: Contract Amount: 

Contractor/Consultant/Design Engineer:

Is this a change order? Yes  No Change Order No. 

Fund: Budget Available (Purchasing attach report):

Department Yes  No Construction

GL Account FY Budget: Task Order

Project Number: Enhancement: Yes  No Professional Service
Equipment

Will the project cross fiscal years? Yes No Grant 

Grant #: Wage Determination Received Wage Verification 10 Days prior to bid due date Debarment Status (Federal Funded)

Print and Attach the determination Print, attach and amend bid by addendum (if changed) www.sam.gov   Print and attach

Master Agreement Category

(Bid Results Attached) Yes No (Ratings Attached) Yes No Date MSA Roster Approved:

Typical Award Yes  No

If no please state circumstances and conclusion:

Date Award Posted: 7 day protest period ends:

PW License Expiration Date: Corporation Status  

Insurance Certificates Received (Date): Expiration Date: Rating: A++

Payment and Performance Bonds Received (Date): Rating: 

Builders Risk Ins. Req'd: Yes No  

(Only applicabale for projects above $1,000,000)

Reason Consultant Selected 1 Performance on past projects

Check all that apply Quality of work On Budget

On Time Accuracy of Construction Est

2 Qualified Personnel

3 Availability of personnel

4 Local of personnel

Description of negotiation process and fee evaluation:

Date Submitted to Clerk for Agenda: By:

Purchase Order No.: Date Issued:  WH5 submitted
(Only for PW Construction Projects)

NTP Date:  

Contract Request Checklist.5.24.2016.Final

N/A N/A N/A N/A

Active-GoodstandingN/A N/A

I.                                                                                                  PROJECT INFORMATION

3/25/2021 8/1/2021

N/A

2022

3/1/2022 Public Works

Water and Sewer Replacement - E Idaho Avenue. NE 3rd to 6th St

V.                                                                                                                 BASIS OF AWARD

N/A N/A

IV.                                                               GRANT INFORMATION - to be completed only on Grant funded projects

VI.                                                                          CONTRACTOR / CONSULTANT REQUIRED INFORMATION

N/A

10/2/2019

March 29, 2022

VIII.                                                                            AWARD INFORMATION 

Approval Date

Enter Supervisor Name Date Approved
Clint Dolsby 3/4/2022

VII.                                          TASK ORDER SELECTION   (Project Manager to Complete)

I reviewed the proposed design work hours and they were in line with what is needed for this project.  

N/A

Award based on Low Bid Highest Ranked Vendor Selected

$225,515Vicki Ly

If yes, has policy been purchased?

JUB Engineers, Inc

III.                  Contract TypeII.                      BUDGET INFORMATION   (Project Manager to Complete)

60

60

3590

10567

TASK ORDER

2C

RFP / RFQBID

Page 435

Item #27.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Housing, Public 
Facility, and Infrastructure Project Recommendations for Program Year 2022

Page 436

Item #28.



 
 

Community Development Department  ◼  33 E. Broadway Avenue Meridian, ID 83642 

Phone 208-884-5533  ◼  Fax 208-888-6854  ◼  www.meridiancity.org 

 
MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD 

 
DATE:  March 28, 2022 
 
FROM:  Crystal Campbell, Community Development Program Coordinator 
 
TO:  Robert Simison, Mayor 
  Treg Bernt, Council Member 

Joe Borton, Council Member  
Luke Cavener, Council Member  
Brad Hoaglun, Council Member  
Jessica Perreault, Council Member  
Liz Strader, Council Member 

   
CC: David Miles, Chief of Staff; Emily Kane, Deputy City Attorney; Chris Johnson, City 

Clerk 
 
RE: CDBG Housing, Public Facility, and Infrastructure Notice of Intent 

Recommendations - Revised 
   
1. Background 
The Meridian Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program opens two competitive 
applications each year.   

• Public Service Application – available from April 1 to April 30.   

• Housing, Public Facility, and Infrastructure Application – requires a higher level of review to 

ensure projects are eligible and viable, so it has an added Notice of Intent (NOI) to apply 

requirement.  If the project appears to be a good fit, the organization will be invited to complete 

the full application.  The NOI is available from March 1 to March 15 and the complete 

application is available from April 6 to May 6. 

2. Housing, Public Facility, and Infrastructure Applicants 
 
The Program Year 2022 NOI’s have been received and evaluated using: 1) Project Eligibility 
Determination to ensure the project meets the basic federal guidelines; 2) Pre-Award Risk 
Assessment to determine the level of risk associated with the project; and, 3) Notice of Intent 
Evaluation to determine if the project falls within the guidelines of the Consolidated Plan.   
 

Page 437

Item #28.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 
NOI Recommendations 

2 | P a g e  

 

Applications are divided into separate categories for those addressing housing and those 
addressing public facility and infrastructure needs.  The funds for each category are separate, so 
projects are only competing for funds in the same category.  

 Housing Projects  

 

Public Facility/Infrastructure Projects 

 
 

Homebuyer Assistance
NeighborWorks Boise

•Provide down payment, closing costs, and principle buy down assistance for low income, first time 
homebuyers, purchasing affordable homes within Meridian city limits.

•Eligibility Determination:  Eligible 

•Pre-Award Risk Assessment: 25 (Medium Risk = 21-30)

•Notice of Intent Evaluation: 175 points 

Homeowner Repair
NeighborWorks Boise

•Provide funding to rehabilitate owner-occupied homes for households within Meridian City limits that 
meet the eligibility requirements.

•Eligibility Determination: Eligible 

•Pre-Award Risk Assessment: 29 (Medium Risk = 21-30)

•Notice of Intent Evaluation: 161 points

Franklin Road and SW 5th Streetlights
Meridian Public Works

•Add streetlights where lighting doesn't currently exist.

•Eligibility Determination: Eligible

•Pre-Award Risk Assessment: 29 (Medium Risk = 21-30)

•Notice of Intent Evaluation: 161 points

Landing Subdivision Streetlights
Meridian Public Works

•Install/modernize streetlights where the existing lighting is insufficient.

•Eligibility Determination: Eligible

•Pre-Award Risk Assessment: 29 (Medium Risk = 21-30)

•Notice of Intent Evaluation: 161 points

Roof Repair
Meridian Food Bank

•Replace current roof that has water and wind damage

•Eligibility Determination: Eligible

•Pre-Award Risk Assessment: 44 (High Risk = 31+)

•Notice of Intent Evaluation: 146 points

Page 438

Item #28.



Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 
NOI Recommendations 

3 | P a g e  

 

3. Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends the following projects be invited to complete the application: 

• NeighborWorks Boise Homebuyer Assistance 

• NeighborWorks Boise Homeowner Repair 

• Meridian Public Works Streetlights (two separate projects) 

• Meridian Food Bank Roof Repair 

Completed applications will be scored and ranked by a Scoring Committee and included in the 
PY22 Action Plan, which will then be presented to Council for approval.  If there is not enough 
funding for all of the projects, those that are ranked lower will be included in the PY22 Action 
Plan as backup projects. 
 
4. Council Decision 
Staff is asking Council to approve the recommendations above when this memo is submitted on 
the consent agenda at the April 5, 2022 Council Work Session meeting.  All projects that are 
invited to complete the full application will be included in the PY22 Action Plan unless there are 
extenuating circumstances. 
 
5. Next Steps 
Below is the timeline for projects included in the PY22 Action Plan:  
 

 

Page 439

Item #28.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Resolution No. 22-2320: A Resolution of the Mayor and the City Council of 
the City of Meridian, Appointing Steve Cory, Jo Greer, Pam Jagosh, Megan Larson, John Nesmith, 
and Walter Steed to the Meridian Districting Committee; Directing the City Clerk to Convene the 
Meridian Districting Committee as Soon as Practicable; Directing the City Clerk to Post Meridian 
Districting Committee Agendas and Minutes on the City of Meridian’s Website; Directing the City
Clerk to Post the Census Data to be Used by the Meridian Districting Committee on the City of 
Meridian’s Website; Establishing a Date for the Meridian Districting Committee to Transmit the 
Meridian Districting Plan to the City Clerk; and Providing an Effective Date

Page 440

Item #31.



APPOINTMENTS TO MERIDIAN DISTRICTING COMMITTEE AND RELATED ACTIONS   

 

CITY OF MERIDIAN RESOLUTION NO. 22-2320 

 

BY THE CITY COUNCIL: BERNT, BORTON, CAVENER, 

HOAGLUN, PERRAULT, STRADER 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCL OF THE CITY OF 

MERIDIAN, APPOINTING STEVE CORY, JO GREER, PAM JAGOSH, MEGAN LARSON, 

JOHN NESMITH, AND WALTER STEED TO THE MERIDIAN DISTRICTING 

COMMITTEE; DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK TO CONVENE THE MERIDIAN 

DISTRICTING DISTRICT AS SOON AS PRACTICABLE; DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK 

TO POST MERIDIAN DISTRICTING COMMITTEE AGENDAS AND MINUTES ON THE 

CITY OF MERIDIAN’S WEBSITE; DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK TO POST THE 

CENSUS DATA TO BE USED BY THE MERIDIAN DISTRICTING COMMITTEE ON THE 

CITY OF MERIDIAN’S WEBSITE; ESTABLISHING A DATE FOR THE MERIDIAN 

DISTRICTING COMMITTEE TO TRANSMIT THE MERIDIAN DISTRICTING PLAN TO 

THE CITY CLERK; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

  WHEREAS, Meridian City Code section 1-7-11(A) establishes the Meridian Districting 

Committee; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, Meridian City Code section 1-7-11(C)(1) requires the Mayor to appoint, with 

the approval of the City Council, members of the Meridian Districting Committee; and, 

   

WHEREAS, Meridian City Code section 1-7-11(C)(1) requires the City Clerk to perform 

certain tasks concerning the Meridian Districting Committee; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN, IDAHO: 

 

 Section 1. That, pursuant to Meridian City Code section 1-7-11(C)(1), Steve Cory, Jo Greer, 

Pam Jagosh, Megan Larson, John Nesmith, and Walter Sneed are hereby appointed to a seat on the 

Meridian Districting Committee, with a term to expire on September 1, 2022. 

 

 Section 2. That, pursuant to Meridian City Code section 1-7-11(C)(1), the City Clerk is 

hereby directed to convene the Meridian Districting Committee as soon as practicable. 

 

 Section 3. That, pursuant to Meridian City Code section 1-7-11(C)(1), the City Clerk is 

hereby directed to post Meridian Districting Committee agendas and minutes on the City of 

Meridian’s website. 

 

 Section 4. That, pursuant to Meridian City Code section 1-7-11(C)(1), the City Clerk is 

hereby directed to post the federal census data to be used by the Meridian Districting Committee on 

the City of Meridian’s website. 

 

Page 441

Item #31.



APPOINTMENTS TO MERIDIAN DISTRICTING COMMITTEE AND RELATED ACTIONS   

 Section 5. That, pursuant to Meridian City Code section 1-7-11(E)(4), the Meridian 

Districting Committee is hereby directed to transmit the Meridian Districting Plan to the City Clerk 

no later than June 28, 2022. 

 

 Section 6. That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption 

and approval. 

 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Meridian, Idaho, this 5th day of April, 2022. 

 

APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Meridian, Idaho, this 5th day of April, 2022. 

 

 

       APPROVED: 

 

 

              

       Mayor Robert E. Simison 

ATTEST:   
 

By:          

 Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

Page 442

Item #31.


	Top
	Item #1.	MIN 2022-03-15 City Council Work Session
	Work Session Minutes

	Item #2.	MIN 2022-03-15 City Council Regular Meeting
	Regular Meeting Minutes

	Item #3.	MIN 2022-03-22 Work Session
	2022-03-22 Work Session

	Item #4.	MIN 2022-03-22 Regular Meeting
	2022-03-22 Regular Meeting

	Item #5.	ESMT-2022-0144 Apex Northwest Subdivision No. 1 Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement No. 1
	Easement

	Item #6.	ESMT-2022-0145 Apex Northwest Subdivision No. 1 Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement No. 2
	Easement

	Item #7.	ESMT-2022-0136 Chukar Ridge Subdivision Emergency Access Easement Agreement
	Easement

	Item #8.	ESMT-2022-0137 2054 Everest Office Water Main Easement
	Easement

	Item #9.	ESMT-2022-0154 Roaring Springs East Expansion Water Main Easement No. 1
	Easement

	Item #10.	ESMT-2022-0155 Roaring Springs East Expansion Water Main Easement No. 2
	Easement

	Item #11.	ESMT-2022-0150 Shelburne South No. 1 & 2 Sanitary Sewer Easement No. 3
	Easement

	Item #12.	ESMT-2022-0148 TM Crossing Subdivision No. 5 Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement No. 1
	Easement

	Item #13.	ESMT-2022-0149 TM Crossing Subdivision No. 5 Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement No. 2
	Easement

	Item #14.	ESMT-2022-0119 Topgolf Water Main Easement
	Easement

	Item #15.	FP Graycliff Estates Subdivision No. 2 FP-2022-0005
	Memo
	Staff Report

	Item #16.	FP Skybreak No. 1 FP-2021-0058
	Memo
	Staff Report

	Item #17.	ORDER TM Center No. 1 FP-2022-0009
	Order

	Item #18.	FFCL Budget Blinds Subdivision SHP-2022-0003
	Findings

	Item #19.	FFCL Heron Village Expansion H-2021-0027
	Findings

	Item #20.	FFCL Moberly Rezone H-2021-0089
	Findings

	Item #21.	FFCL Victory Commons SHP-2022-0002
	Findings

	Item #22.	DA Development Agreement (H-2021-0095 Inglewood Commercial) between the City of Meridian and James Peterson for property located at 3330 E. Victory Road, Meridian, Idaho.
	Agreement
	Exhibit A

	Item #23.	DA Development Agreement (H-2021-0101 Meridian U-Haul Moving and Storage) between the City of Meridian and Amerco Real Estate Company on property located at 1230 and 1270 E. Overland Road, Meridian, Idaho.
	Agreement
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B

	Item #24.	DA Development Agreement (H-2021-0052 Bright Star Care Meridian) between the City of Meridian and Brightstar Meridian Road, LLC for property located at 3336 and 3340 N. Meridian Road, Meridian, Idaho.
	Agreement
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B

	Item #25.	AGMT Artist Acceptance Agreements for Display of Artwork in Initial Point Gallery
	5 - Acceptance Agreement_WASD_signed
	7- Acceptance Agreement_Josh Udesen_signed
	8- Acceptance Agreement_Connie Wood_signed
	8- Acceptance Agreement_Hendershot_signed
	8- Acceptance Agreement_Monte Stiles_signed
	10- Acceptance Agreement_Melissa Reche'_signed
	11- Acceptance Agreement_Flynn Day_signed
	11 - Acceptance Agreement_Julie Clemons_signed

	Item #26.	AGMT License and Indemnity Mini Heavy Equipment Rodeo Agreement with Coastline for Public Works Week Expo 2022
	Memo
	Agreement

	Item #27.	TO Task Order 10567 – Water & Sewer Replacement
	Council Memo
	Task Order
	Purchase Requisition
	Budget
	Contract Checklist

	Item #28.	CDBG NOI Recommendations
	Memo

	Item #29.	Commission Update: MAC
	Item #30.	Commission Update: HPC
	Item #31.	RESO 22-2320 Meridian Districting Committee
	Resolution 22-2320

	Item #32.	FD 7/8 Bid Update
	Bottom

